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OVERVIEW

The Authority has pleasure in presenting the Third
Annual Report of the Authority in terms of Section
20 of the IRDA Act, 1999. The Report encapsulates
the performance of the Authority during the year
2002-03, including inter-alia, the efforts aimed at
the promotion and the development of the insurance
business in the country. The ensuing paragraphs briefly
cover the activities of the Authority during the financial
year 2002-03. A more detailed presentation is made
in Parts | to IV. Part | covers the policies and programmes
of the Authority; Part Il covers the review of working
and operations of the Authority; Part Ill covers the
statutory functions of the Authority enshrined in the
section 14 of the IRDA Act, 1999; and Part IV covers
the organisational matters. Part V carries the Concluding
Remarks.

Initiation of insurance reforms in
the insurance sector:

The genesis of the reforms process in the insurance
sector can be traced back to the wide ranging
recommendations made by the Malhotra Committee
on insurance reforms, culminating in the enactment
of the IRDA Act, 1999 and amendments to Insurance
Act, 1938, LIC Act, 1956, General Insurance Business
Nationalisation Act, 1972 (GIBNA) followed by further
amendments made in the Insurance Act, 1938 and

to the GIBNA, in the financial year 2002-03.

Consequent upon the constitution of Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority (The Authority)
on 19th April, 2000, the Authority has nofified a
set of regulations for the insurance industry (list of
regulations is placed at Annexure ). These regulations
have established the ground rules and standards for
the entire gamut of insurance activities including the
role, responsibilities and functions of the insurance
companies, including the intermediaries, and the
manner in which the interests of the policyholders
are to be protected. These regulations have also
undergone some modifications to reflect the
requirements of the evolving operating and economic
environment.

The process of reforms initiated with the constitution
of the Authority has been smooth, and has facilitated
constructive transition from controlled monopoly to
liberated and open insurance business environment.
It has combined the skills of public sector insurance
companies with those of the private insurers who have
set up operations in collaboration with the foreign
joint partners in both life and non-life sectors. This
process has ushered in various types of innovations
in the insurance products specifically designed to meet
the customers' needs. This transition has been received
well by the insurance consumers in particular and
the various stakeholders in the industry.

Industry statistics:

Life insurers:

The premium underwritten by life insurance companies
during the financial year 2002-03 was Rs.55738.11
crore, as against Rs.50094.44 crore in the previous
year, recording a growth of 11.27 per cent. Prior
to this, the year 2001-02 witnessed a growth of 43.54
per cent in the business underwritten by the life
insurers. LIC's share in the first year premium (including
single premium) business underwritten in the life
segment in the years 2001-02 and 2002-03 was
98.65 per cent and 94.34 per cent, respectively.
Overall, LIC accounted for 98.01 per cent of the
premium underwritten by the life insurers in the year
2002-03, as against 99.46 per cent in the year 2001 -
02. Accordingly, the share of the private players went
up from 0.54 per cent in the year 2001-02 to 1.99
per cent in the year 2002-03.

As per statistics available for the first half of the current
financial year 2003-04, the first year premium
underwritten by the life insurers was Rs.5435.96 crore.
The market share of LIC in premium underwritten
and policies during the first half of the financial year
was Rs.4840.62 crore (89.05%) and 8241776
(94.32%) respectively. As against this, the twelve
private players underwrote Rs.595.34 crore (10.95%)
towards 496248 policies (5.68%).
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Non-life insurers:

The general insurance industry witnessed significant
changes, which are likely to impact the growth of
the industry in the years to come. The pace was set
with the public sector non-life insurers being de-linked
from their holding company, the General Insurance
Corporation of India (GIC). In addition, GIC - notified
as the national re-insurer, has ceased to carry out
underwriting of direct business. The financial year also
witnessed the formation of the Agricultural Insurance
Company of India Lid. (AICIL) to underwrite crop
insurance and other allied insurance business in the
country. Effectively, the crop insurance business would
be handed over to the new entity in the financial
year 2003-04.

In consonance with its new found status as the national
re-insurer, GIC has diversified into acceptance of life
re-insurance business. Another area being explored
by the Corporation is that of financial/credit
re-insurance. GIC has also been aiming at making
its presence felt in the international markets, particularly
in the Afro-asian countries, through strategic and
business tie-ups. However, there are also challenges,
with the entry of the established multi-national brokers
in the industry - these entities will put to use their
contacts for infernational re-insurance placements.

The gross premium underwritten by the non-life insurers,
during the financial year 2002-03 was Rs.15614.85
crore, including crop insurance business underwritten
by GIC, recording a growth of 23 per cent over
the previous year. The share of the public sector
insurers in the non-life segment during the financial
years 2001-02 and 2002-03 was 96.32 per cent
and 91.36 per cent, respectively. The share of eight
private players in the financial year 2002-03 was
8.64 per cent, as against six players capturing 3.68
per cent in the previous year.

The gross premium underwritten by the non-life insurers,
during the first six months of the current financial
year, 2003-04, was Rs.8081.06 crore, i.e., a growth
of 12.71% over the previous year half year premium
of Rs.7169.88 crore. The public sector insurers
underwrote premium of Rs.6973.78 crore recording
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a growth of 6.03% (Rs.6576.87 crore) over the
corresponding period in the previous year, as against
which the private insurers underwrote premium of
Rs.1107.27 crore, viz., a growth of 86.72% (Rs.593.01
crore) over the corresponding period in the previous
year.

Today the insurance industry is facing varied challenges
such as acts of terrorism, hardening of reinsurance
rates and, more importantly, coming to grip with
fundamentally changed global risk architecture. This
accompanied by weak investment returns and the
lower interest rates, over the last few years, have
also influenced the profitability of the insurers. On
the positive side, of course, the low inflation rates
have helped to keep the claims and operating costs
from running out of control. In addition, the year
2002-03 did not witness any upheaval in terms of
economic/natural disasters. While the new players
would still take time to contribute to the profitability
of the sector, being in the early phase of their
operations, the financial year provided a conducive
environment for growth. Simultaneously, the existing
public sector insurers have also taken steps to re-
position themselves in the evolving competitive market
conditions.

The intermediation process:

The reforms process has resulted in an increase in
the number of individual agents, besides introducing
the concept of corporate agency system. As at 31st
March, 2003, the number of new agents registered
with the Authority stood at 5,99,708 of which corporate
agents are 1,151, This is in addition to the 5,14,426
agents whose licenses have been renewed. The
Authority has also introduced the concept of insurance
brokers in the industry - they represent the inferests
of the insured with their specialised insurance
knowledge, skills and services to the insurance
community. The number of brokers to whom licenses
have been issued till 31st March, 2003 stood at 40
(up to October, 2003, brokering licenses numbering
125 have been issued of which 102 are direct, 19
composite and 4 are re-insurance brokers). Prior to
this, another category of insurance intermediary, viz.,
the third party administrators (Health) (TPA) were
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registered by the Authority to assist the insurers in
rendering effective service of health insurance contracts
sold by the insurers with their specialised knowledge
and experience in the health sector. As on date,
the Authority has licensed 23 TPAs.

The system of insurance surveyors and loss assessors,
as it existed in the pre-liberalised environment was
plagued with a number of issues of concern. At the
initiative of the Authority, the process of categorisation
of the surveyors and loss assessors was undertaken.
It was envisaged that categorisation on systematic
lines based on the qualification and experience would
enable these professionals to serve the insurance
industry in a more effective and professional manner.
With a view to examining the need for promoting
an Institute for Surveyors and Loss Assessors, the
Government constituted a Committee under the
Chairmanship of Mr. K.N. Bhandari, former Chairman
of New India Assurance Co. Ltd. The Committee has
since submitted its Report. The Government is in
favour of the Authority promoting the Institute of
Surveyors and Loss Assessors, which would be a self-
financing and self-regulated autonomous body on the
lines of such professional bodies as the Institutes of
Company Secretaries of India and the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. It is proposed that
the Institute will set norms and standards, conduct
examinations, undertake educational courses and
research, and enforce a code of conduct for its
members. The Institute would initially be promoted
by the Authority, and a decision to confer statutory
status to the Institute would be based on a review
of its operations. The recommendations of the
Committee are being examined.

The actuarial profession:

The role of actuaries has evolved over the years,
and more particularly, with the opening up of the
insurance sector. The profession of actuaries has
emerged to provide a competitive edge to insurers
worldwide in terms of profitable pricing of risk, corporate
strategy and in introducing innovative products. Further,
the profession has grown in terms of peer review,
where actuaries have developed a healthy spirit of
assessing or commenting upon each other's work.
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Such practices are likely to go a long way in building
up healthy professional standards. The Actuarial Society
of India (ASI) has also taken steps at developing the
profession of actuaries and to standardise practices
by issuing guidance notes. On the legislative front,
the Bill granting statutory status to the profession is
under consideration. The Authority has already offered
its comments on the draft of the said Bill, and it
is hoped that the Bill would come up for consideration
soon.

The process of reforms initiated some three years
back has some achievements to its credit. The process
of liberalisation has enhanced competition, provided
a choice to the customer, triggered innovative ways
and means to carry out insurance activities, improved
the efficiency levels of the industry, increased the
coverage of insurance in terms of density and
penetration, obligated the insurers for providing for
the needs of rural and social sectors, increased
awareness about necessity of insurance, to name a
few. However, the achievements till date need to be
built upon to further improve the efficiency of the
insurance sector, thereby reducing the costs, and
increase the penetration of the industry across the
country. The industry cannot afford to rest on its
laurels.

Review of the legislative framework:

The initiative taken by the Authority to approach the
Law Commission of India for review of the Insurance
Act, 1938 has received tremendous response from
all the stakeholders in the insurance industry. The
consultative paper issued by the Law Commission has
received appreciation and comments from several
quarters which will help the Government and the
industry in taking a comprehensive view on
consolidating the insurance related legislation into
a single codified Act of Parliament, with the legislative
powers resting with the Government of India and the
Authority vested with the regulatory mechanism for
the professional supervision and development of the
insurance industry.

The recommendations of the Law Commission are
broadly focused on issues pertaining to merging of



the provisions of the IRDA Act with the Insurance
Act, 1938 (the Act) to avoid multiplicity of legislations;
amending and updating the provisions of the Act to
meet the current needs of the insurance industry;
bringing consistency between the various provisions
placed in different sections of the Act by putting them
info a core provision relating to a particular subject/
topic; recasting certain sections so as to remove
ambiguity and to make them more specific and clear;
and defining/re-defining certain terms which are
required to be defined in the process of improving
upon the existing legislation. The Commission has
specifically focused on the need for a full fledged
grievance redressal mechanism and on raising the
limits on the fines and penalties to be levied under
the Act, so as to ensure adequate in-built deterrence
in the regulatory mechanism.

Re-visiting the tariff and non-tariff
segments:

The Tariff Advisory Committee (TAC) was established
by an amendment to the Insurance Act, 1938 (effective
June, 1969) to control and regulate the rates,
advantages, terms and conditions that may be offered
by insurers in respect of any risk or any class or
category of risks in the general insurance business.
The Chairman of the Authority is the ex-officio Chairman
of the TAC. The TAC is presently administering the
tariff in respect of certain specified segments of the
general insurance business. All other segments of
general insurance business are non-tariff and their
rates, advantages, terms and conditions are determined
by the insurers in tune with their own rating and
underwriting philosophy. The non-tariff products are
filed by the insurers with the Authority under file and
use procedures. As per the statistics furnished by
the insurers for the financial year 2002-03, non tariff
business constitutes about 25 per cent of the gross
direct premium underwritten in the non-life segment.

Given the instances of rate cutting and breach of
tariff by the insurers reported in the industry, there
is a view that de-tariffing of non-life insurance business
is a possible remedy to arrest this mal-practice in

the market. De-tariffing would address the need to
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service those consumers whose risks are better
managed, as compared to those whose assets are
loss prone - requiring a loading as against cross
subsidisation by the former. Tariffs, per se, reduce
the scope of competition, bring rigidity in the market,
discourage adaptability to the changing needs of the
insurance consumers and deprive the market of
innovation. Last but not the least, the process of de-
tariffing would motivate the industry to scientifically
put to use statistics on claims and premium, while
pricing the products. The competitive scenario would
bind the insurers to adopting long term strategies.
It may be recalled that the Malhotra Committee had
also recommended progressive de-tariffing with the
objective of limiting the tariff to only a few classes
in order to promote competition and improve
underwriting skills. More recently, the Justice Rangarajan
Committee set up in October, 2002 on the motor
insurance has recommended de-tariffing of the own
damage business of the motor portfolio under a
competitive premium setting model with a time schedule
for the change over.

Based on the decision to de-tariff motor own damage
portion w.e.f. April, 2005, another Committee has
been set up under the Chairmanship of Mr. S. V.
Mony, former Chairman, GIC, and members drawn
from public and private sector insurers and
representation from manufacturers and Ministry of
Transport, to work out the road map to be followed
for de-tariffing Motor own damage. In another
development of significance, the expert Committee
set up by the Authority under the chairmanship of
Mr. A. C. Mukherjee has recommended that immediate
steps be taken to de-tariff the entire general insurance
market by April, 2006 and has advocated adoption
of pure risk premium basis tariff for a period of two
years after April, 2006. The process of opening up
the market to free pricing would be accompanied
by adoption of prudent underwriting practices by the
insurers, enhancement of the technical capabilities
by insurance brokers, creating awareness amongst
the consumers on the likely benefits of de-tariffing
which would percolate down to them.
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Third party liability - motor insurance:

The Third Party Motor insurance is mandatory for all
registered vehicles plying on the Indian roads, under
the provisions of the Motor Vehicle Act, 1988. The
provisions of the Act require every motor vehicle in
a public place to insure against third party risk. The
underlying essence of the provision is to have an
in-built mechanism for payment of damages, by the
insurer, irrespective of the financial condition of the
driver/owner of the vehicle. Section 147 of the Act
also lays down the limits of the liability. While the
liability in respect of third party property damage is
limited, it is unlimited in case of third party bodily
injury to motor vehicle accident victims. Overall, the
Courts have taken a liberal view while paying
compensation in case of motor vehicle accidents. The
Apex Court has in one of the cases clearly reiterated
that "the determination of the quantum must be liberal,
not niggardly since the law values life and limb in
free country in generous scale". In the context of pure
economics, the ramifications for the insurance industry
are significant, as it goes against the basic principle
of indemnifying the financial loss and minimising the
risk of such a loss in relation to the sum insured.
Business figures furnished by the insurers reveal that
a major hit on incurred claims is accruing in the
context of the third party claims, impacting profitability.

While a number of alternatives have been both
suggested and examined to meet the premium
deficiency in this particular segment which has clear
connotations of subsidisation, the Rangarajan
Committee while examining the various aspects of
motor underwriting has also dealt with motor third
party liability and has recommended that the third
party liability insurance business be quarantined and
the said business be separately accounted for in the
insurers' books, as this would facilitate analysis of
the profitability or otherwise of the third party portfolio.
The Committee has also sought the Government's
initiative to review the statutory liability for third party
liability for motor vehicle accidents so as to lay down
a cap on the same, specifically given that the third
party premium is tariffed, as against which the liability
of the insurers is unlimited.
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Strengthening the self regulatory
mechanism in the insurance sector:

Regulatory mechanisms globally are moving towards
building up mechanisms for corporate governance
within the regulated entities. Such market practices
combined with the regulator's capacity to ensure a
fit and proper management, under the regulatory
mechanism can facilitate evolution of best management
practices while strengthening the regulator's role of
management by exception. Requirements of investment
committee, internal audit committee, joint statutory
auditors being appointed for not more than a specified
period are all laid down to strengthen the self regulatory
mechanisms. This, combined with industry self
disciplining mechanism, can help strengthen the industry
while at the same time weeding out detrimental market
practices. The Insurance Association of India, and
the Life Insurance and General Insurance Councils
were revived in February 2001, and have membership
drawn from the industry. These associations can
certainly draw upon the experiences and best practices
which have evolved in the rest of the world. The
industry associations can generate a consensus on
such issues as infroducing concepts of additional
disclosures, pool statistical data to facilitate pricing
of products, evolve better risk management system
and set codes of best practice for market conduct.
While some initiatives have been taken, a lot of
additional ground needs to be covered. A particular
case in point is the training imparted to the agency
force, not just to improve their technical competence
but to also instill ethical best practices. Self regulation
supported by a quick market response for over
stepping, can have effective deterring impact.

The Authority is charged with the responsibility of
promoting and regulating professional organisations
connected with the insurance and re-insurance business.
A code of conduct for agents and the insurance
intermediaries has been laid down to ensure that the
affairs of insurance intermediaries are conducted in
such a manner as to safeguard the inferests of the
various stakeholders. Instances of misconduct would
be dealt with. In addition, given that the insurance
industry forms a part of financial system, the Authority



along with the Reserve Bank of India and the Securities
and Exchange Board of India has set up a mechanism
for real time monitoring of the financial intermediaries.
This mechanism would need to be further strengthened
in the times to come.

Consumer grievances redressal system:

With the opening up of the insurance industry and
the entry of new players, awareness about their rights
has steadily been increasing amongst the public at
large, and they have aggressively come forward to
demand for the same. This is a fact not only for
the insurance customers but also for the public at
large and the consumers' rights organisations have
been slowly gaining in strength.

The existing mechanism for redressal of the grievances
of the policyholders provides for three different forums
viz., the in-house grievance redressal cells of the
insurers; the Consumer Courts which provide for a
three tier approach in resolving consumer disputes,
the district forum, the state forum and the national
forum, with different pecuniary jurisdictions; and the
Civil Courts. In addition, there is the mechanism of
Insurance Ombudsman to deal with personal lines
of complaints, up to claims of Rs.20 lakh. With a
view to protecting the inferests of the policyholders,
the Authority too, at its own initiative, has constituted
the in-house Consumer Grievance Cell (CGC), as
a mechanism parallel to the regulations framed for
protecting the interests of the policyholders. While
the regulations lay down the benchmarks for processing
the claims and mandate every insurer to have in place
proper procedures and effective mechanism to address
complaints and grievances of policyholders efficiently,
the Consumer Grievance Cell has been established
to bring to the fore the deficiencies noticed in the
functioning of the registered insurers in providing
services under the insurance contracts sold by them.
The Cell has been set up to assess the problems
faced by the policyholders and their level of expectation/
satisfaction in the context of the opening up of the
insurance sector. The insurers are expected to not
only come up to the standards of servicing established
but also make the requisite disclosures in both the
proposal form and in the policy document. The CGC
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is keen to ensure that the promises made are duly
kept by the insurers. It may be pertinent to mention
that the quality of underwriting practices would only
enable the insurers to accelerate the process of claims
settlement.

The Law Commission, which is in the process of
reviewing the legislative framework for the insurance
industry, is considering various aspects for establishing
a full fledged grievance redressal mechanism including
constitution of a Grievance Redressal Authority (GRA),
appointment of adjudicating officers by the Authority
to determine and levy penalties on defaulting insurers,
insurance intermediaries and agents, and fo provide
for appeals to the Insurance Appellate Tribunal (IAT)
and for statutory appeal to Supreme Court against
decisions of IAT. The various alternatives would need
to be examined in the context of the inadequacies
in the present system, and the cost benefit analysis
of establishing such mechanisms to the industry as
a whole. It may, however, be mentioned that appraisal
of the adequacy of the grievance redressal system
would need to be a continuous exercise particularly
in an economy where customer expectations are
exhibiting an upward trend.

Sustaining the growth levels to spread
the benefits of insurance:

One of the objectives of amending the Insurance
Act in the year 2002 was to facilitate entry of
cooperative societies in the insurance sector, and to
recognise corporate agents and insurance brokers so
as to stimulate the growth of the insurance market
and to enhance the level of insurance penetration.
Other initiatives in this regard include laying down
the obligations of the insurers towards the rural and
social sectors, and spreading the message of insurance.
The Authority chalked out a program in consultation
with Prasar Bharati - for creating awareness about
insurance on the All India Radio and the Doordarshan
prime time. In addition, the publicity campaign was
also launched through the vernacular newspapers.
The initiative aimed at creating awareness about the
importance of insurance in the daily lives of the
millions in the country, and as to how it can lend
security to their future. All these initiatives have been
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taken in the context of the dismal performance of
the industry, when measured in terms of its reach.
India's share in the global insurance market is just
0.41%. Measured in terms of the premium as per
cent to the GDP at 2.71 per cent, the country stood
49th in world ranking, in the year 2001. The per
capita insurance premium in India is also very low
at US$ 11.5, as compared to both developed and
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developing countries. India is the 23rd largest insurance
market in the world and holds large potential, waiting
to be tapped judiciously. While the comparative
international statistics on insurance density and
penetration form part of the main report (refer Tables
9 (i) and (i), the statistics on insurance penetration
and density, based on industry statistics for the financial

years 1999-2000 to 2002-03 are placed below:

(Rs. in crores)

Data on Insurance Density and Insurance Penetration in India
Insurance Density (Premiums per capita
i.e., Total Insurance Premium Insurance penetration (Premium
Year Populction GDP Insurance premium Income/Population) (Rs.) as % of GDP)
(in crores) Life Non-life Total Life Non-life Total Life Non-life Total
1990-00 99.1 1936925 27224.42 9522.17 36746.59 274.72 96.09 370.80 1.41 0.49 1.90
2000-01 101.9 | 2104298 34898.47 | 10087.03 44985.5 342.48 98.99 441.47 1.66 048 2.14
2001-02 103.7 | 2296049 50094.45 | 1269492 62789.37 483.07 122.42 605.49 2.18 0.55 2.73
2002-03 105.5 2451038 55738.11 | 1433759 70075.7 528.32 135.90 664.22 2.27 0.58 2.86

*based on industry statistics
GDP ot market price

The growth in the insurance sector would also have
a spiralling impact on the economy as a whole -
be it in ferms of employment generation, improvement
in the standards of living of the populace or the growth
in the investment in the industry and infrastructure.
It may be pointed out that the investments of the
insurance industry as at 31st March, 2003 stood at
Rs.291418.36 crore, which is 11.89 per cent of the
GDP for the financial year 2002-03.

Strengthening the statistical database:

The insurance industry functions under a typical
scenario, viz., the insurance company charges a
premium for insuring a given life/asset against the
happening of a given event. This premium is charged
to cover for the claims, which may arise within a
foreseeable/unforeseeable period. The peculiar
circumstances under which the insurance industry
operates entails matching the known with the unknown.
The pricing of the products, thus, is based on the
experience of the industry, both in the life and non-
life segments. In such a scenario, the importance
of databases cannot be adequately emphasised. The
availability of data bases, particularly, in the non life
segment is dismal. The Tariff Advisory Committee

(TAC), which is the statutory body for fixing rates,
has expressed dissatisfaction time and again that the
data flow from the insurance companies has been
sketchy and inadequate. In the absence of adequate
and authentic data, it has not been possible for the
TAC to revise its tariff rates scientifically. In addition
to building up adequate data for the pricing of
products, efforts are also required to ensure that the
claims experiences are adequately tracked and shared
by the industry. Sharing of information is also a pre-
requisite to handling insurance frauds and to guard
against their perpetuation. Non-availability of statistics
would be tantamount to insurers groping in the dark
while dealing with insurance frauds. Similarly,
involvement of all the stakeholders, in the development
and maintenance of the databases, is equally significant
in the areas of agents and intermediaries, and on
the health sector.

The various possibilities that can be explored for
building up the data base include setting up the
framework as a department of the Authority, entrusting
the same to the Tariff Advisory Committee or to set
up an independent organisation to handle the same.
Already, some efforts have been initiated with the
setting up of the Mortality and Morbidity Investigation
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Bureau. Similar initiatives are proposed to be taken
to establish data warehousing facilities for the health
sector.

Risk - based supervision:

As a step forward in the process of regulating, seeking
information and on-site inspection, is the process of
risk based supervision. The first intent of supervision
is to ensure compliance with the legislative intent and
the basic framework of reporting is established to
ensure review of compliance. The on-site inspections
facilitate confirmation and address the areas of concern
to the regulator. Any financial environment, particularly
the ones existing in a liberalised environment, is ever
evolving and throws up challenges on a regular basis,
and the prudent players, including the intermediaries,
are expected to lay down management strategies to
adapt to these changes and take steps to mitigate
the risks which are thrown up in the process. Insurance
industry impacts the lives of the millions of its patrons
in the most basic way, and thus casts an additional
responsibility on the regulator, while protecting the
interests of the policyholders. The process of supervision
must thus be one of evolution adapting to the changes
in the environment in which the insurers and the
intermediaries are operating. It is in this direction
that the Authority has been issuing cautionary directives
from time to time. While the Authority is not in favour
of managing the affairs of the registered entities, it
would continue to draw their attention to the key
risk factors the industry in particular and the financial
sector in general is exposed to.
insurers are required to identify the various risks faced

Simultaneously,

by them and lay down the strategies to mitigate them.
These are required to be enumerated in the
Management Report to be furnished by the insurers
as part of the annual financial statements.

Health insurance:

Health insurance is another area of concern for the
industry. The legislative intent of laying special emphasis
on "health", while framing the regulations was to
facilitate access of the health care facilities to the
insurable population through the medium of insurance.
However, three years down the line, there has been
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no appreciable progress. While the potential is huge,
the impediments to growth need to be addressed.
Although positive signals have emanated in this segment
of insurance business, much more needs to be done.

Inspection of registered entities:

Inspection is an extension of the process that any
regulator utilises to ensure oversight over the functioning
of the entities registered by it. The process involves
oversight or keeping an eye on the industry, collecting
information, analysing that information to identify
trends and emerging risks, if any, carrying out on
site inspections of companies, reverting back to the
inspected entities on the areas of concern and
identifying remedial action that needs to be taken,
setting up time frames for completing the corrective
actions, following up on the progress for implementation
and comparing the results to the expected performance
levels.

Authority has been empowered by provisions of
Insurance Act, Section 14 of the IRDA Act and the
regulations notified by it to undertake inspections,
conduct enquiries and investigations including audit
of insurers/ intermediaries. The Authority initiated the
process of on site inspection of the insurers during
the financial year 2002-03. The inspection processes
carried on by the Authority can broadly be categorised
into two, viz., overall inspection of the insurance
companies, and targetted inspection, as to satisfy the
specific concerns/objectives of concern to the Authority.

The officers of the Authority carried out inspection
of select insurers with a view to reviewing their
operations. These audits were aimed at getting an
overview of the operations of the insurers. In addition,
special purpose audits were also carried out by a
select group of statutory auditors empanelled with
the Authority. The IRDA (Investment) Regulations lay
down the requirements to be complied with by the
insurers in respect of putting in place an investment
committee as to ensure compliance with the exposure
norms, systems to be in place to ensure prudent
investment of funds, statutory requirements for
investment in approved securities, and internal controls
to be in place to ensure compliance. Investment audit
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of insurers was carried out to review the investment
operations of the insurers. The Authority has been
utilising the services of chartered accountants to
conduct inspections in this area.

The Authority has also been undertaking inspection
of select intermediaries, agents training institutes and
third party administrators, at regular intervals. The
objective of these inspections is not fault finding but
to reassure the regulator that the operations of various
registered entities are being carried out on prudent
lines of management.

Mechanism for adjudication:

Based on the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938
the Authority has framed regulations for licensing of
various intermediaries and agents.  The requisite
regulations lay down the frame work for their education,
qualification and practical training. While elaborating
on the duties and functions, issues pertaining to code
of conduct have also been dealt with. The Authority
is also empowered to call for information and undertake
inspection of these registered entities.

The provisions of the law and the regulations framed
there under have enabling clauses for strict penalties
and fines for these entities if they fail to comply with
their duties or code of conduct, or directions of
the Authority; do not furnish any statements, documents,
accounts, returns, reports; or if the information furnished
is found to be inaccurate/ incomplete/ false. However,
mechanisms have still to evolve to provide for resolution
of disputes between and/ or their
infermediaries, although the Authority is empowered
under the IRDA Act, 1999, to adjudicate under such
While the Authority is in favour of
issues concerning industry being tackled through such
self regulatory bodies as insurance councils, and
associations of intermediaries, possibilities of sefting
up a transparent and cost effective mechanism for

insurers

circumstances.

resolution of conflicts of interests could be examined.
It may be worthwhile to examine the experiences of
regulators both within the country and abroad to
explore the various options.

Consolidation phase:

The establishment of the Authority had paved the
way for the country to fully realise the potential for
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growth in the insurance sector. The reforms introduced
in the sector have resulted in infrospection on the
part of the existing insurers as to the steps which
can be initiated to cut down costs, and introduce
new products which are tailor made to meet the
specific needs of the insured.

While the growth recorded by the insurers is impressive,
what is equally crucial is that the industry grows on
healthy lines in the fast evolving highly competitive
environment, in which the underwriting results are
likely to come under tremendous pressure in the de-
regulated market. This would be particularly challenging
as the industry moves towards a de-tariffed market.
There is, however, a need to sound a word of caution.
In trying to achieve impressive figures, the insurers
ought not to lose sight of the larger picture. Capturing
a larger share of the market is all very well, but
the strategy needs to be that of sustainable and healthy
growth. Simultaneously, the industry needs to abide
by the motto of service and the players must ensure
that the overall interests of the consumers are protected
and served.

The challenges facing the industry also include the
declining investment returns and the lower interest
rates, over the last few years which are influencing
the profitability of the insurers. On the positive side,
of course, the low inflation rates have helped to keep
the claims and operating costs from running out of
control. However, a cause for worry could be the
state of finances of the state government undertakings,
in which insurers, particularly the public sector ones,
have holdings. Provisioning adequately for the assets
which are non-performing is critical. A number of
new products have been introduced in the industry.
However, there is need to ensure that pricing of
products is based on statistical data. Be it life or
the non life segments, availability of data, and that
too accurate data is critical for the growth of the
industry. The existing scenario where in the pricing
of products is based on statistics way off the mark,
there will continue to be customers who are subsidising
the costs of the others. This cross subsidisation needs
to end sooner rather than later.

The phase of consolidation of the industry has to
also encompass increase in the penetration of insurance
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to a wider section of the society, in particular providing
cover fo the under privileged and the weaker segments
and penetrating the rural and the semi-urban areas.
The consolidation phase also has to focus on such
issues of concern as market conduct, be it for the
insurers or the intermediaries. The other crucial issue
is that of insurance frauds. Dealing with frauds and
anti-money laundering are issues of concern to the
financial sector as a whole; the insurance industry
at large, and to the Authority in particular.

The consolidation phase also has to witness the
evolution of practices of corporate governance. As
the industry moves towards an environment of pubic
funds being tapped by it, the transparency standards
will have to rise in both quantitative and qualitative
terms. The periodical returns filed with the Authority
not only have to be furnished within the timeframes
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prescribed, but must also reflect the true and correct
position.

Acknowledgements:

The Authority would like to place on record its
appreciation and sincere thanks to the members of
the Insurance Advisory Committee, the Reinsurance
Advisory Committee, Insurance Division (Ministry of
Finance), all insurers and intermediaries for their
invaluable guidance and co-operation in its proper
functioning; and to the compact team of officers and
employees of the Authority for efficient discharge of
their duties. The Authority also records its special
thanks to the members of the public, the press, all
the professional bodies and international agencies
connected with the insurance profession, for their
valuable contribution from time to time.

19



32“1 alfddes Raid
«d ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

MISSION STATEMENT

To protect the interest of and secure fair treatment to policyholders;

To bring about speedy and orderly growth of the insurance industry (including annuity and
superannuation payments), for the benefit of the common man, and to provide long term
funds for accelerating growth of the economy;

To set, promote, monitor and enforce high standards of integrity, financial soundness, fair
dealing and competence of those it regulates;

To ensure that insurance customers receive precise, clear and correct information about
products and services and make them aware of their responsibilities and duties in this
regard;

To ensure speedy seftlement of genuine claims, to prevent insurance frauds and other
malpractices and put in place effective grievance redressal machinery;

To promote fairness, transparency and orderly conduct in financial markets dealing with
insurance and build a reliable management information system to enforce high standards
of financial soundness amongst market players;

To take action where such standards are inadequate or ineffectively enforced;

To bring about optimum amount of self-regulation in day to day working of the industry
consistent with the requirements of prudential regulation.
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POLICIES AND PROGRAMMES

Risk is omnipresent in all walks of life, and prudence
requires that it is managed so as to, at least, minimise
the impact of loss, be it to property or life. Insurance
is a dynamic and growing part of the financial sector,
in both developing and the developed economies.
Nearer home, in Asia, backed by economic growth,
insurance premium has exhibited a robust growth.
Today, India is regarded as one of the two emerging
markets in the Asian region and global players are
eyeing the market to tap the opportunities. With the
markets world over becoming highly dynamic and
integrated, the opening up of the insurance sector
is yet another step in the economic reforms process
within the country to enable India to integrate with
these markets.

The insurance sector witnessed the first indication of
liberalisation in April, 2000, with the setting up of
the IRDA as a statutory body for the regulation and
development of the insurance sector. The Authority
was established with the objective of protecting the
interests of the holders of insurance policies, and to
regulate, promote and ensure the orderly growth of
the insurance industry and for the matters connected/
incidental thereto. The first few registration certificates
to private players were issued in October, 2000. The
process of de-monopolisation has opened wide vistas
with the advent of the private players. As a result,
the state owned insurers, on infrospection, have begun
reviewing their functioning and streamlining their
operations so as fo remain competitive in the emerging
scenario. That the mandate has thrust upon the
regulator the task of not only regulating the industry
— both, the insurers and the intermediaries - but also
that of developing the market, in order to disperse
the gains of insurance to every nook and corner of
the country, only heightens the promotional role of
the regulator. It is, thus, well accepted that while
aiming at achieving global standards, the insurance
industry cannot afford to lose sight of the geographical
spread and the need to provide risk cover to the
disadvantaged sections of the society.

The Authority has been bestowed the task of establishing
and promoting fair competition in the industry to fulfill
the national socio-economic aspirations in a manner
that will generate sustainable growth in the Indian
insurance market. In the final analysis, it shall propel
the national economic growth. The availability of
insurance services to the customer, particularly in the
rural, social and unorganised sectors, together with
fair pricing of these products has engaged the attention
of the Authority. The process of regulation making
has remained dynamic and has been reflective of
the changing needs of the market. The initial efforts
of the Authority have been to set up policy guidelines
in the various areas by way of prudential regulations.
These were followed up with the introduction of the
different forms of intermediation in the market to
improve the reach of insurance to consumers at large,
besides raising the levels of insurance awareness.

The review of the state of the industry and its
performance over the last year that follows has been
prepared with a view to reflecting the developments
that have taken place in the industry since its broad-
basing, and to take stock of the achievements in the
background of the parameters that have been set.

A. REVIEW OF GENERAL ECONOMIC
ENVIRONMENT

In recent months, there has been a steady build up
of the favourable economic factors which augur well
for the growth of the economy. Overall, the Indian
economy is poised for growth. The good monsoon
is likely to result in a healthy rise in agricultural output
as against a decline of 3.2 per cent in the previous
year; statistics are pointing towards recovery in the
industrial sector — during April — August, 2003, the
Index of Industrial Production (IIP) increased by
5.6 per cent as against 5.2 per cent during the
corresponding period in the previous year. There are
indications of sustained growth in the production of
basic goods, capital goods and consumer goods;
and the services sector continues fo consistently register
a healthy growth rate. Inflation is down to less than
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4 per cent, and the foreign exchange reserves have
been piling up to almost US$90 billion. The economy
is expected to grow at between 6.5 to
7 per cent during the fiscal 2003-04, which is more
than twice the growth rate expected for the world
economy at 3 per cent. The upward revision in the
projected GDP for the year 2003-04 is based on
the positive signals emanating from the performance
exhibited by the various sectors during the months
April — August, 2003. Although the exports have still
to exhibit a favorable upward movement — growth
in exports during April — September, 2003, at
10.0 per cent is US$ terms was lower than 18.0
per cent recorded during the corresponding period
of the previous year; improved prospects of global
recovery should provide fresh impetus to export growth.
Further, the imports are rising signaling a positive
trend in the manufacturing sector — imports recorded
a growth of 21.4 per cent during the first half of
the current year as against 9.2 per cent in the
corresponding period in the previous year. It is
noteworthy that increasing non-oil imports reflect
strengthening of the domestic demand. Overall, the
business expectations are positive, on the strength
of the manageable level of inflation and moderate
interest rates.

The year 2002-03 witnessed a severe drought affecting
the growth in the agricultural and allied sectors. The
decline in growth in these sectors resulted in the
overall growth in the Gross Domestic Product at
around 4.4 per cent. This is despite the growth in
the performance of the industrial and the services
sectors at a healthy 6.1 per cent and 7.1 per cent
during the year as against 3.3 per cent and
6.8 per cent, respectively in the previous year
2001-02. However, positive signs did emanate during
the second half of the financial year 2002-03, which
were particularly significant against the background
of outlook for recovery in global economic activity
and world trade remaining subdued. The other positive
factors were the overall macro-economic stability in
terms of low inflation, current market conditions and
comfortable reserves, including those of food stocks.
In addition, the buoyant inflows through invisibles
coupled with a rise in exports, enhanced the possibility
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of recording a surplus in the current account for the
second successive year. That the surge in the exports
occurred during the sluggish pace of global economic
recovery and contributed to the growth in the
manufacturing sector is particularly heartening. Further,
facilitated by the relatively lower rates of inflation,
the interest rates continued to soften during
2002-03. The leap forward in infrastructure investment,
particularly in roads and telecommunications, has
been a significant development during the year
2002-03. Today, initiatives are in place to propel
the economy on the track of an 8 per cent growth
rate in the foreseeable future.

The statistics pertaining to Gross Domestic Savings
and Investments; Financial Savings of the Household
Sector (Gross); Overall Balance of Payments; and
Macro-economic aggregates are placed at Tables 2
to 5, respectively.

However, there continued to be issues of concern,
in the year 2002-03, which centred around: the
increase in non-performing assets (NPAs) of scheduled
commercial banks, despite significant progress in
recoveries - particularly accounted for by the
non-priority sectors; subdued activity of the capital
markets—both primary and secondary. The subdued
conditions in the stock markets led to a small volume
of issuance on the primary market. This was despite
the significant structural reforms in the sector. Public
finances, both at the Centre as well as the States,
continued to be under pressure. The fiscal deficit of
the Central Government, as a proportion of GDP
which was 5.6 per cent in 2000-01, rose further
to an estimated 5.9 per cent in 2001-02. The lack
of fiscal consolidation at the State level is revealed
by a similar deterioration of their combined fiscal
deficit, again as a proportion of GDP, from 4.3 per
cent in 2000-01, to a revised estimate of 4.6 per
cent in 2001-02. The consolidated fiscal deficit of
the Centre and the States was 10.0 per cent of GDP,
according to the revised estimates for 2001-02. The
disinvestment programme of the Central Government
is running behind schedule, and is likely to result
in a shortfall in capital receipts. The high fiscal deficit
continues to complicate the task of conducting counter-
cyclical fiscal policies and augmenting outlays on the
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much-needed social and physical infrastructure, and
poverty alleviation programmes. All these are areas
which need attention as to leverage higher economic
growth levels. Gross domestic capital formation at
constant prices grew at 3.0 per cent in 2001-02,
which was considerably lower than the growth of GDP.
At current prices, gross capital formation constituted
23.7 per cent of GDP in 2001-02, which was slightly
lower than the share of 24.0 per cent observed in
2000-01, and 25.2 per cent observed in 1999-2000.
It appears that changes in stocks have been much
faster than gross fixed capital formation. Within fixed
capital formation, however, construction grew relatively
faster than gross investment in machinery and
equipment. In the public sector, there was a sharp
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increase of 7.2 per cent in capital formation in
construction. Public investment has been partly
constrained by increasing government consumption
expenditure including interest payments, subsidies,
pensions, and grants, among others. Investor sentiment
has been constrained by poor infrastructure facilities.
The requirements of the social sector, whose
development on sound principles would ensure the
spread of wealth in the country into the hands of
the deserving and needy, need to be addressed
adequately.

India’s profile, socio-economic indicators and
demographic trends and projections are placed at
Tables 1, 7 and 8 (i) and (ii).

TABLE - 1
INDIA’S PROFILE

Total Area 3287263 Sqg. Kms.

Coastline 7517 Kms.

States 29

Union Territories 6

Districts 602

Population 1.05 Billion (as on July, 2003 est.)
Urban Population 27.78%

Population Growth (decade 1991-2001) (+) 21.34%

Sex Ratio 2003 933 females per 1000 males

Density of Population 321 persons per Sg. Km.

Literacy Rates 65.38% (male 75.85%, female 54.16%)
Life Expectancy (Yr.2000) Total Population 64.90 yrs., M=64.10 yrs. F=65.60 yrs.

Source: Census of India; Economic Survey, 2002-03; National Informatics Centre; Planning Commission

of India.
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TABLE - 2
GROSS DOMESTIC SAVING AND INVESTMENT
ltem Per cent of GDP (Rs. in crores)
(at current market prices)
2001-02*|2000-01@ | 1999-00 | 1995-96 | 2001-02*| 2000-01@| 1999-00
1998-‘;8
(Average)
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1. Household Saving 22.5 21.6 20.8 17.9 | 5,15,565 4,53,641 4,02,360
of which :
a) Financial assets 11.2 10.4 10.5 9.8 | 256,647 2,17,847 2,03,702
b) Physical assets 11.3 11.2 10.3 8.1 | 258,918 2,35,800 1,98,658
2. Private Corporate Sector 4.0 4.1 4.4 4.3 92,060 86,142 84,329
3. Public Sector (2.5) (2.3) (1.0) 1.0 | (57,662 (48,022) (20,049
4. Gross Domestic Saving 24.0 23.4 24.1 23.3 | 5,449,963 | 4,91,761 4,66,640
5. Net Capital Inflow 0.2) 0.6 1.1 1.4 (4,872) 12,977 21,988
6. Gross Domestic Capital 23.7 24.0 25.2 24.7 | 5,45,091 5,04,738 | 4,88,628
Formation
7. Errors and Omissions 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 30,003 31,117 30,366
8. Gross Capital Formation 22.4 22.5 23.7 23.1 | 5,15,088 | 4,73,621 | 4,58,262
of which:
a) Public Sector 6.3 6.4 6.9 7.0 1,45,082 1,34,025 1,34,484
b) Private Corporate Sector 4.8 4.9 6.5 8.0 1,11,088 1,03,796 1,25,120
c) Household Sector 11.3 11.2 10.3 8.1 | 2,558,918 2,35,800 1,98,658

* Quick Estimates.
@ Provisional.

Source: Central Statistical Organisation.
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TABLE - 3

FINANCIAL SAVING OF THE HOUSEHOLD SECTOR (GROSS):
PERCENTAGE DISTRIBUTION
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Item 2001-02* |2000-01@ |1999-00 | 1998-99| 1997-98|1996-97 | 1995-96 | 1994-95 | 1993-94
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Financial Saving (Gross)| 100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0 |100.0 |100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0
(12.9) | (11.9) [ (12.3) [(11.9) |(11.3) [(11.6) |(10.5) |(14.4) | (12.8)
a) Currency 9.5 7.1 8.7 10.5 7.4 8.6 13.3 10.9 12.2
(1.2) (0.8) (1.1 (1.3) (0.8) (1.0) (1.4) (1.6) (1.6)
b) Deposits 37.9 42.0 | 37.5 38.8 | 46.6 | 48.1 42.5| 455 42.6
(4.9) (5.0) (4.6) (4.6) (5.3) (5.6) (4.5) (6.5) (5.4)
i) with banks 31.1 32.4 305 | 33.7 | 37.8 | 257 | 263 35.3 27.9
ii) with non-banking 2.8 4.9 3.7 3.8 3.9 16.4 10.6 7.9 10.6
companies
i) with co-operative 6.1 5.5 4.2 4.6 53 6.4 5.8 3.0 52
banks and societies
iv) trade debt (net) (2.1) (0.7) (0.8) (3.3) (0.4) (0.4) (0.2) (0.8) (1.1)
c) Shares and debentures 2.3 2.5 7.1 3.4 2.9 6.6 7.3 11.9 13.5
(0.3) (0.3) (0.9) (0.4) (0.3) (0.8) (0.8) (1.7) (1.7)
i) private corporate 1.1 1.1 3.4 1.5 1.3 3.6 6.6 8.0 7.5
business
ii) co-operative banks 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
and societies
iii) units of UTI (0.6) (0.4) 0.8 0.9 0.3 2.4 0.2 2.7 4.3
iv) bonds of PSUs 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.5
v) mutual funds 1.7 1.6 2.9 0.8 1.1 0.3 0.3 1.1 1.2
(other than UTI)
d) Claims on Government 16.8 15.6 12.1 13.6 12.9 7.4 7.7 9.1 6.3
(2.2) (1.9) (1.5) (1.6) (1.5) (0.9) (0.8) (1.3) (0.8)
i) investment in 5.7 1.7 0.9 0.7 1.6 0.4 0.4 0.1 0.4
Government securities
ii) investment in small 11.1 13.9 11.2 13.0 11.3 7.0 7.4 9.0 5.9
savings, efc.
e) Insurance funds 14.4 13.5 12.0 11.3 11.3 10.2 11.2 7.8 8.7
(1.9) (1.6) (1.5) (1.3) (1.3) (1.2) (1.2) (1.1) (1.1)
i) life insurance funds 13.9 12.9 11.3 10.6 10.6 9.5 10.4 7.2 8.0
ii) postal insurance 0.2 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.3 0.2 0.2
iii) State insurance 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5
f) Provident and pension 19.0 19.3 22.5 22.4 18.8 19.2 18.0 14.7 16.7
funds (2.5) (2.3) (2.8) (2.7) (2.1 (2.2) (1.9) (2.1) (2.1)

* Quick Estimates.

@ Provisional.

Note: Figures in brackets are percentages to GDP at current market prices.
Source: Central Statistical Organisation.
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TABLE - 4
INDIA’S OVERALL BALANCE OF PAYMENTS
Rs. In crores US $ million

ltem 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2000-01 | 2002-03 |2001-02 |2000-01
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

A. Current Account
1. Exports, f.o.b. 2,56,352 | 2,14,351 2,05,287 53,000 44,915 44,894
2. Imports, c.i.f 3,16,702 | 2,74,778 | 2,70,663 65,474 57,618 59,264
3. Trade Balance (60,350) (60,427) (65,376) | (12,474) (12,703) (14,370)
4. Invisibles, net 78,275 64,161 48,975 16,182 13,485 10,780
a) ‘Non-Factor’ Services 29,995 21,960 11,401 6,206 4,577 2,478
of which, Software Exports 46,427 36,036 29,014 9,600 7,556 6,341
b) Income (23,617) (17,467) (22,384) (4,882) (3,601) (4,832)
c) Private Transfers 69,924 57,821 58,412 14,448 12,125 12,798
d) Official Transfers 1,973 1,847 1,546 410 384 336
5. Current Account Balance 17,925 3,734 (16,401) 3,708 782 (8,590)

B. Capital Account
1. Foreign Investment, net (a+b) 21,918 31,877 27,245 4,555 6,692 5,862
a. Direct Investment of which * : 17,412 22,588 15,413 3,611 4,741 3,272
i. In India 22,575 29,192 18,414 4,660 6,131 4,029
Equity 13,091 18,658 10,964 2,700 4,095 2,400
Re-invested earnings 7,250 8,710 6,175 1,498 1,646 1,350
Other Capital 2,234 1,824 1,275 462 390 279
ii. Abroad (5,163) (6,604) (3,001) (1,049) (1,390) (757)
Equity (2,051) (2,701) (1,586) (424) (570) (344)
Re-invested earnings (2,600) (3,329) (1,076) (519) (699) (339)
Other Capital (512) (574) (339) (106) (121) (74)
b. Portfolio Investment 4,506 9,289 11,832 944 1,951 2,590
In India 4,679 9,617 12,609 979 2,020 2,760
Abroad (173) (328) (777) (35) (69) (170)
2. External Assistance, Net (11,745) 5,418 2,001 (2,460) 1,117 410
Disbursements 13,392 16,073 13,528 2,773 3,352 2,942
Amortisation (25,137) (10,655) (11,527) (5,233) (2,235) (2,532)
3. Commercial Borrowings, net (8,283) (7,476) 17,577 (1,698) (1,576) 3,737
Disbursements 13,219 12,896 41,845 2,737 2,696 9,052
Amortisation (21,502) (20,372) (24,268) (4,435) (4,272) (5,315)
4. Short Term Credit, net 4,715 (4,236) 321 979 (891) 105
5. Banking Capital of which, 39,800 26,671 3,517 8,243 5,592 811
NRI Deposits, net 13,602 13,127 10,567 2,808 2,754 2,317
6. Rupee Debt Service (2,303) (2,458) (2,763) (474) (519) (617)
7. Other Capital, net @ 16,921 793 (1,223) 3,493 158 (290)
8. Total Capital Account 61,023 50,589 46,675 12,638 10,573 10,018
C. Errors & Omissions 3,068 2,269 (2,612) 634 402 (572)
D. Overall Balance [A(5)+B(8)+C] 82,016 56,592 27,662 16,980 11,757 5,856
E. Monetary Movements (F+G) (82,016) (56,592) (27,662) | (16,980) (11,757) (5,856)
F IMF Net (115) (26)
G.Reserves and Monetary Gold (82,016) | (56,592) | (27,547) | (16,980) |(11,757) (5,830)

[ )
(Increase-, Decrease +) :
* Data on Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) are revised since 2000-01 with expanded coverage to approach international best practices.
FDI data for previous years would not be comparable with these figures.
@ Comprises mainly of leads and lags in export receipts. Other items included are funds held abroad, India’s subscription to international h
institutions, quota payment to IMF, and residual item of other capital transaction not included elsewhere.
Note : 1. Gold and silver brought by returning Indians have been included under imports, with a confra entry in private transfer receipts.

2. Data on exports and imports differ from those given by DGCI&S on account of differences in coverage, valuation and timing.
Source : Central Statistical Organisation.
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TABLE - 5
MACRO-ECONOMIC AGGREGATES (AT CURRENT PRICES)

(Rs. in crores)

Year Factor 1950-51/1960-61 1970-71| 1980-81| 1990-91| 2000-01 | 2001-02 | 2002-03
QE AE

Population

(million) 359 434 541 679 839 1019 1037 1055
GDP at factor cost 9547 | 16220 | 42222130176 | 510954 | 1917724P | 2094013 | 2236128
Consumption of fixed capital 364 944 2970 | 12288 | 53264 197856 217058

NDP at factor cost 9183 | 15276| 39252117888 | 457690 | 1719868 | 1876955 | 1998005
Indirect taxes less subsidies 387 947 3455 | 13586 | 57720 186574 202036

GDP at market prices 9934 | 17167 | 45677 | 143764 | 568674 | 2104298P | 2296049

NDP at market prices 9570 | 16223 42707 | 131474 | 515410 | 1906442 | 2078991

Net factor income from 471) (72) (284) 345 (7545) (17414) (12663)

abroad

GNP at factor cost 9506 | 16148| 41938130521 | 503409 | 1900310P | 2081350 | 2217816
NNP at factor cost 9142 | 15204 38968 | 118233 | 450145 | 1702454P | 1864292 | 1979693
GNP at market prices 98931 17095| 45393 | 144107 | 561129 | 2086884 | 2283386

NNP at market prices 9529 16151 424231131819 | 507865 | 1889028 | 2066328

Private final consumption - - -1 113213 | 381157 | 1357989 | 1489883

expenditure (PFCE)

Govt. final consumption 592 1206 4289 | 14492 | 66030 264563 294971

expenditure (GFCE)

GDP of public sector - 1609 5802 | 25525 | 128398 459635 503606

NDP of public sector - 1392 5473 | 20533 | 104087 395345

Personal disposable income# 8876| 14638 | 37891 | 120642 | 461192 | 1790828 | 1958006

GDCF 866 2470 7043 | 29230 | 149536 504738 545091

NDCF 502 1526 4073 | 16942 | 96272 306882 328033

GDS 887 1989 6649 | 27136 | 131340 491761 549963

NDS 523 1045 3679 | 14848 | 78076 293905 332905

Per capita GNP at factor 265 372 775 1922 6000 18649 20071 21022
cost (Rs.)

Per capita NNP at factor 254.7 350.3 720.3 | 1741.3 | 5365.3 | 16707.1P | 17977.7 18765
cost (Rs.)
P : Provisional

QE : Quick Estimates
AE : Advance Estimates
# . Separate data on fees, fines, etc. paid by producers are not available, and to that extent personal disposable

income is under estimated.

Source: Central Statistical Organisation.
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TABLE - 6

KEY MARKET

INDICATORS

Size of Market, Life and Non-Life

$16 billion

Total global insurance premium (as on 2001)

$2408.25 billion (-1.5% as against 2000)

Rate of Annual Growth year 2002-03

Life 11.27%

Non-life 23% (Premium underwritten in India and abroad)

Geographical Restriction for new players

None. Players can operate all over the country

Equity restriction in a new
Indian insurance company

Foreign promoter can hold upto 26% of the equity

Registration Restriction

Composite Registration not available.

Number of Registered Companies Type of Business Public Private Total
Sector Sector

Life Insurance 01 12 13

General Insurance 06 08 14

Reinsurance 01 0 01

Total 08 20 28

Life Insurers

Public Sector

New Players

1. Life Insurance Corporation of India

N — O 00N WN —

R —

. Allianz Bajaj Life Insurance Company Limited

. Birla Sun Life Insurance Company Limited

. HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited
. ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited
. ING Vysya Life Insurance Company Limited

. Max New York Life Insurance Company Limited
. Metlife Insurance Company Limited

. Om Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Co. Lid.

. SBI Life Insurance Company Limited

. TATA-AIG Life Insurance Company Limited

. AMP Sanmar Assurance Co. Ltd.

. Aviva Life Insurance Co. Pvt lid.

General

Insurers

Public Sector

New players

1. The New India Assurance Co. Lid. 1.
2. National Insurance Co. Lid.

3. The Oriental Insurance Co. Lid.
4. United India Insurance Co. Ltd.

OO0 A WN

O

10.

. ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd.

. IFFCO-Tokio General Insurance Company Limited
. Reliance General Insurance Company Limited

. Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Co. Ltd.

. TATA-AIG General Insurance Company Limited

. Cholamandalom MS General Insurance Co. Lid.
. HDFC Chubb General Insurance Co. Lid.

. Export Credit & Guarantee Corporation

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Limited

*Agriculture Insurance Company of India Limited

Re-insurer

General Insurance Corporation of India

* Granted registration in October, 2003

&—o
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TABLE - 7
ECONOMIC AND SOCIAL INDICATORS

Population in millions, 2003 1055

Surface Area in 1000 Sq. Kms. 3287

People per Sg. Km. 321

GNP in U.S Billions 2003 320

Rank in the world by GNP 11

Average Annual Growth of GNP (%) 5.3

Average Annual % Growth of GDP 4.3

Public Expenditure on health % of GDP (2001) 5.2

Public Expenditure on Education % of GDP 3.99

Infant mortality per 1000 live births 59.59 deaths / 1000 live births (2003)

Source :

Economic Survey, 2002-03; World Development Report, 2002; RBI

TABLE - 8(l)
DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS - I**

1996 2001 2006 2011

Total Population (Million) 934.22 1012.39 1094.13 1178.89
Urban Population (%) 27.23 28.77 30.35 31.99
Sex Ratio (Males per 100 Females) 107.9 107.2 106.6 106

TABLE - 8(ll)
DEMOGRAPHIC TRENDS AND PROJECTIONS - II**

1996-2001 2001-2006 2006-2011

Growth Rate of Population (% pa) 1.62 1.57 1.5
Expectation of Life at Birth (Male/Years) 62.36 63.87 65.65
Expectation of Life at Birth (Female/Years) 65.27 66.91 67.67

**Source Census Statistics
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B. APPRAISAL OF THE
MARKET

INSURANCE

The Government of India appointed a Committee
on Reforms in the Insurance Sector in April, 1993.
The constitution of the Committee was another step
in the initiatives in the area of financial reforms
covering the banking sector and the capital markets
aimed at creating a more efficient and competitive
financial system, keeping in mind the structural changes
underway in the economy at that point of time. The
issues of concern included continuance of the insurance
companies as state monopolies, with absolutely no
competition, thereby impacting the availability of
wider choices to the customer; the continuance of
Government of India as the only stake holder in the
insurance industry; re-establishment of an effective
regulatory apparatus for the insurance business once
the sector was liberalised; and a very high pre-
emption of insurance industry’s funds through
government-mandated investments. Since the financial
results of insurance companies have implications on
rates of insurance premium and returns on savings
invested in life insurance, right investment opportunities
were required to be explored by the insurance
companies; besides ensuring better management,
customer service, efficiency and competitiveness by
leveraging on information technology. The state owned
insurers had just not addressed these issues.

Today, it is a little over three years since the constitution
of the regulatory body, and there are already twenty
seven players in the market. Both the private and
public sector players are operating on a level playing
field. The private players have taken positions in the
industry, and have created a niche market for
themselves. The number of companies which were
granted registration in the financial year 2000-01
was 11; followed by another 6 in 2001-02; and 4
in 2002-03. In addition, General Insurance
Corporation (GIC) has been designated as the national
re-insurer. While eleven private sector companies had
underwritten life business during the financial year
2001-02, the number of private players competing
for business during the year 2002-03, increased to
twelve. During the same period, the number of newly
registered insurers in the non-life segment increased

to nine from six in the previous year. During the current
financial year, license has been issued to Agriculture
Insurance Co. of India Ltd. The key market indicators
for the insurance industry are placed at Table 6.

That the established foreign insurers have stepped
forward to set up operations in the country, even
as minority partners with 26 per cent equity stake,
speaks volumes of the interest the industry has generated
world wide due to the vast untapped potential. The
foreign stakeholders have brought with them
international market practices and techniques, which
would ultimately benefit the customer at large. The
entry of foreign partners has resulted in the sector
attracting foreign direct investments (FDI) to the tune
of Rs.739.19 crore as on 31¢ March, 2003 (the FDI
stood at Rs.825.44 crore as on 30" September,
2003). The paid up equity of the 27 players in the
insurance industry as on 31 March, 2003 stood af
Rs. 4172.13 crore (Refer Annexure — Xl).

The opening up of the sector has also resulted in
the players catering to the market demands of choice
and competition. Such forces which unleashed a
resurgent demand for products and innovation had
to be built on the gains of nationalisation, viz., market
spread, and the natural reach of the business across
the length and breadth of the country and its
consolidation. Besides providing affordable insurance
protection against risks, the players’ achievements
should also be assessed in terms of their sensitivity
to the needs of the market through introduction of
tailor-made products aimed at specific segments of
the society, adoption of modern practices to upgrade
technical skills, and a deeper penetration of the
insurance market in terms of gross domestic product.
Although health insurance is yet to take off in a big
way, for the first time group health products have
been introduced to the market, and the same have
been well received.

The other factors that have supported the possibilities
for increased penetration of insurance in the Indian
market are the emerging socio-economic changes,
increased wealth, education and awareness of
insurance needs. The industry, as such, is set to
emerge out of the shadows of being driven merely
by tax incentives for growth in case of the life segment,



and of the statutory insurance requirements in case
of the non-life segment. There are indications that
the advent of new players has increased both the
insurance density (premium as per capita) and the
insurance penetration (premium as a percentage of
Gross Domestic Product). Based on the figures
published by Swiss Re for the year 2001, these were
a mere US$ 11.5 and 2.71 per cent of the Gross
Domestic Product respectively. The world averages are
US$ 393.3 and 7.83 per cent, respectively for the
year 2001. India ranks 78" in terms of insurance
density, and 49™ in terms of insurance penetration.
In the year 2001, the industrialised countries generated
over 90 per cent of the global insurance premium
income in both the life and non-life segments. With
premium income of US$ 991 billion, North America
was the most important region, followed by Western
Europe (US$ 740 billion) and Oceania (US$ 36

billion). Life insurance penetration was 5.4 per cent,

32“1 alfddes Raid
«d ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

while per capita spending on life insurance was US$
1396. The Japanese spent the most on life insurance
in the year 2001 (US$ 2806), followed by the Swiss
(US$ 2716) and the British (US$ 2568). The UK had
the highest level of penetration (10.7 per cent) followed
by Japan (8.9 per cent). In non-life insurance, the
average level of penetration in the industrialised
countries was 3.6 per cent, and the average per capita
spending (US$ 919). The United States led in terms
of per capita spending (US$ 1644), followed by
Switzerland (US$ 1627). In terms of penetration, on
the other hand, Switzerland had the highest level of
penetration of 4.8 per cent, while in case of the
United States it was 4.6 per cent.

Tables 9 (i) & (i) provide the insurance penetration
and density statistics for the insurance industry in select
countries across the globe in the years 1999 1o 2001.
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TABLE - 9(I)

INSURANCE PENETRATION - INTERNATIONAL COMPARISON
Countries Insurance Penetration Insurance Penetration Insurance Penetration

(Premiums as % (Premiums as % (Premiums as %

of GDP - 1999) of GDP - 2000) of GDP — 2001)
Total | Non-life | Life Total | Non-life | Life Total | Non-life | Life
United States 8.55 4.32 | 4.23 8.76 4.28 | 4.48 8.97 4.57| 4.40
Canada 6.49 331 | 3.19 6.56 3.28 | 3.27 6.42 3.45| 2.97
Brazil 2.01 1.66 | 0.35 2.11 1.75] 0.36 2.14 1.78 | 0.36
Mexico 1.68 0.86 | 0.82 1.72 0.85| 0.86 1.81 0.95| 0.86
Chile 3.78 1.13 | 2.65 4.07 115 2.92 4.23 1.30| 2.93
United Kingdom 13.35 3.05110.30 15.78 3.07 | 12.71 14.18 3.45|10.73
Germany 6.52 3.55 | 2.96 6.54 3.55| 3.00 6.59 3.60| 3.00
France 8.52 2.82 | 5.70 9.40 2.81 6.59 8.58 2.85| 5.73
Russia 2.13 1.34 | 0.78 2.42 1.29 1.13 3.06 1.51 1.55
Japan 11.17 2.30 | 8.87 10.92 222 | 870 11.07 2.21| 8.85
South Korea 11.28 2.89 | 8.39 13.05 3.16 | 9.89 12.07 3.38| 8.49
PR China 1.63 0.61 | 1.02 1.79 0.67 | 1.12 2.20 0.86| 1.34
India 1.93 0.54 1.39 2.32 0.55 1.77 2.71 0.56| 2.15
Malaysia 3.88 1.72 | 2.16 3.72 1.59 | 2.13 5.18 1.80| 3.38
Indonesia 1.42 0.76 | 0.66 1.18 0.64 | 0.54 1.13 0.60| 0.53
South Africa 16.54 2.62 113.92 16.86 2.83 | 14.04 17.97 2.78|15.19
Nigeria 0.95 0.88 | 0.07 0.66 0.53| 0.13 0.71 0.56| 0.14
Kenya 3.26 2.48 | 0.78 2.63 1.91 0.72 2.70 1.87 1 0.82
Australia 9.82 3.39 | 6.43 9.41 3.37 | 6.04 9.15 3.44| 5.70

Source: Swiss Re, Sigma volumes 9/2000, 6/2001 and 6/2002
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Insurance Penetration (Total) — International Comparison
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INTERNATIONAL COMPARISON

Countries Insurance Density Insurance Density Insurance Density
(Premiums as per Capita (Premiums as per Capita (Premiums as per Capita
of USD - 1999) of USD - 2000) of USD - 2001)
Total | Non-life Life Total | Non-life Life Total | Non-life Life
United States 2921.1 1474.411446.6 |3152.1 1540.7| 1611.4 | 3266.0 1664.1| 1602.0
Canada 1375.3 700.6| 674.6 |1516.8 759.6| 757.2 | 1460.4 784.6| 675.9
Brazil 68.6 56.7| 11.8 75.6 62.7) 129 64.0 53.2 10.8
Mexico 84.6 43.3] 413 101.2 50.4| 50.8 112.6 59.4 53.2
Chile 163.0 48.7| 114.3 175.8 49.7] 126.0 176.4 54.3| 122.1
United Kingdom 3244.3 741.5/2502.8 |3759.2 730.7| 3028.5 | 3393.8 825.9| 2567.9
Germany 1675.7 913.5| 762.2 |1491.4 808.5| 683.0 | 1484.2 809.9| 674.3
France 2080.9 688.6|1392.3 |2051.1 613.7| 1437.4 | 1898.8 630.6| 1268.2
Russia 26.8 17.0 9.9 41.8 223 19.5 65.8 32.6 33.2
Japan 3908.9 805.5/3103.4 |3973.3 808.2| 3165.1 | 3507.5 701.1| 2806.4
South Korea 1022.8 262.3| 760.5 |1234.1 298.5| 935.6 | 1060.1 296.7| 763.4
PR China 13.3 5.0 8.3 15.2 5.7 9.5 20.0 7.8 12.2
India 8.5 2.4 6.1 9.9 2.3 7.6 11.5 2.4 9.1
Malaysia 140.4 62.3| 78.1 150.9 64.6| 86.4 198.3 68.7| 129.5
Indonesia 9.5 5.1 4.4 8.6 4.6 4.0 7.7 4.1 3.6
South Africa 490.9 77.9| 413.0 | 472.1 79.11 392.9 | 446.3 69.1| 377.2
Nigeria 2.6 2.4 0.2 2.0 1.6 0.4 2.3 1.8 0.5
Kenya 9.9 7.5 2.4 8.9 6.5 2.4 9.4 6.6 2.9
Australia 2037.4 703.8/1333.6 |1859.3 665.8| 1193.5 | 1668.3 628.0| 1040.3

Source: Swiss Re, Sigma volumes 9/2000, 6/2001 and 6/2002
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(i) Life Insurance

The financial year 2002-03, was the second full year
of operations for most of the new life companies;
by the end of the financial year, the number of private
players had increased to twelve, and they were
competing with the public sector Life Insurance
Corporation of India (LIC). The premium underwritten
by the industry during 2002-03 was Rs.55738.11
crore, of which Rs.54628.49 crore was underwritten
by LIC and Rs.1109.62 crore by the private players.
As against this, the previous year figures were
Rs.50094.45 crore, Rs.49821.91 crore and Rs.272.54
crore, respectively. Overall, the industry witnessed a
growth of 11.27 per cent in terms of gross premium
underwritten as against 43.54 per cent growth recorded
in the previous year. The decline in the growth rate
in the year 2002-03 has to be assessed in the context
of the previous year being an aberration. In the
financial year 2001-02, LIC which had underwritten
99.46 per cent of the business in that year, had offered
high yield guaranteed return plans like Jeevan Shree,
Bima Nivesh, Single Premium and Individual Pension
Plans. The decline in growth rate could be on account
of the withdrawal of these schemes in the financial
year 2002-03. Growth in the business of LIC declined
to 9.65 per cent as against 42.79 per cent in the
previous year. A review of the performance of LIC
during the years 1998-99 to 2000-01 further reveals
that it has recorded annual growth in the range of
18 and 25 per cent. As against this, the private
insurers exhibited growth of 307.15 per cent during
the year. The sharp increase in growth for the new
players can partly be aftributed to the fact that their
business in the financial year 2001-02 was small.

The performance of the private players in the last
two years, and particularly for the current year has
reflected their ability to create and nurture new
markets. While the private players accounted for about
2 per cent of the total premium underwritten in the
sector for the year 2002-03, significantly the total
business underwritten grew by 11.27 per cent. In
comparison, the private players had accounted for
less than 1 per cent of the total business underwritten
in the previous year. In effect, the new insurers have
not necessarily partaken of the existing pie, rather
the size of the pie has enlarged. New avenues have
also been created and business opportunities explored.
All these are likely to lead to the establishment of
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a vibrant and customer friendly insurance business
environment in the country.

In terms of market share, LIC held 98 per cent of
the life market, with the twelve new players capturing
just under 2 per cent. As against this, LIC held 99.46
per cent of the market in the year 2001-02. A
comparison of the business underwritten by the private
players further reveals that at least three of them have
succeeded in establishing themselves in the market,
while a couple of them have still to make a mark.

The growth trends of LIC for the year 2002-03 reveal
that the first year premium of the insurer grew from
Rs.10492.72 crore in the year 2001-02 to
Rs.10630.80 crore, i.e., a growth of mere 1.32 per
cent. The growth in the first year premium of LIC
in the year 2001-02 was 50.69 per cent. The single
premium exhibited a decline of 41.23 per cent from
Rs.9096.05 crore in the previous year to Rs.5345.96
crore in 2002-03. This is as against a growth of
232 per cent in the previous year. In terms of renewals,
premium collected was Rs.38651.73 crore as against
Rs.30233.14 crore in the previous year, recording
a growth of 27.87 per cent, as against 20.02 per
cent in the previous year.

The growth trends of the twelve private players for
the year 2002-03 reveal that the first year premium
of the insurers grew from Rs.170.49 crore in the year
2001-02 to Rs.629.95 crore, i.e., a growth of 269.50
per cent. The growth in the first year premium of
the private players in the year 2001-02 was about
45 times (it may be recalled that just a handful of
private players were in operation for a few months
in the year 2000-01). The single premium exhibited
a growth of 235 per cent from Rs.98.02 crore in
the previous year to Rs.328.18 crore in 2002-03.
This is as against a growth of 35 times in the previous
year. In terms of renewals, premium collected was
Rs.151.49 crore as against Rs.4.03 crore in the
previous year, recording a growth of 36.55 times.

Statistics compiled from the annual reports furnished
by the insurers, reveal that on an average, the first
year commission to the first year premium of the life
insurers works out to 25.33 per cent as against 25.56
per cent in the previous year. While the ratio in case
of LIC was 25.51 per cent, the cumulative total for
the private insurers worked out to 22.24 per cent,
as against 25.52 per cent and 27.83 per cent,
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respectively in the previous year. The renewal
commission fo renewal premium ratio for LIC in the
financial year 2002-03 was 5.80 per cent as against
5.63 per cent in the previous year. The corresponding
figures for the private insurers were 6.06 per cent
and 6.83 per cent, respectively. The ratio of single
premium commission to the single premium for the
industry worked out to 1.16 per cent in the financial
year 2002-03 as against 1.54 per cent in the previous
year. The corresponding figures for LIC and the private
players were 1.16 per cent and 1.54 per cent; and
1.14 per cent and 1.39 per cent respectively for the
two years. The decreasing trend in the commission
per centage in case of the private insurers, as against
the increasing premium figures also points towards
the private insurers’ strategy to adopt ways and means
to widen their distribution channels and improve their
cost effectiveness, while at the same time offering
a wider range of products.

The ratio of total commission paid and operating
expenses fo total premium collected for the life
insurance industry was 18.90 per cent as against
18.54 per cent in the previous year. The corresponding
figures for LIC and the private players were 17.55
per cent and 17.62 per cent; and 85.59 per cent
and 187.15 per cent respectively for the two years.
The operating expenses in case of the private insurers
are high particularly in case of the first year of
operations. Even though the private insurers are still
establishing their operations, the ratio of expenses
to the premium is coming down slowly on account
of both stabilisation of operations and with increase
in the premium underwritten.

The benefits paid statistics of the insurers reveal that
the gross benefits paid during 2002-03 were
Rs.20564.36 crore as against Rs.17484.11 crore
paid in the previous year. The benefits paid net of
re-insurance accounted for Rs.20544.71 crore in
2002-03 and Rs.17479.52 crore in the year
2001-02. The benefits paid through re-insurance for
the two years were a nominal 0.10 per cent and
0.03 per cent, respectively. In the life segment, a
major component of the risk is being retained by
the life insurers, which is in stark contrast to the
non-life insurance industry. The retention component
reflects the life insurance industry’s ability to retain
risks as against the general insurance market, and
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in case of any major upheaval in the re-insurance
market, the life segment is the least impacted. It is
still early years for the private sector insurers to have
any major claims. The gross benefits paid by the
twelve private insurers were Rs.17.99 crore and Rs.3.04
crore, respectively in the years 2002-03 and
2001-02. In case of LIC the said figures stood at
Rs.20546.36 crore and Rs.17481.07 crore,
respectively. The accompanying graphs exhibit the
trends for the life insurance industry for the premium
income, commission and operating expenses.

The compilation of the Revenue Account, Profit &
Loss Account and Balance Sheets of the life insurers
are placed at Tables 10 to 12. The Revenue Account,
Profit & Loss Account and Balance Sheet of LIC for
the CRAC business are placed at Tables 13 to 15.

Performance during the first half of
2003-04:

During the first half of the current financial year
2003-04, the life insurers have underwritten first year
premium of Rs.5435.96 crore towards 8738024
policies. In the individual segment, LIC accounted
for 88 per cent of the business in terms of premium
and 94 per cent in terms of policies. As against this,
the private insurers captured 12 per cent of the
premium and 6 per cent of the policies. In terms
of group business, LIC captured 93.63 per cent of
the premium and 93 per cent of the policies. The
twelve private insurers captured only 6.37 per cent
of the premium and 7 per cent of the policies
underwritten during the period for group business.

Under the Varishtha Pension Bima Yojana launched
by the LIC, in July, 2003 premium of Rs.2281.42
crore fowards 132022 policies has been collected
in the first half of the current financial year. This
business accounts for 47 per cent of the total first
year business collections received, including single
premium, by LIC during April — September, 2003.

The private players have during the first half of the
current financial year, underwritten 62 per cent of
the first year premium (including single premium)
business done in the entire previous year. In comparison,
LIC has underwritten 30 per cent of the business done
by it in the twelve-month period of 2002-03.
Traditionally, LIC’s maximum business has been
underwritten during the last quarter of any given year.
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In terms of market share, during the half year ended
September, 2003, the market share of the private
players, in terms of premium, has gone up to 10.95
per cent as against 5.66 per cent in FY 2002-03.

On the whole, insurers had launched several innovative
products aimed at catering to the specific needs of
individuals/groups. Customised life insurance solutions
are being offered rather than pre-packaged products.
Simplicity and innovation are the key words for
finalising products aimed at the masses. Products have
also been designed to cater to the “child” segment
with innovations like family income benefits. A number
of new products have been introduced in the industry
with players in the life segment launching products
with guaranteed additions, which were subsequently
withdrawn/toned down; single premium mode was
popularised; unit linked products were introduced;
and add-on/ riders were introduced including those
for accidental death; dismemberment, critical illness
rider, fixed term rider, pay rider or benefit rider, term
to age 60 rider, group hospital and surgical rider,
hospital cash benefit riders and a number of others.
The comprehensive products having features of
endowment, money back, whole life, single premium,
regular premium, rebate in premium for higher sum
assured, premium mode rebate, efc., having a number
of riders along with the base products have been
re-packaged. The year 2002-03 also witnessed a shift
in the products offered to the customers from non-
linked to linked products, which offer greater flexibility
and transparency to the customers. Introduction of
unit linked products, particularly at times when the
stock markets are exhibiting a rising trend, is a good
strategy. However, educating the insured of the pitfalls
attached is even more crucial.

While introduction of the unit-linked products has
been well received by the customers, it is critical that
the prospective policyholder is aware of the risks
attached to such insurance products. Being linked
to the equity investments, such products have attached
financial risks. Financial risks emerge from the various
options which are added to the policies, and are
equally difficult to price keeping the long term horizon
in mind. Further the risk of volatility of the stock market
is added, which impacts the earnings of the insurer.
Interestingly, many a provider in the global markets
has started adding capital protection features to their
products. Market trends indicate that world over, sale
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of such products declines in the scenario of falling
equity markets. The insurance market in India has
yet to stand the test of such a scenario.

Government of India in the Union Budget 2003-04,
announced the launch of ‘Varishtha Pension Bima
Yojana’ for citizens aged 55 years and above. The
Varishtha Yojana is a Government subsidised scheme
and LIC has been given the privilege to operate the
scheme. The scheme aims at providing pension during
the life time of the pensioner and in the event of
unfortunate death of the pensioner, purchase price
is payable to the nominee / legal heir of the pensioner.

The list of products infroduced by the life insurers
during the financial years 2001-02 and 2002-03 are
placed at Tables 16(i) and 16(ii).

With a view to capturing virgin markets, insurers have
introduced a number of innovative concepts in different
villages across the country to strengthen their distribution
channels. Easy term policies are being offered at very
low rates of premium to provide life cover. Insurers
are also associated with SOS Children’s villages, have
adopted specific rural areas and launched the insurance
products under the supervision of their rural
development teams. These methods, with their variants
that will be adopted in the coming years, augur well
for the development of this special market. In an
effort to compete with the existing players, the new
insurers have been aiming at providing better customer
service. Players across the board are exploring and
tapping the potential of new channels of distribution,
besides building a strong agency network: corporate
agencies and bancassurance. Subsequent to the
enabling legislative framework being put in place by
the Authority, allowing Bancassurance — selling of
insurance products through the banking network, the
insurers have started offering products through this
strategic channel. Elaborate bancassurance strategies
have been put in place to tap a lucrative revenue
segment. With the grant of licenses to brokers, in
the year 2002-03, this is another intermediary which
is likely to gain prominence in the foreseeable future.

International operations of LIC:

During the year 2002-03, LIC's international operations
showed positive trends except for United Kingdom
where the operations of the Corporation are being
revamped. LIC has also commenced operations in
Sri Lanka and Nepal.
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rd ANNUAL REPORT

REVENUE ACCOUNT: LIC’S CRAC BUSINESS

2002-2003

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars 2002-03 2001-02
Premiums earned (Net) 1,122 93
Profit/ Loss on sale/redemption of Investments 89 (12)
Change in Policy Liabilities (1,818) (214)
Others (to be specified) written backs 3 0
Interest, Dividend & Rent — Gross 281 471
TOTAL (A) (324) 339
Claims Incurred (Net) 450 355
Commission 47 2
Operating Expenses related to Insurance Business 69 16
Others-Amortisations, Write offs & Provisions (116) 177
Foreign Taxes

TOTAL (B) 449 550
Operating Profit/(Loss) from Fire/Marine/Miscellaneous Business C= (A - B) (773) (211)
APPROPRIATIONS

Transfer to Shareholders” Account 2171)
Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve

Transfer to Other Reserves (to be specified)

TOTAL (C) (773) (211)

&—o
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2002-2003

PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT : LIC’S CRAC BUSINESS

(Rs. In lakhs)

Particulars

2002-03

2001-02

OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

(a) Fire Insurance

(b) Marine Insurance

(c) Miscellaneous Insurance

(773)

(211)

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS

(a) Interest, Dividend & Rent — Gross

(b) Profit on sale of investments

Less: Loss on sale of investments

OTHER INCOME (To be specified)

TOTAL (A)

(773)

(211)

PROVISIONS (Other than taxation)

(a) For diminution in the value of investments

(b) For doubtful debts

(c) Others (to be specified)

OTHER EXPENSES

(a) Expenses other than those related to Insurance Business

(b) Bad debts written off

(c) Others (To be specified)

TOTAL (B)

Profit Before Tax

(773)

(211)

Provision for Taxation

Profit after Tax

(773)

(211)

APPROPRIATIONS

(a) Interim dividends paid during the year

(b) Proposed final dividend

b)
(c) Dividend distribution tax
(d)

Transfer to any Reserves or Other Accounts (to be specified)

Transfer to General Reserve

Balance of profit/ loss brought forward from last year

Balance carried forward to Balance Sheet

(773)

(211)

&—o
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TABLE - 15

BALANCE SHEET : LIC’S CRAC BUSINESS
(Rs. In lakhs)

SOURCES OF FUNDS 2002-03 2001-02
Share Capital

Reserves and Surpluses 36 36
Fair value change account 865 840
Policy Liabilities * 5770 4725
Borrowings

TOTAL 6671 5601
APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Investments 3864 5072
Loans

Fixed Assets

Current Assets

Cash and Bank Balances 2487 10
Advances and Other Assets 406 582
Sub-Total (A) 2893 592
Current Liabilities 86 63
Provisions

Sub-Total (B) 86 63
NET CURRENT ASSETS (C) = (A - B) 2807 529

Miscellaneous Expenditure (to the extent not written off)

Debit balance in Profit and Loss Account
TOTAL 6671 5601

*Include Debit balance in Profit & Loss Account

&—o
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Premium Underwritten by Private Players
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Commission Expenses of LIC
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Operating Expenses of Life Insurers
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Operating Expenses as Percentage of Premium
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LIST OF LIFE INSURANCE PRODUCTS AS AT 31.03.2002

Sl. No. | Name of the product Insurer
1. Allianz Bajaj Cash Care (Cash Benefit) Allianz Bajaj
2. Allianz Bajaj Life Time Care (All Life)
3. Allianz Bajaj Save Care (Safe Gain)
4. Allianz Bajaj Risk Care
5. Allianz Bajaj Term Care
6. Allianz Bajaj Group Credit Care
7. Allianz Bajaj Group Risk Care
8. Alliaz Bajaj Group EDLIs Care
9. Dhana Shree AMP Sanmar
10. Subha Shree
1. Yuva Shree
12. Nithya Shree
13. Birla Sunlife Insurance Solutions Birla Sunlife
14. Group Superannuation Policy for Canadian High Commission
15. Birla Sunlife Flexi Family Shield Term Plan
16. Birla Sun Life Single Premium Group Term Product
17. Birla Sun Life Special Endowment
18. Birla Sun Life Group Protection Solutions
19. Birla Sun Life Young Scholar
20. Birla Sun Life Group Superannuation Product
21. HDFC Endowment Assurance HDFC Stanlife
22. HDFC Money Back
23. HDFC Development Insurance Plan
24. HDFC Single Premium Whole Life Assurance
25. HDFC Group Term Insurance
26. HDFC Protection Series
27. HDFC Immediate Annuity
28. HDFC Personal Pension Plan
29. HDFC Group Term Assurance

&—o
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Sl. No. | Name of the product Insurer
30. ICICI PRU Forever Life - Regular Premium Deferred Pension ICICI PRU
31. ICICI PRU Forever Life - Single Premium Deferred Pension
32. ICICI PRU Save ‘n” Protect - Endowment Assurance
33. ICICI PRU Single Premium Bond with Guaranteed Additions
34. ICICI PRU Cashbak - Anticipated Endowment Assurance
35. ICICI PRU Life Guard - Level Term Assurance with Return of Premiums
36. ICICI PRU Life Guard - Single Premium Level Term Assurance
37. Salaam Zindagi - One year Renewable Group Term Cover for Social

Sector
38. Life Time Immediate Pension
39. ICICI PRU - ReAssure
40. ICICI PRU - Assure Invest
471, ICICI PRU Life Link
42. ICICI PRU Life Time
43. ICICI PRU Cash Bak
44, ICICI PRU Save ‘N’ Protfect
45. Fulfilling life anticipated whole life Plan ING Vysya
46. Maximising life Money back Plan
47. Reassuring life endowment Plan
48. Securing Life Rural Endowment Plan
49, Generic Group Term Insurance for Social Sector
50. LIC’s Bima Plus - Unit Linked Insurance Policy LIC*
51. Khetihar Mazdoor Bima Yajona
52. Shiksha Sahayog Yojana
53. Bima Nivesh
54. New Bima Nivesh
55. New Jeevan Akshay-1
56. New Bima Kiran
57. Jeevan Anand
58. Bima Nivesh 2002
59. Jeevan Samriddi (New Jeevan Sanchay)
60. 5-Year Renewal & Convertible Term Insurance Plan MAX NYLIFE
61. 20 year Endowment
62. Easy Term

&—o
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Sl. No. | Name of the product Insurer
63. Non Par Whole Life MAX NYLIFE
64. Par Whole Life
65. Group Term Insurance
66. Decreasing Term Product
67. Limited Payment Whole Life Non Participating MetLife
68. Endowment Assurance-Non Participating
69. Money Back-Non Participating
70. OM Endowment Plan (Kotak Endowment Plan) OM Kotak
71. OM Insurance Bond (Kotak Insurance Bond)

72. OM Money Back Plan (Kotak Money Back Plan)

73. Kotak Insurance Bond - New Version

74. Kotak Term Assurance Plan

75. Kotak Term Plan

76. Kotak Gramin Bima Yojana

77. Kotak Credit Term Group Plan

78. Kotak Term Group Plan

79. Kotak Investment Assurance Plan (Kotak Safe Investment Plan)

80. Kotak Endowment Plan

81. Kotak Capital Multiplier Plan

82. Kotak Gratuity Group Plan

83. SBI' Life-Sanjeevan SBI Life

84. Sukhjeevan

85. Swarna Ganga (Group Term)

86. SBI Life Scholar

87. Young Sanjeevan

88. SBI Life-Super Suraksha

89. SBI Life-Credit Guard

90. Sukhjeevan Pratham

91. Group Gratuity-cum-Life Cover Scheme

92. Group Regular Premium Mortgage Reducing Term Insurance Plan Tata-AlG

93. Group Single Premium Mortgage Reducing Term Insurance Plan

94. 10 year/20 year/30 year Endowment RB Plan

95. Assure 21 years Money Saver (21 year Triennial Modified Anticipated
Endowment Plan)

&—o
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SIl. No. | Name of the product Insurer
96. Endowment to age 60 (RB) Plan (Assure Golden Years Plan) Tata-AIG
97. Guaranteed Issue 10 Years Endowment Plan Non Participating

(Assure Humrahi)
98. Group Term Life
99. Group Credit Card Term Insurance Protection Plan
100. Assure 10 Years/15 Years/20 Years/25 Years Lifeline Plans -
10/15/20/25 Years Term Plan
101. Assure 15 Years Lifeline (With Return of Premiums) Plan
102. Assure Five Years Lifeline Plan - 5 Yearly Renewable Convertible
Term Plan
108. Assure Lifeline to Age 60 - Term to age 60 Plan
104. Assure One Year Lifeline Plan - Yearly Renewable Convertible
Term Plan
105. Group Regular Premium Personal Loan Reducing Term Insurance Plan
106. Group Single Premium Personal Loan Reducing Term Insurance Plan
107. Assure 5/10 years Plan — SP
108. Single Premium Immediate Annuity Option with return of Premium
109. Tata AIG Comprehensive Superannuation Policy-Defined Benefit
110. Tata AIG Comprehensive Superannuation Policy-Defined Contribution
1171, Tata AIG Comprehensive Gratuity Scheme
112. Chayaa (Nirvana)
113. Assure Career Builder
114. The Achiever at 18
115. The Achiever at 21
116. Assure Pay Master (Maha Life)

* The list of products launched in the market by LIC given as on 31 March, 2002 pertains to period after
October, 2000

i
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TABLE - 16(Il)

INSURANCE PRODUCTS CLEARED DURING THE
Financial Year 2002-2003

Sl. No.| Insurer Name of Product Attached Riders

1. | Allianz Baijaj Save Care-Economy-SP Start of Life Benefit

2. Allianz Bajaj Child Care Critical lllness Benefit

3. Invest Gain Diamond Family Income Benefit

4, Invest Gain Gold Hospital Cash Benefit

5. Invest Gain Platinum Increase in Death Coverage

6. Invest Gain Economy Waiver of Premium Benefit

7. | AMP Sanmar Group Term Assurance Accidental or sickness total and
permanent disablement rider

8. Jaya Shree Accidental Death and Total and
Permanent Disability Rider

9. Immediate Annuity Term Life Insurance

10. Bhagya Sree

11. | AVIVA Life Life Long-Unit Linked Accidental Death and Dismemberment
Benefit

12. Easy Life With Profits Critical illness and Permanent Total
Disability-accelerated cover

13. Easy Life Long-With Profit Hospital Cash Benefits

14. Life Long-With Profit

15. Life Saver-Unit Linked

16. Life Saver-With Profit

17. Life Bond-Unit Linked

18. Life Bond-With Profit

19. Credit Net

20. Credit Plus

21. Group Shield

22. Corporate Life

23. Easy Life Plus-with profit

24. Easy Life Plus-Unit Linked

25. Amar Suraksha

26. Secure Life

&—o
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Sl. No.| Insurer Name of Product Attached Riders
27. | AVIVA Life Pension Plus
28. Annuity Plus
29. Pension Plus (Unit Linked)
30. | Birla Sunlife BSL Group Gratuity Product Accident Death & Disability Rider
31. Stand Alone Term Product Critical Illness Rider
32. BSL Premium Back Term Plan Term Rider
33. Unit Linked Single Premium Bond
34. BSL Flexi Secure Life Retirement Plan
35. | HDFC Stanlife HDFC Bima Bachat Yojana for
Social Sector
36. HDFC Children’s Plan
37. | ICICI PRU ICICI PRU Immediate Annuity-Tied Accident and Disability Benefit
Annuity
38. ICICI PRU Life Time Pension-Revised | Ciritical illness cover
39. ICICI PRU Life Link Pension Level term insurance
40. ICICI PRU Regular Premium Deferred| Major surgical assistance cover
Pension Plan-Revised
41. ICICI PRU Life Guard (Regular
Premium Term Assurance)
42. ICICI PRU Easy Life-Level Term
Assurance-Direct Marketing
43. ICICI PRU Group Term Insurance
44, ICICI PRU Mitr-Regular Premium
Without Profit Endowment-Rural
45, ICICI PRU Suraksha-Single Premium
Term Assurance-Rural
46. ICICI PRU Suraksha-Regular Premium
Term Assurance-Rural
47. ICICI PRU Group Gratuity
48. ICICI PRU Cash Bak
49. ICICI PRU Save ‘N’ Protect
50. ICICI PRU Group Superannuation
plan
51. | ING Vysya Shielding Life Protection Plan(CLCIP) | Term Benefit Rider
52. Powering Life Limited Payment Accidental Death Benefit Rider

Endowment Plan

&—o
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Sl. No.| Insurer Name of Product Attached Riders

53. | ING Vysya Mastering Life Regular Endowment Accidental Death Disability and
Plan (Reassuring Life Endowment Dismemberment Benefit Rider
Plan with Reversionary Bonus)

54. Creating Life Child Protection Plan Waiver of Premium Benefit Rider

55. Surakshit Jeevan Rural Endowment
Plan

56. |L 1 C Bima Nivesh 2003 Term Assurance Rider

57. Bima Nivesh Triple Cover Premium Waiver Benefit

58. Jeevan Rekha Female Critical lllness

59. Term Assurance Plan (Without Congenital Disability Benefit
Profit)-Jeevan Anmol

60. Jeevan Samriddi

61. Bima Nivesh 2002

62. Komal Jeevan

63. New Jeevan Akshay-1

64. Bima Plus Plan

65. Mortgage Redemption Plan

66. Group Mortgage Red. Ass. Scheme

67. Jeevan Bharathi

68. | MAX NY LIFE Decreasing Term Product Personal Accident Benefit/Accidental

Death Benefit or Accident Death &
Disability (AD&D) Riders

69. Level Term Product Dreaded Disease (Critical lliness) rider

70. Single Premium Bond Waiver of Premium

71. Easy Life Retirement Plan
(Deferred Annuity)

72. | Met Life Met Mortgage Protector Accidental Death Benefit

73. Met 100 Plus Term Rider

74. Single Pay-Mortgage Protection Plan | Waiver of Premium Benefit

75. Juvenile Money Back-Non Ciritical Illness Rider - Non participating
Participating

76. Juvenile Endowment Assurance-Non
Participating

77. Met Endowment Plus(Met Platinum)

78. Met Endowment(Met Gold)

&—o
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Sl. No.| Insurer Name of Product Attached Riders
79. | Met Life Met Junior E
80. Met 100 Par
81. Met Group YRT
82. Met Gold (Non Par Endowment)
83. Met Platinum(Non Par Endowment)
84. | OM Kotak Kotak Money Back Plan Accidental Death Cover
85. Kotak Children’s Plan Term Cover
86. Kotak Preferred Term Plan Permanent Disability Cover
87. Kotak Endowment Plan Critical Iliness Benefit
88. Kotak Insurance Bond-New Version Term Cover
89. Kotak Gratuity Group Plan Waiver of premium Benefit on death of
premium payer (Life Guardian)
90. Kotak Capital Multiplier Plan Waiver of premium Benefit on disability
of Premium Payer
91. Kotak Immediate Plan Kotak Preferred Term Benefit
92. Kotak Retirement Income Plan
with Cover
93. Kotak Investment Assurance Plan
94. | SBI Life SBI' Life Sudershan Accidental Death rider
95. Sukhjeevan Pratham Total Permanent Disability Benefit
96. Group Gratuity-cum-Life Cover Pure Term Rider
Scheme
97. SBI Life Swadhan (Individual) Increasing Sum Assured Rider
98. SBI Life Long Pensions (Individual)
99. SBI Life Long Pensions (Group)
100. | Tata-AIG 10/20/30 years security and growth | 5 Year Renewable Term Rider
plans Non Par
101. Chayaa Term to Age 60 Rider
102. Sandhya

&—o
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TABLE - 17(l)
MORTALITY RATES OF ASSURED LIVES IN LIC OF INDIA — LIC 94-96 ULTIMATE

Age Mortality Rate Age Mortality Rate
14 0.00071 60 0.01307
15 0.00077 61 0.01439
16 0.00082 62 0.01590
17 0.00087 63 0.01761
18 0.00092 64 0.01952
19 0.00096 65 0.02162
20 0.00100 66 0.02272
21 0.00103 67 0.02562
22 0.00106 68 0.02882
23 0.00109 69 0.03237
24 0.00111 70 0.03629
25 0.00113 71 0.04062
26 0.00115 72 0.04539
27 0.00116 73 0.05064
28 0.00117 74 0.05640
29 0.00117 75 0.06273
30 0.00117 76 0.06966
31 0.00117 77 0.07723
32 0.00120 78 0.08550
33 0.00125 79 0.09452
34 0.00131 80 0.10433
35 0.00139 81 0.11499
36 0.00148 82 0.12655
37 0.00159 83 0.13907
38 0.00172 84 0.15108
39 0.00187 85 0.16230
40 0.00205 86 0.17415
41 0.00225 87 0.18664
42 0.00242 88 0.19978
43 0.00260 89 0.21356
44 0.00283 90 0.22800
45 0.00311 91 0.24307
46 0.00344 92 0.25878
47 0.00382 93 0.27511
48 0.00424 94 0.29203
49 0.00472 95 0.30952
50 0.00524 96 0.32755
51 0.00582 97 0.34607
52 0.00644 98 0.36505 P
53 0.00712 99 0.38444
54 0.00784
55 0.00861
56 0.00943 7
57 0.01029 h
58 0.01103
59 0.01195
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TABLE - 17(ll)
MORTALITY RATES OF ANNUITANTS IN LIC OF INDIA — LIC A(96-98) ULTIMATE

Age Mortality Rate | Life Expectation Age Mortality Rate | Life Expectation
20 0.000919 57.45 65 0.013889 17.33
21 0.000961 56.50 66 0.015286 16.56
22 0.000999 55.56 67 0.017026 15.81
23 0.001033 54.61 68 0.019109 15.08
24 0.001063 53.67 69 0.021534 14.36
25 0.001090 52.72 70 0.024301 13.67
26 0.001113 51.78 71 0.027410 12.99
27 0.001132 50.84 72 0.030862 12.35
28 0.001147 49.89 73 0.034656 11.72
29 0.001159 48.95 74 0.038793 11.13
30 0.001166 48.01 75 0.043272 10.56
31 0.001170 47.06 76 0.048093 10.01
32 0.001170 46.12 77 0.053257 9.49
33 0.001171 45.17 78 0.058763 9.00
34 0.001201 44.22 79 0.064611 8.53
35 0.001246 43.28 80 0.070802 8.08
36 0.001308 42.33 81 0.077335 7.66
37 0.001387 41.38 82 0.084210 7.26
38 0.001482 40.44 83 0.091428 6.88
39 0.001593 39.50 84 0.098988 6.52
40 0.001721 38.56 85 0.106891 6.19
41 0.001865 37.63 86 0.115136 5.87
42 0.002053 36.70 87 0.123723 5.56
43 0.002247 35.77 88 0.132652 5.28
44 0.002418 34.85 89 0.141924 5.01
45 0.002602 33.93 90 0.151539 4.76
46 0.002832 33.02 21 0.161495 4.52
47 0.003110 32.11 92 0.171794 4.29
48 0.003438 31.21 93 0.182436 4.07
49 0.003816 30.32 94 0.193419 3.87
50 0.004243 29.43 95 0.204746 3.68
51 0.004719 28.56 96 0.216414 3.50
52 0.005386 27.69 97 0.228425 3.33
53 0.006058 26.84 98 0.240778 3.17
54 0.006730 26.00 99 0.253473 3.01
55 0.007401 25.17 100 0.266511 2.86
56 0.008069 24.35 101 0.279892 2.72
57 0.008710 23.55 102 0.293614 2.59
58 0.009397 22.75 103 0.307679 2.46
59 0.010130 21.96 104 0.322087 2.33
60 0.010907 21.18 105 0.336836 2.19
61 0.011721 20.41 106 0.351928 2.05
62 0.011750 19.64 107 0.367363 1.89
63 0.012120 18.87 108 0.383139 1.70
64 0.012833 18.10 109 0.399258 1.45

110 0.415720 1.08
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TABLE - 18

APPOINTED ACTUARIES OF LIFE INSURERS
(AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2003)

Allianz Bajaj
AMP Sanmar
AVIVA Life
BSLIC
HSLIC

IPLIC

ING Vysya
LIC

MNYLIC
MetLife

OM Kotak
SBI Life
Tata AIG

Notes:

LIC
BSLIC
IPLIC
MNYLIC
HSLIC

Aiyer Vaidianathan Ganapathy
Ramaswamy Soundararajan, FASI
Kewal Krishan Wadhwa, FASI
Peter J. Akers, FASI

Nicholas David Taket, FASI

V. Rajagopalan, FASI

Achaiyer Venkatasubramanian, FASI
N.S. Sastry, FASI

Rajendra P Sharma, FASI
Suresh G. Guhagarkar, FASI
Andrew Cartright, FASI

Dr. R. Kannan, FASI

Phuong Ba Chung, FASI

Life Insurance Corporation of India

Birla Sunlife Insurance Company Limited

ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Company Limited
Max New York Life Insurance Company Limited

HDFC Standard Life Insurance Company Limited

&—o
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(ii) General Insurance
The year 2002-03 marked the third year of the

presence of private players in the general insurance
industry, which has over the years been dominated
by the public sector insurance companies. Both the
private and the public sector players increased the
gross premium underwritten by them, with the industry
generating a premium within the country of
Rs.14272.67 crore. The analysis of the business
performance of the public and private players is given
below.

During the year 2002-03, there were 13 players in
the general insurance sector, with Cholamandalam
MS General Insurance Company Limited and HDFC
Chubb General Insurance Company Limited
commencing operations in October, 2002. Thus, the
year witnessed the number of private players increasing
from six to eight. It was also the first year of ECGC
reporting business after its registration with the Authority.
It may be mentioned that ECGC has been providing
credit insurance for a number of years, and was an
exempted insurer as per the General Insurance Business

(Nationalisation) Act, 1972.

As per the audited figures furnished by the insurers
for the year ending 31¢ March, 2003, the public
sector insurers accounted for 90.60 per cent of the
gross direct business underwritten within the country,
with the private sector accounting for 9.40 per cent.
As against this, the public sector insurers had accounted
for 96.24 per cent of the business underwritten in
the year 2001-02, while the six private sector players
had captured only 3.76 per cent of the business in
the said year. Analysis of the data furnished by the
non-life insurers further reveals that the general
insurance market in the country grew at a healthy
rate of 21.12 per cent. The main driver of the business
growth was the miscellaneous insurance segment,
which registered a growth rate of 25.35 per cent.
The maximum business, to the extent of 70.82 per
cent was underwritten in this segment. Here too, motor
premium accounted for 40.68 per cent of the market;
of which the public sector companies accounted for
38.14 per cent and private sector players 2.54 per
cent. The health insurance market stood at a 7.68
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per cent of the overall general insurance premium.
A notable achievement in the year under review was
the health insurance premium crossing the Rs.1000
crore mark. It stood at Rs.1095.90 crore recording
a growth rate of 50.10 per cent over the previous
year. The premium in the miscellaneous class of
insurance business increased by
Rs. 2044.45 crore, whereas fire business increased
by only Rs. 282.46 crore and marine by Rs.161.42
crore. This sharp increase in miscellaneous business
was mainly due to two reasons, viz., the revision in
motor tariff effected in July, 2002 and increase in
medi-claim premium. In addition, all insurers continued
to focus on personal lines of business. The marine
class of business grew at 15.32 per cent, while the
fire closs of business increased by 10.59 per cent.
Fire and Marine insurance segments constituted 20.67
per cent and 8.51 per cent, respectively, of the overall
general insurance market in the country.

An analysis of the business mix between the public
and private sector reveals that in case of the former,
fire and engineering classes account for 19.43 per
cent and around 4.5 per cent of the gross direct
premium income underwritten in India, whereas in
case of private sector, these segments contribute
32.63 per cent and approx 7 per cent, respectively.
Incidentally, it may be mentioned that these two lines
of business are the most profitable business segments
in the non life insurance industry. On the other hand,
motor and health contributed around 41 per cent
and approx 7.5 per cent of the business underwritten
by the public sector insurers, as against 27 per cent
and 5.5 per cent, respectively for the private sector
insurers. The motor and health segments, on account
of the high claims ratio, represent the not so profitable
lines of business in the industry.

Public sector insurers:

The premium underwritten by the five public sector
insurers (inclusive of ECGC) in 2002-03 was
Rs.12556.29 crore during the financial year
2002-03. This includes the export credit insurance
of Rs. 374.78 crore extended by ECGC. The four
public sector insurers (excluding ECGC) accounted
for a growth of 14.25 per cent over the previous
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year. National recorded the maximum growth in
premium, over the previous year, at 21.06 per cent
followed by Oriental at 14.59 per cent. United and
New India recorded 11.79 per cent and 11.64 per
cent growth, respectively. In terms of the market share,
New India led, with a market share of 27.47 per
cent. The market share of the other three public sector
companies was around 20 per cent each. The business
composition of the public sector companies followed
the market trend. In terms of lines of business,
maximum business was underwritten in the motor
segment. Of the gross premium underwritten by the
public sector companies, the health insurance business
constituted around 8 per cent in each of the companies.
The engineering segment contributed approx
4 per cent of the business underwritten by the public
sector insurers.

Private sector insurers:

The eight private sector insurers underwrote premium
of Rs.1341.60 crore during the financial year
2002-03, recording a growth of 187.53 per cent
over the previous year. All the insurers have exhibited
impressive growth in the business underwritten by
them. Of the private insurers, Bajaj Allianz General
Insurance Company Limited captured 2.07 per cent
of the total market share followed by Tata-AlG at
1.63 per cent, IFFCO-Tokio at 1.37 per cent, ICICI-
Lombard at 1.48 per cent, Reliance at 1.30 per cent
and Royal Sundaram at 1.29 per cent of the market
share. Cholamanadalam MS and HDFC-Chubb, being
in the first year of their operations, registered a small
presence in the market. Overall, fire and miscellaneous
businesses accounted for 32.63 per centand 61.10 per
cent of the business underwritten in the private sector,
followed by marine at 6.27per cent. Recently, in the
financial year 2003-04, Cholamandalam joined hands
with Mitsui Sumitomo of Japan who became their
foreign joint venture partners holding 26 per cent
equity in the company. Consequent upon the tie-up
between two promoters, the name of the insurer was
changed to Cholamandalam MS General Insurance
Company Limited.

The compilation of the gross direct premium income
in India, net premium income and underwriting
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experience & profits of the non-life insurers is placed
at Tables 28, 29 and 30(i) and (ii).

Claims experience

The insurance industry had a fairly good year as no
major catastrophe was reported from any part of the
country. Overall, the incurred claims ratio for the
industry stood at 78.7 per cent as against the ratio
of 89.6 per cent in the previous year. In the
miscellaneous class of business, the incurred claims
ratio reduced from 106.4 per cent to 87.7 per cent.
The decline in the ratio can be attributed to the fact
that, while the net premium of the insurers increased
from Rs.8853.97 crore to Rs.10566.20 crore, the
net incurred claims reported only a marginal increase

from Rs.7929.86 crore to Rs.8317.49 crore.

Public Sector Insurers: The overall incurred claims ratio
for the four nationalised insurance companies and
ECGC stood at 80.20 per cent, as against 90.2 per
cent in the previous year. National, New India and
Oriental had incurred claims ratio of around 77 per
cent, in contrast to which United India had the claims
ratio of 91.1per cent. The distribution of incurred
claims ratio across the various segments of business
was Fire — 48.10 per cent; Marine — 67.2 per cent;
and Miscellaneous — 89.6 per cent. The miscellaneous
segment continued to incur the highest claims ratio.

Private Insurers: The private insurers reported an
incurred claims ratio of 52 per cent, which is significantly
lower than the incurred claims ratio of the public
sector insurers. The claims ratio, in case of fire and
miscellaneous classes of business stood at
22 per cent and 56 per cent, respectively. Amongst
the private players, ICICl-Lombard had incurred claims
ratio of 40 per cent, IFFCO-Tokio — 41per cent,
TATA-AIG — 47per cent, Royal Sundaram 54 per cent,
Bajaj Allianz — 59 per cent and Reliance — 99 per
cent. Cholamandalam MS and HDFC-Chubb, being
new entrants, had incurred claims ratio of 14 and
13 per cent, respectively.

The compilation of incurred claims ratio of the
non-life public and private insurers is placed at Tables
31(i) and (ii).
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Commission and operating expenses

The commission and operating expenses of the insurers
relating to insurance business continue to be high
and above the statutory limit of around 20 per cent
as prescribed under the Insurance Rules, 1939. Overall,
the industry average for the financial year 2002-03
stood at 28.12 per cent of the gross direct premium
written in India.

Public Sector Insurers: The ratio of operating expenses
to gross direct premium in India for the four public
sector insurers stood at 21.51per cent. This compares
favourably to the previous financial year’s ratio of
22.97 per cent. The total outgo on account of
operating expenses for the four public sector insurers
was Rs.2766.60 crore as against Rs.2525.78 crore
in the year 2001-02, representing a 9.53 per cent
increase over the corresponding period in the previous
year. The expenses on account of commission paid
increased to 7 per cent in 2002-03 as against
5.65 per cent in the previous year. The outgo under
the head, commissions paid direct for business
underwritten was Rs.909.46 crore during 2002-03
as against Rs.642.28 crore in the year 2001-02. This
translates info an increase of 41.60 per cent over
the previous year. The commission and operating
expenses as a percenfage to gross direct premium
written in India stood at 28.29 per cent, exhibiting
an increase in costs of transacting insurance business
within the country.

Private Insurers: The private insurers took steps to
bring down their expenses of management, and the
same is reflected in the financial reports submitted
by them, in terms of the operating expenses showing
a downward trend. The expenses of management for
Reliance were the least at 14.37 per cent, followed
by ICICI Lombard at 20.62 per cent. For the other
private sector insurers, the expenses ratio ranged
between 22 per cent to 30 per cent. The two
companies which started operations in the year
2002-03, Cholamandalam MS and HDFC-Chubb,
had high management expense ratios. Overall, the
expenses of management of the new players are
expected to be high, keeping in view their initial start
up costs and the relatively narrow premium base.
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The outgo on account of commissions and brokerage
paid direct for underwriting business increased from
Rs.5.84 crore to Rs.37.35 crore. This was nearly
2.78 per cent of the gross direct premium written
in India. The outgo is also a reflection of the
reliance placed by the private sector players, on
intermediaries like agents and brokers, to procure
business. Overall, the expense ratio for the private
players was 26.48 per cent.

Investments

Globally, the general insurance business operates in
a competitive environment, as a result of which the
insurers end up with underwriting losses. The Indian
market is no exception to the rule. All the companies
reported underwriting losses. However, these were
offset by the investment income. The investment yields
not only wiped out the insurers” underwriting losses,
but also enabled most of the companies to report
profits. The gross investment income for the general
insurance industry (excluding ECGC) stood at
Rs.2637 crore for the year 2002-03.

Net profit

All the four public sector companies reported net
profits during the financial year 2002-03, with National
and Oriental coming out of the red as against the
previous year. The profit after tax for the four public
sector insurers stood at Rs.625.70 crore. The public
sector insurers’ contribution to the Central
Government’s revenues was Rs.110 crore by way of
dividend, exhibiting an increase of over 100 per cent
as against the previous year. The total outflow on

account of dividend by the pubic sector insurers was
Rs.50 crore in the financial year 2001-02.

Of the private sector insurers, four companies namely,
Bajaj Allianz, IFFCO-Tokio, Reliance and ICICI Lombard
have reported net profits during the financial year
2002-03. IFFCO-Tokio, became the first private sector
insurer in the post liberalised scenario, to declare
its maiden dividend of Rs.2 crore to its shareholders.

The performance of the general insurance companies
during the year 2002-03 was satisfactory. However,
in times to come, the profits of the nationalised
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general insurers may come under pressure. The reasons
for this are manifold including the increasing competitive
pressures; recycling of investment portfolios at lower
yields; continuing pricing insufficiency of “Motor Third
Party” business and the high level of management
expenses as also the likely increase in business
sourcing costs with the introduction of brokers in the
Indian market. It is therefore imperative for the public
sector general insurance companies to improve their
underwriting practices, control costs and improve
claims management and service standards. On the
positive side, the public sector companies have strong
national franchise and presence, besides sound
financial position, good solvency, strong equity portfolio
and strong re-insurance ties. As regards the private
players, their operations are presently at the nascent
stage, and these insurers have yet to stabilise their
operations and to establish their niche markets.
However, the private sector insurers are also taking
active steps towards controlling claims costs, improving
service standards and reducing operating costs. These
steps are expected to have a positive impact on their
results.

The compilation of the Revenue Account, Profit &
Loss Account and Balance Sheet of the non-life
insurers, public and private sectors separately, are
placed at Tables 19 to 24. The Revenue Account,
Profit & Loss Account and Balance Sheet of GIC are
placed at Tables 25 to 27.

During the financial year 2002-03, the non-life insurers
introduced a number of non-tariff products. Insurers
also added products with focus on the small and
retail segments of the insurance market as well as
personal lines of business. This was in line with the
distribution and marketing strategy adopted by the
insurers. The Authority also allowed issuance of policies
on first loss basis covering contents of the household
against fire group of perils, which is expected to give
a boost to the personal lines of insurance. The public
sector companies launched the universal health
insurance scheme at a nominal premium and carried
out amendments to the overseas mediclaim policy.
One of the public sector insurers also came out with
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a professional indemnity policy for brokers and yet
another with credit insurance. On the other hand,
the private sector players intfroduced a number of
packaged products with a focus on personal line
covers. Some of the new covers introduced in the
Indian market protect against risks of weather perils,
performance guarantee, protection of mutual fund
asset, etc. which are specialised in nature. The lists
of products introduced by the non-life insurers in the

years 2001-02 and 2002-03 are placed at Tables
32(i) and (ii).

International Operations:

The public sector non-life companies have operations
abroad, and are running their operations through
their branches or agencies or associates/subsidiary
companies in thirty countries. The foreign operations
in Hong Kong of United and National have stopped
from 1.4.2002 and 18.2.2002, respectively. New
India is looking after the run-off portfolio of both
the companies. An actuarial valuation as on 31.3.2003
was carried out by an actuary and necessary provisions
for premium liability and Incurred But Not Reported
(IBNR) liability have been provided. The performance
of Kenindia Assurance Company Limited, Kenya and
India International Insurance Pte. Limited, Singapore,
has improved in comparison to the previous financial
year.

The general insurance companies have drawn up
various strategies to improve insurance penetration
and insurance density. Most of the companies have
tied up with banks either in the form of corporate
agency or under the referral arrangement for utilising
the extensive and broad reach which the banks
provide to market insurance products. For the
development of rural business, the insurers are tying
up with State Cooperative Banks, State Level
Cooperatives of Cotton growers, Dairy Owners, Sugar
Cooperatives, etc. New need based packaged products
for rural markets, such as women'’s self-help groups,
handloom weavers, artisans, tribals, efc are also being
devised by the insurers.

Motor insurance, which forms about 40 per cent of
the general insurance market in the country, continues
to be a loss-making portfolio. The Authority received
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a number of representations from various interest
groups regarding implementation of the revised motor
tariff, which became effective from 1+ July, 2002.
[t was claimed, that the tariff structure notified was
not being adhered to by the insurers, and that
implementation of the revised tariff had resulted in
a steep hike in the cost of insurance cover in respect
of certain categories of the insured. The transport
operators also represented against the non-availability
of cover in respect of third party liability to property
and lives. The insurers, on the other hand, put forward
their case indicating that it had become extremely
difficult for them to sustain the losses in the motor
portfolio. The claims ratio far exceeded the premium
underwritten in the segment. In fact, the motor portfolio
was being subsidised by other profitable segments
of the non-life portfolio. Taking note of these
developments, the Authority constituted a Committee
to examine the various aspects of motor underwriting
including de-tariffing and pooling arrangements. The
Committee was constituted under the Chairmanship
of Justice TN.C. Rangarajan, a retired Judge of the
Andhra Pradesh High Court.

The Rangarajan Committee, while submitting its report
in March, 2003 made the following recommendations:

1. Quarantine Third Party (TP) Liability insurance
business and its underwriting in insurance
companies’ books.

2. Seek a review of the Statutory Liability for Third
Party liability for motor vehicle accidents. The
Government of India could be requested to
consider this recommendation.

3. Set up an independent data bank under the TAC,
mandate insurance companies to supply data to
the bank, and draw on the data bank to justify
proposed ftariffs.

4. De-tariff the Own Damage segment of motor
portfolio under a competitive premium-setting
model based on a file and use procedure with
a time schedule for change over.
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The findings of the Report were discussed at a meeting
of the Authority with the Chief Executives of the general
insurance companies held at Hyderabad in
May, 2003. At the meeting, it was unanimously agreed
to usher in, effective 1% April, 2005, a system of
free pricing on the own damage portion of the motor
liability. With a view to drawing up the road map
for moving towards the de-tariffed market in this
regard, the Authority soon thereafter constituted a
Committee under the Chairmanship of Mr. S.V. Mony.
The Committee is to consider the various alternatives
available to prepare the road map for free market
availability of the products, and to suggest the measures
which need to be taken in this regard, including the
adoption of differential tariffing. The Committee is
to make its recommendations to the Tariff Advisory
Committee (TAC) on the de-tariffing of Motor OD
in a time bound manner by devising the parameters,
undertaking necessary studies, making cross country
comparison on the market practices prevalent abroad
and on consulting the actuaries while taking up this
exercise.

Re-insurance:

The General Insurance Corporation (GIC), in its newly
assigned role as the re-insurer to the Indian insurance
market, offered support to the Indian direct insurers
and developed a vertical capacity to cover risk upto
Rs.1500 crore PML. The net premium from Indian
business rose from Rs.2199.63 crore in 2001-02 to
Rs.2817.32 crore in 2002-03, i.e., a rise of 28.1 per
cent. The net claims outgo declined from Rs.1989.82
crore in the previous year to Rs.1891.93 crore in
2002-03, reflecting the catastrophe free year.

The Indian inward aviation premium increased from
Rs.64.91 crore in the previous year to Rs.91.66 crore
in the year 2002-03. Similarly, the foreign inward
aviation premium of GIC increased from Rs.20.80
crore to Rs.81.51 crore indicating a very sharp
increase in the foreign inward business, of over four
times. The net premium on account, after retrocession
was Rs.71.67 crore as against Rs.17.32 crore in the
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previous year. The net claims were Rs.71.77 crore
as compared to Rs.12.53 crore in the previous year,
exhibiting a sharp rise in the net claims.

The net foreign inward premium rose sharply during
the year to Rs.645.63 crore as against Rs.159.14
crore in the previous year. The GIC took this as an
opportunity to write more premium in this category
following withdrawal of many re-insurers from the
reinsurance market in the affermath of the September,
11 event. The net incurred claims during the year
increased to Rs.423.04 crore from Rs.162.42 crore
during the previous year, viz., a rise of about 160
per cent. It is pertinent to note that in case of foreign
business, claims build up over a period of time.

GIC is tapping opportunities in the Indian life market
and has consequently established a separate desk
with a view to developing relationships with old and
new players. LIC has, to begin with, started offering
10 per cent obligatory cessions on all its policies
in favour of GIC.

The total investment of GIC as at 31 March, 2003
stood at Rs.8622.98 crore as against Rs.7948.71
crore as at year ended 2001-02. However, the
investment income decreased to Rs.949.88 crore from
Rs.961.80 crore in the year 2001-02, giving a mean
yield of 12 per cent as against 14.2 per cent in
the previous year. The reasons for the decrease in
the yields can be aftributed to the decline in interest
rates of 300 basis points during the year. As a result,
incremental investments made during the year were
at the prevailing lower interest rates. In addition, there
were limited opportunities available for investments
in rated papers, the yields on which were also
comparatively lower. The GIC earned a profit after
tax of Rs.261.46 crore during the year 2002-03 as
against Rs.306.70 crore during the previous year.
GIC's contribution to the Central Government treasury,
through distribution of dividend for the year
2002-03 was Rs.47.30 crore.

rd ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

Sﬁaﬁtﬁﬁ@lé

Performance during the first half of
2003-04:

In the non-life segment, the gross premium underwritten
during the first six months of the current financial
year was Rs.8081.06 crore, i.e., a growth of 12.71
per cent over the premium income of Rs.7169.88
crore for the corresponding period of the previous
year. The public sector insurers underwrote premium
of Rs.6973.78 crore recording a growth of 6.03 per
cent over the corresponding period in the year
2002-03. Of the public sector players, the maximum
growth was recorded by ECGC at 26.98 per cent,
followed by National at 16.76 per cent. The other
three public sector insurers recorded growth in the
range of 1.16 and 3.62 per cent. As against this,
the private insurers underwrote premium of Rs.1107.27
crore, viz., a growth of 86.72 per cent over the
corresponding period in the previous year. The growth
pattern of the insurers in the private sector showed
wide variation. While ICICI Lombard recorded growth
of over 222 per cent, in the case of Reliance, there
was a decline of 6.02 per cent in the premium
underwritten, as against the corresponding period in
the year 2002-03. In the case of the other private
players, the growth ranged between 48 per cent and
67 per cent. It may be mentioned that HDFC Chubb
and Cholamandalam MS had commenced operations
only in the second half of the financial year 2002-03.

In terms of market share of the non-life insurers, the
public sector insurers accounted for 86.72 per cent
of the business underwritten, with the eight private
insurers accounting for the rest 13.28 per cent. Of
the public sector insurers, New India accounted for
24.09 per cent, while Oriental contributed to the
extent of 18.62 per cent, with National and United
accounting for around 20 per cent each. Of the
private insurers, market share of 2.91 per cent was
held by ICICI Lombard, with Bajaj Allianz, TATA-AIG
and IFFCO-Tokio close behind at 2.70 per cent, 2.40
per cent and 2.08 per cent, respectively. The share
of the other insurers ranged between 0.44 and 1.64
per cent.
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TABLE - 23

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT : PRIVATE SECTOR NON-LIFE INSURERS

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS ROYAL SUNDARAM BAJAJ ALLIANZ TATA AIG RELIANCE IFFCO-TOKIO ICICI LOMBARD  (CHOLAMA.| HDFC- GRAND TOTAL
NDALAM | CHUBB
2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02| 2002-03 | 2001-02| 2002-03 | 2002-03 | 2002-03 | 2001-02
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
(a) Fire Insurance 609| (493)| 1197| 237| 1018| 124| 932| (9¢)| 962| (108) (471) )| (305) 3942  (340)
(b) Marine Insurance (151)| (151) 74 2| (641)| (3864)| (130) (48)| (307) (92)| (174) (0) (7) (1336) (675)
(c) Miscellaneous Insurance (2124) | (2654) | (465)| (2780)|(2295)| (3422)| (723)| (437)| (679)| (622) (60) | (1301)] (717)| (902)| (7965)| (11216)
(1666) | (3298) 806 ((2541) |(1918)|(3683) 79| (581) (24) | (823)| (705)|(1307) (1029) | (902)|(5359)|(12232)

INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
(a) Interest, Dividend & Rent — Gross 748 785 807 871 870 1219 958| 1348 981 1012 888 520 163 342 | 5757 5755
(b) Profit on sale of investments 429 82 126 395 27 540 336 273 6 886 23| 2304 820
Less: Loss on sale of investments 1 6 2 330 58 61 336
Other Income (To be specified) 3 2 1 61 7 18 2 5 86 13
TOTAL (A) (489) | (2428)| 1740 (1280)| (960)| (2457)| 1593 775 957 189 461 | (780) 20| (595)| 2727 (5981)
Provisions (Other than taxation)
(a) For diminution in the value of

investments 21 21
(b) For doubtful debts
(c) Others (to be specified)
OTHER EXPENSES
(a) Expenses other than those

related to Insurance Business 10 10 9 2 331 20 17 27 316 50 447 345
(b) Bad debts written off
(c) Others -preliminary &

pre-op.,amortisations 15 18 45 301 37 37 16 16 280 37 388 413
TOTAL (B) 10 25 27 47 331 301 58 37 20 17 43 332 330 37 856 759
Profit Before Tax (499) | (2453)| 1713 (1327)|(1291)| (2758)| 1535 738 937 173 418 | (1113)] (310)| (632)| 1871 (6740)
Provision for Taxation 750 | (365) 101 61 301 6 89| (264) 1241 (562)
Profit After Tax (499) | (2453) 963 | (962)((1291)| (2758)| 1434 678 636 167 329 | (849) (310)| (632) 630 (6177)
APPROPRIATIONS
(a) Interim dividends paid during

the year
(b) Proposed final dividend 200 200
(c) Dividend distribution tax 26 26
(d) Transfer to any Reserves or

Deferred Tax of last year 12 13 28 (47) 40 (34)
(e) Catastrophe Reserve
Balance of profit/loss B/f
from last year (3540) | (1088) | (962) (3100)| (342) 735 45 307 141 (928)| (127) (7488)| (1371)
Balance C/f to Balance Sheet (4039) | (3540) 1| (962)[(4391)| (3100)| 2157 735 689 307 (599)| (929) (310)| (632)|(7124) (7488)
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TABLE - 24

BALANCE SHEET: PRIVATE SECTOR NON-LIFE INSURERS

(Rs. in Lakhs)
PARTICULARS ROYAL SUNDARAM| BAJAJ ALLIANZ TATA AIG RELIANCE IFFCO-TOKIO ICICI LOMBARD (CHOLAMA- HDFC- GRAND TOTAL
NDALAM | CHUBB
2002-03 [ 2001-02| 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02| 2002-03 | 2001-02 2002-03 |2002-03| 2002-03 | 2001-02

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Share Capital 12,980 | 12,969 10,946/ 10,928| 12,350 12,350 | 10,200 10,200| 10,000| 10,000| 10,960| 10,944/ 10,500 | 10,022| 87,958 | 67,392
Reserves & Surplus - 1 - - 2,158 735 701 319 - - -l 2,860 1,054
Fair Value Change Account - -33 - - - 4 - 1 (28)
Borrowings - - - - - - - 25 25

Others 94 85 - - - - - 33 - - - - - 127 85
TOTAL 13,074 | 13,054 10,914| 10,928 12,350| 12,350 | 12,358 10,935| 10,734| 10,319| 10,964 | 10,944/ 10,500 | 10,048 90,942 | 68,531
APPLICATION OF FUNDS -
Investments 14,495| 10,900| 22,357| 16,682| 16,496| 10,327 | 18,149| 14,966| 11,104 7,549 21,001 11,290 10,888 | 9,372(123,862| 71,713
Loans - - 1 13 - - 250 - - 261 13
Fixed Assets 1,088 886 1,705 1,186| 1,844| 2,196 163 162 1,335| 1,142 449 233 588 512| 7,684 5,806
CURRENT ASSETS - -
Cash and Bank Balances 3420 2027\ 3,217 2,334| 2450 1,574 980 338| 6,251| 6,846| 3,268| 1,258 333 152| 20,071 | 14,377
Advances and Other Assets* 1,468 891 1,619 1,854 2,197 1,369| 2,206| 1,2846| 2,819 882 5,907| 2,819 331 318| 16,865| 9,101
Sub-Total (A) 4,888 | 2919 4,836 4,183| 4,647| 2943| 3,186| 1,623| 9,070 7,728 9,75| 4,077 664 470| 36,936| 23,478
CURRENT LIABILITIES 5834| 20814 8,378/ 5,089| 8,713| 4,422| 8,090 5803| 6,533 5,138| 17,804| 4,113 1,598 559| 57,509 | 27,379
Provisions 5,603 2,376| 10,189 8,178| 6,724 2,345| 1,125 123| 4,242 963| 2,705 1,470 352 671 31,611 | 15,455
Sub-Total (B) 11,437 | 5,191| 18,567| 13,267| 15,437| 6,767 | 9,215 5,926| 10,775| 6,101| 20,509 5,584 1,950 | 1,230/ 89,120| 42,834
NET CURRENT ASSETS (C) = (A - B) (6549) | (2272)| (13731) (9079)[(10790)| (3824)| (6029)| (4303)| (1705)| 1,628|(11334)| (1507)] (1286) | (760)|(52184)| (19356
Deferred Tax Asset 583 1,178 (3) 583 1,175
Miscellaneous Expenditure (fo the extent not

written off or adjusted) - - 398 538 75 112 - - - - 292 765 650
Profit & Loss Account (Debit Balance) 4040 3540 - 961 4391 3100 - - - 599 929 310 632 9971 8530
TOTAL 13,074 | 13,054| 10,914 10,928 12,350 12,350 | 12,358 10,935| 10,734| 10,319| 10,964 | 10,944/ 10,500 | 10,048 90,942 | 68,530
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TABLE - 25
REVENUE ACCOUNT : GENERAL INSURANCE CORPORATION (GIC)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2002-03 2001-02

Fire Marine Misc Total Fire Marine Misc Total
Premiums earned (Net) 84436 20759 213438 318633 50708 22675 170463 243846
Profit/ Loss on sale/redemption 1999 1052 9503 12554 1332 1143 9038 11513
of Investments
Others (to be specified) 111 276 334 721 161 25 (117) 69
Interest, Dividend & Rent — Gross 7215 3798 34303 45316 5256 4510 35654 45420
TOTAL (A) 93761 25885 257578 377224 57457 28353 215038 300848
Claims Incurred (Net) 38825 15198 220417 274440 35624 13101 180783 229508
Commission 33769 6253 50878 90900 21205 4305 38123 63633
Operating Expenses related
to Insurance Business 920 227 1765 2912 758 165 1528 2451
Expenses relating to Investment 11 6 51 68 7 6 50 63
Foreign Taxes
TOTAL (B) 73525 21684 273111 368320 57594 17577 220483 295654
Operating Profit/(Loss) from 20236 4201 (15533) 8904 (137) 10776 (5445) 5194
Fire/Marine/Miscellaneous
Business C= (A - B)
APPROPRIATIONS
Transfer to Shareholders' Account 20236 4201 (15533) 8904 (137) 10776 (5445) 5194
Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve
Transfer to Other Reserves
(to be specified)
TOTAL (C) 20236 4201 (15533) 8904 (137) 10776 (5445) 5194
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PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT : GENERAL INSURANCE CORPORATION (GIC)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2002-03 2001-02
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)
(a) Fire Insurance 20236 (137)
(b) Marine Insurance 4201 10776
(c) Miscellaneous Insurance (15533) (5446)
8904 5193
INCOME FROM INVESTMENTS
(a) Interest, Dividend & Rent — Gross 29066 31310
(b) Profit on sale of investments 8052 7937
Less: Loss on sale of investments (1)
OTHER INCOME (To be specified) 3585 1544
TOTAL (A) 49607 45983
PROVISIONS (Other than taxation)
(a) For diminution in the value of investments 3861 3308
(b) For doubtful debts 6300 6940
(c) Others (to be specified) 5092 43
OTHER EXPENSES
(a) Expenses other than those related to Insurance Business 43
(b) Bad debts written off 22 22
(c) Others (To be specified)
TOTAL (B) 15318 10313
Profit Before Tax 34289 35670
Provision for Taxation 6123 4453
Profit after Tax 28166 31217
Balance of Profit / Loss B/f from last year 3 1
Profit available for appropriation 28169 31218
APPROPRIATIONS
(a) Interim dividends paid during the year
(b) Proposed final dividend 4730 4300
(c) Dividend distribution tax 606
(d) Transfer to any Reserves or Other Accounts (to be specified)
Transfer to General Reserve 22830 26915
Balance C/f to Balance Sheet 3 3
28169 31218
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BALANCE SHEET : GENERAL INSURANCE CORPORATION (GIC)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2002-03 2001-02
SOURCES OF FUNDS

Share Capital 21500 21500
Reserves & Surplus 295293 271622
Fair Value Change Account 114967 153903
Deferred Taxation Liability 601

TOTAL 432361 447025
APPLICATION OF FUNDS

Investments 782716 713282
Loans 79582 81589
Fixed Assets 4098 4111
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash & Bank Balance 151681 111080
Advances and Other Assets 151434 127822
Sub-Total (A) 303115 238902
CURRENT LIABILITIES 477497 394677
Provisions 259653 196182
Sub-Total (B) 737150 590859
Net Current Assets (C)= (A-B) (434035) (351957)
Misc. Expenditure (to the extent not written off or adjusted)

Profit & Loss Account (Debit Balance)

TOTAL 432361 447025
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GROSS DIRECT PREMIUM INCOME IN INDIA

TABLE-28
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(Rs. in Crores)

Sl. Fire Misc. Marine TOTAL
No.| Company 2002-03 |2001-02 | 2002-03 [2001-02 |2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02
1. | National 507.85 491.83| 2136.67 | 1666.47 219.06 207.16 | 2863.58 | 2365.46
2. | New India 867.46 859.89 | 2709.38 | 2313.14 344.40 339.30 | 3921.24 | 3512.33
3.| Oriental 532.64 521.67 | 2042.70 | 1719.16 228.07 205.65 | 2803.41 | 2446.48
4. | United India 604.18 635.89 | 2024.74 | 1763.86 339.14 255.21 | 2968.06 | 2654.96
5.| ECGC 374.78 338.52 374.78 338.52
Sub-Total 2512.13 | 2509.28 | 9288.27 | 7801.15 | 1130.67 | 11007.32 |{12931.07 | 11317.75
6. | Royal Sundaram 39.16 17.90| 132.26 50.44 13.02 2.78| 184.44 71.12
7.| Reliance 55.42 45.84 121.34 29.87 8.91 1.74 185.67 77.45
8. | IFFCO-Tokio 103.52 36.15 91.39 3.34 18.41 31.02 213.32 70.51
9. | Tata-AIG 49.91 19.36 156.69 49.91 27.33 9.18 233.93 78.45
10. | ICICI Lombard 123.75 10.98 70.82 16.13 8.91 203.48 27.11
11.| Baijaj Allianz 60.64 27.88 228.43 112.71 7.41 1.36 296.48 141.95
12.| Cholamandalam 5.32 9.31 0.16 14.79
13.| HDFC-Chubb 9.49 9.49
Sub-Total 437.72 158.11 819.73 262.40 84.15 46.08 | 1341.60 466.59
Grand Total 2949.85 | 2667.39|10108.00 | 8063.55 | 1214.82 | 1053.40 (14272.67 11784.34
GROSS DIRECT PREMIUM INCOME
16000
= B ECGC
14000 O HDFC-Chubb
O Cholamandalam
12000 O ICICI Lombard
10000 B Bajaj Allianz
3 B Tata-AlG
g 8000 . O IFFCO-Tokio
E B Reliance
& 6000 @ Royal Sundaram
B United
4000
O Oriental
2000 O New India
- . B National
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2002-03
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NET PREMIUM INCOME (EARNED)
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(Rs. in Crores)

Sl. Fire Misc Marine TOTAL

No. | Company 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02 (2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2002-03 | 2001-02
1. | National 360.10 366.55| 1473.05| 1301.13 | 132.81 149.11 | 1965.96 | 1816.79
2. | New India 790.27 679.24 | 2296.79 | 1991.51 210.09 188.12 | 3297.15 | 2858.87
3. | Oriental 360.30 392.82| 1366.56 | 1248.69 | 128.92 179.20 | 1855.78 | 1820.71
4. | United India 452.80 446.30| 1476.08 | 1383.72 | 180.49 142.77 | 2109.37 | 1972.79
5. | ECGC 366.61 330.45 366.61 330.45
Sub-Total 1963.47 | 1884.91| 6979.09 | 625550 | 652.31 659.20 | 9594.87 | 8799.61
6. | Royal Sundaram 8.64 0.67 63.49 12.23 4.36 0.18 76.49 13.08
7. | Reliance 2.68 0.39 5.71 0.69 0.92 0.14 9.31 1.21
8. | IFFCO-Tokio 9.67 0.94 26.16 2.79 3.66 0.02 39.49 3.74
9. | TATA-AIG 3.46 (0.4¢) 71.44 11.29 7.99 1.84 82.89 12.67
10. | ICICI Lombard 7.44 0.21 18.10 1.21 1.68 0.15 27.22 1.56
11. | Bajaj Allianz 9.74 0.68| 142.20 8.99 2.16 0.15| 154.10 9.82

12. | Cholamandalam 0.12 0.04 0.94 1.10

13. | HDFC-Chubb 0.41 0.41
Sub-Total 41.75 2.41| 327.55 37.20 21.71 2.47 | 391.01 42.08
Grand Total 2005.22 | 1887.32| 7306.64 | 6292.70 | 674.02| 661.67 | 9985.88 | 8841.69

NET PREMIUM
12000
W ECGC

10000

8000

6000
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INVESTMENT INCOME
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TABLE -32 (i)

NON-LIFE - NEW PRODUCTS INTRODUCED IN 2001-02

Name of the non-life Insurer

Name of Products
(Brand Names)

ICICI Lombard General Insurance
Co. Lid

The New India Assurance Co. Lid

National Insurance Co. Lid

Oriental Insurance Co. Lid

IFFCO-Tokio General Insurance
Co. Lid

Marine Transit Insurance (Inland) - Marine 1

Fidelity Guarantee Insurance - Misc. 03

Public Liability Insurance (Under Public Liability Insurance Act) Misc. 07
Public Liability Insurance (Industrial Risks) Misc.08
Public Liability Insurance (Non -industrial Risks) Mics. 09
All Risks Insurance Policy, Code: Misc 01

Burglary Insurance - Misc. 02

Group Mediclaim Insurance - Misc. 04

Group Personal Accident Insurance- Misc. 05

Money Insurance - Misc. 06

Agricultural Pump-set -misc.07

Janata Personal Accident-misc-08

Group Health Insurance Policy-misc-11

Group Health (Floater) Insurance Policy-misc-12

Group Personal Accident Insurance- Misc. 05 (Revision)
Marine Export Import Insurance

Home Insurance Policy - Misc. 13

Individual & group mediclaim policy
Overseas mediclaim policy
Health insurance policy for ex-defence personnel

Credit insurance-amendments

Individual Group Mediclaim Policy
Long Term Group Mediclaim Policy - NIC 46039

Nagrik suraksha policy
Office umbrella policy

Standard fire & special perils policy
Consequential loss (fire) policy
Workmen’s compensation policy
Machinery breakdown insurance
Contractor’s plant & machinery insurance
Erection all risk insurance

Contractor’s all risk insurance

Boiler & pressure plant insurance

Electronic equipment insurance
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Reliance General Insurance Co. Lid.

Industrial all risk policy

Machinery loss of profits policy
Motor-private car comprehensive policy
Motor-cycle scooter “b” policy

Marine cargo

Public liability (non industrial risks) insurance policy
Agriculture insurance policy

Traders package insurance policy
Burglary & house breaking insurance
Money insurance policy

Banker’s indemnity policy

Medishield policy

Fidelity guarantee policy

Public liability insurance-act policy
Product liability policy

Individual personal accident policy
Group personal accident policy

Public liability (industrial & storage risk) insurance policy
All risk insurance policy

Professional indemnity errors & ommission policy
Commercial vehicle insurance policy
Sankat mochak policy

Lok swasthya bima yojna

Pashu-dhan bima

Krishak mitra bima yojna

Sankat haran (kisan gramin bima yojana)
Critical illness insurance policy

Travel protector policy

Trade protector insurance policy
Transport & related liability cover

Home and family protection policy

Non-standard cover- insurance policy

Standard fire & special perils policy
Consequential loss (fire) policy

Industrial all risk policy

Erection all risk/ storage cum erection insurance
Machinery breakdown insurance

Contractor’s all risk insurance

Electronic equipment insurance

Contractor’s plant & machinery insurance
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(Brand Names)

Royal Sundaram Insurance Co. Lid.

Boiler & pressure plant insurance
Deterioration of stocks in cold storage insurance
Workmen’s compensation insurance policy
Public liability (act) insurance policy

A policy for act liability insurance
Motor-private car insurance “b" policy
Motor-cycle/ scooter insurance “b” policy
Commercial vehicles insurance “b” policy
Motor trade insurance “b” policy

Burglary & house breaking insurance
Money insurance policy

Fidelity guarantee policy

Individual personal accident policy

Group personal accident policy

Portable electronic equipments policy
Public liability (act) insurance policy
Baggage insurance policy

Mediclaim insurance policy (individuals & family)
Group mediclaim insurance policy

Videsh yatra mitra (for overseas travel)
Plate glass insurance policy

Janata personal accident

Cattle insurance

Office package

Professional indemnity

House holder package policy

Jewellers block

Shop keepers

Overseas travel health policy

Revised householders policy

Revised shop keepers policy

Standard fire & special perils policy

Consequential loss (fire) policy - (001 fbi 01(feb 2001)

Industrial all risk policy - 001 far 01 (feb 01)

Erection all risk/ storage cum erection insurance — 001 ear 01 (feb 2001)

Machinery breakdown insurance - 001 emb 01 (feb 01)

Contractor’s all risk insurance - 001 ecr 01 (feb 01)

Electronic equipment insurance - 001 eei 01 (feb 01)

Contractor’s plant & machinery insurance — 001 eo(cpm) 01 (feb 2001)
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Boiler & pressure plant insurance - 001 eo(boiler) 01 (feb 01)
Workmen's compensation insurance policy - 001 wcep (feb 01)
Motor insurance - commercial vehicles insurance policy

Car shield product

Machinery loss of profits insurance

Windmill package insurance policy

Group personal accident policy (accidental death only) - 001 apa
Individual personal accident insurance policy (accidental death &
disablement only) - 003 apa

Marine cargo insurance policy - (001 mcg 01 (feb01)syc

Marine cargo international clauses & wordings - (001 mcgwordings 01
(febOT)

Marine cargo inland transits - (001 mcg inland 01 (feb01)

Home insurance policy - 001 fdp

Rural personal accident insurance policy - 001 rpa (feb 01)
Burglary (business premises) insurance - 001 ftft 02/2001

Money insurance policy - (001 fcsh 02/2001

Fidelity guarantee policy - (001 fgi 02/2001

Product liability insurance policy - 001 lpdp 01 (02/2001)

Public liability insurance policy (non-industrial risks) - 001 lpnp 01 (02/2001)
Public liability insurance policy (industrial risks) - 001 Ipip 01 (02/2001)
Al risk insurance policy - 001 ari

Janatha personal accident insurance policy - 001 jpa (feb 01)
Poultry insurance policy - 001 rpy (feb 01)

Livestock insurance policy - 001 rls (feb O1)

Public liability (act) insurance policy - 001 Ipa (02/2001)

Health premium platinum insurance - 001 amg

Health shield gold insurance - 001 ame

Travel shield gold insurance - 001 ot

Hospital cash insurance - 001 ahc

Group personal accident policy 002 apa

Farmers package insurance policy - 001 fpp (apr 01)

Lost card insurance-00Tacc

Special contingency insurance — 001 sci

Purchase protection insurance - 001 app

Health shield extra - 003 ame

Health shield platinum insurance-002

Health premium platinum extension-002 amg

Travel safe insurance - 001 atr

Pet plan-001 pet

Neon sign insurance-001 ans(05/2001)

Plate glass insurance-001 agp (05/2001)

Baggage insurance-001 alg (05/2001)

Frequent traveller shield insurance - 001 atr (05/2001)
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TATA-AIG General Insurance Co. Ltd.

Point of purchase insurance - 001 app

Whirlpool purchase protection insurance — 001 app

Health premium platinum extension - 002 amg

Enterprise shield insurance - 001 fsp (06/2001)

Advance loss of profits (construction) insurance - 001 ecalop (06/2001)
360 business shield insurance - 001 fsp(360) (06/2001)

Globe traveller insurance - 001 atr(g) (06/2001)

Royal traders shield insurance - 001 ftp (06/2001)

Royal hotel shield insurance - 001 fhp (06/2001)

Royal office shield insurance - 001 fop (06/2001)

Directors & officers liability shield insurance and company
reimbursement liability shield insurance policy - 001 sdo (06/2001)
Women's welfare cover

Insure 123 policy

Commercial combined insurance policy

Miscellaneous package policy

Banker’s indemnity insurance policy

Shakthi security shield

Child security shield

Family guard - personal accident

Executive guard - personal accident

Secure income plan-low

Secure income plan-high

Family guard - personal accident

Crisis management products

Surety bond

Political risks

Trade credits

Group multiguard personal accident policy

Accident & health product - family guard+policy

Homesecure (householder’s) policy

Accident & health - group hospital cash policy

Accident & health - hsbc group hospital cash policy

Business guard — jyoti

Business guard — sanjeevini

Overseas travel accident-single trip & annual multi-trip insurance-tag-13
Overseas travel accident-single trip & annual multi-trip insurance
Overseas fravel accident-silver, gold, platinum & annual multi-trip insurance
Accident & health product - individual personal accident policy-broad
market product “shanti”

Accident & health product - individual personal accident policy and
business travel-agencies

Business guard — office
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TABLE -32 (ii

NON-LIFE INSURANCE (NON-TARIFF/PACKAGE) PRODUCTS
LAUNCHED DURING 2002-03

Name of the non-life Insurer

Name of Products
(Brand Names)

ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Lid.

The New India Assurance Co. Lid.

National Insurance Co. Lid.

Merchant’s Cover Il Insurance Policy Misc. 14

Personal Care Insurance Policy Misc 15

Product Liability Insurance Policy - Misc 15

Corporate Cover Il -Misc. 16

Sign Installation Policy - Misc 17

Professional Indemnity Policy for Doctors & Medical Practioners - Misc
21

Professional Indemnity Policy for Medical Establishments - Misc 22
Professional Indemnity Policy for Consulting Engineers, Architects and
Interior Decorators - Misc 23

Professional Indemnity Policy for Chartered Accountants/ Management
Consultants/ Lawyers/ Advocates/ Solicitors/ Counsels - Misc 24
Plate Glass Insurance Policy - Misc 28

Globetrotter - Overseas Group Travel Insurance Policy - Misc 29
Burglary Insurance - Misc. 02 (Amendment to Policy)

Baggage Group Insurance Policy - Misc. 27

Globetrotter - Overseas Individual Travel Insurance Policy - Misc 30
Event Insurance Policy - Misc 30

Comprehensive General Liability Insurance Policy - Misc 32
Individual Health Insurance Policy* - Misc 34

Director’s & Officer’s Liability Insurance Policy* - Misc 33
Performance Guarantee Insurance Policy* - Misc 32

Weather Insurance Policy*-Misc.37

Emigrant Workers Insurance Policy*-Misc.41

Overseas Ind. Student Insurance Policy*

Credit Insurance-Globealliance Policy*

CPM Policy*-Misc.42

Domestic Travel Insurance

Credit Insurance Policy (Amendments)
Overseas Mediclaim Policy (Revision)
Universal Mediclaim Policy

Cruise Insurance-Overseas Mediclaim Policy
Professional Indemnity Policy for Insurance Brokers
Workers” Welfare Policy

Universal Mediclaim Policy

Yeshasvini Co-operative Health Insurance Scheme
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Oriental Insurance Co. Lid.

United India Insurance Co. Lid.

IFFCO-Tokio General Insurance Co. Lid.

Reliance General Insurance Co. Lid.

Royal Sundaram Insurance Co. Ltd.

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Lid.

TATA AIG General Insurance Co. Lid.

Universal Mediclaim Policy

Sweet Home Package Policy*

Universal Mediclaim Policy*
Dental Insurance Policy*

Overseas Mediclaim Policy (Revised)

Traders Package Policy
Home Package Policy

Jewellers” Block Policy

Farmers’ Package Policy

Enterprise Business Insurance Policy
Edu-care Policy

Enterprise Shield Policy (Amended)
Property All Risks Policy (Amended)

360 Business Shield Insurance (Amended)

Individual Personal Accident Policy (Revised)

Guru Raksha Insurance Policy*

Business Guard - Shakti

Business Guard - Commercial

Individual Injury And Personal Accident Policy - Broad Market Product
- “Chaaya”

Accident & Health - Overseas Travel Accident - Travel Care

Accident & Health - Overseas Travel Accident - Student Guard
Individual Injury And Personal Accident Policy - “Family Care Protection
Plan”

Individual Personal Accident Product - Income Guard Plan

Individual Personal Accident Product - Income Guard Plan Plus
Accident & Health - Group Multiguard Personal Accident Policy
Accident & Health - Voluntary Group Personal Accident Policy
Accident & Health - Group Hospital & Surgical Insurance Policy
Accident & Health - Group Travel Guard Policy-Gtg1102

Accident & Health - Travel Care Policy-Prod. Code: Tc 1102
Accident & Health - Travel Guard Policy-Prod. Code: Tg 1102
Homesecure Privilege Policy

Package Insurance Policy For Mutual Funds*

Pollution Legal Liability Select Policy*

Accident & Health - Group Personal Injury Plan (Revised)*

Crime Manager Policy*
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HDFC Chubb General Insurance Co. Lid.

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co. Lid.

Group Personal Accident Insurance
Personal Accident Insurance
Group Hospital Cash Insurance
Hospital Cash Insurance

Group Travel Insurance

Travel Insurance

Home Insurance Product

Public Liability Insurance Policy
Product Liability Insurance Policy
Crime Insurance Policy*

Marine Cargo Open Policy*
Mutual Fund Asset Protection Policy*

Product Liability Insurance Policy - C1-PD

Product Liability Insurance Policy - Under Public Liability- C2-PI
Public Liability Insurance Policy for Industrial and Storage Risk
Public Liability Insurance Policy for Non - Industrial Risk
Commercial General Liability Insurance Policy

Commercial Umbrella Liability Insurance Policy

Specialised Professional Indemnity Policy

Financial Institutions Professional Indemnity Policy

Bankers Indemnity Policy

Electronic and Computer Crime Insurance Policy

Credit Card Insurance Policy

Fidelity Guarantee Insurance Policy

Fidelity , Money And Security Insurance Policy

Directors And Officers Indemnity Policy

Computer Services and Software Developers Professional Liability
Insurance Policy

Multimedia Professional Liability Insurance Policy

Internet Content Liability Insurance Policy

Internet Professional Liability Insurance Policy

Internet Security Insurance Policy

Technology Professional Liability Insurance Policy

Marine Cargo Policy with Library of Clauses

Marine Advanced Loss of Profit Insurance Policy

Port Authority Liability Insurance Policy

Stevedores Liability Insurance Policy

Wharfinger Liability Insurance Policy

Marine Terminal Operators Comprehensive Liability Insurance Policy
Burglary Policy

Money - In Safe and In Transit Policy
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(Brand Names)

Plate Glass Policy

Neon Sign Insurance

TV Insurance

Pedal Cycles Insurance

All Risks Policy

Baggage Insurance

Animal Driven Cart Insurance
Agricultural Pump Set Insurance
Sugarcane Crop Insurance - Inputs
Live Stock Insurance

Cattle Insurance

Sheep Insurance

Poultry Insurance

Pet Dog Insurance

Personal Accident Insurance —
Individual & Group Insurance
Travel Health Insurance - Individual & Group
Group Health Insurance
Individual Health Insurance
Shop Package Policy

Office Package Policy

Home Package Policy

Farmer Package Policy

Asset All Risks Policy*

* Products introduced After March, 2003
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TABLE -33

APPOINTED ACTUARIES OF NON-LIFE INSURERS
(as at 31st March, 2003)

Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd.

Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co. Lid.

HDFC CHUBB General Insurance. Co. Lid.
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd.
IFFCO-Tokio General Insurance Co. Lid.
National Insurance Co. Lid.

The New India Assurance Co. Lid.

Reliance General Insurance Co. Lid.

Royal Sundaram Insurance. Co. Ltd.

TATA AIG General Insurance Co. Lid.

The Oriental Insurance Co. Lid.

United India Insurance Co. Ltd.

General Insurance Corporation of India — Life Re-insurance Deptt.

Govindan Varadarajan
Kalapatapu Purnachandra Sarma
Lalgudy P Venkataraman
Narayanan Laxmanan
Piyush |. Majmudar

A. P Peethambaran

Bhudev Chatterjee

Anand Ramachandra Prabhu
N. Gopalakrishna Pai

O. Laxminarayana

Kasim Hanumantha Rao
Prem Gupta

Sarangaraja Krishnan

(iii) Customer Service

The Authority, while perceiving a need for a vibrant
force of agents to meet the aspirations of the
policyholders, laid down training as one of the
prerequisites for licensing of agents. Accordingly,
insurers have set up accredited divisional and regional
training centres to impart training to the agents as
per the norms laid down by the Authority.
Simultaneously, while noftifying the regulations for
corporate agents, brokers, surveyors and TPAs, the
Authority has laid down training requirements for
them. The emphasis is on ensuring that the
intermediaries are fully equipped to understand the
requirements of the clients, and are well equipped
to advise them accordingly. Today, insurers are laying
top priority on servicing of the policyholders. This
is particularly significant as the market is slowly
becoming more competitive. The two factors which
could impact the choice made by a customer are

“product design and pricing” and the “quality of the
service rendered”. The insurers are well aware of these
customer requirements.

Further, the notification of the regulations pertaining
to protection of inferest of policyholders has also laid
down benchmarks for customer services. All insurers
are required to comply with these benchmarks. As
another step in the servicing of the customers, the
Authority constituted a Consumers Grievances Cell
(CGCQ) in December, 2002, to take up the complaints
received from the insured with the respective insurers.
It is heartening to report that the efforts of the Authority
have yielded results in resolving the complaints of
the policyholders. The details regarding the CGC are
given in Part Il (vi) of the Report, with Tables 49
and 50 giving the status of the complaints received
by the Authority.
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The Councils of the life and the non-life insurers have
also guided the insurers towards taking steps for
voluntary adoption of practices in the interest of the
policyholders. In this direction, the life insurers were
advised by their Council in May, 2003 to adopt
standards of conduct and sound practices for rendering
efficient service to the holders of life insurance policies.

With a view to facilitating servicing of the customer,
insurers have commenced generating reports through
IT-based platforms on such aspects as policy issuance,
claims reported, claims paid, claims outstanding,
claims disposal ratio, non-suit claims disposal ratio,
premium refund, endorsements and grievance re-
dressal ratio. Insurers keep checks on own performance
against the benchmarks established in-house; have
taken up customer relationship management projects
for their customer service centres which have been
set up at various locations through out the country;
and have set up call centres to cater to the varied
needs of the policyholders, in addition to imparting
information on various products. Some companies
have also started providing mobile claims service.
Insurers have also set up grievances cells and the
performance of these Cells is closely monitored on
a regular basis. “May | Help You” and information
facilitation counters have also been established. In
addition, schemes such as Jald Rahat Yojana and
Needhi Melas have been popularised to dispose of
claims speedily.
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With the insurance industry fast emerging as a buyers’
market, insurers would have to gear themselves up
to provide quality customer service and, in this trajectory,
information technology would continue to play a
crucial role. Those insurers who are capable of
responding to the needs of customers in terms of
both products offered and servicing thereafter shall
emerge as leaders in the evolving competitive

environment.

During the year 2002-03, LIC adopted the revised
Citizen’s Charter placing higher responsibility on its
personnel handling the back office operations with
a view to achieving the highest levels of standards
in servicing which, as per the management, are more
stringent than the mandate given under the
policyholders’ regulations.

C. DETAILS OF REGISTERED INSURERS
AND RE-INSURER

The details of the registered life insurers, non-life
insurers and the re-insurer are placed at Tables 34
to 36. The tabulations give the names of the insurers,
the type of business being underwritten by them, the
date of commencement of their operations, their
principal officer and the contact details.
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D. POLICIES AND MEASURES TO

DEVELOP THE INSURANCE MARKET

Moving forward on the foundation laid in the initial
years of its operations, the Authority has taken a
number of initiatives during the financial year
2002-03. Some of these are listed below:

1.

It would be recalled that the annual renewal fee
for the insurers registered with the Authority, was
reduced from 1/5" to 1/10" of 1 per cent of
the gross written premium in the financial year
2001-02 for the said year. Further, the Insurance
Advisory Committee had approved the extension
of the benefit for another two years i.e.
2002-03 and 2003-04, which was adopted by
the Authority. As per nofification issued in February,
2003 the regulations pertaining to registration
of Indian insurance companies, were amended
to reduce the registration fee from 1/5" to
1/10" of 1 per cent of the gross direct premium
underwritten.

Protection of Policyholders’ Interests Regulations,
2002 were notified to provide for policy proposal
documents in easily understandable language,
claims procedure in both life and non-life, setting
up of grievance redressal machinery, speedy
settlement of claims and policyholders’ servicing.
These provisions were in addition to the already
existing guidelines pertaining to filing of products
under “File and Use”. Interest on delayed payment
of the claims and a free look-in period of
15 days by the prospects/policyholders are the
additional features of these regulations. These
regulations were further modified to provide for
clarity while stating the scope of the benefits of
an insurance product, and laid down the limits
for riders vis-a-vis the base product.

The regulations pertaining to distribution of surplus
were notified to provide for life insurers to distribute
maximum of up to 10 per cent of the surplus
to the shareholders in case of participating policies,
and up to 100 per cent of the surplus, in case
of non-participating policies.

During the financial year 2002-03, with the notification
of the Insurance (Amendment) Act, 2002, the following
regulations were also notified by the Authority:

Licensing of Corporate Agents, and Insurance
Brokers Regulations, 2002 to increase the channels
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of distribution of insurance products. The
regulations have facilitated the entry of banks,
NBFCs, Cooperatives and NGOs into the area
of selling and distribution of insurance products.

Manner of Payment of Premium Regulations,
2002 provide for payment of insurance premium
through credit cards, money order and through
internet fo facilitate the convenience of customers.

Obligations of Insurers to Rural or Social Sectors
(Amendment) Regulations, 2002, while replacing
the earlier regulations, redefined the word “rural”
and also inserted the definition of “informal
sector”. The obligations of the life insurers were
increased for the financial year 2002-03 and
onwards. These regulations were effective from

the financial year 2002-03.

With the introduction of bancassurance, the
Authority also issued guidelines for the life insurers
to enter into referral arrangements with the banks.

Review of the insurance law:

The process of liberalisation of the insurance sector,
which commenced about three years back, has
witnessed a sea change in the industry with new private
players entering the market. The process has resulted
in the need for comprehensive review of the regulatory
and supervisory environment for these players. With
this end in view, the Law Commission, at the request
of the Authority, has initiated the exercise of review
of Insurance Act, 1938 and other related legislations
to harmonise the insurance laws in tune with the
liberalised economic environment prevailing in the
economy in general and particularly in the context
of the insurance industry. As part of the exercise,
the Commission is also assessing the need for a single
comprehensive legislation for the insurance industry.

The Commission has released a white paper on the
subject and wide ranging discussions have been held
with various bodies including chambers of commerce,
industry and various stakeholders. The Authority
constituted a core group to assist the Law Commission
in this regard, and its views on various aspects are
being examined.
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E. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
ACTIVITIES UNDERTAKEN:

In its efforts to promote Research and Development
activities in the insurance sector, the Authority in
collaboration with the Government of Andhra Pradesh
has founded the Institute of Insurance and Risk
Management (IIRM) at Hyderabad. 1IRM has been
given the mandate to conduct research in the financial
areas and it is perceived that the Institute shall be
developed as a centre of excellence and as a role
model for the Asia Pacific Region. (The activities
of IIRM are dwelt with at length in Part lll of the
Report). Other than this, the Centre for Insurance
Research and Education already set up at Indian
Institute of Management (lIM), Bangalore carries out
basic research work on special aspects of insurance.
Based on the research study on rural insurance carried
out by the Centre, the Authority had notified the
amendments to the regulations pertaining to obligations
of insurers to the rural and social sectors, which were
made applicable from the financial year 2002-03.

The insurers have also been conducting market research
either in-house or through professional agencies to
infroduce tailor-made products targeted at specific
segments of the population. Risk assessment studies
are being carried out for measuring accumulation
of risk at a particular place at any one point of time.
Consumer awareness campaigns are being encouraged
to improve insurance literacy levels by conducting
workshops, distributing literature, etc.  Some of the
insurers have come forward in the form of sponsoring
chair professorships, announcing scholarships, and
announcing grants for the development of the insurance
profession with special reference to actuarial sciences,
besides conducting seminars and conferences. Similarly,
other institutions at university/college levels are being
encouraged to introduce diploma courses in insurance
with the aim of promoting the profession of insurance.
The industry has also been witness to introduction
of such concepts as Embedded Value (EV) - a
technique for measuring the market value of a life
insurance company, which is aimed at facilitating
managements’ efforts at evaluating their performance.
As the industry evolves, additional management
techniques would emerge, on the basis of various
efforts at research and development being initiated
by the various stakeholders in the industry and by
the academicians.
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ING group in collaboration with FICCI has also set
up a research centre. This centre had produced a
film touching upon the various aspects of insurance
and pension coverage.

F. REVIEW

i) Protection of interests of

policyholders

One of the critical areas of responsibilities of the
Authority is to provide for protection of the interests
of holders of insurance policies. To give effect to
this objective the Authority notified the Protection of
Policyholders’ Regulations in April, 2002, which provide
for the policy proposal documents being made available
in an easily understandable language, outlines the
claims procedure in both life and non-life segments,
setting up of grievance redressal machinery, speedy
sefflement of claims and policyholders’ servicing.
These provisions are in addition to the already existing
provisions pertaining to filing of products under “File
and Use”. Interest on delayed payment of the claims
and a free look-in period of 15 days by the prospects/
policyholders are the additional features of these
regulations. These regulations were modified in
October, 2003 following representations received
from various stakeholders in the industry. The
amendment relates to sub-regulation (1) of regulation
3, which permits an insurance company to charge
premium up to 100 per cent of the premium of the
basic product in case of health related or critical
illness riders and a limit of 30 per cent of the premium
of the basic product for all other riders. In addition,
under the file and use procedure, all insurers are
required to file the insurance products with the Authority
before their launch in the market so that it can be
verified that the interests of the policyholders are well
protected, under the terms of the policy document.

The other steps taken by the Authority to protect the
interests of the policyholders include:

® constitution of a Cell within the Authority headed
by the Executive Director to receive complaints/
grievances from the holders of insurance policies.
The Cell looks into genuine cases of delay in
the seftlement of public grievances. However, the
Cell does not function as an underwriter nor does
it decide on issues like the adoption of underwriting
practices, the claims procedure etc., by the insurers;
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® making it compulsory for every life insurer to
make available the premium rates with a facility
of a premium calculator on its web-site, for the
information of public;

® representatives of the Chambers of Commerce
have been nominated on the Insurance Councils
and the Tariff Advisory Committee (TAC), to
ensure that the views of the consumers are
considered, while taking policy decisions;

® insurers are required to have a consumer
representative on their Board;

® it is obligatory on the part of the insurance
companies to disclose clearly the benefits, terms
and conditions under the policy document;

® advertisements issued by the insurers are required
to make proper disclosures in order to ensure
that they do not mislead the insuring public;

® insurers are required to set up proper grievance
redressal machinery at their head office and at
the other offices in the country.

® Third Party Administrators have been introduced
in the health sector, to provide improved health
insurance services viz., cashless cover, and other
add on facilities.

® To serve better the interests of the insured public
in general and insurance industry in particular,
brokers have been licensed as intermediaries. The
broker renders advice on appropriate insurance
cover and terms thereof, keeps up to date on
the variety of available insurance products and
submits quotations received from insurers for
consideration of the client.

The Authority also protects the interests of the
policyholders by ensuring that the insurers maintain
the prescribed solvency margin. Maintenance of the
solvency margins by the insurers is an indication that
they are in the position to meet their obligations
towards policyholders with regard to payment of
claims.

ii) Maintenance of solvency margins
of insurers

The IRDA (Assets, Liabilities and Solvency Margin of

Insurers) Regulations, 2000 require all insurers to
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maintain an excess of value of assets over liabilities,
to the extent of not less than Rs.50 crore, or a sum
equivalent based on the prescribed formula given in
IRDA (Actuarial Report and Abstracts) Regulations,
2000.

Similarly, in respect of general insurers, a minimum
solvency margin of Rs.50 crore is required fo be:
maintained (Rs.100 crore in case of a reinsurer) or
a sum equivalent based on formula given in IRDA

(Assets, Liabilities and Solvency Margin of Insurers)
Regulations, 2000.

In addition, the registration requirements stipulate that
all insurers are to maintain a solvency ratio of
1.5 times the normal requirement.

At the time of registration, it was envisaged that the
new players would take about five years to stabilise
their operations, and may have to fund their initial
underwriting losses through additional inflow of funds.
However, the insurers are required to meet the solvency
margin requirements at all times, and the Authority
places great importance on this parameter as an
indicator of the health of respective insurers and
protection of the interests of policyholders. Thus,
monitoring of solvency margin certified by the appointed
actuary of the insurers is an important function of
the Authority. All insurers file with the Authority an
annual statement as per the IRDA (Assets, Liabilities
and Solvency Margin of Insurers) Regulations, 2000
or IRDA (Actuarial Report and Abstract) Regulations,
2000 giving the status of their solvency position.

During the financial year 2002-03 all insurers, including
life, non-life and re-insurer have complied with the
solvency requirements, as laid down in the Insurance

Act, 1938.

iii) Monitoring of reinsurance

While laying down the regulations for reinsurance,
the Authority has laid stress on each insurer maintaining
maximum possible retention commensurate with its
financial strength and volume of business. It is in
this context that the Authority may require an insurer
to justify its retention policy, and reserves the right
to give such directions as are considered necessary
to guard against any Indian insurer merely fronting
for a foreign insurer. The reinsurance programme of
each insurer, carrying on general insurance business,

Jdex
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is also required to be guided by the basic tenets
of developing adequate capacity; securing the best
possible protection for the reinsurance costs incurred;
and simplifying the administration of business.

In the case of life reinsurance, every life insurer shall
draw a programme of reinsurance in respect of lives
covered by it and have the same duly certified by
the Appointed Actuary. Further, the profile of such
a programme, duly certified by the Appointed Actuary,
giving the name(s) of the reinsurer(s) with whom the
insurer proposes to place business, are required to
be filed with the Authority, at least forty-five days before
the commencement of each financial year. The
Authority may, if it considers necessary, elicit from
the insurer any additional information, from time to
time, and the insurer shall furnish the same.

The Authority is particularly concerned that insurers
ceding abroad do so only after utilisation of the
national capacity; on competitive international terms;
and that the business placed with any one re-insurer
should not be excessive. Thus, every insurer is required
to offer an opportunity to other Indian insurers,
including the Indian re-insurer to participate in its
facultative and treaty surpluses before placement of
such cessions outside India. Insurers are also required
to place their reinsurance business outside India with
only those re-insurers who have over a period of
the past five years counting from the year preceding
for which the business has to be placed, enjoyed
a rating of at least BBB (with Standard & Poor) or
equivalent rating of any other international rating
agency. Placements with other re-insurers require the
approval of the Authority. Surplus over and above
the domestic reinsurance arrangements class-wise can
be placed by the insurer independently subject to
a limit of 10 per cent of total re-insurance premium
ceded outside India being placed with any one
re-insurer. Where it is necessary to cede a share
exceeding such limits to any particular re-insurer, the
insurer may seek the specific approval of the Authority
for the same.

With this background, insurers have been filing their
reinsurance programmes with the Authority. On closer
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examination of the reinsurance programmes, it has
been observed that the private players are constrained
by lack of capacity and are therefore trying to keep
a higher retention and protect themselves by an excess
of loss cover. On this retention, the insurers draw
up their company’s surplus treatfies running info a
number of lines. These insurers are participating in
the market surplus treaties organised by GIC, the
national re-insurer. On the other hand, the public
sector companies because of their high net worth,
are able to muster higher net retentions. Consequently,
their reinsurance programmes are quite distinct from
those of the private players. In addition, these insurers’
surplus treaties do not have as many numbers of
lines when compared to the private players. The public
sector insurers, nevertheless, follow the same structure
of having company surplus treaties and participate
in the market surplus treaties.

The opening up of the sector has seen a decline
in the net retentions in the country. This is, but, an
expected development. While, earlier the entire
programme was placed through the GIC and entered
the international market as one block, with the entry
of new players and with the autonomy granted to
the State owned companies, each of these insurers
drew up a separate re-insurance programme, and
entered the reinsurance market as a separate entity.
The decline in the retentions, however, has been small.

The analysis of the information furnished by the private
players reveals that the retention ratio for fire and
the engineering segments is only 17 per cent on an
average. Motor, health and personal accident are
reasonably good (in the range of 70 per cent- 78
per cent) with the companies keeping large proportion
of the premium to themselves. The net retention of
the private players, excluding motor, is 32 per cent
and goes up to 47.5 per cent on including motor.

Though the final figures of the public sector players
are still awaited, the retention ratios, excluding motor,
have been indicated to be around 75 per cent.

Table 37 gives details of obligatory cession received

by GIC.

195



351 alfddes Rard
rd ANNUAL REPORT

2002-2003
TABLE - 37
OBLIGATORY CESSIONS RECEIVED BY GIC
Max. Reinsurance Profit Commission
Class % Liability Commission Reserves
per risk oblig Pool Oblig Pool
Fire 20% Rs. 50 crs. 30% Nil Nil Nil
PML
Marine 20% Rs. 10 22.50% Nil Nil Nil
Cargo crores S.I.
War / SRCC 20% No Limit 10% Nil Nil Nil
SRCC 20% No Limit 10% Nil Nil Nil
Rendered
in 3rd year
Marine Hull 20% Rs. 16 crs. S.I. 17.5% 17.5% Profit for 3 Nil
Commission preceding
shall u/w years
Motor, WC 20% No Limit 25% Nil applicable Nil Nil
Aviation Hull 20% No Limit 10% Nil on the Nil Nil
Aviation 20% No Limit 15% Nil aggregate Nil Nil
Liability results of
Oil & Energy 20% Rs. 2 crs. 2.5% Nil statutory Nil Nil
portfolio @
20%
Liabilities
(Public Liab. 20% No Limit 25% Nil Nil Nil
& Products
Liab.)
Other Misc. 20% No Limit 25% Nil Nil Nil
MB/ BE/ LOP 20% Rs. 15 crs. 25% Nil Nil Nil
PML or Rs. 45
crs. S.l.
CAR/ EAR 20% Rs. 30 crs. 25% Nil Nil Nil Nil
ALOP/ DSU PML or Rs.
90 crs. S.I.

Non-Standard Liability covers such as

- Product Recall }
-D&O } 20% on case to case basis -
-E&O } Maximum obligatory Cessions limit from Rs. 2 to 5 crores.

[ ]
- Professional Indemnity } I
- Comp. General Liability } k
- Other Liability }
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Indian Market Terrorism Pool

Following the September 11 attacks on the World
Trade Centre, in USA, the Indian insurers were left
in a lurch with no re-insurer willing to extend reinsurance
support for terrorism cover. The implications of this,
for the Indian insurers, were that they could end up
declining terrorism cover to their insurance customers.
Such a development did not bode well for the industry
in particular and for the country at large. The Authority
held discussions with all the stakeholders in the
industry with a view to evolving a consensus on the
ways and means fo find a solution fo this extraordinary
event in the light of the unprecedented circumstances.
It was then decided to set up a separate pool to
be administered by GIC for providing terrorism cover
to all insured.

The maximum loss payable by the Pool under the
terrorism cover is Rs.200 crore per risk. The term
‘per risk’ is as defined by the TAC. The member
insurance companies have a share in loss retention
of the Pool as per the agreement signed with each
one of them. The Pool is protected by an excess
of loss cover in two layers with an underlying of Rs.100
crore as under:

Layer 1: Rs. 100 crores in excess of Rs.100 crore
for any one event.

Layer 2: Rs. 200 crores in excess of Rs.200 crore
for any one event.

For the year 2002-03, the cost of excess of loss
protection was allocated between the participants
based on the share of individual member companies.
However, for the financial year 2003-04, the funds
of the Pool have been utilised towards meeting the
said costs.

In order to address cases of multiple insurance and
also where both fire and engineering insurance covers
are issued, the Tariff Advisory Committee was asked
to place a limit of Rs.200 crore loss per location
to be applicable on the aggregate of losses under
both Fire and Engineering insurances. Any insurer
seeking insurance cover in excess of Rs.200 crore
(as provided by Tariff), is at liberty to do so at terms
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obtained from re-insurers, under intimation to the Pool
Manager.

During the financial year 2003-04, the GIC, Pool
Manager to the terrorism pool, has arranged
reinsurance protection for the Pool effective April,
2003. The renewal has been effected at expiring cost
for existing limits. The maximum amount payable by
the Pool on a perrisk basis is Rs.200 crore, irrespective
of the sum insured. In the event of multiple risks
within the same location (compound), the maximum
loss payable by the Pool for any one event is Rs.200
crore for all risks within the same compound. In
addition, GIC has arranged facultative facility for
terrorism risks with the limits Rs.300 crore in excess
of Rs.200 crore.

Reinsurance Advisory Committee:

The Reinsurance Advisory Committee, constituted under
section 101B of the Insurance Act, 1938, by the
Authority, with the prior approval of the Central
Government, continued to meet periodically to discuss
issues pertaining to reinsurance including re-insurers
filing their reinsurance programmes within 45 days
of the commencement of the financial year; insurers
demonstrating maximum retention consistent with their
respective net worth and volume of business; availing
of the opportunities offered by the national re-insurer
if it matches or offers better terms vis-a-vis the
international rates; place reinsurance with one another,
both treaty and facultative — the placements abroad
need to be subject to signing down to the extent
shares are placed within the country; obtain optimum
terms for reinsurance as to minimise the outflow of
foreign exchange; and ensure prompt documentation
following placement and furnish the statistical
information pertaining to re-insurance with the Authority
as per the prescribed formats. As per the decision
of the Reinsurance Advisory Committee, the Authority
requires a compulsory cession by the insurers carrying
on general insurance business at 20 per cent subject
to limits in fire, engineering and energy business.
Cessions in respect of public and product liability
business have also been indicated at 20 per cent
on quota share basis without any limits. The
commissions and profit commissions for each class
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of business, in addition to laying down the procedures
for maintenance and settlement of accounts, have
also been specified.

Presently, the Reinsurance Advisory Committee consists
of the following members:

(@) C. N. S. Shastri, former Managing Director, GIC
of India and the former Adviser to Bank Negara,
Malaysia;

(b) A. C. Mukheriee, former CMD, New India
Assurance Co. Ltd.;

(c) P C. Ghosh, Chairman, GIC;

(d) S. V. Mony, CEO, AMP Sanmar and the former
Chairman, GIC.

Mr. N. K. Shinkar, former Chairman, Life Insurance
Corporation of India continues to be the special
invitee at the meetings of the Committee.

iv) Monitoring of investments of the
insurers

The insurance sector, on account of the huge size
of the funds that it attracts, plays a crucial part in
the deployment of the same. These funds need to
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necessarily be invested in such manner as to ensure
an asset liability match as to equip the insurers to
meet their obligations to their policyholders, as and
when the claims obligations arise. The other side of
the coin, of course, is the role that the insurers play
in creation of wealth in the economy. The regulations
framed by the Authority lay down guidelines for
investments by the life and non life insurance
companies, including the exposure norms/ prudential
guidelines. The requirements laid down by the Authority
address the dual objectives of the safety and returns
to the insurers combined with their meeting the socio-
economic objectives of nation building, particularly
targeted at the infrastructure and the social sectors.

The Authority has mandated the pattern of investments
to be followed by the insurance companies. Investments
in Government securities, approved securities, approved
investments and in infrastructure and social sectors
have been prescribed in the Insurance Act, 1938 and
the regulations framed thereunder. The Authority has
also specified that every insurer carrying on the
business of life insurance shall invest and at all times
keep invested its controlled fund (other than funds
relating to pension and general annuity business and
unit-linked life insurance business) in the following
manner:

TABLE - 38
PATTERN OF INVESTMENTS SPECIFIED BY THE AUTHORITY - LIFE INSURANCE

S.No Type of Investment

Percentage

i) | Government securities

25%

i) | Government securities or other approved securities (including (i) above)

Not less than 50%

i) | Approved Investments as specified in Schedule-1

a) | Infrastructure and Social Sector

Not less than 15%

b) | Others to be governed by Exposure Norms. (Investments in ‘Other than in

Approved Investments’ in no case exceed 15% of the Fund).

Not exceeding 35%
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In the case of pension and general annuity business,

every insurer shall invest and at all times keep invested ~ manner:

TABLE - 39
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its funds, under these segments, in the following

PATTERN OF INVESTMENTS SPECIFIED BY THE AUTHORITY -
PENSION AND GENERAL ANNUITY

S.No | Type of Investment Percentage
i) | Government securities, being not less than 20%
ii) | Government securities or other approved securities 40%

inclusive of (i) above, being not less than

ii)

Balance to be invested in Approved Investments and to be
governed by Exposure/ Prudential Norms

Not exceeding 60%

In the case of unit linked life insurance business, every
insurer shall invest and at all times keep invested its
segregated fund of unit linked life insurance business as
per the pattern of investment offered to and approved by
the policyholders. Unit linked policies may only be offered

PATTERN OF INVESTMENTS SPECIFIED BY THE AUTHORITY - LINKED

TABLE - 40

LIFE INSURANCE BUSINESS

where the units are linked to categories of assets which
are both marketable and easily realisable. However, the
total investment in other than approved category of
investments shall at no time exceed 25 per cent of the
fund. (Refer Table 40).

Type of Investment

Percentage

Approved Investments

Not less than 75%

Other than approved Investments

Not more than 25%

Insofar as general Insurance or reinsurance business
is concerned, every insurer shall invest and at all

PATTERN OF INVESTMENTS SPECIFIED BY THE AUTHORITY - GENERAL

TABLE - 41

times keep invested its total assets in the manner
set out below: (Refer Table 41)

INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE

S.No. | Type of Investment Percentage
i) | Central Government securities being not less than 20%
ii) | State Government securities and other guaranteed securities 30%
including (i) above being not less than
iii) | Housing and Loans to State Government for Housing and Fire 5%
Fighting equipment, being not less than
iv) | Investments in Approved Investments

a) Infrastructure and Social Sector
b) Others to be governed by Exposure Norms. However the
investments in 'Other than in Approved Investments' in no

case exceed 25% of the Assets.

Not less than 10%
Not exceeding 55%
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The Authority has also been issuing clarifications/
guidance notfes to the insurers from time to time.
In this connection, all insurers were advised, during
the year, to file the compliance certificate as per the
prescribed format along with the investment returns
on a quarterly basis. The insurers are also required
to furnish the said certificate at the end of each
financial year, along with a certificate from the custodian
confirming the value of the securities held and certifying
that, the same were free of encumbrances, charges,
hypothecation and lien. The insurers have also been
advised to furnish particulars of defaults in receipts
of periodic incomes and/or principal on maturity, on
a quarterly basis, and particulars of the provisions
made/ proposed to be made on the same.

The Authority, during the financial year 2002-03, also
laid down the guidelines for investments in mutual
funds. These investments as a temporary parking
mechanism, are required to be made only under the
other than approved category. The Authority has
further laid down the exposure norms for such
investments, and has provided the norms for valuation
of the mutual fund investments. As a step towards
establishing the reconciliation between the purchases
and sales of investments made by insurers on a
quarterly basis, the insurers have been advised to
file, on a quarterly basis, a reconciliation statement
on the purchases and sales. The insurers have also
been issued directions for preparation of these
statements.

Given the fact that the investments impact the
performance of insurance companies, and that this
is a dynamic field of operations, the Authority places
a lot of significance on accuracy of information
furnished by the insurers on a quarterly basis. The
evolving investment environment also calls for review
of the regulations on a regular basis. It is perhaps
in this context that, it may be mentioned, the investment
regulations have undergone the most amendments
in the last three years.

The Authority, while exercising its powers to grant
exemptions, has extended limited purpose exemptions
to the insurers on a case to case basis, taking into
consideration the merits of each case, and has issued
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specific advices on some of the provisions of the
Insurance Act and the Investment Regulations
formulated there under. These exemptions have been
granted under sections 27A(3) and (4) of the Insurance
Act, 1938; and under the industrial sector exposure
norms and the investee company exposure norms.
The Authority has further exercised these powers to
expand the list of approved investments for life and
general insurers.

Analysis of the returns submitted by the life and
general insurers, reveals that they are broadly
complying with the investment regulations as laid
down by the Authority. In individual cases, clarifications
have been sought from the insurers. Further, in a
few instances, the insurers have had difficulty in
complying with the social sector investments due to
lack of adequate avenues for such investment. However,
these shorffalls have been made good by making
additional investments under the infrastructure category.

That the Authority places crucial emphasis on prudent
investment of funds at the disposal of the insurer,
is well reflected from the detailed regulations laid
down for the insurers. As a corollary to the investment
decisions, the insurers are also required to continuously
monitor their portfolio, and make adequate provisions
for any deterioration in the individual investments in
the portfolio. With a view to monitoring the investment
decisions of the insurers, as to compliance with the
regulations, prudent investment of the funds and
adequate provisioning on a regular basis, the Authority
has initiated steps towards investment audit on a
periodic basis. The Audits are carried out by chartered
accountants drawn from the panel maintained by the
Authority, along with one of the technical officers of
the Authority forming part of the inspection team.

More recently, in the current financial year
2003-04, the Authority has also reviewed and amended
the existing regulations on investments. These
amendments were necessitated because of the changes
that have occurred in the investment environment in
the country. Further, deregulation of interest rates,
even though had helped in making financial market
operations efficient and cost effective, the same has
led to considerable volatility in the market resulting
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TABLE - 42

COMPANY-WISE INVESTMENT DETAILS - GENERAL INSURANCE
INVESTMENT DETAILS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2003
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(Rs. in Crores)

Inv.
Subject
to Total
G. Sec. Exposure | Other than | nyest-
sl. Insurer G.Sec. | &other | Housing | Infra- Social Norms Approved ment
No. Approved Structure Sector (Incl. other Inv. (Company-
Sec. than wise)
appoved
Inv.
1.| GIC 2200.91 2699.62 688.94 686.80 4388.51 964.78 | 8463.87
2. New India 1966.96 2539.72 421.11 446.92 3955.21 1268.90 | 7362.96
3.| National Insurance 1210.88 1573.95 212.50 270.02 1622.06 380.49 | 3678.52
4. United India 1616.90 2168.95 371.14 713.40 2110.60 624.55| 5364.09
5.| Oriental Insurance 981.71 1345.81 279.40 436.23 1898.34 331.39 | 3959.78
6.| Reliance General 105.44 105.44 12.06 20.33 - 43.67 18.02 181.50
7.] Royal Sundaram 67.75 74.55 19.80 21.66 54.86 0.00 170.87
8. IFFCO TOKIO 71.86 71.86 12.46 26.73 88.71 25.75 199.75
9.| TATA-AIG General 113.67 113.67 15.92 30.18 70.22 40.53 229.99
10.| Bajaj Allianz 102.51 107.51 24.39 34.56 128.35 38.69 294.81
11.| ICICI Lombard 0.00 94.60 18.56 29.39 - 75.26 23.34 217.81
12.] CHNHB Association 2.28 2.28 0.60 1.15 - 6.45 2.20 10.49
13.| Cholamandalam 81.82 81.82 5.06 11.40 10.60 5.49 108.88
14.| HDFC CHUBB 69.80 69.80 5.27 10.45 5.46 -0.34 90.98
Total (Sector - Wise) 8592.49 | 11049.58 | 2087.20 | 2739.21 - 14458.30 3723.80 [30334.30
As At 31st March 2002
Public Sector 6630.86 8649.28 | 1833.49 | 5023.82 7157.51 2834.73 | 22664.10
Private Sector 277.06 353.28 59.48 122.11 - 201.46 137.37 736.33
Grand Total 6907.92 9002.56 | 1892.97 | 5145.93 - 7358.97 2972.10 |23400.43

SECTOR-WISE INVESTMENTS AS ON 31.3.2003- GENERAL INSURERS

(Rs in crores)

372380

1073450

859249

208720

245709

0 273921
m CG.S. O Housing & FFE ~ m Social
m State Govt. &
Oth App Sec o Infra m Approved Invst

m Other than
Approved Invst

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AS ON 31.3.2003- GENERAL INSURERS
(Rs in crores)

= National
= New India
o Oriental
o United

®m Royal Sundaram

o Reliance

m |[FFCO-Tokio

o TATA-AIG

m Bajaj Allianz

m [CICI Lombard m GIC

o CHNHB Ass

m Cholamandalam

m HDFC-Chubb

207



COMPANY-WISE INVESTMENT DETAILS - LIFE INSURANCE

TABLE - 43
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INVESTMENT DETAILS FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31ST MARCH 2003

(Rs. in Crores)

Inv.
Subject
to Total
G. Sec. Exposure | Other than Invest-
Sl. Insurer G.Sec. | &other | Housing| Infra- | Social Norms | Approved ment
No. Approved Structure | Sector | (Incl. other Inv. (Company-
Sec. than wise)
appoved
Inv.*
1. | LC 138770.31 167513.04 30998.16 60221.02 1119.38 | 258732.22
2. | HDFC STD LIFE 169.89 169.89 39.20 45.98 9.11 255.07
3. | MAXNEW YORK 38.01 104.10 27.12 20.83 5.00 152.05
4. | ICICI PRU. LIFE 286.76 286.76 63.56 318.38 41.37 668.70
5. | BIRLA SUN LIFE 51.12 70.17 15.14 89.95 2.98 175.26
6. | TATA-AIG LIFE 103.60 103.60 24.93 26.51 4.39 155.04
7. | OM KOTAK LIFE 79.79 79.79 26.49 37.57 18.25 143.85
8. | SBILIFE 122.99 122.99 31.29 47.34 17.96 201.62
9. | ALLIANZ BAJAJ LIFE 100.14 105.14 37.68 48.41 -0.38 191.23
10. | METLIFE 57.17 57.17 15.18 18.06 7.54 90.41
11. | AMP SANMAR 65.69 65.69 18.80 10.02 0.00 94.51
12. | ING VYSYA 53.80 58.80 15.25 24.00 0.00 98.05
13. | AVIVA LIFE 66.55 66.55 23.08 36.43 3.51 126.06
TOTAL (SECTOR - WISE) | 139965.81 168803.67 - 31335.89 - 60944.50 1229.12 | 261084.06
AS ON MARCH 2002
PUBLIC SECTOR 128,139.04 131,400.71 20,498.72 77,046.29 | 16,442.00 | 228,945.72
PRIVATE SECTOR 674.06 776.77 242.15 404.09 79.65 1423.01
GRAND TOTAL 128,813.10 | 132,177.48 - 20,740.87 - 77,450.38 | 16,521.65 | 230,368.73

* Revised Figures have not been incorporated.

SECTOR-WISE INVESTMENTS AS ON 31.3.2003 - LIFE INSURERS
(Rs. in Crores)

1229.12

60944.5

28837.86

B Govt. Securities
B State Govt. & Other App Sec

Olnfra
O Social

B Approved Invst.

@ Other than Approved Invst.

TOTAL INVESTMENTS AS ON 31.3.2003 — LIFE INSURERS
(Rs.in Crores)

mLIC

m ING Vysya

O HDFC-Std. Life
O Birla Sun Life
m ICICIPru

m SBI Life

m OM Kotak

@ Metlife

m Allianz Bajaj
® Max New York
O TATA-AIG

= AMP Sanmar
m Aviva

209



in a wide array of risks for insurance companies.
To manage and control these risks, there has been
a felt need for appropriate financial instruments such
as Derivatives.

Also, subsequent to RBI's decision to phase out the
non-banking entities from call money market and its
imposition of certain restrictions in respect of premature
closure, rollover and use of REPO securities efc., the
development of the REPO market was affected. Keeping
these restrictions in view, Clearing Corporation of
India Ltd. (CCIL) has developed "Collateralised
Borrowing and Lending Obligation" (CBLO) for
deployment of surplus funds. CCIL provides a dealing
platform through which market participants can borrow
and lend by exchanging CBLOs. As the product is
collateralised by Government Securities, the Authority
is notifying of this instrument as a part of "Approved
Investment".

As the Regulations as they presently exist, do not
prescribe the exhaustive categories into which individual
investments could be grouped, there was no uniformity
in classifying investments. This distorts the true position
of Investments reported to the Authority. Hence, an
exhaustive list under "Category of investments' has
been compiled to ensure proper compliance with the
requirements of the Act. In this regard, the reporting
forms have also been modified, and additional returns
introduced. These regulations are awaiting nofification.

The compilations at Tables 42 and 43 give the
company - wise details of investments of general and
life insurers as at 31st March, 2003, respectively.

v) Health insurance

Health insurance business, or health cover, is the
effecting of contracts, which provide sickness benefits
or medical, surgical or hospital expense benefits,
whether in-patient or out-patient, on an indemnity,
reimbursement, service, pre-paid, hospital or other
plans basis, including assured benefits and long term
care. The very fact that the Authority places importance
on provision of health services, is reflected in the
preference being given to those applicants for grant
of certificate of registration who propose to carry on
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the business of providing health covers to individuals
or groups of individuals.

India is incurring 5.2 per cent of its GDP towards
healthcare expenditure. The coverage of population,
under the various health insurance schemes, is limited
to the extent of 15 per cent, including those covered
under the Employees' State Insurance Scheme (3.4
lakh beneficiaries), Central Government Health Scheme
(40 lakh beneficiaries) and the Railways Health Scheme
(12 lakh beneficiaries). In addition to the health cover
provided by the non life insurance companies, a
beginning has also been made by the life insurers
to provide health cover to the policyholders, albeit
through riders.

The Authority's pre-occupation with health insurance
is on account of the need to widen the safety net
by providing health insurance to cover the masses.
Needless to add, health insurance would increase
the benefit of health facilities to the population at
large, thereby also impacting the quality of life.

While, health insurance for the people of the country
has come a long way since inception, there is a lof
of ground still to be covered. On introduction of the
mediclaim policy by the four general insurance
companies in 1986, these insurers had collected a
cumulative premium of Rs.25 crore in the first year
of the scheme's operation. The latest audited business
figures, for the year 2002-03, reveal that the health
insurance segment crossed the Rs.1000 crore mark.
Overall, the health insurance portfolio has increased
by 50 per cent over the premium underwritten in
the previous year. It would, however, be pertinent to
note that this increase has come parly on account
of revision in mediclaim premium and additional
6 per cent TPA costs by way of administrative charges
being levied on the insured.

The four public sector companies offer the following
variants of health insurance policies, addressing the
needs of various sections of the society:

1. Mediclaim Policy — for general public

2. Jan Arogya Policy — for economically weaker
sections

&—o
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3. Community Based Universal Health Insurance
Scheme — group scheme for people below poverty
line. The scheme was launched by the Prime
Minister of India during the current financial year

2003-04, in July, 2003.

The private sector insurers have also launched variants
of the mediclaim policy with different nomenclatures,
including:

1. Health Insurance Policy (Shield) — On the lines
of mediclaim policy, it has such other features
built into it as reimbursement of hospitalisation
even if it is for a period of less than 24 hours,
extension of personal accident cover, cashless
facility, efc.

2. Critical lllness policy — Similar to the products
marketed by the public sector insurers, it is a
defined benefit policy and the insurer pays the
sum assured on the diagnosis of ten critical
identified diseases.

3. Hospital Cash Policy — Under this policy, the
insurer pays a fixed amount upto a pre-determined
limit for each day spent in the hospital, irrespective
of the actual amount spent on treatment. This
is also a defined benefit policy.

Amongst the issues facing the health insurance industry,
absence of credible data in the health insurance
market in the country is critical. Steps need to be
initiated to generate meaningful statistics, which could
be the starting point for scientific pricing of health
insurance premium. Secondly, obligations, on the lines
of those specified for the rural and social sector
coverage, could be laid down for the insurers to cover
a certain minimum number of lives under the health
insurance policies and to collect a certain percentage
of gross premium underwritten through the health
insurance segment. Such an initiative could go a long
way in improving penetration and coverage in the
health segment.

Establishment of the database in the health sector
would also provide access to the various stakeholders
to critical information, which is currently not available.
The system could provide information, about patients,
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with the service providers to ensure portability. Not
only this, it would also come in useful for the
manufacturing sector in the health industry, including
pharmaceutical companies, manufacturers of
diagnostic equipments, researchers and others. This
would facilitate cost benefit analysis. Due to the
limitations of access to data, the covers for insurance
that are available are narrow in scope. The insurance
coverage of population is scanty, restricted, costly and
poorly administered. Those covered have only an
omnibus policy, with no element of risk differentiation.
There is no reliable basis to measure premium cost
in relation to specific risk/occurrences and the
policyholders have no choice of cover, specific to
their requirement. The insurance companies have
hardly any role and no interface with hospital
establishments in determining the reasonableness of
charges, relative to quality of medical care provided.
There are no benchmarks and no standards for billing
for these services. The health care delivery is
consequently cost-ridden which is passed on to the
patient, i.e., the policyholder. Owing to the hidden
costs in health care delivery system, without any audit
or authentication of their reasonableness, health
insurance comes with a big price tag. Additionally,
there is no mechanism to check these against
established standards, and no benchmarks have been
attempted/ established. This scenario greatly inhibits
exponential growth of medical care / health insurance
business in the country.

Given the vast potential, which exists in the health
care sector, and the changes in the demographic
pattern on account of increased span of lives, it is
crucial that health insurance is popularised. Insurance
companies can evolve strategies by translating these
opportunities into actual purchase of health insurance
products by building suitable underwriting systems.
This segment is not only an exciting business opportunity
but also in the wider interest of the nation.

Third Party Administrators:

The Authority had notified the Third Party Administrators
(TPA) — Health Services Regulations in September,
2001 to introduce another intermediary named TPA
in the field of health insurance. The basic idea behind
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introduction of the intermediary in the health sector
was to facilitate provision of cashless health services
to the clients and offer backup services to the insurers.
As on date, 23 TPAs have been registered by the
Authority, of which 11 are in active business. Taking
into account the availability of the infrastructure with
the third party administrators, insurers have allocated
the health services portfolio to them.

It is expected that with the benefits of cashless services
being fully appreciated by the insured, the concept
of health insurance would get popularised. In addition,
with the onus of service shifting from the insurer to
the service provider, access to health services should
become that much easier — thereby giving a quantum
jump to the spread of health insurance. The necessary
inputs are all there to provide the impetus to the
growth in this sector. Health falls under the de-tariffed
segment as such the insurers can tailor their products
to meet the requirements of the insured. As a corollary,
the rising costs of medical services makes it pertinent
to take an medical policy to cover for the contingency
of ill-health at any given point in time. Indications
are that with the introduction of TPAs in the health
segment, the claims ratio has also steadily started
declining in the health portfolio. However, as already
indicated elsewhere in the Report, one of the critical
areas which needs no emphasis, and which needs
to be worked upon on an urgent basis is that of
creation and maintenance of database in the health
insurance industry. As is evident, from the statistics
available on the industry, standardised data is absent.
As a result, industry players — be it the insurers, the
service providers or the facilitators, feel handicapped
in standardisation of the rates and services, thereby
also impacting the consumer. The Authority is actively
examining the various ways and means for creation
of such o database, which would serve the dual
purpose of both monitoring claims and also enable
pricing of the health insurance products. The magnitude
of the job at hand needs consideration of the various
aspects prior to finalisation of the modalities for the
same.

However, there have been impediments in the growth
of this particular line of business on account of
multiple complaints arising in the servicing of the
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insured, including repudiation of claims due to
conditions/exclusions in the policy; non-seftlement of
claim/ delay in settlement of claim; cancellation of
policy without giving any notice; seftlement of claim
for lesser amount; refusal to renew policy in case
of adverse claims experience; non-issue of list of
hospitals; improper guidance by 24 hour help lines;
in-accessibility of toll-free numbers; non-receipt of
settlement cheques within the stipulated time; non-
receipt of photo identity cards; wrong insertion of
photos/names in the identity cards; loading at the
time of renewals (whether claim/no claim); and hike
in premium due to introduction of TPAs.

The concept behind infroduction of TPAs not only
needs to be appreciated, but also requires constructive
support from the various stakeholders in the industry.
The Authority is sensitive to the problems involved
in the functioning of the third party administrators
and is amenable to introducing any measures, which
may improve the delivery of health services by them.

Working Group on Health Insurance

A working group has been set up on health insurance
under the aegis of USAID programme undertaken
to assist the Authority in its functioning in various
fields. The terms of reference of the working group
on health insurance, on which recommendations are
to be submitted, include the following:

® Role and services to be provided by Third Party
Administrators and possible expansion of the
Authority's regulatory framework;

e Standardisation of contracts, data, forms, and
systems with respect to health insurance policies and
TPAs' intermediation with insurance companies,
other mechanisms of health care financing, and
health care providers;

® Role of the Authority regarding various modalities
for health care financing;

® Role of the Authority in ensuring that the health care
providers comply with the minimum requirements
of licensing and accreditation and in monitoring
quality of care (for instance, Quality of Care Reports
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by TPAs — identification of health care providers and
their legal and accredited status, performance,
claims, etc); and

® |Inter-institutional coordination for comprehensive
approach for the development of health insurance
and of various intermediaries (viz., Ministry of
Health, health care professional associations, and

the like).

The first meeting of the working group was held in
September, 2003, which was attended by the
representatives drawn from Ministry of Health, Ministry
of Finance, TPAs, insurance companies, NGOs, self
funded groups, and the Authority.

vi) Specified percentage of business
to be done in the rural and social
sector

The Committee on Reforms in the Insurance Sector,
while advocating opening up of the industry to the
private sector, had made a strong case for the new
players being subjected to compliance of minimum
stipulations for underwriting business in the rural and
the social sectors. This requirement for the industry,
both life and general insurers, is laid down in the
regulations framed by the Authority on obligations
of the insurers for the rural and social sectors. It
may be recalled, that the amendments to the regulations
were notified by the Authority in the October, 2002.
Under the amendments, the term "rural sector" has
been redefined, and the words "agricultural pursuits',
elaborated. The amendments also dwell on the
"informal sector". Simultaneously, the obligations for
life insurers towards the rural sector were raised. In
keeping with the need for insurers to meet their
obligations to the society, the Authority has further
stipulated that in terms of volume of business, no
insurer shall write rural/social sector business less than
what was recorded for the accounting year ended
31st March, 2002. The amendments came into effect
from the financial year 2002-03. The regulations
require insurers to underwrite business based on the
year of commencement of their operations. The
regulations further provide that in case of the first
financial year of the insurer being less than a period
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of 12 months, proportionate percentage or number
of lives, as the case may be, shall be underwritten.
In addition, the existing public sector insurance
companies are required o ensure that their rural and
social sector business in any given financial year is
more than that underwritten by them in the previous
financial year.

Obligations of life insurers:

Of the twelve insurers who have entered the industry
in the last three years, ten have met their rural and
social sector obligations. One insurer, although was
able to comply with the rural sector obligations, fell
short of meeting the obligations towards the social
sector. In case of one insurer, who commenced
operations in October, 2002, there was a shortfall
in meeting both the rural and the social sector
obligations, on a proportionate basis.

The one company in the public sector, i.e., Life
Insurance Corporation of India, was required to
comply with the regulations in the manner that the
percentage of policies issued in the rural sector for
the year did not fall below the percentage achieved
in the previous year. The insurer underwrote business
as to meet its obligations towards the sector. In
addition, the number of lives covered by the insurer
in the social sector was more than those covered
in the previous year. In other words, the obligation
on the part of the life insurers to serve the rural and
the social sectors has been substantially achieved by
them.

Obligations of general insurers:

Of the eight insurers who have entered the insurance
industry during the last three years, five insurers have
met, both the rural and the social sector obligations.
Out of these, in case of three insurers, whose first
year of operations comprised of a very short span,
although the financial year 2002-03, was the third
year of their operations, given the peculiarity of their
situation, the said year was considered the second
year for the purpose of determining compliance with
the requirements of the rural and social sector
obligations. In one instance, the insurer met with the
social sector obligations. However, there was a minor
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shortfall in compliance with the rural sector obligations.
In respect of the two insurers who commenced
operations during the financial year 2002-03,
compliance of the rural and the social sector
obligations, on proportionate basis, could not be
ensured. These insurers are required to ensure
compliance with the shortfall in the financial year
2003-04. Companies like Iffco-Tokio have sold their
products through both National and State level
Co-operatives of dairy owners, cotton growers, sugar
cooperatives and Banks. The insurer's efforts have
been a landmark in underwriting social sector business.

The four public sector insurers were required to
underwrite rural and social sector business during the
year, which was in excess of the business underwritten
in the financial year 2001-02, and this was achieved
by them. As such, the public sector non-life insurers
met with their obligations under the regulations
applicable to them. Non-Life Insurers have also
launched need-based packages for women's self-help
group, handloom weavers, artisans, tribals etc.

The opportunity for tapping the potential of soliciting
business from small towns and villages exists. Some
of the insurers have channelised their promoter groups
to underwrite rural and social sector business with
some of the products sold to the rural market subsidised
by the insurer. However, insurers need to be conscious
of the same rather than taking rural and social
obligations as just that, i.e., an obligation which needs
to be complied with. Overall, those insurers who were
unable to comply with their obligations towards the
rural and the social sectors have undertaken to fulfill
the shortfall in the financial year 2003-04, in addition
to meeting their obligations for the current financial
year, as provided in the regulations.

While on the one hand, on account of social
considerations, the need for spreading insurance
throughout the country is a necessity, on the other,
with the purchasing power parity of the rural population
steadily growing, the rural market offers a vast potential
for insurance sector, which has essentially remained
untapped so far. In order to tap these markets, there
is a need to understand the psyche of the rural
populace, their perception towards importance of
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different types of insurance, and their willingness to
purchase policies. Studies have shown that the rural
market holds tremendous potential for growth of the
insurance business, particularly due to the prevalence
of strong saving habits. Even the relatively low-income
families tend to save about a third of their annual
earnings. In the agrarian belts, the savings are high
around harvest time. The various channels of savings
include banks, post offices and informal institutions
like local lenders, and jewelers. This of course, is
in addition to the agent force. Similarly, auto dealers
financing vehicles create awareness for motor vehicle
and tractor insurance. It is, however, a matter of
concern that other than in cases of mandatory
requirements, sponfaneous awareness levels are low,
particularly for general insurance products. In addition,
there is no felt need for insurance.

In terms of life insurance, to cover a wider segment
of communities, Group Insurance Schemes and other
Multiple Policies can be designed as viable and better
alternatives. Products, which cover such risks as death
of chief wage earner, accidents, crop failure/
destruction, natural disaster etc., could be particularly
appealing to the insured. In addition, people with
higher earning capacity and educational levels could
be tapped by designing customised insurance products,
as these serve the dual objective of providing saving
and security, which could be critical during times of
unforeseen personal crisis. In addition, adequate
awareness needs to be created for the new insurers,
so as to develop a sense of trust in them.

In addition, covering health, property and crop are
crucial for the rural populace. Additional benefits as
loan facility, life plus accident or life plus health plus
accident insurance only make the products more
aftractive. Flexibility to pay in instalments as to ensure
that they coincide with harvest time is an added
attraction. Local modes of communication, particularly
through local haats, melas, using local TVs and
vernacular newspapers is a reliable route to tap the
target audience. Using the agency network combined
with banks and cooperatives to tap these markets
is likely to yield positive results. As regards the general
insurance segment, the target audience particularly,
has to be the affluent segment, which possesses the
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insurable assets. Studies have shown that the level
of awareness about general insurance is low
vis-a-vis the life segment. Insurers need to create
awareness through a specially designed targeted plan
aimed at the multi-lingual and multi-cultural rural
audience.

Overall, the extensive network built by rural
development agencies, banks, co-operative institutions,
NGOs, MFls, SHGs, Youth Clubs and Panchayats
can be tapped and effectively utilised by the insurers
to penetrate the rural pockets of the country. The
growing purchasing power of the rural segments,
coupled with opportunities, which are opening up
on account of the IT, and telecom revolutions, can
be effectively utilised to ensure spread of insurance
to these sectors. Insurance companies need to translate
these opportunities into actual sale of insurance
products by building dedicated distribution systems.

(vii) Pensions

The Government of India approved in August, 2003
the proposal to introduce a new restructured defined
contribution pension system for the new entrants to
the Central Government service, except for those in
the armed services, in the first stage, replacing the
existing system of defined pension system. The new
system is to be available, on a voluntary basis, to
all persons including the self employed professionals
and others in the unorganised sector. However,
programmes under the Employee Provident Fund
Organisation (EPFO) and other special provident
funds would continue to be operated as per the
existing system under the Employee Provident Fund
and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 and other
special Acts governing those funds. Pending the
enactment of a comprehensive legislation on pensions,
the Government of India, constituted the interim
Pension Fund Regulatory and Development Authority
(PFRDA) under the overall administrative control of
the Ministry of Finance. The PFRDA will regulate and
develop the pension market. It shall develop its own
funding stream based on user charges, and shall
perform all such functions as are necessary to enable
it to effectively regulate, promote and ensure the
orderly growth of the pension market. The interim
body would propose comprehensive legislation for
the regulation of the pension market.
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Given the demographic changes that are taking place
in the global scenario, and more particularly, in the
Indian context, evolution of a reasonable pension
system to cover all sections of the economy is critical.
While, as a first step the Central Government has
announced a pension plan for the new entrants to
Central Government services, there are huge sections
of the society, which are still required to be covered.
Countries provide social security benefits to their
residents in remarkably diverse ways reflecting
differences in their levels of economic and social
development and historical experience. Tax systems
are also in place in many countries to encourage
participation in the pension plans.

viii) Accounting and Actuarial
Standards

1) Accounting Standards

The Authority had issued the Regulations for Preparation
of Financial Statements and Auditor's Report of
insurance companies in the year 2000. However,
there was a felt need for streamlining the information
furnished by the insurers and to incorporate various
clarifications issued on the same, from time to time.
Accordingly, the regulations were modified and notified
in March, 2002. Further clarifications were also issued
by the Authority on issues raised by the insurers. In
addition certain relaxations were also allowed to the
non-life public sector insurers for the financial year
2002-03, in view of the practical difficulties expressed
by them.

The regulations framed by the Authority broadly fall
within the purview of the Accounting Standards (AS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. However, modifications have been made in
respect of the accounting standards pertaining to
preparation of Cash Flow Statement (AS - 3) which
is required to be furnished to the Authority only under
the direct method; and Segment Reporting
(AS - 17) the requirements of which have been made
more stringent for the insurers. The AS has been made
applicable to all insurers irrespective of the requirements
of listing and turnover as mentioned in the AS. The
said modifications have been made to meet the
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specific information needs of the Authority, and do
not dilute the standards laid down by the ICAI. It
may be mentioned that the ICAl has issued 29
Accounting Standards till date. Some of these
accounting standards were revised during the year
2002-03, in a limited way by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

The regulations further require that the financial
statements shall be accompanied by the Management
Report, as per the format prescribed in this regard,
duly certified by the management of the insurer. The
Responsibility Statement, as required under section
217(2AA) of the Companies Act, 1956 as part of
corporate governance, also forms part of the
Management Report. The Authority has also prescribed
the format of the Auditors' Report, and laid down
the requirement of the accounts being jointly audited
by two auditors. Further, the auditors appointed by
the insurers are to be drawn from the panel maintained
by the Authority.

The Authority has prescribed guidelines for
empanelment of auditors with it. These guidelines
provide that the audit firm seeking empanelment with
the Authority must have been in existence for a period
of at least 15 years, and should have a minimum
of five partners, two of whom must have spent at
least five years with the firm. With a view to adopting
healthy corporate governance practices, the Authority
has further prescribed rotation of auditors every five
years, and no two auditors can jointly carry on audit
for more than four years.

Officials of the Authority have also been associated
with the efforts of the study group formed by the
ICAl o bring out guidance notes on audit of companies
carrying on general or life insurance business. The
Institute has since published the guidance notes for
their members. During the financial year, the Authority,
jointly with the ICAI, considered important issues and
shared views and ideas on audit and other related
subjects in the insurance industry at the macro level.
Broadly, issues relating to accounting regulations and
investments have been discussed with the ICAI.

With the requirements for disclosure in the financial
statements becoming more stringent across the globe,
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the Indian industry can also expect the same to
become more demanding in the local context. Already
the regulatory framework provides for standards,
disclosures and transparency. The role of the auditors
would also be in the limelight as the custodians to
prevent fraud and to comment on the prudential
management practices. The ICAl is in the process
of infroducing peer review in select industries, insurance
being one of them. Peer review aims at checking
the accuracy of the audit work, and to examine that
the technical issues and the statutory requirements
have been complied with. The Institute has put in
place the Peer Review Board to carry on the exercise.

Il(a) Appointed Actuary System

The Authority introduced the system of Appointed
Actuary (AA) both for life insurance business and
general insurance business in India. No insurer can
transact life insurance business in India without an
Appointed Actuary. Perceiving a crucial role for the
appointed actuary, the Authority, while defining the
privileges and the obligations of the AA, laid down
eligibility criteria in the regulations. The regulations
require that each life insurer shall have an AA as
a full-time employee. However, a relaxation has been
made in case of non-life companies, in that a
consultant actuary can be appointed by a non-life
insurer, as the appointed actuary.

Every life insurer is required to submit the statement
of solvency along with its Actuarial Report and Abstract
as on 31st March of each financial year, duly certified

by the AA.
is required to certify the rates for in-house non-tariff

In case of a non-life insurer, the AA

products and IBNR (incurred but not reported) reserves.

The growth of the insurance industry coupled with
the entry of private sector in the last three years,
has augured well for the profession of actuaries. The
developments in the profession signal evolution in
the system of appointed actuaries as they come out
of hibernation and seek their rightful place in the
corporate environment. The profession can make
significant contributions in terms of actuarial inputs
in life and general insurance business management,
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pensions, insurance regulations and academics. The
major development in the profession of actuaries
pertains to peer review. Professionals in the industry
have been veering around to the view that peer review
could result in improving the quality of actuarial
services rendered in the insurance industry. The
Guidance Note issued by the ASI is effective from
the annual valuation to be made for the financial
year ending 2003-04. While the profession is expected
to address this issue and decide the course of action,
the Authority has considered it prudent to have a
professional panel to review the statutory reports
submitted by the Appointed Actuary to the Authority.
As per the feedback received from the profession,
initiative in the matter has been welcomed. Already,
as a first step in this regard, the Authority has
constituted a Review Committee of Actuaries, w.e.f
2002, comprising:

® Mr. N.K.Shinkar - Consultant Actuary, IRDA
® Mr. K.PNarasimhan - Past President of ASI

®  Mr PA Balasubramanian - Member (Actuary), IRDA

The Committee reviews the statutory returns of the
insurers and examines the functions of the AA, in
the backdrop of the requirements as laid down in
the regulations in this regard.

It may be mentioned that the efforts towards peer
review, world over, are aimed at providing comfort
levels to the regulators as to the quality of actuarial
work, associated as the regulators are with the
protection of interests of the policyholders.

Another step towards professionalising the role of
actuaries is the proposed legislation to establish the
Institute of Actuaries of India. The Actuarial Society
of India was formed for advancement of the actuarial
profession in India, providing opportunities for
interaction among members of the profession,
facilitating research, arranging lectures on relevant
subjects, presenting and discussing of papers, providing
facilities and guidance to those studying for actuarial
examinations etc. The draft Institute of Actuaries Bill,
2002 aims at granting statutory powers to the Actuarial
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Society of India to regulate and develop the profession
of actuaries. The Authority forwarded its comments
on the draft bill to the Government of India, and
also gave evidence to the Parliamentary Standing
Committee in this regard.

The ASI has revised the code of conduct for its
members. The Memorandum of Professional Conduct
& Practice (PCS) which was revised in May, 2003
provides guidance for professional conduct to which
all members must conform in both letter and spirit.
Actuaries are expected to maintain a high level of
professional competence in the global context as to
serve the cause of public interest.

The lists of appointed actuaries in the life and
non-life insurance companies are placed at Tables
18 and 33, respectively.

Ii(b) Actuarial Standards

The Actuarial Society of India has been entrusted with
the task of preparation of guidance notes (actuarial
standards) for the actuaries with the concurrence of
the Authority, in certain specified areas. The Actuarial
Society of India issued the first such Guidance Note
(GN-1) on "Appointed Actuaries and Life Insurance’,
constituting a professional standard, covering the
responsibilities of the Appointed Actuary towards
maintaining the solvency of the insurer, meeting the
reasonable expectations of the policyholders, and to
ensure that the new policyholders are not misled
with regard to their expectations.

The ASI has also formulated the guidance notes for
"financial condition report" and the "peer review and
the appointed actuary" which are effective 1st April,
20083.

Recently, the ASI issued a Guidance Note (GN-II)
for the appointed actuaries working in the general
insurance industry. The guidance note covers such
aspects as nature and responsibility of appointed
actuaries, considerations effecting their position, the
extent of their responsibility and duties, premium rates
and policy conditions for new products and existing
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products on sale, capital requirements, actuarial
investigations, premium and claims reserving, written
notes and guidance to actuaries who are directors
on the boards of, employees or consultants to a
general insurance company.

Mortality & Morbidity Investigation Bureau (MMIB):
The Bureau has been set up under the aegis of ASI.
The main objective of MMIB shall be to provide
services to the actuarial community in scientific
performance of its functions, by studying the recent
trends in mortality, morbidity and other specific risk -
implied contingencies, and to produce experience
based tables and statistics. This would benefit the
Life Insurance Industry at large. In the long run, the
MMIB would also establish contacts with the academic
institutions and through interaction develop academic
expertise and be able to undertake technical studies
in various areas. The Bureau has been set up to
collect data from the various insurers, and to compile
the mortality and morbidity tables based on the
experience of the insurers. The ASl is also taking inputs
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from the USAID team for the project. The MMIB is
being constituted as a separate legal entity. The ASI
in conjunction with the UK Instfitute of Actuaries'
equivalent body, the Continuous Mortality Investigation
Bureau (CMIB), has been carrying out preliminary
work on the establishment of the MMIB. A key
functionary of the CMIB had also visited India to
examine the various operational aspects of such a
body. The Bureau is being funded by all life insurers
and by the Authority.

The mortality rates of assured lives (94-96) and of
annuitants (96-98) in the LIC are placed at Tables
17()) and (ii).

ix) Directions, orders and regulations
given by the Authority

With a view to providing guidance to the insurers
and to clarify issues raised by them, the Authority
has been issuing directions and orders from time to
time. The gist of these orders/directions issued in the
year 2002-03 (and upto date), is given below:

List of Circulars / Orders / Notifications / Communications issued till 31st October, 2003 by IRDA

S. No. | Circular/ Order/ Direction/ Date of Issue Subject
Notification/ Communication No.

1. | IRDA/ Order/ Council/ 1/ 4-2002 3/4/2002 Order on nomination to the Life and General Insurance Councils to
all insurers

2. | IRDA/ RCS/ EMD/ 01/ 02 2/5/2002 To all general insurers on earnest money deposit on insurance quotes

3. 16/5/2002 To all insurers on ltem 13(iv) of Schedule B of the IRDA's (Preparation
of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance Companies)
Regulations, 2002

4. | IRDA/ RCS/ MTP/ 10/ 02 17/5/2002 Order to all general insurers on Ceiling on Loading of premium and
acceptance of exclusive third party motor proposals

5. | IRDA/ RCS/ MTP/ 11/ 02 28/5/2002 Clarification on Order no. IRDA/ RCS/ MTP/ 10/ 02 dt. 17th May,
2002 on ceiling on loading of premium and acceptance of exclusive
third party motor proposals

6. 11/6/2002 Appointment of joint auditors to look into the accounts of the company
to all insurers

7. | IRDA/ RCS/ MTP/ 12/ 02 28/6/2002 Circulation of IRDA Order no. IRDA/ RCS/ MTP/ 10/ 02 dt. 17th
May, 2002 to the various underwriting offices of the general insurance
companies
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S. No.

Circular/ Order/ Direction/
Notification/ Communication No.

Date of Issue

Subject

8. | IRDA/ RCS/ TAX/ 01/ 07 22/7/2002 Provision for reserve for unexpired risk in respect of fire and engineering
business which provide for cover against terrorism risk -amendment
to Rule 6E of the Income Tax Rules, 1962 to all general insurers

9. 16/8/2002 Notice on comprehensive review of Insurance Laws to all insurers

10. 4/9/2002 Clarification on Agency Commission Structure and Discount in lieu of
agency commission to all general insurers

11. 10/9/2002 Clarification on the role of Investment Committee constituted under
regulation 9 of IRDA's (Investment) Regulations, 2002 to all insurers

12. 10/9/2002 Comments on draft IRDA’s (Manner of payment of premium)
Regulations, 2002 to all insurers

13. 14/9/2002 Furnishing of information to Office of the Commissioner Central Excise,
Mumbai - V giving the service tax registration details to all insurers

14. 3/10/2002 Breach of Tariff in case of loading on Motor TP premium by insurance
companies to general insurers

15. 3/10/2002 Decisions taken in the Insurance Advisory Committee meeting held in
Hyderabad on 23rd September, 2002 to all insurers

16. 24/10/2002 | Notice to all insurers on regulations and amendments prepared by
the Authority under the provisions of the Insurance Amendment Act,
2002

17. 29/10/2002 | Circular on ceiling on loading of premium and acceptance of exclusive
third party motor proposals to general insurers

18. 31/10/2002 | Notification on Constitution of Justice Rangarajan Committee on de-
tariffing of motor tariff to general insurers

19. 31/10/2002 | Notice stating that Authority recognises Administrative Staff College,
Hyderabad to impart practical training and conduct examination for
CEQ's/ CAO's of TPA's

20. 1/11/2002 Addendum to notification on constitution of Justice Rangarajan
Committee on de-tariffing of motor tariff to all general insurers

21. 11/11/2002 | Reconciliation of SGL/ CSGL Accounts by all insurers

22. 12/11/2002 | List of training institutes to provide training to candidates appearing
for examination of insurance brokers

23. 12/11/2002 | Notice pertaining to licensing of corporate agents to all insurers

24. 15/11/2002 | Syllabus for surveyors and loss assessors examination

25. 19/11/2002 | Licensing of insurance brokers, their training and examination

26. 25/11/2002 | Implementation of Surveyors and Loss Assessors Regulations, 2000,

their categorisation and application of financial limits by general
insurers
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S. No. | Circular/ Order/ Direction/ Date of Issue Subject
Notification/ Communication No.

27. 1/12/2002 Supplement to Circular No. IRDA/ ACTL/ FUP/ VER 2.0/ Dec 2001
pertaining to File & Use procedure to all life insurers

28. 4/12/2002 Renewal fees of registration of the insurers

29. 4/12/2002 Introduction of Standard Pension Plan to life insurers

30. 5/12/2002 Remission of levy @ 0.10 per cent of the gross annual premium to the
Authority by all insurers

31. 5/12/2002 Message to all trainee surveyors and application form for insurance
surveyors examination

32. 10/12/2002 | Drawing attention of the insurers to some sub-regulations of IRDA's
(Protection of Policyholders Interests) Regulations, 2002 to all insurers

33. 12/12/2002 | Notice to all general insurers on the agreement between general
insurers and TPA's

34. 17/12/2002 | Insurance policies issued in Jammu & Kashmir by general insurers

35. 18/12/2002 | Order on constitution of a cell to look after consumer grievances in
the Authority

36. 19/12/2002 | Requests for re-categorisation may be considered by GM(Technical)
of Public Sector General Insurance Companies

37. 26/12/2002 | Furnishing of statutory and accounts returns in excel formats by all
insurers

38. 1/1/2003 Designing of Professional Indemnity cover for insurance brokers by
general insurers

39. 3/1/2003 Action taken on complaints forwarded by the Authority to the insurers
and insurance awareness campaign to all insurers

40. | IRDA/ CIR/ 003/ 2003 30/1/2003 Referral Arrangement by all insurers

41. 30/1/2003 Examination programme for surveyors examination to be held in
February, 2003

42. 30/1/2003 Notice on issuance of licenses to insurance brokers

43. | IRDA/ CIR/ 004/ 2003 14/2/2003 Referral Arrangements with banks - Life Insurance

44. | IRDA/ CIR/ 005/ 2003 17/2/2003 Addendum to Referral Arrangements with banks - Life Insurance

45. | IRDA/ CIR/ 006/ 2003 18/2/2003 Extension of time limit for passing Associateship examination by CEOQ’s/
CAQ's of the TPA's till May, 2004

46. | INV/ CIR/ 001/ 2002-03 18/2/2003 Circular to all insurers regarding furnishing of compliance certificate
u/s 28(2A), 28(2B)/ 28B(3) of the Insurance Act, 1938

47. | INV/ CIR/ 002/ 2002-03 18/2/2003 Circular to all insurers to furnish details on investment portfolio

48. | IRDA/ CIR/ 007/ 2003 26/2/2003 Circular on guidelines for mutual fund investments to all insurers

49, 5/3/2003 Notice to licensed and categorised surveyors to submit to the

Authority request for change over upto 31st March, 2003.
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S. No. | Circular/ Order/ Direction/ Date of Issue Subject
Notification/ Communication No.

50. | IRDA/ CIR/ 008/ 2003 10/3/2003 Filing of copy of agreement between the insurer and TPA with the
Authority by general insurers

51. | IRDA/ CIR/ 009/ 2003 11/3/2003 Service Tax for general insurance policies

52. 17/3/2003 Furnishing of monthly returns to the Authority by all licensed brokers
giving names of clients, type of business, brokerage received and any
payments made by all brokers to the Authority

53. 17/3/2003 Order under Section 64 UM(4) of the Insurance Act, 1938 directing
Oriental Insurance Company Limited to discharge liability under Marine
Hull Policy issued to M/s Coongha Marine Products,
Ponnappandarnagar, Nagercoil

54. | IRDA/ ACTL/ 001/ 2003 20/3/2003 Circular to all life insurers on commutation value under the individual
pension products

55. 22/3/2003 IRDA Notification on modification of scales of remuneration as
prescribed in regulation 19 in respect of fire and engineering class of
business for general insurers

56. | IRDA/ CIR/ 010/ 2003 27/3/2003 File and Use procedure by all life insurers

57. | IRDA/ CIR/ 011/ 2003 27/3/2003 File and Use procedure by all general insurers

58. 28/3/2003 Communication to all appointed actuaries of life insurers on NLB-1
and NLB-2 statements regarding treatment of negative reserves

59. | IRDA/ CIR/ 012/ 2003 30/3/2003 Circular on general insurers-preparation of reconciliation statement-
purchase and sale of investments to all insurers

60. 30/3/2003 Circular to all insurers on FORM-1, Statement of Investments and
income on investment

61. | IRDA/ CIR/ 013/ 2003 7/4/2003 Circular on accounting principles for preparation of financial statements
to all insurers

62. | IRDA/ CIR/ 014/ 2003 16/4/2003 Notification for appointment of Member(Actuary) as Chairman of Life
Insurance Council to all insurers

63. 16/4/2003 Circular to all life insurers on Form-LB-4 of IRDA's (Actuarial Report
and Abstract) Regulations, 2000

64. | IRDA/ CIR/ 015/ 2003 17/4/2003 Order for levy of penalty under Section 105B of the Insurance Act,
1938 against Reliance General Insurance Company Limited

65. | IRDA/ CIR/ 016/ 2003 23/4/2003 Presentation to IRDA in respect of various performance parameters
during last financial year 2002-03 and plans for the current year
2003-04 by general insurers

66. 29/4/2003 Circular clarifying issues raised by life insurers on preparation of
financial statements - Life

67. 29/4/2003 Circular clarifying issues raised by general insurers on preparation of
financial statements — General

68. 8/5/2003 Order under Section 14 of the IRDA Act, 1999 directing Oriental

Insurance Company Limited to pay M/s R.T. Exports, Mumbai the
claim under marine insurance policy
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S. No. | Circular/ Order/ Direction/ Date of Issue Subject
Notification/ Communication No.

69. | IRDA/ CIR/ 017/ 2003 9/5/2003 Circular asking insurers to furnish particulars of all persons paid
remuneration exceeding such sum as required under 217 (2A)(a) of
the Companies Act, 1956 read with the Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Rules, 1975, to all insurers

70. 16/5/2003 Corrigendum on circular dated 29th April, 2003 clarifying issues raised
by general insurers on preparation of financial statements — general

71. 19/5/2003 Notice to all life insurers on publication of charges in sales literature
in unit linked policies

72. | Actl/ AA/ Circular 23/5/2003 Circular to life insurers enclosing draft appointment letter to be issued
to Appointed Actuary

73. 23/5/2003 Circular to all general insurers for coverage for fire insurance on first
loss basis under householders package policy

74. 24/5/2003 Notice to general insurers giving revised financial limits of categorised
surveyors and loss assessors

75. 28/5/2003 Order appointing S. V. Mony as Chairman of Committee of experts to
consider alternatives available to have a free market availability of
the products and to suggest to the Authority the measures to be taken
for differential tariffing to general insurers

76. | IRDA/ CIR/ 019/ 2003 30/5/2003 Modification of IRDA Notification dt. 22nd March, 2003 on scales of
remuneration/ commission payable to brokers

77. 2/6/2003 Order under Section 64 UM(4) of the Insurance Act, 1938 directing
New India Assurance Company Limited to discharge liability under
Fire Insurance Policy issued to M/s J.P. Exports, Renigunta

78. 2/6/2003 Order under Section 102 of the Insurance Act, 1938 directing Oriental
Insurance Company Limited to discharge liability under Marine Policy
issued to M/s R.T. Exports, Mumbai

79. 6/6/2003 Order rescinding the penalty proceedings against Reliance General
Insurance Company Limited and treating the order dated 17th April,
2003 as withdrawn

80. | IRDA/ CIR/ 020/ 2003 9/6/2003 Clarification on IRDA Nofification IRDA/ CIR/ 019/ 2003 dt. 30th
May, 2003 on scales of remuneration to Brokers

81. 9/6/2003 Notification regarding Mr. N. Rangachary, Chairman, IRDA demitting
office

82. 10/6/2003 Notification regarding Mr. C.S. Rao, Chairman, IRDA assuming charge

83. 20/6/2003 Notice pertaining to surveyors and loss assessors examination to be
held in the month of August, 2003

84. 27/6/2003 Notice to all life insurers regarding submission of actuarial report and
abstract

85. 4/7/2003 Notice to all life insurers to have premium rates with a

facility of a premium calculator on the company’s web-site
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S. No. | Circular/ Order/ Direction/ Date of Issue Subject
Notification/ Communication No.
86. 4/7/2003 Clarification regarding Appointed Actuary Annual Report to all life
insurers
87. | IRDA/ CIR/ 021/ 2003 16/7/2003 Abeyance of IRDA Notification IRDA/ CIR/ 019/ 2003 dt. 30th May,
2003 on scales of remuneration/ commission payable to insurance
brokers
88. 17/7/2003 Insurance awareness Campaign
89. 23/7/2003 Circular seeking submission of details of equity holding pattern of
insurers
90. | IRDA/ CIR/ 022/ 2003 5/8/2003 Circular to all non-life insurers permitting issuance of Comprehensive
Package Policy - CPM Equipment insurance policy
91. | IRDA/ FA/ 01/ 8/ 2003-04 8/8/2003 Finalisation of accounts for the financial year 2002-03 - relaxations
granted to public sector general insurers
92. | IRDA/ LIFE/ 001/2003 28/8/2003 Display of latest NAV of unit linked life insurance policy along with
date of valuation by all life insurers
93. | IRDA/ CIR/ 023/ 2003 1/9/2003 IRDA Order on Constitution of an Expert Committee for examination
of remuneration structure of insurance brokers, agents and other
intermediaries in general insurance business - Terms of Reference
94. | IRDA/ ACTL/ FUP/ Ver A/ Aug 2003 | 2/9/2003 Circular to life insurers on Profit Sharing/ Experience Rating under
Group Insurance Schemes
95. 12/9/2003 Invitation for comments to the expert committee on issues pertaining
to practice of special discount and remuneration to insurance brokers
and insurance agents
96. | IRDA/ ACTL/ 5101 18/9/2003 Clarification on rider/ rider benefits to all life insurers
97. 26/9/2003 Message to all trainee surveyors
98. | IRDA/ INV/ 005/ 2003-04 17/10/2003 | Circular to all insurers regarding Section 7 of Insurance Act, 1938
99. 23/10/2003 | Circular to all general insurers to furnish statements under IRDA (Assets,
Liability & Solvency Margin of Insurers) Regulations, 2000 along with
IBNR certification from Appointed Actuary
100. | IRDA/ FA/ 01/ 10/ 2003-04 29/10/2003 | Circular to all insurers regarding regulations pertaining to preparation
of financial statements by the insurers
101. | IRDA/ FA/ 02/ 10/ 2003-04 29/10/2003 | Circular regarding transfer of funds by the life insurers
102. 30/10/2003 | Circular to all insurers on Mr. Mathew Verghese joining the Authority

as whole-time member
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x) Powers and Functions Delegated
by the Authority

As a step towards simplifying the process of grant
of license to the agents, the Authority has put in place
the procedure for licensing of the agents through
the Website, and the insurers have designated their
specific officers who can access the IRDA Website
for this facility. Further simplifying the procedures, the
Authority has also delegated the powers for
regularisation of license to the insurers, in cases where
there has been delay in filing of renewal application
and the insurer is safisfied that the applicant had
genuine reasons for the delay. Only in cases where
the insurer is not satisfied in this regard, the application
is to be forwarded to the Authority. The system of
licensing of the agents is working well, since it was
lost intfroduced about three years back.

With the notification of the IRDA (Licensing of Corporate
Agents) Regulations, 2002, all insurers have been
informed that the designated person responsible for
grant of individual agents license can henceforth also
be the competent authority to issue corporate agency
licenses.

xi) Amendments to the Insurance

Act, 1938

The much awaited Insurance (Amendment) Bill was
passed in both the Houses of Parliament and notified
on 234 September, 2002. The major amendments
incorporated in the Act include:

1. Co-operative societies recognised to carry
on insurance business

The amendment provides for sefting up of co-operatives
exclusively for carrying on insurance business. The
co-operatives would be subject to same paid up
capital requirement, solvency requirements, deposits
with Reserve Bank of India, maintenance of the
accounts, audit efc., as in the case of other applicants.

By nature of their being engaged in the activity of
disbursing credit and being closer to the rural markets,
co-operatives are expected to help in the penetration
of insurance cover fo rural areas.
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2. Training requirements modified for
corporate agencies

The directions requiring all directors or principal
officers of a company/firm seeking to undertake
corporate agency business, to undergo training and
to pass the requisite examination have been modified,
as to permit a designated officer of the corporate
agency to fulfill the requisite qualification. The
amendment was incorporated to remove the constraints
in the growth of corporate agency business, and has
paved the way for entry of banks as insurance
intermediaries, as also facilitated distribution of
insurance products at reduced costs of selling and
distribution. The corporate agency system is expected
to play a significant role in procuring business from
commercial establishments and is thus expected to
help in advancement of development of non life
business.

3. Entry of brokers in the insurance market

Section 40 of the Insurance Act has been modified,
permitting a portion of the premium received from
the insured to be paid as remuneration to an “insurance
infermediary”, including insurance brokers and
consultants. Brokers are expected to improve market
penetration by enabling designing and marketing of
customised policies based on global best practices
and experience. Efficiency in the conduct of insurance
business is also expected to improve due to scaling
down of transaction costs, since either agency
commission or brokerage is payable on a given
transaction. As the risk covers can now be expected
to be based on extensive research and risk analysis,
and the broker is the representative of his client
vis-a-vis the insurer, the quality of services rendered
to the clients would improve, including service pertaining
to early settlement of claims.

4. Modification of section 49 of the Insurance
Act, 1938

The Section has been modified ensuring an equitable
return to policyholders and shareholders. The
amendment provides entitlement of actuarial surplus

to shareholders - 100 per cent in case of

239



non-participating policies; and not exceeding 10 per
cent of such surplus in case of participating policies
(7.5 per cent before the amendment).

5. Amendment in section 64VB of the
Insurance Act, 1938

The Section has been amended to facilitate the
Authority to prescribe the mode of payment of premium,
without changing the basic requirement that the
premium should be paid before the insurer grants
cover on it. The amendment has facilitated payment
of premium through bank credit/debit cards or internet
and has made available to the customer easier modes
of payment of premium.

(xii) Crop Insurance:

Agriculture is prone to natural vagaries since it is
extensively, directly and confinuously in contact with
the forces of nature, which make it a risk enferprise.
However, India lacks an integrated risk management
approach that has been adopted by the developed
countries, which includes use of insurance to stabilise
the agriculture industry. In most of the developed
countries, insurance complements activities designed
to strengthen the base of agriculture through such
initiatives as irrigation, drainage, land reclamation
and other means of increasing agricultural productivity
on one hand, and pricing and other income support
measures on the other.

Currently, General Insurance Corporation (GIC) is the
only entity in the country to offer crop insurance with
its National Agricultural Insurance Scheme (NAIS). All
crop insurance schemes till date have been in the
nature of group insurance schemes aimed at farmers
taking crop loans from banks. The requirement for
insurance in this segment, has perforce arisen from
the statutory requirement of loans being provided
against the guarantee of insurance, in case of default.

National crop insurance scheme aims at providing
insurance coverage and financial support to the
farmers in the event of natural calamities, pests and
diseases, besides encouraging the farmers to adopt
progressive farming practices, high value in-puts and
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higher technology in cultivation in order to help
stabilise farm incomes, particularly in disaster years.
The crops covered fall in the broad groups such as
those in respect of which i) the past yield data based
on Crop Cutting Experiments (CCEs) is available for
adequate number of years, and ii) requisite number
of CCEs are conducted for estimating the yield during
the proposed season and include food crops (cereals,
millets & pulses), oilseeds, sugarcane, and cotton &
potato (annual commercial/annual horticultural crops).
Other annual commercial/annual horticultural crops
subject to availability of past yield data are proposed
to be covered under the scheme over the next three
years. However, the crops which will be covered in
the following year are spelt out before the close of
preceding year.

The Scheme covers all farmers growing notified crops
and availing Seasonal Agricultural Operations (SAO)
loans from financial institutions i.e., loanee farmers
on a compulsory basis; and all other farmers growing
notified crops (i.e., non-loanee farmers) who opt for
the scheme on a voluntary basis. Comprehensive risk
insurance is provided to cover yield losses due to
non-preventable risks, i.e., i) natural fire and lightning;
ii) storm, hailstorm, cyclone, typhoon, tempest,
hurricane, tornado etc. iii) flood, inundation and
landslide, iv) drought, dry spells; and v) pests/diseases
etc. The sum insured (SI) may extend to the value
of the threshold yield of the insured crop at the option
of the insured farmers. However, a farmer can also
insure his crop beyond value of threshold yield level
upto 150 per cent of average yield of notified area
on payment of premium at commercial rates. In case
of loanee farmers, the sum insured needs to be at
least equal to the amount of crop loan advanced.
50 per cent subsidy in premium is allowed in respect
of small and marginal farmers to be shared equally
by the Government of India and State/UT Government.
The premium subsidy will be phased out on sunset
basis in a period of three to five years, subject to
review of financial results and the response of farmers.

Transition to the actuarial regime in case of cereals,
millets, pulses and oilseeds is to be made in a period
of five years from implementation of the scheme. The
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actuarial rates shall be applied at District/Region/
State level at the option of the State Govt./UT. To
meet Catastrophic losses, a Corpus Fund has been
created with contributions from the Government of
India and State Govt./UT on 50:50 basis. A portion
of Calamity Relief Fund (CRF) is to be used for
contribution to the Corpus Fund. The financial results
of the crop insurance schemes indicate failure of the
insurers/ formulators to correctly estimate the actuarial
probability of the risk covered. The claims paid have
been almost six times the premiums collected.

The Government perceives that agriculture insurance
should be playing a greater role in the country since
not only is this sector’s contribution to the GDP high,
but a majority of the working population is engaged
in agriculture and allied activities. With a view to
providing cover in this particular area, Agriculture
Insurance Company (AIC) has been floated by the
GIC (35 per cent equity), National Bank for Agriculture
and Rural Development (NABARD) (30 per cent equity
stake) and the four public sector non-life insurers,
i.e., National Insurance Co. Ltd., The Oriental Insurance
Company Ltd., The New India Assurance Co. Lid.,
and United India Insurance Co. lid. to the extent
of 8.75 per cent equity stake, each. AIC aims at
providing financial security to persons engaged in
agriculture and allied activities through insurance
products and other support services. AIC, which has
been granted license to transact crop insurance business
only, was granted registration on 29" October, 2003.
The company to begin with, proposes to implement
National Agriculture Insurance Scheme (NAIS) of the
Government of India, which up till now is being
implemented by GIC. Under the scheme,
comprehensive risk insurance will be provided to cover
yield losses arising due to non preventable risks, viz.,
natural fire and lightning; storm, hail storm, cyclone,
typhoon, tempest, hurricane, tornado etfc; flood,
inundation and sand slide; drought, dry spells; pest/
diseases etc.

The scheme will be available to all the farmers (both
loanee and non-loanee), irrespective of the size of
their holdings. The scheme envisages coverage of
all crops including cereals, pulses and oil seeds. It
is proposed that the three cash crops, i.e., sugarcane,
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potato and cotton will be covered in the first year
of the operation of the scheme; and all other annual
horticultural and commercial crops will be placed
under insurance cover within the next three years
subject to the availability of past yield data.

As another step in the direction of providing cover
for crop insurance, recently ICICl Lombard, one of
the new insurers, with support from the World Bank
and IFC, conceptualised and modeled the “rainfall
insurance” policies and sought out reinsurance. Farmers
have appreciated the structure of the insurance policy
as it directly reflects their experience that the distribution
of rain throughout the season matters a lot for the
yield.

(xiii) Credit Insurance

The onset of liberalisation signifies keen competition
in all entrepreneurial activity resulting in survival of
the fittest. This being the scenario, there will be greater
trade among countries. Besides quality and price,
‘credit’ will play a vital role in clinching export deals.
Credit, while becoming an instrument in expanding
export trade, also increases the payment risks in the
export transaction. The risks have assumed even larger
proportions today due to the political and economic
changes sweeping the global economy.

In such a situation, the need for export credit insurance
(ECI) is felt and the government enterprise Export
Credit Guarantee Corporation (ECGC) of India, offers
hope to exporters. ECGC offers a range of credit
risk insurance covers to exporters against loss in export
of goods and services, guarantees to banks/financial
institutions to enable exporters obtain better facilities,
provides overseas investment insurance to Indian
companies investing in joint ventures in the form of
equity/loan.

The various credit insurance covers of ECGC take
away the risk component in export transactions to
enable exporters concentrate on developing their
business, venture with new commodities and explore
new markets. Further, to enable the exporters avail
of working capital requirements from the banks, both
at the pre- and post-shipment stages, ECGC provides
various kinds of bank guarantees to enable exporters
get timely and adequate export finance.

243



Few companies can compete effectively without running
credit risks. Therefore, Credit Management has been
recognised as an indispensable factor in modern
financial control. Risks like financial loss from insolvency
or default, in case of overseas business political risks,
delays in payment in hard currency, can threaten a
company’s cash flow. Though, Credit Insurance is
not a replacement to the credit management, it
actively promotes the best credit management practices.

Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India Limited,
was established in the year 1957 by the Government
of India to strengthen the export promotion drive by
covering the risk of exporting on credit. The ECGC,
which functions under the administrative control of
the Ministry of Commerce, is the fifth largest credit
insurer of the world in terms of coverage of national
exports. The year 2002-03 was the first year of
operations of the insurer, subsequent to it being
granted registration by the Authority.

(xiv) Miscellaneous

As part of the initiatives to meet the aspirations of
the consumers, the Authority has constituted the
Consumer Advisory Committee.  Further, initiatives
have also been taken to strenghthen the self-regulatory
framework within the industry. The Authority is also
associated with various organisations to promote
faster growth of insurance market in the country.

Efforts in this direction are briefly enumerated below.

a) Consumer Advisory Committee

The Consumer Advisory Committee’s purpose is to
serve as a informal vehicle for information sharing
and discussion between the Authority and the
policyholders on key issues of insurance servicing and
market conduct by the insurers, agents and insurance
intermediaries. The Committee meets quarterly and
has representation from consumer organisations. At
the meetings of the Committee, the officials of the
Authority are also present along with insurance

company officials.
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b) Insurance Association and Insurance
Councils

The establishment of the Insurance Association of
India was notified under section 64A of the Insurance
Act, 1938 by the Authority in February, 2001. The
membership of the Association consists of all the
insurers carrying on business in India. In addition,
under section 64C of the Act, independent Life
Insurance Council and General Insurance Council
also stand notified. The Insurance Association of India,
the Life Insurance Council and the General Insurance
Council presently have their headquarters at Mumbai.
Consequent to the notification, representatives of the
Authority were nominated on these bodies. The Authority
nominated Mr. H.O. Sonig, Member and Mr. Prabodh
Chander, Executive Director as members of the
Executive Committee of the Life Insurance Council.
Mr. Sonig was also the Chairman of the Executive
Committee. The Authority has also nominated
Mr. Amit Mitra, Secretary General of FICCI, as a
member of this Executive Committee. Mr. P A
Balasubramanian, member took over from Mr. Sonig
consequent upon the latter attaining superannuation.

The Authority nominated Mr. R. C. Sharma, Member
and Mr. PA. Balasubramanian as members of the
Executive Committee of the General Insurance Council.
Mr. R.C. Sharma was also the Chairman of the
Executive Committee of the General Insurance Council.
Mr. Tarun Das, Director General, Confederation of
Indian Industry has also been nominated as a member
of the Executive Committee.

During the year, the life insurance council considered
issues such as impact of the declining interest rates
on the returns of the insurers, impact of introduction
of various distribution channels as corporate agents
system, broking system and direct selling through
internet and bancassurance on the industry, and more
particularly the role of tied agency system in the
context of the new channels of distribution being
introduced, role of agents training institutions, delays
in the seftlements of complaints, explored possibilities
of creation of policyholders’ protection fund, functioning
of the Peer Review Committee, and issues pertaining
to market conduct of the insurers and the intermediaries.
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The general insurance council deals with matters
connected with the market conduct and sound practices,
rendering efficient services to the policyholders,
adoption of ethical market practices, conduct of the
intermediaries, dissemination of insurance related
statistics and bringing to the notice of the Authority
any instances where the insurer has/have acted in
a manner prejudicial to the interests of the policyholders
and advises the Authority on issues pertaining to
expenses of management incurred by the insurers.
Apart from these, the Council has also taken up
matters relating to co-insurance agreements, laying
standards of remuneration payable to the surveyors,
investigators, advocates, review of Insurance Act,
1938, compliance of rural and social sector obligations,
overage vessels (marine), introduction of first loss
concept, de-tariffing of motor insurance business,
breach of tariff, anomaly in brokerage and commission
structure, solatium fund and terrorism premium.

¢) Partnership with Domestic Institutions

The Authority has been actively collaborating with
various domestic institutions for the development of
the insurance sector in India. On account of the very
nature of the working of the Actuarial Society of India
(ASl), there is a process of continuous interaction
between the two bodies. Inputs on various actuarial
aspects on both the life and non-life segments of
the industry are provided by the Society. The Society
is playing a crucial role in not only developing the
profession of actuaries, but is also taking steps to
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set up the data base for the industry. In this connection,
workshops and conferences are also held by the
Society from time to time, thereby also bringing in
inputs based on international experience. International
exposure would also enable the industry to evolve
practices based on best market practices. There are
lessons to be drawn from the international experiences
on adoption of useful models for regulating and
monitoring the Indian insurance companies. The ASI
is also working in close coordination with the USAID
team on actuarial practices worldwide.

Another endeavor of the Authority has been towards
setting up of the Institute of Insurance and Risk
Management (IIRM) at Hyderabad in partnership with
the State Government of Andhra Pradesh. IIRM has
been set up with the objective of undertaking research
studies and conducting training in various areas of
insurance to enrich this sector in India. The activities
of the IIRM are detailed at Part lll of the Report.

In addition, the Authority is continuously interacting
with the various chambers of commerce and industry
associations as to keep them apprised of the various
developments in the insurance sector. The channel
of communication is also enabling the Authority to
get feedback on the problems as are faced by the
various segments of the society vis-a-vis the insurance
sector. Representatives of the Authority also participate
in the various conferences and seminars on a regular
basis to encourage inferaction.
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REVIEW OF WORKING AND OPERATIONS OF THE
INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(i) REGULATION OF INSURANCE AND
REINSURANCE COMPANIES

The Authority, in order to discharge the functions
specified in section 14 of the Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority (IRDA) Act, 1999, has
specified the regulations given in the Annexure — I.
The regulatory framework broadly covers such aspects
as the entry level requirements including those
pertaining to minimum paid-up capital, ‘fit and proper’
management, ‘file and use’ requirements, filing of
regular returns to the Authority, which has helped
to carry out its statutory functions to regulate, promote
and ensure orderly growth of insurance and
re-insurance business. In addition, Authority has also
issued various directions, guidelines and circulars in
order to carry out its operations efficiently.

The insurers and the re-insurer are properly complying
with these regulations, guidelines and circulars, and
no specific complaints of non-compliance have been
received during the reporting period.

During the period April, 2002 to March, 2003 the

following new regulations were nofified:—

1. IRDA (Protection of Policyholders’ Interests)
Regulations, 2002

2. IRDA (Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2002

3. IRDA (Licensing of Corporate Agents) Regulations,
2002

4. IRDA (Manner of Receipt of Premium) Regulations,
2002

5. IRDA (Distributions of Surplus) Regulations, 2002

The Investment Regulations, Licensing of Insurance
Agents Regulations, Registration of Indian Insurance
Companies Regulations, and Protection of
Policyholders’ Interest Regulations were amended to
meet the aspirations, needs and requirements of the
various stakeholders in general, and the insurance

industry, in particular. In addition, the regulations
pertaining to Preparation of Financial Statements and
Auditors Report of Insurance Companies; and
Obligations of Insurers to Rural and Social Sector,
were substituted.

Status of exempted insurers

Section 118 of the Insurance Act, 1938 exempts
the application of the Act to any trade union registered
under the Indian Trade Union Act, 1926; or to any
provident fund to which the provisions of the Provident
Funds Act, 1925 apply; or if the Central Government
so orders in any case, and to such extent or subject
to such conditions or modifications as may be specified
in the Order, to any insurance business carried on
by the Central Government or a State Government
or a Government company as defined in Section 617
of Companies Act, 1956.

Further, at the time of nationalisation of general
insurance business in India, Section 36 of General
Insurance Business (Nationalisation) Act, 1972
(GIBNA), exempted application of this Act in relation
to any general insurance business carried on by
a state government to the extent to which such
insurance business relates to properties belonging to
it or undertakings owned wholly or mainly by the
State Government; or to properties belonging to
any semi-Government bodies; or any board or body
corporate established by the State Government under
any statute; or any industrial/commercial undertaking
in which the State Government has substantial
financial interest, whether as shareholder, lender or
guarantor.

As on date, there are twenty eight exempted insurers
underwriting insurance business, specifically in the
area of State Government properties, in the country.
The list of exempted insurers is placed at
Annexure-Il.

The Authority has been examining the status and
functioning of these exempted insurers, in the light

&—o
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of changes in the regulatory framework in the liberalised
environment. In a limited way, the regulations pertaining
to solvency margin, investments, etc., have been made
applicable to them, to ensure that the funds of these
insurers are maintained separately to enable the
exempted insurers to adequately discharge their
liabilities.

The Authority is in the process of gathering information
from the State Governments with regard to insurance
funds maintained by them, and on the status of
exempted insurers functioning in their states. Most
of the exempted insurers are doing the business
related to government employees and government
owned properties and its assets. Simultaneously, these
insurers are required to file their product with the
Authority under the ‘file and use’ mechanism laid
down by the Authority.

Though these Funds are guaranteed by the respective
State Governments, the Authority is of the firm view
that these insurers should shed the garb of exempted
insurers and come in the main stream, forming part
of the insurance industry and be fully governed by
the various provisions of the Act and the regulations
framed there under.

(ii) INTERMEDIARIES ASSOCIATED
WITH THE INSURANCE BUSINESS

Intermediaries associated with insurance business are
brokers, third party administrators (TPAs) and surveyors.
The insurance agents, including the corporate agents,
are governed by specific regulations and they are
in the nature of intermediaries but not defined as
such in the IRDA Act.
the agents represent their principals, i.e., the insurers,

It may be mentioned that

and are by the very nature of their functions
intermediaries and provide service to their customers.

Insurance Agents

The liberalised environment in which the insurance
companies, both life and non-life, have been operating
over the last three years, has witnessed a growth
in the intermediation process. While the agents have
been known to be a vital link between the insurers
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and the insured, with the advent of the Authority on
the scene, increased emphasis has been placed on
imparting professional expertise to them. As a step
towards this direction, minimum educational and
training requirements have been laid down for the
agents by the Authority.

To facilitate the process of licensing, the Insurance
Institute of India, Mumbai is authorised to conduct
off-line examination and the National Stock Exchange
has the mandate to conduct agents’ examinations
online. In addition Ritu Nanda Insurance Services
(RNIS), National Institute of Sales (NIS), School Net,
IT Associates, Shriram Cyber Tech and Maharashtra
Institute of Technology (MIT) have also been authorised
to conduct online examination. The number of such
institutes has been increased on account of the fact
that there has been a demand from insurers for more
agents’ training centers through out the country. This
is an indication of the profession of agents being
considered a lucrative avenue for employment, and
persons being aftracted to it showing an even increasing
number.

Corporate Agents

During the period under reporting, the Authority notified
corporate agency regulations, which allows corporate
entities to distribute insurance products. The notification
of the regulations was a step towards and facilitated
introduction of “bancassurance” in the country.
Bancassurance, which basically involves banks acting
as corporate agents for insurers to distribute insurance
products, has evolved as a strong distribution channel
in many countries. In India, public sector banks and
especially regional rural banks and micro-credit
institutions with their wide reach can help fulfill the basic
objective of deeper insurance penetration in the country.
The regulations also provide for minimum educational
qualifications for specified persons, and lay down
practical training requirements and a code of conduct.
In case of professionally qualified personnel, the training
requirement has been relaxed. Nationalised banks,
private banks, regional rural banks, cooperatives,
panchayats, local authorities, NBFCs and NGOs have
already entered the insurance industry as corporate
agents.
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The distribution channel statistics for individual and
corporate agents both for life and non-life insurers are
placed at Annexure Il & IV.

Surveyors and Loss Assessors

The system of licensing of surveyors and loss assessors
was started with the implementation of the Insurance
(Amendment) Act, 1968. Since then licensed surveyors
are assisting the non-life insurance companies in the
assessment of losses. To bring professionalism and
efficiency in the services offered by surveyors and
loss assessors, the Authority decided to categorise
them on the basis of their professional qualification,
experience as a surveyor and loss assessor as well
as other relevant experience. A Committee under the
Chairmanship of a retired District Judge was formed
in which representatives of the insurance companies,
surveyors and consumers were also included, to
examine the various aspects for categorisation. The
Committee finalised the parameters and marking
system on the basis of which the categorisation
process was completed by the Authority before the
year ending on 31% March, 2002 and categorisation
letters were issued to all applicant surveyors. The
categorised surveyors were asked to furnish their
options for any three departments, as recommended
by the Committee, which they wished to be allotted
for carrying out survey jobs. In addition to three
departments, surveyors were categorised and allowed
for Loss of Profit (LOP) Surveys, where they had the
required qualifications.

After the completion of this exercise, a detailed notice
giving the various parameters for categorisation was
published on the Authority’s web-site for the information
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of all concerned. On receipt of their options, final
categorisation letters were issued to the surveyors.
Surveyors who did not submit their options were
allotted those three departments in which they had
obtained the highest marks.

Surveyors who qualified for categorisation in more
than three departments and opted for three departments
were permitted fo change to the department of their
choice. Surveyors were informed that the changeover
was admissible up to 31 March, 2003 and subsequent
changes, from time to time, shall not be entertained.

Surveyors who were categorised for less than three
departments and wished to be categorised for additional
department not exceeding three departments and LOP,
were asked to undergo training for that additional
department to get categorised for “C” category.
Surveyors, who could not complete the training as
on 31¢ March, 2003 have been asked to pass the
examination to be eligible for “C” category in the
additional department.

The Authority categorised the surveyors into three
categories — “A’, “B” and “C” and had indicated
the monetary limits up to which each individual
category surveyor would carry out a survey. Department
wise financial limit for utilisation of Surveyors and
Loss Assessors effective 315 March, 2002, were fixed.
The Authority received representations on the need
for revision of these monetary limits. After examining
the representations, the Authority decided to re-fix
the limits of the value of survey to be undertaken
by different category of surveyors. Revised financial
limits w.e.f. Tst June, 2003 are as per details given
at Table 44.
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TABLE - 44
FINANCIAL LIMITS OF CATEGORISED SURVEYORS & LOSS ASSESSORS
DEPARTMENT CATEGORY A CATEGORY B CATEGORY C
LOP Above Rs. 50 lakhs Upto Rs. 50 lakhs Nil
FIRE (Flood, Cyclone, Earthquake) Above Rs. 20 lakhs Upto Rs. 20 lakhs Upto Rs. 5 lakhs
ENGINEERING Above Rs. 7.5 lakhs Upto Rs. 7.5 lakhs Upto Rs. 2 lakhs

MOTOR (Public, Private)

Above Rs. 2 lakhs

Upto Rs. 2 lakhs Upto Rs. 1 lakh

MISCELLANEOUS (inclusive of non-tariff)

Above Rs. 7.5 lakhs

Upto Rs. 7.5 lakhs Upto Rs. 3 lakhs

MARINE CARGO

Above Rs. 7.5 lakhs

Upto Rs. 7.5 lakhs Upto Rs. 3 lakhs

MARINE HULL

Above Rs. 10 lakhs

Upto Rs. 10 lakhs Upto Rs. 50,000

NOTE:

1. Category A surveyor will be eligible for jobs falling under the financial limits of Category B. Similarly Category B surveyor will be
eligible for jobs falling under the financial limits of Category C.
2. Category C surveyor shall not be eligible for the limits of Categories B and A. Similarly Category B surveyor shall not be eligible

for the limits of Category A surveyors.

3. Financial limits are based on the estimated value of the loss in the opinion of the insurer.

As per the regulations, an applicant seeking a fresh
license will have to undergo practical training of not
less than twelve months with an existing categorised
surveyor of either “A” or “B” category. Further, the
applicant will have to pass the examination to be
conducted either by the Authority itself or by an institution
authorised by it in this behalf. The Insurance Institute of
India has been authorised to conduct surveyor’s
examination and the first such examination was
conducted in the month of February, 2003. At present,

TABLE

the Insurance Institute of India is conducting Surveyor’s
examination quarterly in the months of February, May,
August and November every year. Till date, the Authority
has enrolled 2370 applicants as Trainee Surveyors and
issued 170 fresh licenses to Trainee Surveyors who have
completed practical training and passed the requisite
examinations.

The total number of surveyors categorised in different
departments up to 31.03.2003 for individuals and firms
are given at Tables 45 and 46 respectively.

- 45

SURVEYORS (INDIVIDUAL)

Category Total Number of Surveyors (Individual) Categorised as on 31st March, 2003

Fire Marine Marine Engg. Motor Misc. LOP
Cargo Hull

A 407 206 26 270 954 329 61

B 1312 1082 70 2069 3418 2216 219

C 2922 2526 90 2362 3000 3110

TOTAL 4641 3814 186 4701 7372 5655 280

TOTAL

31¢ March, 2002 3178 3478 167 4269 6668 5053 256
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TABLE - 46
SURVEYORS (FIRMS)

Category Total Number of Surveyors (Firms) Categorised as on 31st March, 2003

Fire Marine Marine Engg. Motor Misc. LOP

Cargo Hull

A 92 50 10 50 21 57 27
B 101 99 23 21 59 130 47
C 104 147 41 180 37 90 B
TOTAL 297 296 74 321 117 277 74
TOTAL
31 March, 2002 260 249 32 197 104 243 52

Third Party Administrators (TPAs)

The Avuthority had notified the third party
administrators — health services regulations in
September, 2001 to introduce another intermediary
named ‘TPA — health services’ in the field of health
The basic idea behind introduction of
the intermediary was to facilitate provision of cashless
health services to the clients (policyholders) and create
an intermediary which would provide back end services

insurance.

to the insurers.

As on date, 23 TPAs have been granted licenses and
11 of them are in active business. (The list of Third
Party Administrators is placed at Annexure V). The
health portfolio has been allotted by the insurance
companies to the TPAs, depending upon the existing
level of infrastructure facilities available with these
TPAs. There are indications that with the introduction
of this intermediary, the claims ratio has steadily
started going down in the health portfolio. However,
of late, there have been reasons to re-visit the concept
of third party administrators and have a penetrative
re-look at, as to whether they have actually succeeded
in delivering upon the expectations which were
envisaged at the time of introducing them to the
insurance market. The alleged dissatisfaction in the
delivery of services by the TPA is attributed to many
constraints and administrative difficulties which are
generally inherent in the initial stages of launching/
introducing any new concept.

One of the areas which need to be emphasised and
worked upon is the need for creation of and
maintenance of database in the health insurance
industry. As is evident, there is no standardisation
available in this field, and the various stakeholders
like insurance companies, TPAs and consumers feel
handicapped in the absence of the same. The
constraints pertain to the availability of standardisation
of statistics for the purposes of pricing the insurance
products, benchmarks for the services offered and
the pricing of the same, availability of the service
providers, fo name a few. The matter is under the
active consideration of the Authority, and ways and
means are being worked out to create such database.
One of the critical areas that availability of the
database would address is the scientific determination
of pricing of various health insurance products.

In spite of the fact that TPAs are under scrutiny in
some quarters, there is scope for additional players
entering the industry. The Authority is receiving
applications from various quarters expressing interest
to enter the industry as third party administrators. The
idea behind introduction of TPAs has not only been
appreciated but has also received constructive support
from various quarters. The Authority is sensitive to
the problems involved in the functioning of this
particular intermediary and is open to constructive
suggestions as may be forthcoming for improving the
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delivery system of health services by the various
stakeholders.

Insurance Brokers

The Authority, consequent upon nofification of the
Insuranse Brokers Regulations in October, 2002 issued
licenses to the brokers for the first time in January,
2003. The brokers are a new intermediary channel
introduced for the first time in the Indian market in
the financial year 2002-03. The list of brokers and
their state wise break-up is indicated at Annexure VI
& VII. However, with the first year of operations being
practically less than two months, and with the number
of brokers who were granted license during the said
period being very limited, the true impact of their
operations in the insurance industry would be assessed
only for the financial year 2003-04.

Insurance Brokers are professionals who assess risk
on behalf of a client, provide advise on the mitigation
of that risk, identify the optimal insurance policy
structure, bring together the insured and insurers, carry
out work preparatory to insurance contracts and,
where necessary, assist in the administration and
performance of such contracts, in particular when
claims arise. Unlike insurance agents, who are retained
by insurance companies, brokers are retained by the
insured and therefore their primary responsibility is
towards the insured. Some of the benefits of introducing
brokers in the Indian market are:

® Improvement in Customer Service: With increased
competition, insurance brokers have a greater
motivation to
products, to be more responsive to consumer
needs, and to deliver higher end quality services.
Indian corporates and consumers will benefit
directly in terms of service as well as product
and policy innovations, and will consequently be
able to secure appropriate insurance cover at
a more effective cost.

introduce new and innovative

® Transfer of Technology and Managerial
Know-how:
international best practices in technical skills and
products, training programmes, systems and

Insurance brokers will introduce
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technology, and managerial techniques. Currently
the availability of trained manpower is a major
constraint in the development of the insurance
broking business in India and international players
can contribute in a big way, in bridging this gap.

® Benefits to Insurance Companies: Most global
insurance companies spend a significant
component of their time in handling commercial
and industrial risk. They find dealing with brokers
to be easier and speedier because only the
infricate  points or special requirements need
detailed discussion. Brokers also assist in creating
insurance awareness, increasing market
penetration and act as a catfalyst to increase

competition and improve customer service.

® foreign Exchange Considerations: Brokers will
enable Indian insurers to increase their retention
capacities by applying their international
reinsurance skills in optimising the reinsurance
programmes, thereby effecting further saving in
foreign exchange outflow. In addition, they can
assist the local insurers to develop new products
and accordingly increase the premium base.

Brokers are also expected to introduce changes in
accepted practices, which could include both
coinsurance and reinsurance placements. There is
likelihood of accelerated introduction of the alternative
risk management techniques which converge risk
covers and provide, at once, both insurance and its
reinsurance. The market is set to witness these
unconventional changes at a pace permitted by
change in local tax laws and/or in trade-off to
premium costs.

In line with the requirements in the developed markets,
insurance brokers in India are regulated in such areas
as registration, experience, training and qualification
requirements, and restrictions on entry into the
profession; capital requirements and provision for
professional indemnity.

As per the guidelines in vogue a corporate client,
other than a public sector entity has the option of
either approaching an insurance agent or an insurance
broker or avail a special discount up to 5 per cent
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on the face of the policy. Earlier, the Authority, vide
its notification dated May 30", 2003 had notified
that the facility of the special discount available to
corporate clients stood withdrawn. Thereafter on July
16", due to concerns expressed in certain quarters,
including the insurers and the corporates, the decision
of May 30", 2003 was kept in abeyance, and an
Expert Committee was set up, to examine all the
related issues thread-bare. The Authority shall re-visit
this issue shortly after the Committee submits its report.

(iii) PROFESSIONAL
CONNECTED WITH
EDUCATION

INSTITUTES
INSURANCE

The Authority has been encouraging professionalisation
of insurance, risk management and actuarial sciences
courses being presently offered by various institutes
in the country.
syllabus for one year courses offered by management
institutes as part of its initiatives to promote insurance
and risk management education. Such initiatives have
been as much with the objective of spreading awareness

It has accredited the contents of the

about the industry and creating avenues for
employment, as arising out of demand for qualified
professionals from the insurance industry. The students
who have pursued these qualifications and training
programmes have been readily accepted by the
insurance companies and broking firms, in view of
the skills acquired by them.

Insurance Institute of India is actively involved in
conducting examinations for insurance agents. Indian
Institute of Bankers has devised a specific course
keeping in mind the requirement of banks who have
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stepped info the insurance industry as part of their
initiatives in bancassurance. The Authority has also
accredited the curriculum of The Association of Financial
Planners for insurance agents and brokers.

National Insurance Academy has been designated
as the sole examining body for brokers consequent
upon their training. They have also been accredited
for imparting training to brokers along with the
Corporate Training Centers of the public sector non
life insurance companies, i.e., National, New Indiq,

Oriental and United India; School-net, RNIS and NIS.

To facilitate the training of agents, the Authority has
so far accredited 1375 agents training institutions
across the country for imparting the prescribed pre-
licensing training to agents. This number includes 977
in-house institutions run by insurance companies. The
accreditation process is transparent and a prospective
institute has to fulfill such conditions as availability
of competent faculty, proper infrastructure facilities,
etc. An assessment made on a “marking system” is
followed up by inspections, if necessary, by officers
of the Authority prior to grant of accreditation. The
Authority normally recognises an institution for a
period of three years at a time. The institutions are
open to inspection by the Authority to ensure their
proper functioning. In addition, each approved
institution is required to furnish certain information
to the Authority as per the prescribed Form-B, on
a quarterly basis.

The state-wise details of accredited agents training
institutions as on 31* March, 2003 are placed in
the Table 47:
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TABLE - 47
STATE-WISE DETAILS OF NUMBER OF ACCREDITED AGENTS’ TRAINING

INSTITUTIONS - AS AT 315" MARCH, 2003

State In-house Others
2001-02 2002-03 2001-02 2002-03

Andaman and Nicobar 1 1

Andhra Pradesh 26 98 10 36
Assam 24 28 2 4
Bihar 18 16 2 4q
Chandigarh 12 12 8 7
Chattisgarh 1 18 4 4
Delhi 12 17 19 24
Goa 2 4q 4 9
Guijarat 42 50 14 24
Haryana 13 22 16 23
Himachal Pradesh 6 8 1 2
Jharkhand 9 9 21 6
Jammu & Kashmir 1 9 2 2
Karnataka 29 76 9 29
Kerala 26 28 5 19
Madhya Pradesh 72 65 14 18
Maharashtra 65 107 36 33
Manipur 1 2 2
Oirissa 23 15 7 11
Punjab 17 124 18 29
Rajasthan 34 66 9 14
Tamil Nadu 46 73 12 33
Tripura 1 1

Uttaranchal 1 3
Uttar Pradesh 64 97 33 37
West Bengal 26 22 15 25
TOTAL 571 977 262 398

(iv) LITIGATIONS, APPEALS AND
COURT PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Authority has been arranged either as the main
party or proforma party, in regard to litigations on
diverse matters filed before various courts. The court
cases pertain mainly to such matters as settlement

of claims by insurers, non-renewal of insurance
policies, renewal of license of insurance agents,
classification and categorisation of surveyors and
loss assessors, motor tariff and loading of motor
insurance premium, non-implementation of awards
of Ombudsman, etc.
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The Authority, while defending the cases on merit,
keeping in view the provisions of laws and regulations,
also endeavors to initiate steps in redressing grievances
in genuine cases by advising the insurers suitably.
A case in point is the disposal of many writ petitions
as being in fructuous, in the light of the Authority’s
stern directions to the general insurers in regard to
loading parameters of motor insurance premium. To
attend to the insurance customers’ genuine grievances,
a system of grievance redressal has been built in
the Authority and timely attention is given to the
complaints.

The cases have also been filed in the courts in
connection with some of the provisions of the Insurance
Act, 1938 and also challenging the instructions/
directions issued by the Authority. One such case
pertains fo directions issued by the Authority to life
insurance companies entering into referral arrangement
with banks for capturing their customer data base
and utilising other facilities. The insurer can utilise
this facility for venturing into prospecting the customers
on the basis of the data base provided under the
referral arrangement by the bank. Under this
arrangement, the banks are just transferring their data
base for the use of the insurer, but obviously not
soliciting insurance business on behalf of the insurer.
The philosophy behind various provisions of law and
the instructions issued on different issues relating to
the supervision and conduct of insurance business
with a view to developing the market is explained
in the counters/ replies filed in the courts.
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In the matters connected with clarification/ interpretation
of Tariff pertaining to non-life insurance business, the
Authority is also held party.

The Authority, in some of the cases, has been made
formal party. For e.g., in the matter of promotion
of personnel in the public sector insurance companies;
with regard to certain benefits under the policy, which
ultimately are to be addressed by the insurers
concerned. The Authority while defending these cases
seeks the insurers’ point of view to prepare suitable
counter/reply to be filed in the courts.

(v) INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION IN
INSURANCE

The Authority has benefited from its association with
the International Association of Insurance Supervisors
(IAIS) and its member countries, while formulating
the various regulations and guidelines, from time to
time. The members of the IAIS, being regulators
in other jurisdictions with vast experience in the
insurance industry, have always co-operated whenever
reference has been made to them, with respect to
insurance companies and infermediaries licensed in
their jurisdictions. The Authority has benefited from
the learning curve in the various jurisdictions across
the globe. IAIS was associated with the Authority in
organising seminars and training programmes for
regulators in the Asian region, at which there was
participation by the officers of the Authority as well.

The Authority has been actively associated with the
working of the following Committees/Sub-Committees
with Chairman/members representing the Authority
on these Committees (indicated at Table 48):
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TABLE - 48
IAIS COMMITTEES/SUB-COMMITTEES

S. No. Committee

1 Executive Committee

Emerging Markets Committee

Technical Committee

Task Force on Assessment and Implementation of Insurance Core Principles

N WI|IN

Working Group on Observership & Membership Issues

Sub-Committee

1 Insurance Fraud Sub-Committee

Insurance Laws, Regulations, Practices & Standards Sub-Committee

Education Sub-Committee

2
3 Re-insurance Sub-Committee
4
5

Accounting Sub-Committee

Note: The Chairman of the Authority is @ member on the various committees of the IAIS, and the members of the

Authority represent it on the various sub-committees.

The Authority is committed to implementing the core
principles of insurance supervision. Continuous efforts
are also made by the Authority in its endeavor to
harmonise the various regulations and guidelines
issued by it with these principles. It may be mentioned
that the Authority hosted the IAIS Tripartite Meeting
at New Delhi in January, 2003 along with the
International Association of Insurance Supervisors on
the subject of insurance frauds and anti-money
laundering measures. The meeting was well received
by the participants from countries across the globe.

Simultaneously, the Authority also took an initiative
to organise fraining programmes and conferences.
The first such training programme was organised by
the Authority for the officers of regulators from SAARC
(South Asian) countries. Regulators of Sri Lanka,
Bhutan, Nepal and Maldives, besides India, nominated
their officers for the four week programme.  The
IIRM and the Authority held an International Conference
on IAIS Core Principles which attracted middle level
executives from the regulators’ offices of SAARC and
ASEAN countries. This was followed by the Pension
Conference which was targeted towards life insurers,

banks and other financial institutions in India to focus
on the reforms process in the sector. Both the
conferences were addressed by international experts/
speakers and were well received. The Authority is
also closely associated with the South Asian Regulators’
Forum to promote co-operation and understanding
amongst the SAARC countries insurance regulators.
It may be mentioned that the Chairman of the

Authority took over as the Chairman of the Forum
in December, 2002.

OECD has also partnered with the Authority in the
area of pension regulations and has provided useful
inputs which have been shared with the various
stakeholders in the insurance industry. Other
international institutions with whom the Authority has
been associated are UNCTAD, INPRS, USAID and
NAIC .

United States Agency for International
Development (USAID)

The Govt. of India and the Govt. of United States have
a bilateral Project Grant Agreement since 1993. The

i
do

269



United States Agency for International Development
(USAID); the Ministry of Urban Development and Poverty
Alleviation; and the National Institute of Urban Affairs,
under the programme which will extend for a period of
four years, are working on the Financial Institutions
Reforms and Expansion—Debt Market Component
(FIRE- D). The FIRE project aims at expanding the range
of Indian partner institutions, including private sector
entities and NGOs, to identify approaches which can
address the problem areas on a sustained basis and on
the scale required.

The USAID in consultation with the Authority has
designed a multiyear USAID — Financial Institution
Reform and Expansion (FIRE) Project. Under the
programme, technical assistance will be extended for
the development of Indian Insurance Sector. The USAID
has deputed a team to implement the insurance part of
the FIRE Project. The said team has established its project
office in Hyderabad. The USAID team, under the FIRE
project is assisting the Authority in the following areas
of relevance:—

® Solvency and Market conduct of the Insurance
Companies

® Devising Financial Examination Manual

e Conducting seminars/workshops on Actuarial
Management of General Insurance

® Development of IRDA Information Technology
regulatory system

® Consumer protection
® Review of re-insurance agreements
® Policy issues on Health Insurance in India

The project team has started consultative work on these
issues. A seminar/workshop on financial examination
of insurers was organised in Hyderabad and a draft
manual incorporating the inputs received during this
seminar/workshop examination has been prepared. The
team has also started working on the issue of
development of the IT regulatory system for the Authority
and on the expected result of its application. The USAID
consumer profection expert held discussions with the
officials of the Authority, Ombudsmen and other
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consumer protection organisations. In addition, the
Authority, in consultation with the USAID team, has
constituted a working group on health which will involve
all the stakeholders in the industry to highlighting major
policy issues of concern on health insurance in India.
The working group has already met once. The team
has also proposed constitution of a similar group in
consultation with the Authority to recommend changes/
review of the various provisions in the Insurance Act,
1938 and other Acts relating to various facets of
insurance business in India. Another seminar on
Actuarial Management of Health and General Insurance
Business was held in Mumbai.

General Agreement on Trade in Services
(GATS) and World Trade Organisation
(WTO)

Prudential regulations play an important role in the
transition from monopoly to competition. De-
monopolisation, as well as doing away with the system
of compulsory cessions and abolition of tariffs, is a
natural precursor for attaining the objectives of
reinsurance as part of the organic growth process of
the Indian insurance market. This has to be
accompanied by harmonisation of insurance and
reinsurance supervision practices. The introduction of
tight prudential rules for insurance and reinsurance has
to be consistent with GATS principles of legitimacy,
necessity and proportionality so that no unwarranted
trade barriers are built up that could have a negative
impact on competition and thereby impede business
innovation and market efficiency.

Negotiations of specific commitments are mandated
under Article XIX of GATS which states that “In pursuance
of the objectives of the Agreement, Members shall enter
into successive rounds of negotiations beginning not
later than 5 years from the date of coming into force of
the WTO Agreements and periodically thereafter, with
a view to achieving a progressively higher level of
liberalisation”. A fresh round of comprehensive
negotiations on specific commitments commenced in

the WTO from January, 2000.

The mandate of the negotiations is clearly laid out in
Part IV of GATS entitled “Progressive liberalisation”. The
main aim of these negotiations is to achieve a greater
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degree of liberalisation in all the service sectors and in
all the 4 modes of supply of delivery of Services. The
negotiations will be comprehensive, covering all sectors
and modes of supply, with no a priori exclusions in order
to achieve an overall balance for all the WTO Members.
The Services Sectoral Classification List under GATS has
listed out 12 sectors and 161 sub-sectors all of which
will be part of these negotiations.

The GATS recognises 4 modes of delivery of Services.
These are as follows:

i. Mode 1 — Cross border supply, e.g. supply of
diskettes, architects blueprints, etc.

i. Mode 2 — Consumption abroad, e.g. a tourist
availing of services abroad

ii. Mode 3 — Commerical presence, e.g. form of
legal entity established abroad like a bank branch

iv. Mode 4-Movement of Natural Persons, e.g.
physical movement of professionals, skilled and
unskilled labour for temporary period. It does not
cover permanent migration

The Authority gave its inputs to the Government of India
on the stance which could be adopted with particular
reference to the insurance sector. The forthcoming
Rounds will cover all sectors and modes of supply as
earlier mentioned. However, the focus of emphasis of
the developed and the developing countries is likely to
be different, because of varying interests at micro levels.
Developed countries would in all probability press for
greater liberalisation in mode 3 relating to commercial
presence since they would be inferested in providing
market access for their capital. Hence, the pressure on
developing countries, including India, would be to
provide greater market access in mode 3 and schedule
more sectors in this mode. On the other hand, for many
developing countries including India, the most important
source of export would continue to be mode 4 relating
to “Movement of Natural Persons”. India, in particular,
has interests in seeking greater market access for its
professionals and skilled labour in mode 4 because of
its surplus trained and skilled manpower. Thus, the
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trade-off in these negofiations are bound to be cross-
sectoral, with India seeking market access mainly in
professional service sectors and others demanding
greater market access in infrastructure sectors like
Telecommunication Services, Transport Services,
Distribution Services; and in Financial Services.

(vi) PUBLIC COMPLAINTS

In conformity with its efforts to achieve one of the
objectives for which the Authority has been established,
i.e., protection of policyholders’ interests in every
possible way — the Authority established on 18™
November, 2002, the in-house Consumer Grievance
Cell (CGC). The CGC has been constituted with the
sole responsibility of taking up the complaints of the
insurance customers — irrespective of the nature of the
complaints — with the insurance companies and to
ensure early action on the part of the insurers for their
early resolution. The insurance companies had been
advised about the formation of the CGC and the need
for the companies to take them up on a priority basis.
The seriousness and sincerity with which the Authority
treats the inferests of the policyholders is also reflected
from the fact that during the year under reporting, the
Authority took up in right earnest, the task of enlightening
the insurance policyholders about the rights and
privileges available to them and the machinery through
which they can seek resolution of their insurance-related
issues. The dissemination of this information has been
done through Electronic and Print media on an on-going
basis ever since December, 2002.

The Authority is glad to note that its efforts in the direction
of protection of policyholders’ interests are proving
efficacious, as many of the complaints taken up with
the companies have been resolved effectively. The details
of the complaints received by the Authority and their
disposal by the life and non-life insurers are given below.
The status of complaints referred to life insurance and
general insurance companies as on 30" September,
2003 is placed at Tables 49 and 50 respectively.

i
do

273



TABLE - 49

STATUS OF THE COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY THE AUTHORITY
AGAINST LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES FOR THE PERIOD
APRIL, 2002 TO SEPTEMBER, 2003
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S. Name of the Company No. of No. of No. of
No. complaints complaints complaints
referred to the resolved pending
company

1.| Max New York Life Insurance Company 9 7 2
2.| SBI Life Insurance Company Lid. 2 2 0
3.| Allianz Baijqj Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 4 3 1
4.| ICICI Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 10 9 1
5.| TATA-AIG Life Insurance Co. Lid. 5 3 2
6.| ING Vysya Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 3 3 0
7. Om Kotak Life Insurance Co. Lid. 2 1 1
8. | Birla Sunlife Insurance Co. Lid. 1 1 0
9.| HDFC Standard Life Insurance Co. Lid. 2 2 0
10. | Metlife India Insurance Co. Pvt. Lid. 1 0 1
11.] Life Insurance Corporation of India** 571 221 350
Total 610 252 358

** The figure shown here pertains to the total number of complaints referred by the Authority to the different Zonal

Offices of LIC located all over the country.

Unhelpful/wrong attitude of the officials
Other reasons

o wh -

Total

Action Taken

1. Action taken and matter closed
2. Letter acknowledged & reply awaited
3. Action/reply still awaited

Total

Non-settlement/delay in seftlement of claim
Wrongful repudiation of claim/settlement of a claim for lower amount
Non-renewal/cancellation/non-issuance/other issues related to policy

189
5
184
50
182

610

252
45
313

610
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The status of complaints referred to non-life companies as on 30™ September, 2003 is given in the

Table 50 below:

STATUS OF THE COMPLAINTS RECEIVED BY THE AUTHORITY AGAINST
NON-LIFE INSURANCE COMPANIES FOR THE PERIOD

TABLE - 50

APRIL, 2002 TO SEPTEMBER, 2003
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S. Name of the Insurer No. of No. of No. of
No. complaints |complaints | complaints
referred to the| resolved pending
company
1. | The Oriental Insurance Company Lid. 346 162 184
2. | The New India Assurance Company Ltd. 522 100 422
3. | United India Insurance Company Ltd. 426 302 124
4. | National Insurance Company Ltd. 421 105 316
5. | Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Company Lid. 38 22 16
6. | TATA-AIG General Insurance Company Ltd. 23 17 6
7. | ECGC of India 2 2 0
8. | Royal Sundaram Alliance General Insurance Company Ltd. 11 6 5
9. | IFFCO Tokio General Insurance Company Ltd. 4 3 1
10. | Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd. 2 1 1
11. | Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Company Ltd 3 2 1
12. | ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company Ltd. 9 9 0
TOTAL 1807 731 1076
1. Non settlement / delay in settlement of claim 1146
2. Wrongtul repudiation of claim / settlement of claim for lesser amount 159
3. Non — renewal / cancellation / non-issuance/ other issues related to policy 382
4. Unhelpful / wrong attitude of the officials 18
5. Other Reasons 102
Total 1807
Action Taken
1. Action taken and matter closed 731
2. Letter acknowledged & reply awaited 873
3. No response 203
Total 1807
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(vii) FUNCTIONING OF THE ADVISORY
COMMITTEE

The Insurance Advisory Committee has been established
under the IRDA Act, to advise the Authority on matters
relating to formulation of the regulations and on such
other matters as may be prescribed. All regulations
notified by the Authority are finalised in consultation
with the Committee. During the period under report,
one meeting of the Committee was held on 23
September, 2002. Draft regulations relating to insurance
brokers, distribution of surplus in life insurance business
and corporate agents, were discussed at length at
the meeting of the Committee, in addition to other
items of the agenda. Till date six meetings of the
Committee have been held. The 25 member
Committee represents the interests of commerce,
industry, transport, agriculture, consumer fora, women,
surveyors, agents, infermediaries, organisations
engaged in safety and loss prevention, research
bodies and employees’ association in the insurance
sector. The list of members of the Advisory Committee
is placed at Annexure — IX.

(viii) FUNCTIONING OF OMBUDSMAN

The institution of Insurance Ombudsman has great
importance and relevance for the protection of
interests of policyholders, and also to build up their
confidence in the system. This institution has helped
to generate and sustain the faith and confidence
amongst the consumers in insurers. The Insurance
Council, which is the administrative body, has
appointed twelve ombudsmen across the country and
has equipped them with the necessary infrastructure.
All insurers are required to honour the awards passed
by an Ombudsman, within a period of three months
of the order. The awards are binding on the
insurance companies; the customer, however, can
opt out, in which case other avenues for grievance
settlement can be explored by the aggrieved party.
An Ombudsman, under the rules, has been entrusted
with two functions, viz., conciliation and award
making.
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The Insurance Ombudsman is empowered to receive
and consider complaints in respect of personal lines
of insurance from any person who has any grievance
against an insurer. The complaint has to be in
writing, and addressed to the jurisdictional
Ombudsman within whose territory a branch or office
of the insurer complained against, is located. The
complaint may relate to any grievance against insurer;
partial or total repudiation of claims by the insurer;
dispute in regard to premium paid or payable in
terms of the policy; dispute on the legal construction
of the policy wordings in case such dispute relates
to claims; delay in settlement of claims and non-
issue of any insurance document to customers after
receipt of premium.

The limit of an Ombudsman’s powers is at present
prescribed at Rs.20 lakh. The Redressal of Public
Grievances Rules, 1998, where under the Insurance
Ombudsman is appointed, is complementary to the
regulatory functions of Authority, which has been
mandated to take all necessary steps to protect the
interests of the policyholders. The institution of
Ombudsman has evoked a good deal of public
appreciation.

The tabulations at Annexure VIl (a to c), indicate
the number of complaints handled by the
Ombudsmen. An analysis of the complaints disposed
by the Ombudsmen at different centers indicates that
the total number of complaints received by the
Ombudsmen has increased by more than 25 per
cent. During the year 2002-03, 3898 complaints
were received by Ombudsmen pertaining to non-
life sector, of which 2497 were disposed off. In
the life sector, 2481 were received out of which
1917 were disposed off.

From time to time, the offices of Insurance
Ombudsmen also bring out literature to educate the
consumers about various avenues for redressal of
their grievances. The list of insurance ombudsmen

is placed at Table 51.
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TABLE - 51
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LIST OF INSURANCE OMBUDSMEN

Office of the
Ombudsman

Contact Details

Areas of Jurisdiction

AHMEDABAD

2nd Flr., Ambica House,
Nr. C.U.Shah College

5, Nayvug Colony,
Ashram Road,
AHMEDABAD - 380 014

(O) 7546150
Fax:079-7546142

E-mail: insombahd@rediffmail.com

Gujarat, UT of Dadra & Nagar Haveli,

Daman and Diu

BHOPAL

1 Floor, 117, Zone-ll,
(Above D.M. Motors
Pvt. Ltd.)

Maharana Pratap Nagar,
BHOPAL - 462 011

(0) 578100
Fax:0755-578103

E-mail:insombmp@satyam.net.in

Madhya Pradesh & Chhattisgarh

BHUBANESWAR
62, Forest Park,
BHUBANESWAR - 751 009

(O) 535220
Fax:0674-531607
Email :susantamishra@yahoo.

com; ioobbsr@vsnl.net

Oirissa

CHANDIGARH

S.C.O. No. 101,102&103,
2nd Floor, Batra Building,
Sector 17-D,
CHANDIGARH - 160 017

(0) 706196
EPBX: 0172-706468
Fax: 0172-708274

Punjab, Haryana, Himachal Pradesh,
Jammu & Kashmir, UT of Chandigarh

CHENNAI
Fatima Akhtar Court,
4th Flr.,, 453 (Old 312)

Anna Salai, Teynampet,
CHENNAI -600 018

(O) 4333678
Fax: 044-4333664

E-mail ad: insombud@md4.vsnl.net.in

Tamil Nadu, UT-Pondicherry Town and
Karaikal (which are part of UT of
Pondicherry)

DELHI

2/2 A, Universal Insurance
Bldg. Asaf Ali Road,

NEW DELHI - 110 002

(0) 3239611
Fax: 011-3230858

Delhi & Rajasthan

*—o
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Office of the Contact Details Areas of Jurisdiction
Ombudsman
GUWAHATI Assam, Meghalaya, Manipur,
Aquarius, (O) 413525 Mizoram, Arunachal Pradesh,

Bhaskar Nagar,
R. G. Baruah Rd.,
GUWAHATI - 781 021

EPBX: 0361-415430
Fox: 0361-414051

Nagaland and Tripura

HYDERABAD

6-2-47, Yeturu Towers,
Lane Opp.Saleem Function,
Palace, A. C. Guards,
Lakdi-Ka-pool,
HYDERABAD - 500 004.

(O) 6574325
Fax:040/3376599
E-mail ad: insombud@hd2.vsnl.net.in

Andhra Pradesh, Karnataka and UT of
Yanam — a part of the UT of Pondicherry

KOCHI

2" Flr., CC 27/2603
Pulinat Building,

Opp. Cochin Shipyard,
M.G. Road,
ERNAKULAM - 682 015

(0)373334
Fax: 0484-373336
E-mail: insuranceombudsmankochi@hclinfinet.com

Kerala, UT of (a) Lakshadweep,
(b) Mahe — a part of UT of Pondicherry

KOLKATA

North British Bldg.,

29, N. S. Road, 3rd Flr,,
KOLKATA -700 001.

(O) 2212666 / 2212669
Fax: 033-2212668

West Bengal, Bihar, Jharkhand and UT
of Andaman & Nicobar Islands, Sikkim

LUCKNOW

Chintel’s House, 1st Flr.,
16, Station Road,
LUCKNOW - 226 001

(O) 635486
Fax:0522-636755
E-mail: insomblko@sify.com

Uttar Pradesh and Uttaranchal

MUMBAI

3rd Flr., Jeevan Seva,
Annexe (Above MTNL),
S. V. Rd., Santa Cruz (W),
MUMBAI - 400 054

(0)6106928

EPBX: 022-6106889

Fax: 022-6106052, 6106980

Email: ombudsman.i@hclinfinet.com /
inscoun@vsnl.net

Maharashtra, Goa

Governing Body of Insurance Council
Jeevan Seva Annexe, 3" Floor, (Above MTNL), S.V. Road, Santacruz (W), Mumbai — 400 054
Tel. No. : 022 - 610 6889 Fax No. : 022 — 6106980, 610 6052

E-mail ID: inscoun@vsnl.net

Note : Address and contact number of Governing Body of Insurance Council: SECRETARY GENERAL

*—o
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(ix) REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE OF
VARIOUS COMMITTEES SET UP
FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE IRDA

Rangarajan Committee

IRDA had set up a Committee on Motor De-tariffing
under the Chairmanship of Justice Rangarajan and on
the basis of its Report, it has been decided to de-tariff
the motor own damage section from April, 2005
onwards. The details of the report have been covered
in Part I.

S V Mony Committee

Based on the recommendations of the Rangarajan
Committee it was decided to introduce the system of
free pricing on the Own Damage portion of Motor
Liability, effective 1+ April 2005. With a view to paving
the way for smooth transition to the de-tariffed regime,
the Authority constituted a Group under the
Chairmanship of Mr. S.V. Mony, Ex. Chairman GIC, and
Vice Chairman AMP Sanmar to consider the alternatives
available to have a free market availability of products
and to suggest to the Authority measures to be taken in
this regard including adoption of differential tariffing.
The terms of reference of the Committee are as under:

® Preparation of blueprint for pricing of motor
insurance (Own Damage) in line with the
international best practices

® [Examine the need for rating modules to be
standardised to avoid extremes

® Necessity of the regime of “file and use” of the
products with the regulator in the absence of a tariff
(actuarial vetting and database)

® Refusal to cover and excessive pricing

® Whether scope of cover needs to be uniform or
free market conditions can prevail

® Prevention of predatory pricing — steps and
safeguards

Consumer Advisory Committee

A Consumer Advisory Committee is in place. The
Committee advises the Authority on various consumer
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related issues from time to time. The Authority has
activated its Consumer Grievance Department on the
basis of the recommendations of this Committee.

Expert Committee on Remuneration to
Intermediaries:

In order to streamline the remuneration payable to
insurance brokers and agents, an Expert Committee has
been constituted under the Chairmanship of Mr. A. C.
Mukherjee. The report of the Committee is expected to
be submitted in December, 2003.

Technical Committee on IRDA Regulated
Entities (To review Capital Market
Related Developments)

The High Level Committee on Capital Markets (HLCCM)
was set-up by the Government of India to have regular
interaction among the banking, capital market and
insurance regulators namely RBI, SEBI and IRDA. The
HLCCM has constituted technical committees under
each of the regulators. The technical committee on IRDA
Regulated entities will have the following constitution:

® Chairman: Member/ Executive Director, IRDA

® Member-convener: Deputy Director of the
concerned department, IRDA

® Representatives from SEBI, RBI and MOF at not less
than JS/ CGM level.

® The Committee will be authorised to invite persons
from insurance companies and investigative
agencies as and when they are required for better
coordination and surveillance & monitoring of
exposures of insurance sector to capital market.

The terms of reference of the Committee are:

(i) The primary responsibility of the Committee would
be to provide an inter-agency forum to review
exposure of the insurance sector to the capital
market with a view to identifying any unusual
developments resulting from such exposures.

(i) To decide on sharing of information with
investigative/intelligence agencies in case of
suspected market misconduct.

(iii) To develop benchmarks for parameters that may
serve as early warning signals of emerging
irregularities, relating to insurance sector exposure
in the capital market.
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(iv) To coordinate action with other regulators based
on the early warning system developed by the
Committee.

The Committee shall generally meet six times a year,
roughly once in two months even if there is no unusual
development. However, if any unusual development is
noted by any of the supervising agencies, then a meeting
can be called at short notice at the request of any of the
members and then the Committee would meet as often
as required. Reports of the Technical Committee would
be submitted to the MOF, which may keep HLCCM

suitably informed about the findings of the Committee.

Monitoring of Systemically Important
Financial Intermediaries

In consultation between the three regulatory bodies, viz.,
RBI, SEBI and IRDA, it has been decided to establish a
special monitoring system for Systemically Important
Financial Intermediaries (SIFls).

With increasing integration of financial markets,
restructuring and consolidation in the financial sector,
inter-linkages with subsidiaries and growing overlap of
banking and non-banking activities of financial
institutions, issues of systemic stability have acquired new
dimensions that require a proactive stance so that the
gains on financial stability are further strengthened. It is
therefore necessary to set up a monitoring system in
respect of SIFls that would encompass:

i. a reporting system for SIFls on financial matters
of common interest to RBI, SEBI and IRDA;

i. the reporting of intra-group transactions of SIFls;
and

iii. the exchange of relevant information among RBI,

SEBI and IRDA.

It has been agreed that, after co-opting a member from
IRDA, the present RBI-SEBI Technical Committee, would
propose a list of SIFls and advise on a reporting system.

(x) REVIEW OF THE ADVISORY
FUNCTIONS PERFORMED BY THE
AUTHORITY FROM TIME TO TIME

Promotion of Institute of Surveyors and
Loss Assessors

The Authority has made a detailed proposal to the
Department of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance,
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for setting up an independent Institute of Surveyors and
Loss Assessors on the lines similar to the other
professional bodies like the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. The main objective behind
recommending formation of a separate institute is to
promote quality in the profession of surveyors through
education and training, and to facilitate introduction of
best practices among members. For this purpose, the
Government had set up a Committee under the
Chairmanship of Mr. K. N. Bhandari, former Chairman
of the New India Assurance Company Limited. On the
basis of the report submitted by the Committee, the
Government has advised the Authority to promote an
self-financing and self-regulated institute on the model
of Institute of Chartered Accountants of India/ Institute
of Company Secretaries of India. The Authority is taking
further steps for the formation of the Institute at the
earliest possible. The functioning of the Institute will be
reviewed after a period of three years before taking an
decision as to whether it could be conferred a statutory
status through an Act of Parliament.

Comprehensive review of Insurance Act,
1938

The Authority advised the Law Commission of India to
review the Insurance Act, 1938 and to consolidate the
insurance related legislations into a single Act of the
Parliament. This move was welcomed by all the
stakeholders in the insurance industry. The Law
Commission issued a consultative paper for comments
of all concerned. Officers of the Authority were also
involved in this exercise. After considering the
suggestions/comments received, the Law Commission
has forwarded its recommendations to the Government.
The Ministry of Law has already started work on this
and a new Insurance Act will be in place incorporating
suggestions/recommendations of the Law Commission.

Association with other organisations:

(i) Ministry of Statistics and Programme
Implementation

The Authority is coordinating with the Ministry of Statistics
and Programme Implementation based on the
recommendations of the National Statistical
Commission. The scope of the statistics proposed to be
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compiled for the insurance sector include income and
expenditure; assets and liabilities; sources and uses of
funds; investments, operations of insurance companies
covering aspects such as life and non-life business,
reinsurance, pension, superannuation, health insurance
and crop insurance. The Authority has been made the
nodal point for collection and dissemination of statistics
pertaining to the insurance sector. The compilation of
statistics shall also cover insurance statistics pertaining
to Postal life, Employees’ State Insurance, Army and other
Group Insurance Schemes, Pension and Superannuation
Schemes.
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(ii) Sub Group on Health Economics

Officers of the Authority have been nominated to the
Tenth Five Year Plan Working Sub Group on Health
Economics where issues relating to spread of health
insurance have been discussed in depth for formulating
an appropriate strategy for implementation.

(iii) Sub Group on Disaster Management

Officers of the Authority have also worked with the Sub
Group on Disaster Management under the aegis of the
Ministry of Agriculture on natural and man made
catastrophes.
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STATUTORY FUNCTIONS OF THE AUTHORITY ENSHRINED IN
THE SECTION 14 OF THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND

DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY ACT, 1999

(a) Issue to the applicant a certificate
of registration, renew, modify,
withdraw, suspend or cancel such
registration

The Authority issued certificates of registration to the
following new entrants:

- Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co. Ltd.
on 15.07.2002

- Aviva Life Insurance Co. Lid. on 15.05.2002

- HDFC Chubb General Insurance Co. Lid. on
27.09.2002

- Export Credit Guarantee Corporation of India
Ltd. on 27.09.2002 (for credit insurance only)

- Agriculture Insurance Co. Ltd. on 29.10.2003

(for underwriting crop insurance)

The Certificate of registration of all the existing
insurance companies in the life and non-life sectors
has been renewed in terms of section 3A of the
Insurance Act, 1938. As regards the exempted insurers
whose list is placed at Annexure Il to the Report,
the Authority is making efforts to ensure that the
regulations notified are adhered to by them and that
they conduct their affairs in a manner which is neither
detrimental to the interests of the insurance policyholders
nor prejudicial to the interest of the orderly growth
of insurance industry.

The Authority did not modify, withdraw, suspend or
cancel the certificate of registration of any insurer.

(b) Protection of the interests of the
policyholders in matters concerning
assigning of policy, nomination by
policyholders, insurable interest,
settlement of insurance claim,
surrender value of policy and other
terms and conditions of contracts
of insurance:

The Authority carried out modifications in the Protection
of Policyholders Regulations in October, 2002 to

make them more robust. The amendment in the
regulations has enabled the life insurers to charge
premiums upto 100 per cent of premium of basic
product in case of health related or critical illness
riders and upto 30 per cent of premium of basic
product in case of all other riders.

In addition, Authority has issued orders to general
insurers permitting them to load third party tariff
premium by 100 per cent if the claim experience
of any individual insured is adverse as per the insurer’s
assessment. If the experience continues to be bad,
then a further loading of 100 per cent of the expiring
premium can be charged. However, no extra premium
can be charged beyond these specified limits. With
a view to ensuring that the order is implemented
in both letter and spirit, the Authority has asked the
insurers to communicate this to all their underwriting
officers.

The Authority during the course of the year under
reporting, repeatedly drew the attention of the insurers
to the salient provisions of the Protection of Policyholders
Regulations and advised compliance of the same.
It followed this up by constituting a Cell in the Authority
headed by the Executive Director to look into the
complaints/grievances of insurers and take it up with
respective insurers for early resolution of grievances.

The Authority in order to protect the interests of the
policyholders exercised the powers given to it under
section 64U(M) and 102 of the Insurance Act, 1938,
and directed Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd. and New
India Assurance Co. Lid. to discharge liability under
marine hull, marine cargo and fire insurance policies.

The Authority issued a notice to all life insurers
directing them to have premium rates with the facility
of premium calculator on their respective websites
in order to ensure transparency and openness in
computation of the pricing of their policies for the
benefit of the consumers. A recent development is
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the decision of the Executive Committee of the Life
Council, to adopt standards of good conduct and
sound practices under the provisions of Sec 64J(i)
of Insurance Act, 1938. These standards provide
service parameters with respect to product design
brochures, premium receipts, illustrations on the
products, policy information statement and the provision
for issuing an annual statement to the policyholders.

The Authority also directed the life insurers to display
the latest Net Asset Value (NAV) of Unit Linked policies
along with the date of valuation. This stipulation has
been made to ensure that policyholders are aware
of the value of the investments made in unit linked
products. The Authority issued notice to all life insurers
on publications of charges in sales literature in unit
linked policies.

The Authority undertook an awareness campaign on
Doordarshan/ All India Radio at the national level
with the objective of educating the insurance consumers
on their rights and obligations, the functions of
infermediaries, the ombudsman scheme, etc. By
educating and improving the awareness of the
consumer, the Authority sought to protect the interests
of the policyholders. During the year under review,
a circular was issued to all insurers to follow the
file and use procedure adopted by the Authority and
not to introduce any products or amendments on
the existing products without intimating the same to
the Authority.

(c) Specifying requisite qualifications,
code of conduct and practical
training for intermediary or
insurance intermediaries and
agents

During the year 2002-03, the Authority issued
directions, circulars, orders and communications on
the requisite qualifications, code of conduct and
practical fraining fo insurance intermediaries and
agents to ensure that provisions of Insurance Act and
regulations made there under are complied with and
are administered.

The Authority issued a Circular intimating all concerned

that the Administrative Staff College of India (ASCI),
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Hyderabad has been recognised as the institute to
impart practical training and conduct examination for
CEOs/ CAOs of the licensed TPAs. The regulations
provide that the CEOQ/CAQO of the TPAs shall undergo
100 hour practical training in addition to meeting
the qualification requirements. The said requirement
is to be complied within a period of two years from
the date of registration of the TPA. To ensure compliance
with the said stipulation, the Authority took steps
during the year 2002-03 to organise the training
sessions. The training module was prepared by Med
Varsity, Hyderabad in collaboration with Administrative
Staff College of India (ASCI), Hyderabad. The module
comprises of online training plus 3 days practical
(In House) training at the premises of ASCI. The first
batch of the training programme, which comprised
of about 20 participants, was held in mid February,
2003. The Second batch of training of the
CEO/CAOs of the TPAs was concluded in the month
of September, 2003 to facilitate the TPAs to fulfill
the stipulations of the IRDA Regulations. With a view
to capacity building and to take care of the
contingencies which may occur in future, it was
emphasised that more than one representative of the
TPA should participate in the training program.

The Authority advised both the general insurers and
the TPAs that if any agreement was entered into at
the insistence of their clients for the sake of business
consideration of charging separate fees in addition
to insurance premium, the same would be treated
as being outside the scope of IRDA (TPA — Health
Services) Regulations, 2001. Adequate precautions
were required to be taken by both the insurers and
the TPAs to clearly intimate this fact to the customers/
clients. The TPAs were also informed that the
requirements of passing the Associateship exams of
Insurance Institute of India, Mumbai by CEOQs / CAOs
was extended fill May, 2004. However, no relaxation
with respect to 100 hours training conducted by
Administrative Staff College of India was allowed.

With the publication of IRDA (Licensing of Corporate
Agents) Regulations, 2002 it was notified that the
designated person responsible for grant of individual
agents license would also be competent to issue
corporate agency licenses. Further the Indian Institute
of Bankers, Mumbai was designated as the examining
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body for grant of certificate to the employees/ officers
of the banks. The syllabus for such employees/ officers
of the banks willing to become specified persons for
selling insurance products for the corporate agents
was also approved by the Authority. The employees
and officers of the banks could undergo training from
the existing accredited institutes or from the training
institutes of the banks, which were approved by the
Authority. The Regulations pertaining fo corporate
agents and insurance brokers have laid down indicating
educational qualifications and training requirements
for the corporate insurance agents, specified person,
principal officers and other marketing persons. The
Authority has also specified the code of conduct, the
rights and duties of intermediaries and the agents
for the overall healthy development of these entities.

The Authority approved a list of training institutes to
provide training to candidates appearing for
examination of insurance brokers. The head office
training centres of National, New India, Oriental and
United were approved along with the Management
Development Centre of Life Insurance Corporation,
Mumbai. In addition, National Insurance Academy,
Pune, College of Insurance, Mumbai and three private
institutes were also approved to impart training to
brokers as per the syllabus approved by the Authority.
All the institutes were advised to prepare course
material based on the syllabus approved by the
Authority. National Insurance Academy, Pune has
been designated as the examining body for brokers.

(d) Specifying the code of conduct for
surveyors and loss assessors

The Authority finalised the syllabus for training of
surveyors and loss assessors who would take the
examination after one year of practical training under
a senior surveyor. The first such examination was
conducted in February, 2003 by Insurance Institute
of India, Mumbai. Thereafter, the examinations are
being held as per the schedule laid down.

The Authority took steps to enforce the code of
conduct for surveyors and loss assessors. The general
insurers were advised to furnish information about
the list of cases in which more than one surveyor
was deputed, as well as about the surveyors blacklisted
by any insurer, without intimation to the Authority.
A Report was also sought from the general insurers
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on the implementation of the system of categorisation
by the companies. The Authority revised the financial
limits for different categories of surveyors during the
current financial year 2003-04. The financial limits
of the surveyors are given at Table 44 of the Report.

(e) Promoting efficiency in the conduct
of insurance business

The insurers started devising new strategies to reduce
transaction costs in doing insurance business. Use
of technology, internet, computers helped companies
in achieving economies of scale. The private insurers
have started issuing a large number of policies over
the web, thereby effectively reducing their costs. The
insurers, for improving customer service have also
started continuous professional development
programmes for their professionals.

The CEOs of the companies at the annual conference
held in May, 2003, made presentations to the Authority
outlining their goals and objectives. They emphasised
on controlling expenses of management with the
ultimate aim of improving efficiency in the conduct
of insurance business. The companies to promote
efficiency in their operations have initiated many other
steps at the operational levels. Payment of premium
through credit or debit cards, internet, e-transfer, etc.,
has been allowed to ensure working efficiency and
service to the customer.

Both the Life and General Councils were active during
the year under report. The Life Insurance Council
appointed a Committee under the chairmanship of
Mr. H.O. Sonig to give its recommendations on agents
compensation. The report was submitted to the Life
Council. The General Insurance Council came up
with suggestions pertaining to cases involving breach
of tariff. It also concluded important agreements,
including those on knock for knock agreement,
coinsurance agreement and discussed important issues
like charging of overage extra, issuance of policies
on first loss basis, etc.

(f) Promoting and regulating
professional organisations
connected with the insurance and

re-insurance business:

In line with the objectives of creating an efficient,
effective and progressive Indian insurance sector, IRDA
and the Government of Andhra Pradesh has jointly
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established the Institute of Insurance and Risk
Management (IIRM). The Institute through its
collaborative network will be involved in providing
services for the benefit of the industry, including
research & consultancy, advanced technical and
management programs, post-graduate education,
conference & events, insurance regulators’ &
supervisors’ training and bringing out publications.
During the year 2002-03, the IIRM has conducted
the following activities:

«  Seminar on Core principles for regulators jointly
with TAIS and UNCTAD, August, 2002 in
Hyderabad.

«  Seminar on Pension with a special focus on India,

August 2002 in Hyderabad.

. 39 emerging Insurance Market conference,
January 2003, New Delhi jointly with UNCTAD,
OECD and IAIS.

o  OECD/INPRS 2" conference on Private Pensions
in Asia and 2" Asia Pacific Regional INPRS
Meeting, May 2003, in Hyderabad.

«  Anindustry forum on “Current Developments and

Future Prospects in the Indian Insurance Industry”
in September, 2003 in Hyderabad.

. Intensive course on Marine Insurance, in
September, 2003 in Hyderabad.
. Intensive course on Reinsurance, October, 2003

in Hyderabad.

The educative material and reports used in the above
seminars are being kept in the libraries of the Institute
and the Authority for reference purposes. The Institute
in collaboration with  UNCTAD launched the
International Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance
(IPGDI). The course has been designed through
international collaborative efforts to meet the insurance
industry’s need for highly qualified manpower. The
first IPGDI class is presently being conducted in
Jakarta with 20 students. The class is taught in Jakarta
by IIRM international offiliate faculty committed to
provide an excellent quality of learning experience
to the students of I[IRM.

The Authority approved the Post-graduate Diplomas
in Insurance and Risk Management of one and two
year durations. These diplomas are conducted by a
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number of institutes (list placed at Annexure Xl to
the Report). In addition, the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India has been given authorisation
by the Authority to conduct a diploma course in Risk
Management for the benefit of its members. In addition
ICAl has been recognised by the Authority o undertake
training courses for those chartered accountants who
aspire to become surveyors and loss assessors. The
training course conducted by the Institute will be
recognised for the purpose of fulfillment of training
requirements under the Insurance Act, 1938.

(g) Levying fees and other charges for
carrying out the purposes of this
Act

The Authority notified the licensing of corporate agents
regulations during the year under report. The fee
payable for issue or renewal of license to act as
a corporate agent is Rs.250/-. Every specified person
of the corporate agent is required to pay a fee
Rs.500/- to the Authority for grant of certificate.

The Authority notified the Insurance brokers Regulations.
As per the regulations a direct broker is required
to pay an amount of Rs.25,000/-. The license fee
for reinsurance brokers is Rs.75,000/- and for a

composite broker the fee is Rs.1,25,000/-.

The requirement for payment of application/
processing/ registration fee payable by the insurers,
surveyors and loss assessors and infermediaries
including agents, TPAs, brokers and corporate agents
is given at Annexure X.

The regulations also provide for payment of renewal
fees by the insurers. During the year, the Authority
reduced the levy for renewal of registration of insurers
to 10 per cent of 1 per cent of the gross premium
for the year 2003-04. The relaxation was an extension
of the benefit already extended in the years 2001-
02 and 2002-03. As a step forward, with the
amendment of the regulations pertaining to registration
of Indian insurers, in 2003, the registration fee now
stands reduced from 20 per cent to 10 per cent
of 1 per cent of the gross premium or Rupees fifty
thousand whichever is higher at the time of renewal
of registration, every year.
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The regulations also have penal provisions in case
of delay in payment of requisite fees. However, there
has been no occasion to invoke these provisions till date.

(h) Calling for information from,
undertaking inspection of,
conducting enquiries and
investigations including audit of the
insurers, intermediaries, insurance
intermediaries and other
organisations connected with the
insurance business

The Authority commenced the exercise of on-site
inspection during the financial year 2002-03. The
inspection processes carried on by the Authority can
be broadly categorised into two, viz:

®  Overall inspection of the insurance companies.

® Targeted inspection, as to meet the specific
objectives.

The officers of the Authority carried out inspection
of selected insurers with a view to finding out whether
their operations and affairs were conducted in the
required professional manner or not. These inspections
were also aimed at getting an overview of the
operations of the insurers, with respect to compliance
of the regulations and various provisions of the
Insurance Act, 1938.

The Authority levied a penalty on Reliance General
Insurance Co. Ltd. under section 1058 of the Insurance
Act, 1938 for not fulfilling the rural sector obligations
under Section 32B and 32C of the Insurance Act,
1938. The company represented against the order
explaining the reasons for incorrect reporting of
figures. The Authority conducted an inspection and
based on the findings and verification of figures,
rescinded the penalty proceedings against the company
and withdrew the order levying the penalty.

The Office of Commissioner of Central Excise, Mumbai-
V sought information on whether all tax payers providing
i) insurance services; and ii) insurance auxiliary services
had taken service tax registration and were paying
tax or otherwise. The insurers were asked to send the
information to the Commissioner directly.
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The Authority advised all insurers to submit a
compliance certificate on quarterly basis to the Public
Debt Office, confirming the position regarding monthly
conciliation of SGL/CSGL Accounts and that the same
were placed before the Audit Committee of the Board
of respective insurer, under intimation to the Authority.
During the period under review, the Authority sought
submissions of statutory returns in excel format.

The Authority directed all the licensed brokers to file
within 30 days (of last day of each month) a statement
indicating: the names of clients on whose behalf the
business had been placed with an insurer, type of
business that had been contracted, the brokerage
or remuneration received and persons to whom
payments had been effected.

The IRDA (Assets, Liabilities and Solvency Margin of
Insurers) Regulations, 2000 provide for the manner
in which reserves for ‘outstanding claims’ and reserve
for ‘incurred but not reported claims’ shall be provided.
In such determination, the appointed actuary is required
to follow the Guidance Notes issued by the Actuarial
Society of India in concurrence with the Authority,
and within the framework of the directions issued by
the Authority on the same.

Targeted inspection of non-life insurers was carried
out to review the reserves created by them as the
Authority was concerned about the adequacy of the
reserves being created by the insurers.

Some TPAs were subjected to inspection following
complaints against them. In addition, inspection of
insurance brokers was conducted to check on their
physical infrastructure, human resources, ability to
perform the assigned duties, etc.

The Authority advised all insurers to furnish particulars
of all persons paid remuneration whether by way of
commission or otherwise where such remuneration
exceeded such sum as required under 217(2A) (a)
of Companies Act, 1956 read with Companies
(Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975.

The Authority issued a circular to all the insurers asking
them to furnish details of equity holding pattern of
insurers with a view to facilitate monitoring of foreign
equity holding in insurance companies on a quarterly
basis as per the prescribed proforma. In addition
insurers have also been advised to furnish the equity
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holding pattern of the Indian promoters of insurance
companies.

(i) Control and regulation of the rates,
advantages, terms and conditions
that may be offered by insurers in
respect of general insurance
business not so controlled and
regulated by the Tariff Advisory
Committee under section 64U of the
Insurance Act, 1938 (4 of 1938)

All insurers carrying on general insurance business
are required to file their rates, terms, advantages,
terms and conditions with the Authority 30 days prior
to the use of an insurance product. The “file and
use” system implemented for non-tariff classes of
business in general insurance encourages companies
to compete for business and makes it easier for
insurance companies to respond to changing market
conditions. It also provides more flexibility in the types
of policy forms companies can use, besides allowing
them to create a broader “menu” of products for
their customers. The insurers are accordingly required
to file a profile of the new products and the policy
of pricing adopted by them. This profile is accompanied
by a statement from the advocate that the terms and
conditions offered are not prejudicial to the
policyholders” interests. In certain cases, the Authority
seeks an opinion of an actuary with a view to checking
whether the pricing has been made on professional
assumptions and statistics. While the Authority does
not intend to grant any specific approval to any
product, it reserves the right to respond within 30
days of the receipt of the insurance product, as to
whether it would be in the interest of consumer or
help to develop insurance market or be free from
false promises/allurements or self sustainable and not
dependent on subsidy of premium from other class/
category of insurance customers, etc. The Authority
also reserves the right to suggest changes in the profile
of the product as well as its pricing.

During the year, the general insurers were advised
to design professional indemnity cover for insurance
brokers. The Authority issued a circular to all general
insurers wherein the insurers were allowed coverage
for fire insurance on first loss basis under householders
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package policies. Yet another circular was issued
which permitted insurers to issue the comprehensive
package policy under CPM - Equipment Insurance
Policy. The company-wise details of the products filed
by the non-life insurers under the “file & use” procedure
of the Authority, during the years 2001-02 and
2002-03, are placed at Tables — 32() & (i)

In case of tariff products, the insurers are required
to file the products and pricing details with the Tariff
Advisory Committee.

(i) Specifying the form and manner in
which books of account shall be
maintained and statement of
accounts shall be rendered by
insurers and other insurance
intermediaries:

All insurers were advised on the amendments in the
IRDA (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditors
Report of Insurance Company) Regulations, 2002.
Following a meeting with the accountants and
appointed actuaries of insurers, the Authority clarified
the manner in which figures were to be reported while
finalising the financial statements for the financial year
2002-03. The areas which were covered in the
circular included segment reporting, cash flow
statement, managerial remuneration, related party
transactions, fransfer of securities to policyholders
accounts, guidelines for recognition of claim, bank
reconciliation as at 31¢ March, provisions for free
look period, catastrophe reserves, investments of
policyholders and shareholders, social sector business,
preliminary expenses, actuarial valuation of claims
payment for more than 4 years, freatment of premium
deficiency, treatment of charge on the credit card,
unallocated premiums, premium received in advance,
contingent liabilities and permission to open SGL
Account with RBI at the headquarters of the insurer.
In addition two annexures have been specified, wherein
insurers are required to give summary of financial
statement for last 5 years and the performance ratios.
The Authority, however, granted relaxation to the
public sector insurers on creation of reserve for
premium deficiency, preparation of cash flow statement
and actuarial valuation of claim liability because of
the difficulty expressed by them, in preparing the
annual accounts for the financial year 2002-03.
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The Central Board of Direct Taxes under Ministry of
Finance issued a notification amending Rule 6E of
the Income Tax Rules, 1962 relating to provisions
for unexpired risk in respect of fire and engineering
insurance policies which provide cover against risk
of terrorism. According to the notification, 100 per
cent of the net premium income arising from fire
or engineering insurance which provides for terrorism
risk will be allowed to be carried to reserve for
unexpired risks.

The Authority took steps towards finalising the modalities
for computerisation of both filing and evaluation for
the stafutory returns to be filed by the insurers/
intermediaries. The insurers were advised to file the
accounts by returns in electronic form for a period
of three years, i.e., 2000-01 to 2002-03 as per the
soft modules which have been made available to
the insurers through the Authority’s website. Export
Credit Guarantee Corporation (ECGC) an existing
company which was granted registration by the
Authority, in the financial year 2002-03, was granted
exemption from compliance of the reporting
requirements, for the said year.

Further, the Authority recently acceded to the insurers’
request to take the market price of the actively traded
securities at the lowest of the last quoted closing price
at the National Stock Exchange or Bombay Stock
Exchange for the purpose of such fair valuation.

(k) Regulating investment of funds by
insurance companies

The Authority issued a number of clarifications/
guidance notes to the insurers on investments during
the financial year 2002-03. The Authority has also
granted exemptions fo insurers on a case-to-case
basis. All insurers were advised to file the compliance
certificate under section 28(2A), 28(2B) and 28B(3)
as per the prescribed format along with the investment
returns on a quarterly basis. The cerificate for the
last quarter of the year was to be accompanied by
a certificate from the custodian confirming the value
of the securities held and certifying that the same
were free of encumbrances, charges, hypothecation
and lien. The insurers have also been advised to
furnish particulars of defaults in receipts of periodic

351 alfddes Rard
rd ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

incomes and/or principal on maturity, on a quarterly
basis, and particulars of the provisions made/ proposed
to be made on the same. The Authority also laid
down the guidelines for investments in mutual funds.
These investments are required to be made only under
the ‘other than approved’ category of investments,
as per the exposure norms for such investments. The
modalities for valuation of mutual fund investments
have also been laid down. As a step towards establishing
reconciliation between the purchases and sales of
investments with the status report furnished under
Form 3A and Form 3B by insurers on a quarterly
basis, the insurers have been advised to file «
reconciliation statement on the purchases and sales
of Investments, within a period of 21 days from the
end of each quarter.

() Regulating maintenance of margin
of solvency

The Authority requires both the life and non-life
insurance companies to maintain a specified margin
of solvency. The information pertaining to the same
is required to be furnished as per the forms prescribed
in this regard.  All insurers have filed the statement
of solvency margin as required under the Assets,
Liabilities and Solvency Margin of Insurers Regulations.

(m) Adjudication of disputes between
insurers and intermediaries or
insurance intermediaries

The Authority is in the course of establishing a
mechanism for adjudication of disputes between
insurers and infermediaries or amongst insurance
intermediaries, to discharge the functions entrusted
to it under the provisions of the statute. During the
period under review no case was referred to the
Authority for adjudication of disputes.

(n) Supervising the functioning of the
Tariff Advisory Committee (TAC)

The year 2002-03 presented the TAC with new
dimensions in its role as a facilitator between insurers
and insured’s. While on the one hand the market
expansion gave access to new, well computed data
source from private sector players, it also kept it busy
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in dealing with cases of breach of the tariff that
competition unleashed initially.  Besides regulating
the tariff for various insurance products, the Committee
also looked into cases of breach of tariff stipulated,
and action was taken against defaulting insurers,
including imposition of penalty. During the financial
year 2002-03 three meetings of the Committee were
held, at which 58 complaints of breach were
considered. In 25 cases fines were paid by the insurers
for breach, in 28 instances, breaches were rectified
and in 5 cases the Committee decided that there
was no breach in tariff. In 8 cases general decisions
were taken on future tariff. It would be recalled that

the breach of the tariff norms were revised effective
1 April, 2002.

The major activity of TAC during the year pertained
to revision and rationalisation of the India Motor Tariff
effective July, 2002. This tariff, for the first time,
brought into play differential rating factors in the motor
segment - a clear indication towards gradual
liberalisation of the market place. It enhanced the
areas of discretions available to insurers and insured’s.
The revision had its share of challenges before various
courts of law, and the Authority and the TAC took
quick remedial actions to restore normalcy in the
motor insurance market that now constitutes 40 per
cent of the non-life insurance segment. A rationalisation
exercise of the Engineering Tariffs (EAR/CAR) was
undertaken and the draft was put on the TAC website
to elicit public opinion. A draft tariff for Mega Risks
was also prepared and submitted to the Authority.
The list of existing tariff business controlled by the
TAC is placed at Table 52.

TABLE
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Data constitutes a key element in informed decision
making process for the insurance industry, as indeed
for every successful organisation. The TAC which
is mandated under Sec. 64UE of the Insurance Act
to collect data from insurers has been actively trying
to build up a database for future use of insurers,
with the Regulator as the service provider. To this
extent, efforts are underway to enhance competencies
within the TAC with the assistance of multilateral
agencies like World Bank. The TAC has been
maintaining a database for declined lives in the life
sector.

The role of TAC as enshrined in the Insurance Act,
1938 is expected to change once de-tariffing of motor
own damage segment is undertaken from 1% April,
2005. It is expected that other classes of insurance
business will have to follow in order to avoid the
pitfalls of having cross-subsidisation amongst various
classes of business in the non-life segment.

TAC has rendered its secretarial assistance in addition
to sharing of its wealth of experience with the
Rangarajan Committee set up for de-tariffing of Motor,
Own Damage portion and with the S. V. Mony
Committee which has been set up to prepare the
road map for liberalisation of the motor own damage
tariff. It has also rendered its advices to the insurers
and chambers of commerce from time to time on
issues pertaining to tariff business. TAC is equipping
itself and also the Authority for determining guide
rates, ferms and advantages which insurers could offer
to non-tariff products and also when the tariffs are
thrown open.

- 52

LIST OF EXISTING TARIFF BUSINESS CONTROLLED BY TAC

FIRE- All India Fire Tariff, Petrochemical Tariff, Industrial All Risks Tariff, Consequential Loss (Fire) Tariff
MARINE - Marine Hull Manual rating Guidelines, Tea Tariff

ENGINEERING - Contractor’s All Risk Tariff (CAR), Contractors Plant and Machinery Tariff (CPM), Electronic
Equipments Insurance Tariff (EEl), Machinery Breakdown Tariff (MB), Civil Engineering Completed Risks Tariff
(CECR), Storage cum Erection Tariff (SCE), Loss of Profit, Boiler and Pressure Vessels Tariff, Deterioration

of Stocks (Potato) Tariff etc.
MOTOR - All India Motor Tariff

MISCELLAENOUS - Workmen Compensation Tariff
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(o) Specifying the percentage of premium
income of the insurer to finance
schemes for promoting and
regulating professional
organisations referred to in clause (f)

The Authority places a considerable amount of
significance on promoting professionalism in the
business of insurance. One of the continuing areas
of concern to the Authority has been the accuracy
and adequacy of data on the insurance industry.
Based on the initiatives in this direction, recently, the
Actuarial Society of India has set up the Mortality
& Morbidity Investigation Bureau (MMIB). The Bureau,
which has been set up under the aegis of ASI, will
collect data from the various insurers, and compile
the mortality and morbidity tables based on the
experiences of the insurers. The Bureau is being
funded by all life insurers and by the Authority.

(p) Specifying the percentage of life
insurance business and general
insurance business to be
undertaken by the insurers in the
rural or social sector

The Committee on reforms in the insurance sector,
while advocating opening up of the industry to the
private sector, had made a strong case for the new
players being subjected to compliance of minimum
stipulations for underwriting business in the rural and
the social sectors. This requirement for the industry,
both life and non life insurers, is laid down in the
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regulations framed by the Authority on obligations
of the insurers for the rural and social sectors. The
amendments to the regulations were notified by the
Authority in October, 2002. Under the amendments,
the term “rural sector” has been redefined, and the
words “agricultural pursuits”, elaborated. The
amendments also dwell on the “informal sector”.
Simultaneously, the obligations for life insurers fowards
the rural sector have been raised. In keeping with
the need for insurers to meet their obligations to the
society, the Authority has further stipulated that in
terms of volume of business, no insurer shall write
rural/social sector business less than what was recorded
for the accounting year ended 31¢ March, 2002.
The amendments came into effect from the financial
year 2002-03. The regulations require insurers to
underwrite business based on the year of
commencement of their operations. In addition, the
existing public sector insurance companies are required
to ensure that their rural and social sector business
in any given financial year is more than that underwritten
by them in the previous year.

(q) Exercising such other powers as
may be prescribed

Under the provisions of the Insurance Act, 1938 the
Government may ask the Authority to exercise powers
for protecting the interests of the policyholders or
for developing the insurance market in the country
or where it relates to matters of policy. However,
presently the Authority has not exercised any such
powers, since the Government has not delegated any
such powers to the Authority.
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ORGANISATIONAL MATTERS OF THE INSURANCE
REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

() ORGANISATION

During the financial year 2000-03, the constitution
of the Authority underwent changes because of the
retirement of some of the members. The following
persons are presently members of the Authority:

Mr. C. S. Rao, Chairman

Mr. P A. Balasubramanian, Member
Mr. T. K. Banerjee, Member

Mr. Mathew Verghese, Member

BN =

Mr. C. S. Rao took over as Chairman of the Authority
on 10" June, 2003, on Mr. N. Rangachary laying
down office on completion of his term. Mr. Rangachary
had headed the Authority for seven long eventful
years. Mr. C. S. Rao, prior to joining the Authority
had a long stint in the administrative services, retiring
as Revenue Secretary, Government of India.

Mr. T. K. Banerjee joined the Authority as whole time
member on 18" August, 2003. He was previously
Executive Director, Life Insurance Corporation of India
(LIC). Mr. Banerjee has taken the position occupied
by Mr. H. O. Sonig, who retired on completion of
his term as member on 31% December, 2002.

Mr. Mathew Verghese, joined the Authority on
27" October, 2003 as whole time member. Prior to
joining the Authority, he retired as Managing Director
and Principal Officer, Kenindia Assurance Company
Ltd. Kenya. Mr. Verghese has come in place of
Mr. R. C. Sharma who retired on the expiry of his
term as member on 20" June, 2003.

Other than the whole time members, the Authority
comprises of the following part time members:

1. Mr. Vivek Mehrotra, Joint Secretary in the Deptt.
of Economic Affairs, Ministry of Finance.

2. Ms Manisha Mohan Andhansare.

3. Mr. AR. Barwe, ex-Deputy Managing Director,
State Bank of India.

4. Mr. R. Bhupati, President, Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

As a matter of policy, the Authority has envisaged
foritself a lean organisational structure, duly supported
by technically qualified and competent officers drawn
from the industry. Further, in keeping with the ever
increasing regulatory functions, steps have been initiated
to increase the staff strength. Thus, additional officers
were recruited in the financial year 2002-03 to take
the fotal strength to 46. Further, with a view fo expose
its officers to the evolving international trends in the
financial markets and to keep them apprised of the
regulatory trends in the insurance industry globally,
the Authority pursues the policy of continuous
up-gradation of the skills and talents of its officers.
Accordingly, regular opportunities for training and
orientation are provided by deputing the officers of
the Authority to various seminars and training
programmes, both within the country and abroad.

Amongst the various training programmes and seminars
attended by the officers of the Authority, were those
organised for Asian Directors by Monetary Authority
of Singapore; Training Programmes on Life Insurance
and Pensions organised by Australian APEC Study
Centre; Programmes on Customer Service and Solvency
Issues organised by National Association of Insurance
Commissioners, Seminar on On-site inspection by
Financial Services Authority, Japan; Training on
Insurance Broking by Lloyds’ London; besides training
programmes organised by IAIS, etc. Officers of the
Authority have also participated to present papers
on technical subjects at various international
conferences. The officers of the Authority also
got an opportunity to participate in a four week
training programme organised by the IRDA for
regulators in the SAARC countries.

During the year, the officers of the Authority were
also exposed to the various aspects of, off and
on-site inspection. The programme was organised
under the aegis of International Institute of Finance
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(IIF).The exposure at various levels for its officers,
enables the Authority to draw upon the experiences
of regulators at global levels, and is aimed at
maintaining the highest professional standards in
regulating the insurance industry.

(ii) MEETINGS OF THE AUTHORITY

During the year 2002-03 (April to March), four
meetings of the Authority were held. The attendance
was full at almost all the meetings which made the
discussions purposeful to transact the business at the
meetings of the Authority.

(iii) HUMAN RESOURCES

On the date of publication of this report, IRDA has
30 officers and 16 staff members (total 46) in various
cadres.  Besides the two executive directors, there
are 15 deputy directors and 13 asstt. directors,
handling the various activities of the Authority.  The
fact that majority of the officers working in the
Authority are drawn from the insurance industry with
which they have been associated for a considerably
long period, is a value addition to the human resources
of the Authority which is required to handle a great
task at hand viz., undertaking ground work on an
on-going basis for the purpose of consistent monitoring
of not only the new liberalised market but also
ensuring an orderly growth of the insurance industry.
The experience gained by these officers in their earlier
association with the insurance industry has enabled
them a great deal to acclimatise themselves, in the
shortest possible time, to the demands of the new
assignment viz., regulating the insurance market.
Added to the knowledge and experience of these
personnel is the training and exposure provided by
the Authority by sponsoring them to a variety of
regulatory workshops, seminars and training — many
of them being international in character — which has
equipped them with the skill and capabilities to handle
effectively the jobs assigned to them by the Authority.

This fact apart, the Authority with the long term
objective of effectively facing the regulatory challenges
ahead undertook the recruitment exercise twice for
augmenting its able work force and appointed
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personnel to the positions in the Authority.  These
new officers, within the shortest possible time, have
effectively understood the role of the Authority and
have started carrying out their responsibilities with
devotion and diligence.

It is the above two groups which form the core unit
of the human resources in the Authority.

(iv) PROMOTION OF OFFICIAL
LANGUAGE

Efforts towards progressive use of Hindi in the Authority
have continued. The Official Language Implementation
Committee (OLIC) of the Authority held quarterly
meetings to review the progress in the official use
of Hindi. During the current financial year, in June,
2003 the Committee  on
Official Language visited the office of the Authority
to review the implementation of official language.

Parliamentary

The Hindi Department has been strengthened with the
posting of a Hindi Officer in the Authority. Hindi Days
and Hindi Weeks are also organised by the Authority.
In addition, the Hindi Section of IRDA Journal contains
8 pages of exclusive material in Hindi Language.
Bilingual software has been purchased in addition
to Microsoft office XP which has the additional features
to facilitate the working in Hindi.

The Authority has also been making available various
regulations, notifications and other useful material
issued by it, in bi-lingual form. Efforts have also been
initiated to make available the various publications
in regional languages in the foreseeable future. With
a view to facilitating preparation of educational material
related to insurance market in different languages
including Hindi, expertise is being provided to various
institutions.

(v) STATUS OF INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY

The Authority has always been adapting the latest
IT trends in order to have effective regulatory
environment and to serve better the millions of policy
holders/general public at large. The activities
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implemented and initiatives taken towards this, during
the year 2002-03 are outlined in the ensuing paras.

All the Officers of the Authority have been provided
with High-end Pentium Desktops loaded with latest
Office Automation software for their day-to-day use.
Home office computers have also been provided to
Members and Executive Directors of the Authority.
All the staff members have been provided with personal
e-mail ID and internet as well as external messaging
facility for effective and speedy communication.

All the desktops have been connected with structured
cabling network supported with High-end data switches.
For the smooth functioning and speedy communication,
both the Delhi and Hyderabad offices have been
connected with 64 KBPS dedicated Voice/Data leased
circuit. Using this facility, the databases and information
available at Hyderabad Office have been made
accessible to the officers stationed at the Delhi office.
Two dedicated voice lines have also been made
available for day-to-day communication.

The Authority is in the process of implementation of
Management Information System developed for the
purpose of evaluation of periodical returns received
from insurance companies. Trial runs are now being
conducted to ensure its smooth implementation.
Necessary instructions have already been issued to
all insurance companies to file the returns in the
formats designed for this system.

The Authority is also in the process of revamping
its Official website to include additional features such
as Comprehensive search engine; Electronic filing of
returns; On-line e-mail complaints; Automatic e-mail
notifications; and o Hindi section in the website.

(vi) ACCOUNTS

The accounts of the Authority for the period ended
31¢March, 2002 have been audited by the Comptroller
and Auditor General (C&AG) of India.  Pursuant
to the provisions of Section 17 of IRDA Act, 1999,
the Audited Accounts along with the Audit Report
have been forwarded to the Government of India
to be placed in both Houses of Parliament. A copy
of the accounts for this period together with the
comments of the C&AG (which are being complied
with by the Authority) is placed at Annexure Xl
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The Accounts of the Authority for the financial year
2002-03 have been finalised and adopted by the
Authority for submission to the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India, for their Audit Report, comments
and certification as required under the IRDA Act,
1999. A copy of the same, as submitted to C&AG,
is placed at Annexure XIV to this Report.

(vii) 1ISO 9001 - 2000 REGISTRATION

The Authority was given ISO accreditation based on
the assessment of its operations. The certification given
to the Authority is a confirmation that the Authority
has established a quality management system that
is in compliance with the international Quality Systems
Standard ISO 9001 and Q2001-2000. The certification
is valid for a period of three years commencing May,
2003. The certification is also a recognition of the
quality policy followed by the Authority, which states
that “The Authority is committed to act as a responsive
regulatory body to protect the interests of the
policyholders, to regulate, to promote and ensure
orderly growth of the insurance industry and for all
matters connected therewith or incidental thereto in
a transparent manner and achieve their satisfaction
through continued improvement by implementing
Quality Management System.”

(viii) IRDA JOURNAL

The first issue of the IRDA Journal was released in
December, 2002 by Dr. C. Rangarajan, the then
Hon'ble Governor of Andhra Pradesh. The Journal
has been well received by both the industry and its
keen followers. The Journal was launched with a view
to ensuring “unfettered dissemination of information,
free and frank analyses and discussion on issues of
concern to an industry which touches all individuals
and businesses in the most sensitive of ways in times
of crises”.

Each issue of the monthly journal is centered around
a theme of relevance to the industry, such as rural
insurance, corporate governance, investment, training,
health insurance, bancassurance and information
technology. The anniversary issue of the journal released
in December, 2003 evaluated the achievements of
the three years of liberalisation of the insurance
industry. The journal serves as a forum for the industry
and its stakeholders to voice their opinion and discuss
issues which are pertinent to the industry, and is a
source of news and authentic industry statistics from
the Authority.
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CONCLUDING REMARKS

The process of opening up the insurance sector was
initiated against the background of the economic
reforms process which commenced in the year 1991.
The reform process was aimed at freeing the Indian
manufacturing and services sectors from the shackles
of controls that inhibited their growth and make them
attain high standards to facilitate the process of
integration with the world economy. It was perceived
that with the markets world over becoming highly
dynamic and integrated, the economic reforms process
within the country was required to enable India to
integrate with these markets. Steps were, therefore,
initiated to elevate the Indian economic system to
international standards in terms of its financial viability,
competence, technology, prudential requirements,
regulation and credibility. The constitution of the
Malhotra Committee was another step in the initiatives
in the area of financial reforms covering the banking
sector and the capital markets which aimed at creating
a more efficient and competitive financial system suitable
to the requirements of the economy. The need for
addressing the issues concerning the insurance sector
was felt in recognition of the fact that the sector is an
important part of the overall financial system.

A decade down the line, and three years since the advent
of the private players in the liberalised environment, it is
perhaps opportune to look back and review the
performance and the expectations of the industry at large
and the goals that the regulator set for itself and the
extent to which their individual aspirations and
commitments have been achieved/ addressed.

The Authority was established with a view fo protecting
the interests of the holders of insurance policies, to
regulate, promote and ensure the orderly growth of the
insurance industry and for attending to matters
connected/ incidental thereto. The last three years have
witnessed dynamic changes in the insurance industry.
These include advent of a fairly large number of insurers
in both the life and non-life segments. A number of
foreign players, from across the globe have entered the
industry as joint venture partners to established Indian
promoter groups. The number of intermediaries has

grown to include besides the agents, the corporate
agents, the brokers, the third party administrators and
of course bancassurance which has opened up new
vistas, and is likely fo change the canvas of the insurance
industry in the years to come. Both the life and the non
life segments have been a witness to introduction of
new products, with tailor made and packaged products
being introduced in the market to suit the particular
needs of the customers. Some initiates have also been
taken to meet the special requirements of the rural and
economically backward segments of the population. The
growth of the premium incomes of insurers has been
satisfactory even in the face of withdrawal of the
guaranteed schemes, as the insurers grapple with the
returns on investments coming under strain. The evolving
market conditions in which the industry is operating are
continuously throwing up fresh challenges, and the
regulatory framework has also striven to keep up with
the times, by framing regulations which reflect the
Authority’s intent to support the ongoing process of
liberalisation of the environment in which the insurers
and various intermediaries operate. The Authority has
striven to be particularly responsive to the needs of the
industry to grow at a fast pace. Possibly, the pace of
evolution of the regulatory mechanism in the last three
years in the country is globally unmatched.

While the development of the insurance industry has
been the prime focus for the Authority, it has been equally
pre-occupied with issues such as consumer protection,
provision of quality services to the policyholder and with
the resolution of their grievances. The process of
liberalisation, it would be recalled was also initiated to
achieve a higher level of insurance penetration. This it
was perceived could be jointly achieved by both the
industry and the regulator making a concerted effort at
educating the prospective customer of the benefits of
insurance. Thus, with the initiatives pertaining to setting
up the framework within which the industry is operating
in place, today the focus has shifted to development of
the insurance business on healthy lines and the benefits
of the growth of the industry penetrating a wider segment
of the economy, in particular providing cover to the
under privileged and the weaker segments and reaching
the rural and the semi-urban areas.
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The significant and far reaching changes in the interest
rates regime in the economy, which too have been a
witness to deregulation, have impacted the returns of
the insurers, and have affected the profitability of those
insurers who are holding guaranteed liabilities on their
balance sheets, although some part of these liabilities
have been balanced by the long term investments held
by them. However, today lucrative long term investment
opportunities are just not available. While the insurers
have to re-orient their portfolios to the changed
circumstances, the avenues for accomplishing the same
are rather limited. Recently, with a view to facilitating
steps in this direction the Authority has also reviewed
and amended the existing regulations on investments,
which were necessitated due to the changes which have
occurred in the investment environment in the country.
Although deregulation of interest rates has helped in
making financial market operations efficient and cost
effective, the same has led to considerable volatility in
the market resulting in a wide array of risks for insurance
companies. To manage and control these risks, the
Authority is in the process of allowing investment in
appropriate financial instruments such as derivatives.

The high rates of lapsation of policies is an area of
concern to the Authority. While the customer needs to
be educated that replacement of policies is generally
not in his interest, on the other hand such lapsations
also impact the profitability of the insurer. Proper and
adequate disclosures, along with the positive approach
of the agents while rendering advise to customer should
go a long way in rectifying this problem. It is in this
context that the quality of agent force is repeatedly
emphasised by the Authority.

The problem of rebating, in both the life and the non-
life sectors has been engaging the attention of the
Authority for quite a while. The Authority, as part of the
advertisement campaign launched by it, has been
creating awareness that rebating was an offence, and
insurers need to strengthen their self regulatory
mechanism in this regard. Issues of market conduct of
both the insurers and the intermediaries are a matter of
concern. Insurers would need to evolve methods of self
regulation both at the corporate level and collectively
through their Councils.

351 alfddes Rard
rd ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

The insurers need to chalk out strategies to ensure that
their operating expenses are kept within the prescribed
limits. While in the case of the new players, these limits
may be breached in the initial years of their operations,
managements have to keep an eye on their expenses
and draw up plans to bring them down. This is
particularly pertinent in the context of the opening up of
the market to increasing competition and the investment
income continuing to move southwards on account of
the declining interest rate regime. In the case of the
public sector insurers, reducing the existing operating
expenses would also be crucial in their strategy to
compete with the lean private players.

Inadequate penetration of health insurance in the
country, and scientific pricing of the health insurance
products are engaging the attention of the Authority.
The health insurance products offered by the insurance
players in the country are restrictive, costly and their
administration is not very sound. The innovative content
has yet to touch this particular segment of the industry
in a significant way. There is no element of risk
differentiation in the pricing of the products offered. The
databases are tardy and there are no benchmarks and
standards to ensure that the required quality of service
is rendered and that the pricing of the medical services
is reasonable. Building up adequate databases has to
be a priority.

Meeting the obligations towards the rural and social
sectors, and taking these obligations beyond the context
of the statutory compliance is important. Business
statistics furnished by the insurers reveal that the
insurance companies are somehow making an effort to
meet the targets as a year end annual obligation. With
the changing profile of the populace in the rural and
semi urban areas, there is fremendous potential for
selling insurance beyond the urban areas. This has been
adequately demonstrated by the manufacturing sectors,
with their targeted marketing strategy. The experience
needs to be duplicated in the insurance sector as well.
There are lessons to be drawn from the success stories,
as has been demonstrated by the surveys/studies
conducted.

Corporates worldwide are moving towards additional
disclosures to prevent the management from committing
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financial improprieties. Both within the country and
abroad, the disclosure requirements are being
increasingly made more stringent, and heavy penalties
for financial improprieties being imposed. Corporate
governance and fransparency in operations are
engaging the attention of regulators worldwide. The
insurance industry, as a self regulatory mechanism,
needs o evolve sound corporate governance practices,
and move towards periodic disclosures, be it on quarterly

or half yearly basis.

351 alfddes Rard
rd ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

The insurance industry has shown a steady rate of growth
over the last three years following the opening up of the
sector and the advent of private sector participation.
The prospects for the industry, as a whole, are bright.
While tremendous progress has been made, it is
premature to rest on the laurels. The insurers most
certainly have to look beyond capturing market shares,
and have to speak the language of quality of service
rendered and the extent of transparency in their
operations to build up the faith and trust in the fledgling,
at least in the liberalised context, industry.

&—o
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ANNEXURE - |

REGULATIONS FRAMED UNDER IRDA ACT, 1999

SI.No.| Name of the Notification Date of Publication
1.1 (1) IRDA (Members of Insurance Advisory Committee) May 24, 2000
2.1 (2) IRDA (Appointment of Insurance Advisory Committee) Regulations, 2000 June 16, 2000
3.| (3) IRDA (The Insurance Advisory Committee) (Meeting) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
4.| (4) IRDA (Appointed Actuary) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
5.1 (5) IRDA (Actuarial Report and Abstract) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
6.| (6) IRDA (Licensing of Insurance Agents) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
7.1 (7) IRDA (Assets, Liabilities, and Solvency Margin of Insurers Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
8.| (8) IRDA (General Insurance-Reinsurance) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
9.1 (9) IRDA (Registration of Indian Insurance Companies) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000

10. | (10) IRDA (Insurance Advertisements and Disclosure) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
11.1(17) IRDA (Obligations of Insurers to Rural or Social Sector) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
12.1 (12) IRDA (Meetings) Regulations, 2000 July 19, 2000
13.1 (13) IRDA (Investment) Regulations, 2000 Aug 16, 2000
14.| (14) IRDA (Conditions of service of Officers and other Employees) Regulations, 2000 Aug 29, 2000
15.] (15) IRDA (Insurance Surveyors and Loss Assessors (Licensing, Professional Requirements

and Code of Conduct)) Regulations, 2000 Nov 24, 2000
16. | (16) IRDA (Life-Insurance Reinsurance) Regulations, 2000 Dec 23, 2000
17.1 (17) IRDA (Investment) (Amendment) Regulations, 2001 May 31, 2001
18.| (18) IRDA (Third Party Administrators-Health Services) Regulations, 2001 Sep 17, 2001
19.1 (19) IRDA (Re-Insurance Advisory Committee) Regulations, 2001 Jan 8, 2002
20. | (20) IRDA (Investments) ( Amendment) Regulations, 2002 April 2, 2002
21.1(21) IRDA (Preparation of Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report of Insurance

Companies) Regulations, 2002 April 2, 2002
22. | (22) IRDA (Protection of Policyholders’ Interests) Regulations, 2002 April 30, 2002
23.| (23) IRDA (Insurance Brokers) Regulations, 2002 Oct 17, 2002
24. | (24) IRDA (Obligations of Insurers to Rural or Social Sector) Regulations, 2002 Oct 17, 2002
25.| (25) IRDA (Licensing of Corporate Agents) Regulations, 2002 Oct 17, 2002
26. | (26) IRDA (Licensing of Insurance Agents) (Amendment) Regulations, 2002 Oct 17, 2002
27. 1 (27) IRDA (Protection of Policyholders’ Interests) (Amendment) Regulations, 2002 Oct 17, 2002
28.| (28) IRDA (Manner of Receipt of Premium) Regulations, 2002 Oct 17, 2002
29.| (29) IRDA (Distribution of Surplus) Regulations, 2002 Dec 14, 2002
30. | (30) IRDA (Registration of Indian Insurance Companies) (Amendment) Regulations, 2003 March 7, 2003
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EXEMPTED INSURERS
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ANNEXURE - 1l

Sl. No. | Name of Company
1. Gujarat Insurance Fund
2. M.P State Crop Insurance
3. Daman & Diu Crop Insurance Fund
4, Dadra & Nagar Haveli Crop Insurance
5. Kerala State Insurance Department
6. Karnataka Govt. Insurance Department
7. Tamil Nadu Crop Insurance Fund
8. Pondichery Crop Insurance Fund
9. Karnataka Govt. Crop Insurance Fund
10. A.P State Crop Insurance
1. Rajasthan State Insurance Fund
12. Delhi State Crop Insurance Fund
13. Haryana State Crop Insurance Fund
14. H.P. State Crop Insurance
15. U.P. Crop Insurance Fund
16. Rajasthan State Crop Insurance Fund
17. CHNHB Association
18. West Bengal Crop Insurance Fund
19. Orrissa State Crop Insurance Fund
20. Bihar Crop Insurance
21. Tripura Crop Insurance
22. Assam State Crop Insurance
23. Meghalaya State Crop Insurance Fund
24. Manipur State Crop Insurance Fund
25. Andaman & Nicobar Administration Crop Insurance Fund
26. Maharashtra State Crop Insurance Fund
27. Maharashtra Govt. Insurance Fund
28. Goa State Crop Insurance

*—o
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ANNEXURE - 11I
DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL STATISTICS FOR AGENTS 31ST MARCH, 2003

Insurer Individual Agents | Corporate Agents Total
Life Insurer New | Renewal New |Renewal New | Renewal
Allianz Baijaj Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 14,157 45 14,202
ING Vysya Life Insurance Co. Pvt. Lid. 3,906 8 3,914
AMP Sanmar Insurance Co. Ltd. 1,599 9 1,608
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited 2,218 6 2,224
TATA-AIG Life Insurance Company Ltd. 15,451 108 15,559
HDFC Standard Life Insurance Co Ltd. 11,237 75 11,312
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance 23,820 5 133 3 23,953 8
Birla Sun Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 6,175 4 139 6,314 4
Aviva Life Insurance Co India Pvt. Ltd. 1,868 2 1,870
Om Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 3,730 55 3,785
Max New York Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 5,766 7 4 5,770 7
Metlife India Insurance Co. Pvt. Ltd. 1,453 1 10 1,463 1
Life Insurance Corporation of India 479,027 468,378 159 1 479,186 | 468,379
Sub Total 570,407 468,395 753 4 571,160 | 468,399
NON-LIFE INSURER
Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Co. Ltd. 207 4 12 3 219 7
TATA-AIG General Insurance Company Ltd. 670 3 137 807 3
Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd. 215 12 33 248 12
IFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd. 321 31 32 353 31
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd. 724 1 2 726 1
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. 921 24 45 966 24
HDFC Chubb General Insurance Company Ltd. 12 2 12 2
Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co. Lid. 182 1 15 197 1
The New India Assurance Co. Ltd. 6,520 14,111 26 9 6,546 14,120
National Insurance Co. Ltd. 7,651 11,544 38 11 7,689 11,555
United India Insurance Co. Ltd. 6,015 10,218 32 15 6,047 10,233
The Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd. 4,712 10,031 26 7 4,738 10,038 s
Sub Total 28,150 45,982 | 398 45 28,548 | 46,027 I
Grand Total 598,557 514,377 (1,151 49 | 599,708 | 514,426 k
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ANNEXURE - IV
DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL STATISTICS FOR AGENTS 31ST MARCH, 2003 - URBAN & RURAL

Insurer Urban Rural

Life Insurer

Allianz Bajaj Life Insurance Co. Lid. 13,632 570
ING Vysya Life Insurance Co. Pvt. Lid. 3,870 44
AMP Sanmar Insurance Co. Ltd. 1,282 326
SBI Life Insurance Company Limited 2,152 72
TATA-AIG Life Insurance Company Ltd. 15,539 20
HDFC Standard Life Insurance Co Ltd. 10,803 509
ICICI Prudential Life Insurance 23,619 342
Birla Sun Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 6,233 85
Aviva Life Insurance Co India Pvt. Ltd. 1,566 304
Om Kotak Mahindra Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 3,426 359
Max New York Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 5,735 42
Metlife India Insurance Co. Pvt. Ltd. 1,447 17
Life Insurance Corporation of India 468,133 479,432
Sub Total 557,437 482,122
Non-life Insurer

Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance Co Ltd. 201 25
TATA-AIG General Insurance Company Lid 769 41
Reliance General Insurance Company Ltd. 256 4
IFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. Ltd. 343 41
ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. Ltd. 580 147
Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. Ltd. 898 92
HDFC Chubb General Insurance Company Ltd. 13 1
Cholamandalam MS General Insurance Co. Ltd. 190 8
The New India Assurance Co. Ltd. 15,259 5,407
National Insurance Co. Ltd. 14,410 4,834
United India Insurance Co. Ltd. 11,002 5,278
The Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd. 11,502 3,274
Sub Total 55,423 19,152
Grand Total 612,860 501,274

*—o
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THIRD PARTY ADMINISTRATORS - HEALTH SERVICES

Sl. No. | Company Contact Person / Address Telephone No. Fax No.
1 Dawn Services Pvt. Ltd. Dr. R. Suresh Kumar 7808810 040-7801813
(License No. 001) Managing Director & CEO 7808809
Plot No. 37, Santoshima Colony 7808974
West Marredpally
Secunderabad - 500 026
E-Mail:dawnservices@rediffmail.com
2 Parekh Health Mr. Nimish R. Parekh, 4611022 /3/4 022-4611021
Management (Pvt.) Ltd. Chief Executive Officer,
(License No. 002) The Forum, 2™ Floor,
Raghuvanshi Mills Compound,
11/12, Senapati Bapat Marg,
Mahalakshmi
Mumbai — 400 013
3 Medi Assist India Pvt. Ltd. | Mr. Ganesh Subramaniam 080-6538790/91/92 | 080-6538793
(License No. 003) Director
4/1, Devaiah Court, 1 Floor, 22" Cross,
Jayanagar, 3 Block,
Bangalore — 560 011
4 Guardian Health Dr. Olinda Timms 2204643
Management Pvt. Ltd. Managing Director & CEO 2265744
(License No. 004) Ground Floor, KSCMF Bldg. No. 8,
Cunningham Road,
Bangalore - 560 052
5 MD India Healthcare Mr. Brij Sharma 020-7292040 - 43
Services (Pvt.) Lid. Chief Executive Officer,
(License No. 005) 261/2/7, Silver Oak Park,
Baner Road, Pune — 411 045
6 Paramount Health Dr. Nayan Shah, 022-4620800 022-24985507/08
Services Pvt. Lid. Managing Director
(License No. 006) 81, Barodawala Mansion,
Dr. Annie Besant Road, Worli Naka,
Mumbai — 400 018
E-mail: phm@vsnl.com
7 E Meditek Solutions Ltd. Mr. Gopal Verma 0124-25062068-70 | 0124-25062071

(License No. 007)

Managing Director
45, Nathupur Road,
DLF Phase — Ill , Gurgaon

Contactus@emeditek.com

*—o
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Sl. No.| Company Contact Person / Address Telephone No. Fax No.
8 Heritage Health Mr. S. K. Bajoria 033-22482411 033-22480482
Services Pvt. Lid. Director
(License No. 008) Mcleod House, 3, Nefaji Subhash Road,
Kolkata — 700 001
E-mail: heritage_health@bajoria.com
9 Universal Medi-Aid Mr. G. P. Sureka 011-51515197-99 | 011-2332 0101
Services Ltd. Chief Executive Officer
(License No. 009) 1104, Akashdeep, 26A,
Barakhamba Road,
New Delhi — 110001
E-Mail: info@umsltpa.com
10 Medicare Foundation Dr. Ajoy Estiberio 0832-414006 0832-414007
Pvt. Ltd. Chief Administrative Officer
(License No. 010) 1120, Housing Board Colony
Porvorim, Alto Betim,
Goa — 403 521
E-mail: helpdesk@medicarefoundation.com
11 Tower Insurance Ms. Manju Sawhney Mahindra 022-22844364 022-22040032
Services Pvt. Ltd. Chairman 56338492/97/98
(License No. 011) 519 Maker Chamber V, 2835359
Nariman Point, Mumbai — 400 021
12 Medicare TPA Brig D J Ghoshal (Rtd) 033-2873385
Services (I) Pvt. Ltd. Director® Helpline: 9830060861
(License No. 012) Flat No 10, Paul Mansions
6, Bishop Lefroy Road,
Kolkata - 700 020.
E-mail: medicaretpa@rediffmail.com
13 Family Health Mr. A. P V. Reddy 040 — 23556464 040 — 23556262
Plan Ltd. Chief Executive Officer
(License No. 013) Aditya JR Towers, 8-2-120/86/9 A & B Toll Free No. :
34 & 4" Floor, Road No. 2, Banjara Hills| 040-23556464
Hyderabad — 500 034 040-23556262
14 ICAN Health Mr. Thomas Mathew 020-4001171,2,3 020-4001171,2,3
Services Pvt. Lid. Executive Director
(License No. 014) A-9/2, Meera Nagar,
Koregaon Park
Pune — 411 001.
15 Raksha TPA Pvt. Ltd. Mr. Pawan Bhalla 0129 2250000 0129 2250002

(License No. 015)

Chief Executive Director
15/5, Mathura Road
Faridabad — 121 003, Haryana

2250001
5046822

Mob.: 9810009517

Toll Free No. :
1600 12 1444

*—o
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S. No. | Company Contact Person / Address Telephone No. Fax No.
16 TTK Healthcare Mr. Girish Rao 080-51155030 080- 5115032
Services Private Limited Managing Director 51155031
(License No. 016) #7, Jeevan Bhima Nagar Main Road,
HAL llird Stage, Bangalore — 560 075.
E-mail: care@ttkhealthcareservices.com
17 Anyuta Medinet Dr. N. Ravindra Shetty 080-2214766
Healthcare Pvt. Lid. Director 2210205
(License No. 017) 65, Lavelle Road, 4™ Cross (M)-9845010136
Bangalore — 560 001.
E-mail: anyutamedinet@hotmail.comAnuta
18 East West Assist Dr. N. P S. Chawla 011- 24699229 011-24694696
Pvt. Ltd. Managing Director 24623738
(License No. 018) 37, Prithviraj Road
New Delhi— 110 011.
E-mail: assistance@eastwestassist.com
19 Med Save Health Mr. Rajan Subramaniam 011-26611061-66 | 011-26611067
Care Ltd. Chief Executive Officer Toll Free No. :
(License No. 019) F-701A Lado Sarai, 1600111142
Behind Golf Course,
New Delhi — 110 030
20 Genins India Ltd. Mr. Rakesh Kapoor 24430329/139/0114| 24430064
(License No. 020) Managing Director
41, Arun Vihar, Sector — 37
NOIDA - 201 303.
21 Alankit Healthcare Mr. Alok Kumar Aggarwal 23540641 Fax (Corp. Off) :
Pvt. Ltd. Director 23614186 011-23680881
(License No. 021) 234, DDA Office Complex 23552001
Jhandewalan Extension
New Delhi — 110055.
E-mail: health@alankit.com
22 Bhaichand Amoluk Mr. Felix Walder 022-22077212 022-22073204
Insurance Services CEO 22077213
Private Ltd. Commercial Union House, 2™ Floor, 22077214
(License No. 022) 9 Wallace Street, Fort 22070916
Mumbai — 400 001.
E-mail: bhamoluk2@vsnl.com
23 Good Healthplan Mr. M. Venkateswarlu 040 - 5582 5003 040 - 5582 8081

Limited
(License No. 023)

Chief Executive Officer
#112, Maruthi Apartments,
Rajbhavan Road, Somajiguda
Hyderabad — 500 082.
E-mail: ghpl@sify.com

*—o
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ANNEXURE - VI
NUMBER OF LICENSES GRANTED TO BROKERS : STATEWISE DATA

STATE/CITY NO. OF LICENSES GRANTED (2002-03)
Maharashtra Composite 8 + Reinsurance 4 + Direct 5 = 17
Mumbai 15

Pune 2

Andhra Pradesh 1 Composite + 6 Direct = 7

Hyderabad 7

New Delhi 1 Composite + 5 Direct = 6

Gujarat Direct 1

Rajkot 1

Kerala Direct 1

Tamil Nadu 1 Composite + 5 Direct = 6

Chennai 6

West Bengal 1 Composite + 1 Direct = 2

Kolkata 2

Total number of licenses granted :

1. Composite = 12

2. Reinsurance = 4

3. Direct = 24
Total = 40

As on 31 October, 2003, the total number of licenses granted is 125.

&—o
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ANNEXURE - VI
INSURANCE BROKERS

Further to notice dated 30" January, 2003 the Authority, in terms of the provisions of the Insurance Regulatory & Development Authority (Insurance

Brokers) Regulations, 2002; Insurance Act, 1938; and Insurance Regulatory & Development Authority Act, 1999, has issued Insurance Broker Licenses

to the following companies during the financial year 2002-03:

Cert. License Name of the Address Phone No. Nature of License Principal Officer Period of
No. Code No. Broker license
101 DB-001/ 02 India Insure Risk Flat No.-405, IV Floor, (040)7822994/ 7822990 Direct(General only) V. Ramakrishna 30/1/2003 to
Management Archana Arcade, 29/1/2006
Services Pvt. Ltd. St. John's Road,
Secunderabad 500 025.
102 DB-005/ 02 ACME Insurance 3 A, 3rd floor, Jamals, (044)28240520/ 28240521 | Direct . Vikram 30/1/2003 to
Services P Lid. 17 Jagannathan Road, 29/1/2006
Nungambakkam,
Chennai 600 034.
103 DB-009/02 | Armour Consultants No. 2-A, Prakasam Road, (044) 52121900 Direct S.P. Raghunathan, FlI 30/1/20083 to
Private Ltd. Il Floor, T. Nagar, 29/1/2006
Chennai 600 017.
104 CB-013/02 | TTK Insurance 1-1—782/ B/ 5, (040)27645070/ 27612232 | Composite T. Naryana Rao 30/1/20083 to
Services Private Ltd. | Gandhi Nagar, 29/1/2006
Hyderabad 500 080.
105 DB-014/ 02 Helios Insurance #302, Lotus Plaza, (040)27765755/ 27634553 | Direct Dr. C.V. Ramana Reddy | 30/1/2003 to
Services Pvt. Ltd. Street No. 11, 29/1/2006
Himmayat Nagar,
Hyderabad 500 029.
106 DB-020/ 02 FIRST POLICY Elpro Compound, (020)24103410/ 27471458 | Direct Ashok Jain 30/1/2003 to
Insurance Advisors Chinchwad, Pune 411 03. 29/1/2006
Pvt. Ltd.
107 DB-026/ 02 Excellent Insurance 8-3-961/8B, (040)23752536/ 23752537 | Direct Dr. K. Muralidhara 30/1/2003 to
Broking Services Ltd. | Srinagar Colony, Reddy 29/1/2006
Hyderabad 500 073.
108 CB-024/ 02 K.M. Dastur Cambata Building, (022)22855855 Composite Purshottam Reddy 30/1/2003 to
Reinsurance 42 Maharishi Karve Road, 29/1/2006
Brokers Pvt. Lid. Mumbai 400 020.
110 DB-004/ 02 Unicorn Insurance A-211, Shivalik Enclave, (0117) 6681890/ 26682213 Direct Ashok K. Sharma 30/1/2003 to
Brokers Pvt. Lid. Malviya Nagar, 29/1/2006
New Delhi 110 017.
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ANNEXURE - VIii(a)

PERFORMANCE OF OMBUDSMEN AT DIFFERENT CENTRES
COMPLAINTS DISPOSAL FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31ST MARCH, 2003 - LIFE

No. of complaints disposed of by way of Total Durationwise disposal of Durationwise outstanding

Camplaints complaints complaints
Ombud Centres | Total | R'da- Awa- With- Non- Dis- Non- in1 |in1to3 |after3 | Total less |1t0 3| more | Total

No.of | tions rds |drawal/ | accept- | missal | entert- mth. mth. | mth. than | mth.| than

Comp- settle- ance ainable Tmth. 3 mth.

laints ment
Ahmedabad 68 0 15 7 0 26 3 51 9 13 29 51 2 8 7 17
Bhopal 235 0 14 94 0 38 8 154 2 39 113 154 11 23 47 81
Bhubaneshwar 1056 1 0 45 0 10 28 84 39 16 29 84 5 10 6 21
Chandigarh 131 0 6 63 0 5 27 101 40 52 9 101 18 6 6 30
2 0 2 0 0 0 2 2 2

Chennai 288 0 3 6 0 19 234 262 236 26 0 262 8 15 3 26
Delhi 340 112 70 2 4 10 16 214 14 45 155 214 55 39 32 126
Guwahati 88 25 49 1 0 6 81 19 54 8 81 5 2 0 7
Hyderabad 137 0 38 3 0 28 33 102 45 48 9 102 20 10 5 35
Kochi 62 10 2 21 24 57 24 33 0 57 1 4 0 5
Kolkata 443 104 0 198 0 6 308 16 99 193 308 25 47 63 135
Lucknow 312 4 19 132 9 30 59 253 162 72 19 253 24 20 15 59
Mumbai 270 0 133 39 1 75 248 81 71 96 248 11 9 2 22
Total 2481 246 357 594 13 188 519 1917 687 570 | 660 | 1917 | 185 193 | 186 | 564
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ANNEXURE - VIIi(b)

PERFORMANCE OF OMBUDSMEN AT DIFFERENT CENTRES
COMPLAINTS DISPOSAL FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31ST MARCH, 2003 - NON-LIFE

No. of complaints disposed of by way of Total Durationwise disposal of Durationwise outstanding

Camplaints complaints complaints
Ombud Centres | Total | R’da- Awa- With- Non- Dis- Non- in1 |in1to3 |after 3 | Total less |1t03| more | Total

No.of | tions rds |drawal/ | accept- | missal | entert- mth. mth. | mth. than | mth. | than

Comp- settle- ance ainable Tmth. 3 mth.

laints ment

Ahmedabad 316 2 74 38 40 24 178 20 38 120 178 18 28 92 138
Bhopal 457 34 41 56 22 153 3 8 142 153 21 23 260 304
Bhubaneshwar 262 108 26 54 19 207 28 44 135 207 17 25 13 55
Chandigarh 173 5 30 40 33 33 141 31 66 44 141 7 10 15 32
Chennai 293 67 25 36 88 216 99 79 38 216 24 28 25 77
Delhi 474 66 147 11 1 95 86 406 68 78 260 406 48 12 8 68
Guwahati 91 9 50 2 10 71 12 52 7 71 13 7 20
Hyderabad 273 4 78 28 112 222 1 191 30 222 7 21 23 51
Kochi 161 43 1 33 46 123 49 70 4 123 14 18 6 38
Kolkata 538 168 1 51 18 7 245 32 123 90 245 34 138 121 293
Lucknow 189 11 32 51 11 29 134 57 49 28 134 19 14 22 55
Mumbai 671 158 129 24 90 401 97 71 233 401 31 137 102 270
Total 3898 | 407 680 413 3 428 566 2497 497 869 | 1131 (2497 | 253 | 461 687 (1401
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ANNEXURE - VIII (c)
PERFORMANCE OF OMBUDSMEN AT DIFFERENT CENTRES

COMPLAINTS DISPOSAL FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 31ST MARCH, 2003
(SUMMARY — LIFE & NON-LIFE COMBINED)

No. of complaints disposed of by way of Total Durationwise disposal of Durationwise outstanding
Camplaints complaints complaints
Ombud Centres| Total | R'da- Awa- With- Non- Dis- Non- in1 |in1to3 |after 3 | Total less |1t03| more | Total
No.of | tions rds |drawal/ | accept- | missal | entert- mth. mth. | mth. than | mth. | than
Comp- settle- ance ainable Tmth. 3 mth.
laints ment
Ahmedabad 384 2 89 45 0 66 27 229 29 51 149 229 20 36 99 155
Bhopal 692 34 14 135 0 94 30 307 5 47 255 307 32 46 307 385
Bhubaneshwar 367 109 0 71 0 64 47 291 67 60 164 291 22 35 19 76
Chandigarh 306 5 36 1056 0 38 60 244 71 120 53 244 25 16 21 62
Chennai 581 0 70 31 0 55 322 478 335 105 38 478 32 43 28 103
Delhi 814 178 217 13 5 105 102 620 82 123 415 620 103 51 40 194
Guwahati 179 34 99 1 2 0 16 152 31 106 15 152 18 9 0 27
Hyderabad 410 4 116 3 0 56 145 324 46 239 39 324 27 31 28 86
Kochi 223 0 53 3 0 54 70 180 73 103 4 180 15 22 6 43
Kolkata 981 272 1 249 0 18 13 553 48 222 283 553 59 185 184 428
Lucknow 501 15 51 183 9 41 88 387 219 121 47 387 43 34 37 114
Mumbai 941 0 291 168 0 25 165 649 178 142 329 649 42 146 104 292
Total 6379 | 653 1037 1007 16 616 1085 4414 1184 1439 | 1791 | 4414 | 438 | 654 | 873 | 1965
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ANNEXURE - IX

INSURANCE ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS

As per the Notification dated: 23rd May, 2000 the following persons were appointed as
members of the Insurance Advisory Committee, with effect from 1st June, 2000:

1. Mr. V. S. Was, Jaipur

2.  Mrs. Pushpa Girimaji, New Delhi

3. Mr. A, C. Mukherjee, Kolkata

4. Mr. T. S. Vishwanath, FCA, New Delhi

5. Dr. D. N. Buragohain, Ex-Director, IIT, Guwahati

6. Mr. C.N.S. Shastri, Puttaparthi (Andhra Pradesh)

7. Mr. S. V. Mony, Chennai

8. Chairman, LIC of India, Mumbai

9.  Chairman, GIC

10. The Director, NIA Pune

11.  The Director, IIM Bangalore

12.  Mr. S.P Subhedar, Actuary, Mumbai

13.  Mr. Dipak Dutta, Bengal Chamber of Commerce, Kolkata
14. Mrs. Ela Bhat, SEWA, Ahmedabad

15. Mr. T. Ramanan, Mumbai

16. Mr. Fali Poncha, Mumbai

17.  Mr. Saumil Mehta, Surveyor, Mumbai

18. Mr. A K. Tyagi, General Secretary, NFIFW, Lucknow

19.  Mr. John Koshy, Agent, Cochin

20. Mr. D. Varadarajan, Advocate, New Delhi

21. The Director, Central Road Research Institute, Pune

22. The Vice Chancellor, Punjab Agricultural University, Ludhiana
23.  Mr. Liyoquat Khan, Lucknow

24. Mr. A. K. Venkatsubramanian, IAS Retd., Former Secretary, Deptt. of Consumer Affairs, Govt. of India
25. Mr. V. K. Bhasin, Joint Secretary, Ministry of Law, New Delhi

i
do
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ANNEXURE - X
FEE STRUCTURE FOR INSURERS AND VARIOUS INTERMEDIARIES

Processing| Registration| Renewal Fee Periodicity
Fee Fee of Renewal
Insurers - Rs. 50,000 1/10" of 1per cent of Gross Direct Every year
(Life/Non-life/ Premium written in India subject (by 31+ Dec.)
Reinsurance) to minimum of Rs. 50,000 and
maximum of Rs. 5 crore
Third Party Rs. 20,000 | Rs. 30,000 Rs. 30,000 3 years
Administrators
Brokers
Direct Broker Rs. 25,000 0.50 per cent of brokerage & fees 3 years
earned in the preceding financial
year subject to minimum of
Rs. 25,000 and maximum of
Rs. 1,00,000/-
Reinsurance Broker]| - Rs. 75,000 0.50 per cent of brokerage & fees 3 years
earned in the preceding financial
year subject to minimum of
Rs 75,000 and maximum of
Rs. 3,00,000/-
Composite Broker Rs. 1,25,000 | 0.50 per cent of brokerage & 3 years
fees earned in the preceding
financial year subject to minimum  of
Rs. 1,25,000 and maximum of
Rs. 5,00,000/-
Surveyors And Loss Assessors
Individual Category | A Rs. 10,000 Rs. 200/- for every category 5 years
B Rs. 7,500
C Rs. 5,000
Corporate Category| A Rs. 25,000 Rs. 200/- for every category 5 years
B Rs. 20,000
C Rs. 15,000
Corporate Agents Rs. 250 for Rs. 250/- 3 years
corporate
insurance
executive
Rs. 500 for
specified
person
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ANNEXURE - XI

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL OF INSURANCE COMPANIES

(Rs. in crores)

S. | Name of the insurer 2001-02| 2002-03| Foreign Indian FDI (%)
No. TOTAL| partner |Promoter
Life Insurers
1. | HDFC Standard Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 168.00 218.00 40.54 177.46 18.60
2. | ICICI-Prudential Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 190.00 425.00 110.50 314.50 26.00
3. | Max New York Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 250.00 255.00 66.30 188.70 26.00
4. | Om Kotak Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 101.00 131.30 34.14 97.16 26.00
5. | Birla Sun Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 150.00 180.00 46.80 133.20 26.00
6. | TATA-AIG Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 185.00 185.00 48.10 136.90 26.00
7. | SBI Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 125.00 125.00 32.50 92.50 26.00
8. | ING Wsya Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 110.00 170.00 44.20 125.80 26.00
9. | Metlife India Insurance Co. Ltd. 110.00 110.00 28.60 81.40 26.00
10. | Allianz Bajoj Life Insurance Co. Ltd. 150.00 150.03 39.01 111.02 26.00
11. | AMP Sanmar 125.00 125.00 32.50 92.50 26.00
12. | AVIVA 154.80 40.25 114.55 26.00
Sub Total 1664.00| 2229.13 563.43 | 1665.70
13. | LIC 5.00 5.00 0.00 5.00
TOTAL (Life) 1669.00| 2234.13 563.43 |1670.70
Non-life insurers
1. | Royal Sundaram Alliance Insurance 130.00 130.00 33.80 96.20 26.00
2. | Reliance General Insurance Co. Ltd. 102.00 102.00 0.00 102.00 0.00
3. | Bajaj Allianz General Insurance Co. 110.00 110.00 28.60 81.40 26.00
4. | IFFCO-TOKIO General Insurance Co. 100.00 100.00 26.00 74.00 26.00
5. | TATA-AIG General Insurance Co. Lid. 125.00 125.00 32.50 92.50 26.00
6. | ICICI Lombard General Insurance Co. 110.00 110.00 28.60 81.40 26.00
7. | HDFC Chubb - 101.00 26.26 74.74 26.00
8. | Cholamandalam MS 49.50 105.00 0.00 105.00
Sub Total 726.50 883.00 175.76 707.24
9. | National Insurance Co. Ltd. 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00
10. | New India Assurance Co. Ltd. 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00
11. | United India Insurance Co. Ltd. 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00
12. | Oriental Insurance Co. Ltd. 100.00 100.00 0.00 100.00
Sub Total 400.00 400.00 0.00 400.00
13. | ECGC 390.00 440.00 440.00
Total (Non-Life) 1516.50| 1723.00 175.76 |1547.24
Reinsurer
General Insurance Corporation 215.00 215.00 0.00 215.00
TOTAL 3400.50 | 4172.13 739.19 |3432.94
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ANNEXURE - XII

DETAILS OF INSTITUTES WHOSE SYLLABUS OF INSURANCE COURSES
APPROVED

Sl. | Name of Institution/ Date of Course Duration
No. | Location accreditation
1. | Birla Institute of Management | 23 Sep, 2002 | Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance 1 year
Technology, Delhi and Risk Mgt.
2. | Jaipuria Institute of 23 Sep, 2002 | Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance 1 year
Management, Lucknow and Risk Mgt.
3. | Amity School of Insurance 23 Oct, 2002 | Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance 1 year
and Actuarial Science, Noida
4. | The Institute of Chartered 1 Nov, 2002 Diploma in Insurance and Risk Mgt.
Accountants of India, Delhi
5. | All India Management 28 Jan, 2003 | Post Graduate Diploma in Mgt 2 years
Association, Delhi (Insurance Mgt)
6. | The Tamil Nadu 13 March, 2003 | Post Graduate Diploma in General
Dr. Ambedkar Law University, Insurance Laws and Practice —
Chennai correspondence programme
7. | Asia-Pacific Institute of 28 April, 2003| Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance 1 year
Management, Delhi
8. | Maharashtra Institute of 12 May, 2003 | Post Graduate Diploma in 1 year
Technology, Pune Insurance and Risk Mgt.
9. | International Institute for 14 May, 2003 | Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance 1 year
Insurance & Finance, and Risk Mgt.
Hyderabad
10. | UGCE — Insurance Institute for| 30 May, 2003 | Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance 1 year
Education & Training, Business Mgt.
Chandigarh
11. | Acharyya Institute of 7 June, 2003 Post Graduate Diploma in Insurance 1 year
Technology, Kolkata Technology
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SEPARATE AUDIT REPORT ON THE ACCOUNTS OF INSURANCE
REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FOR 2001-02

Introduction

The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority was established on 19th April, 2000 under Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 with its headquarter at New Delhi. The Authority has changed
its headquarters to Hyderabad in December 2001. The Audit of the accounts of the Authority has been
entrusted under Section 19 (2) of the Comptroller & Auditor General (Duties, Power & Conditions of Service)

Act, 1971. The Authority was to consist of a Chairman, five full ime Members and four Part-time Members.

As on date the Authority has one chairman, two full time and four part time members. There is an Insurance

Advisory Committee, which helps the Authority in making its Rules and Regulations for proper discharge of its

activities. The main powers and functions of the Authority are as under:

e  Protect the interest of and secure fair treatment to policyholders;

e  Bring about speedy and orderly growth of the insurance industry (including annuity and superannuation
payments), for the benefit of the common man, and to provide long term funds for accelerating growth
of the economy;

e  Setf, promote, monitor and enforce high standards of integrity, financial soundness, fair dealing and
competence of those it regulates;

e  Ensure that insurance customers receive precise, clear and correct information about products and
services and make them aware of their responsibilities and duties in this regard;

e  Ensure speedy settlement of genuine claims, to prevent insurance frauds and other malpractices and
put in place effective grievance redressal machinery;

e  Promote fairness, transparency and orderly conduct in financial markets dealing with insurance and
build a reliable management information system to enforce high standards of financial soundness
amongst market players;

e  Take action where such standards are inadequate or ineffectively enforced;

e  Bring about optimum amount of self-regulations in day to day working of the industry consistent with the
requirements of prudential regulation.

Sources of Receipts

During 2001-02, the Authority’s receipts were Rs.42.17 crores as against its expenditure of Rs.5.89 crores.
The receipts mainly consisted of fees received from various Insurance companies operating in India on
account of their Registration and Renewal charges.

Funds

The funds of the Authority are being retained by itself despite directions of the Ministry to house the funds in
Public Account of India as non-inferest bearing funds. As on 31 March 2002, the Authority continues to
house its funds amounting to Rs. 57.42 crore in interest bearing deposits of banks and other financial
institutions.

Comments on Accounts

4.1 Under statement of Current Assets, Loan and Advances
Current Assets, Loan and Advances: Rs. 20,031,959.
This does not include a sum of Rs. 20,00,000/- which was paid as advances to M/s Andhra Pradesh
Industrial Development Corporation Ltd. (APIDC) vide cheque no. 308126 dt. 08/03/2002
(HDFC A/c -New 435). The amount was given for the renovation work at IRDA office at Hyderabad.
Since this amount represented advance in the nature of amount recoverable in cash or kind, the same
was required to be shown in the Balance Sheet. The Authority has charged this amount to Income and
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Expenditure Account by showing it as Establishment Expenses - Repair and Maintenance of Buildings
and Premises. Thus both Income and Current Assets of the Authority have been understated by
Rs. 20,00,000/-. The Authority in its reply stated that the sum of Rs. 20 Lakhs was, released as running
payments against the renovation work, which is construed as an advance payment. Authority’s reply is
not acceptable as all notes and correspondence of the Authority clearly stipulate the payment as advance.
(Reference to the completion certificate showed that it has been issued by APIDC without recording
measurement of the works.)

Under statement of Current Liabilities & Provisions
Current liabilities and provisions: Rs. 12,92,305.

(1) This does not include provisions for salary amounting to Rs. 23.6 lakhs which was demanded by
the Life Insurance Corporation vide its letters dt. 12/02/2002, 13/09/2002, 23/09/2002 & 5/
11/2002 for payment to LIC staff working for IRDA on working arrangement basis. Apparently the
amount pertains to the period 2001-2002 for which no provision has been made in the accounts
of the Authority. Hence, both Expenditure as well as Liabilities remained understated to that extent.

The Authority in its reply stated that it would make provisions for payment of salary and other
benefits from the date of joining if their previous employer make a demand for the period they
were with the Authority on working arrangement.

(2) No provision was made in the accounts for the value of PCs amounting to Rs. 2.93 lakhs purchased
by LIC on behalf of IRDA, the payment for which was released to LIC on 25th July 2002. Hence
Current Liabilities and provisions remained understated to that extent.

Incorrect depiction of investment to the tune of Rs. 37.40 lakhs and excess accounting
of interest of Rs. 2.25 lakhs on investments.

As on 31st March, 2001, an investment of Rs. 5742.28 Lakhs has been made as fixed deposit with the
Indian Overseas Bank and HDFC Bank by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority. Scrutiny of
Certificate of Fixed Deposit and consolidated statement of Investment revealed that the maturity amount
of Investment has been taken as Rs. 6644.99 lakhs instead of Rs. 6607.59 lakhs resulting in a difference
of Rs. 37.40 lakhs between the two. Similarly interest accrued has been taken into account as Rs.
191.00 1akhs instead of Rs. 188.75 lakhs. Thus, an excess interest of Rs. 2.25 1akhs was depicted in
the Balance Sheet resulting in overstatement of income to the extent of Rs. 2.25 lakhs. The details of
Investment and Inferest is enclosed as ‘Annexure I’

The Authority accepted the audit observation and stated that necessary rectification would be carried in
the accounts of 2002-2003. Inferest accrued/actual on investment may be reconciled and necessary
rectification/adjustment be made into account under intimation to audit.

Difference between Assets Register and Balance Sheet

Scrutiny of Assets Register and Balance Sheet as on 31¢ March, 2002 revealed that there was a
difference of Rs. 1.48 lakhs between the two which was not reconciled.

The Authority in its reply stated that it was presumed that consumable and the perishable items had
been taken into account in the dead stock register. The details of such items with regard to their cost will
be extracted from the records of the previous years and these items will be removed from the dead stock
register to correct the difference.
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4.5 Non-verification of Assets
The Authority had fixed assets valued at Rs. 28,33,511.06 as per Balance Sheet as on 31 March,

2002 details of which were shown in Annexure-l. In this connection, the following comments are offered:

1. The progressive totals of value of all assets entered in the Fixed Assets Register were not carried out
in accordance with the rule 151 (4)(a) of General Financial Rule.

2. Consumables like buckets, boxes purchased for shifting records, wall clocks, crockery, gas stove
efc. were also included in the assefs register. The Authority did not maintain inventories of such
articles in the prescribed form.

Assets register may be recast in the light of the above observation under intimation to audit.

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Director General of Audit
Date: 18-07-2003 Ceniral Revenues
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AUDIT CERTIFICATE

| have examined the Receipts and Payments Account, Income and Expenditure
Account for the year ended 31st March 2002 and Balance Sheet as on 31st
March 2002 of Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority, Hyderabad.
| have obtained all the information and explanations that | have required
and subject to the observations in the appended Audit Report, | certify as a
result of my audit that in my opinion, these accounts and Balance Sheet are
properly drawn-up so as to exhibit a true and fair view of Insurance Regulatory
and Development Authority, Hyderabad, according to the best of information
and explanations given to me and as shown to me by the books of

Organisation.

Sd/-
Place: New Delhi Director General of Audit
Dated: 18-07-2003 Central Revenues
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THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, NEW DELHI

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT
BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2002

FORM A

1,335,759.50

FIGURES FOR THE LIABILITIES FIGURES FOR THE FIGURES FOR THE ASSETS FIGURES FOR THE
PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
GENERAL FUND FIXED ASSETS [See Note 1]
i) IRDA Fund [See Note 4] 2,269,754.68 -Gross Block 4,642,112.68
-At beginning of the year 893,243.68 697,331.62 -Less:Depreciation 1,808,601.62
893,243.68 -Receipts in the year - - 1,572,423.06  -Nef Block 2,833,511.06
893,243.68 -Balance at end of the year 893,243.68 - -Capital Work-in-Progress -
i) Capital Fund INVESTMENTS [See Note 2]
- -Capital Grants - (Method of Valuation - at Cost]
- -Balance at the Abeglnmng of 1h§ year i) Securities of Central and State Government -
- Add: Value of Fixed Assets received as grants i) Units i
during the yeor i) Fixed Deposits with banks
(Including moneys belonging to the
i Sé)rlplus and Fur|1ds Bal sh 12.478.206.44 Employees Provident Fund Trust to
-Balance as per losf Balance oheetf /478,200. 204,766,622.00 be formed) 574,227,907.78
Add: Excess of Income Over Expenditure . h
as per Income and Expenditure iv) Others
12,478,206.44 A t- A d 336,916,567.87
ccount- Annexed CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
- Less: Excess of Expenditure Over
. [See Note 3]
Income as per Income and Expenditure
- Account - Annexed e 31,500.00 i) Deposits with Agencies 57,840.00
12,478,206.44 -Balance at the end of the year 349,394,774.31 266,192.88 i) Loans & Advances to Staff 2,021,953.88
- iv) Gift and Donations - 6,321,977.50 iii) Amount Due from Insurance Companies
v) Other Balances - & Others 573,298.00

Other Current Assets 20,031,959.00

LOANS v) Cash & Bank Balances
- i) Secured (stating the security 15,000.00 a) Cash in Hand 18,998.00
offered for the purpose) 12,190,515.18 b) Bank Balances 5,558,629.27
- i) Unsecured
- i) Loan from Government of India
- iv) Other Loans
Contd...
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THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, NEW DELHI
THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2002

FIGURES FOR THE LIABILITIES FIGURES FOR THE FIGURES FOR THE ASSETS FIGURES FOR THE
PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)

CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
[See Note 5]

i) SUNDRY CREDITORS:
-for Capital ltems

18,962,541.00 for Other ltems-[Includes amount ~ 98,205,957.00
refundable Rs. 89,641,595 for
reduction in renewal fees]

i) PROVISIONS:
-Provision for doubtful debts and 229,485.00
advances
-Provision for depletion in value of investment -

iiij  OTHER LIABILITIES:
1. Unspent Grants
2. Inferest payable to Government/
Other Loans
3. Provident, Retirement & Other
Welfare Funds:
91,062.00 (a) Provident Fund 764,552.00
- (b) Other Welfare Funds -
(c) Retirement Benefit Fund and
Staff Benefit Fund: -
4. Ofthers (Specify)
4,987,536.00 -other Liabilites (TDS) 1,292,305.00
189,087,401.00 -Registration Renewal fee 154,543,780.00
received in Advance

226,499,990.12 605,324,096.99 226,499,990.12 605,324,096.99

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts - Annexure IX

Notes: 1. The information relating fo Fixed Assefs is given in Annexure |.

2. The information relating fo Investments is given in Annexure |I.

3. The information relating to Current Assets, Loans and Advances is given in Annexure |II.

4. Details of IRDA Fund is given in Annexure IV (Fund includes grants received from Central Government, other organisations and bodies in terms of Section 16 of the Act).
5. Details of Contingent Liabilities is given in Annexure V.

6. All information relating to significant accounting policies and notes forming part of accounts is given in Annexure IX.

7. All annexes to Statement of Affairs and notes/information relating to accounting policy forming part of Accounts.

-Sd- -Sd- -Sd- -Sd-
R.K. Sharma N. Rangachary R. C. Sharma H.O. Sonig
Chief Accounts Officer Chairman Member Member
[

LLE

€00¢-¢00¢
LIOFI WNNNY DJQ
£bg DRID g




6LE

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, NEW DELHI

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT
INCOME AND EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

FORM B

FIGURES FOR THE EXPENDITURE FIGURES FOR THE FIGURES FOR THE INCOME FIGURES FOR THE
PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
1,388,813.00  Payment to Chairperson 2,359,356.00 Grants in Aid
and Members 15,001,000.00 Received -
728,402.90  Payment to and Provision for members 6,036,219.00 Receivable ) -
of Staff [See Note 1] Less: Transferred to Capital Fund
13,326,883.90  Establishment Expenses [See Note 2] 21,601,397.77 Registration Fees
24,300,031.60  Rent 8,673,118.00 33,743,663.00 Agents 110,756,681.50
Research & Consultation Fees - - Surveyors and Insurance intermediaries -
Seminars,Conference, Publications, etc.[See Contra] - TPA 520,000.00
Interest [See Note 3] 650,000.00  Insurance Companies 300,000.00
Renewal Fees
o - Insurance Companies 234,561,500.00
697,331.62  Depreciation 1,111,270.00 552,565.00 Surveyors and Insurance intermediaries 717,487.00
- Capital Assets Written Off - - TPA 420,000.00
- Loss on Write Off of Asset - Others
- Provison for doubtful debts and advances 229,485.00 Penalties Fines efc. ]
Eevelopme?fEExpegdﬁure - Seminar, Conferences and Publications efc.
Orohmo’réono xpenditure 40.390.0 . 2,959,252.00  Income on Investments - Interest on 29,452,612.14
- ther Expenses . 0,390.00 deposits with Scheduled Banks
12,478,206.44  Excess of Income Over Expendiutre 336,916,567.87 Inferest on Deposi
. posits
carried to Balance Sheet
Interest on advances
- i) granted to members of staff for
housing purposes 16,578.00
- i) granted to members of staff for other
purposes 2,562.00
- i) Ofthers _
13,189.46  Miscellaneous Income 220,383.00
Excess of Expenditure over income carried to Balance Sheet
52,919,669.46 376,967,803.64 52,919,669.46 376,967,803.64
Significant  Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts - Annexure IX
Notes: 1. The information relating fo payment to and provision for employees is fo be given in Annexure VI.
2. The information relating to establishment expenses is to be given in Annexure VII.
3. The information relating fo interest amount is to be given in Annexure VIII.
4. All annexures to Income and Expenditure account and notes/information relating to significant accounting policies form part of accounts.
-Sd- -Sd- -Sd- -Sd-
R.K. Sharma N. Rangachary R. C. Sharma H.O. Sonig
Chief Accounts Officer Chairman Member Member
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THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, NEW DELHI

FORM C

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT

RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

S.No. RECEIPTS AMOUNT (Rs.) S.No. PAYMENTS AMOUNT (Rs.)
1. To Balance brought forward 1. By Research and Consultation Fees
i) COSE at Eﬂns 12,190,515.18 2. By Seminars, Conference, Publications etc. -
”'3 gﬁzqu”;s o 15,000.00 3. By Rent Payments 27,095,405.00
iv) Cash / Cheques in transit 4. By Development Expenditure -
2. To Registration Fees 5. By Promotional Expenditure
-Insurance Companies 300,000.00 6. By Payment to Chairperson and Members
-Insurance TPA 520,000.00 (i) Pay and Allowances 1,817,631.00
-Insurance Surveyors - (i) Other Benefits 174,299.00
-Insurance Agents 120,042,916.90 (iii) Travelling Expenses 4,110,687.00
-Others - 7. By Establishment Expenses
3.  To Registration Renewal Fees ) P d All 5 002.762.00
-Insurance Companies 287,273,518.00 (53 Sf{]grBene%\gonces ’] 78/,01 2200
-TPA 420,000.00 (i) Travelling Expenses 5,433,106.00
—:nsuronce iurveyors 717,487.00 (iv) Retirement Benefits 229,853.00
(O hace Agents - 8. By Office Expenses 9,866,324.27
4.  To Pendlties, Fines from insurers and intermediaries ?. B.y Inferest on
) (i) Government Loans
5..  To Seminar, Conferences etc. (i) Other Loans R
6. ToIncome from Investments 10. By Purchase of Assets 2,372,357.68
7. To Sale of Investments 11. By Capital Work-in-Progress 565,800.00
8. To Grants 12. By Ad to staff and others includi
i)  Central Government / State Govt/ Others - fréve|\;0dnvcae:C§ st and oImers including 1,971,690.00
i) Gilt and Donations - 13. By Investments-[Includes FD made on behalf
7. ToLoans o 579,884.00 of PF Trust fo be made] 369,461,286.00
10. To Sales of Publication etc. - 14. By Repayment of Government Loans -
11. To Sale of AsseTs 15. By Repayment of Other Loans -
12. To Interest received on 16. By Other Expenses 40,390.00
-Deposits 11,478,804.14 By Balance carried forward
-Advances - i) Cash at Bank 5,558,629.27
-Others i) Cash in hand 18,998.00
13. To Recoveries from Employees .!“) Cheques in hc‘”d ) -
(a) Loans and Advances 138,722.00 V) Cosh/ Cheques in Transit
(b) Interest on Loans and Advances
(c) Misc. _
14. To Other Receipts 220,383.00
433,897,230.22 433,897,230.22
-Sd- -Sd- -Sd- -Sd-
R.K. Sharma N. Rangachary R. C. Sharma H.O. Sonig
Chief Accounts Officer Chairman Member Member
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ANNEXURE - 1

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2002

FIXED ASSETS SCHEDULE
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Cost as on Additions Sold/Disposed As on As on For the Year Adjust- Up to As at As on
Particulars 1.04.2001 During the Off During the 31.03.2002 1.04.2001 ments 31.03.2002 31.03.2002 31.03.2001
Year Year
Office Premises
(a) Land
(b) Building
Residential Flats
(a) Land
(b) Building
Vehicles 194,343.68 194,343.68 50,315.58 37,289.00 87,604.58 106,739.10 144,028.10
Equipments 710,081.05 709,212.00 1,419,293.05 | 216,345.59 | 105,190.84 321,536.43 | 1,097,756.62 493,735.46
Furniture and
Fixtures 340,782.95 11,129.00 351,911.95 97,439.40 54,324.58 151,763.98 200,147.97 243,343.55
Computers 1,024,547.00 | 1,652,017.00 2,676,564.00 | 333,231.05 | 914,465.58 1,247,696.63 | 1,428,867.37 691,315.95
Total 2,269,754.68 | 2,372,358.00 - 4,642,112.68 697,331.62 |1,111,270.00 1,808,601.62 2,833,511.06 | 1,572,423.06
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ANNEXURE - I

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2002

INVESTMENTS
S.No. PARTICULARS Figures for the  Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs.
1 Fixed Deposits with Scheduled Banks 574,227,907.98 204766622.00
Name of Date Amount Rate of Period Date of Interest
the Bank Interest Maturity Accrued
Indian 7-Dec-01 300,000 8.25% 1096 7-Dec-04 8654
Overseas | 26-Dec-01 50,000,000 8.50% 1096 | 26-Dec-04 1243924
Bank 27-Dec-01 44,000,000 8.50% 1096 | 27-Dec-04 1083130
1-Jan-02 50,000,000 8.50% 1096 1-Jan-05 1165360
1-Jan-02 50,000 8.25% 1096 1-Jan-05 1127
1-Jan-02 3,968,102 8.25% 1096 1-Jan-05 89450
29-Dec-01 42,357,557 8.50% 1096 | 29-Dec-04 1020514
9-Jan-02 326,807 8.25% 1096 9-Jan-05 6705
24-Jan-02 325,260 8.25% 1096 24-Jan-05 230654
191,327,726 4,849,518
3-Oct-01 193,252,278 8.50% 365 3-Oct-02 8316144
2-Oct-01 10,100,274 8.50% 365 2-Oct-02 437069
2-Oct-01 10,100,274 8.50% 365 2-Oct-02 437069
2-Oct-01 10,100,274 8.50% 365 2-Oct-02 437069
12-Oct-01 4,485,596 8.00% 365 12-Oct-02 172216
28-Dec-01 48,821,875 8.00% 365 | 28-Dec-02 1025417
276,860,571 10,824,984
HDFC 1-Mar-02 1,235,347.50 8.00% 185 2-Sep-02 8,206
2-Nov-01 350,000.00 8.00% 182 3-May-02 11,545
25-Oct-01 11,300,000.00 8.00% 183 26-Apr-02 1,285,469
7-Nov-01 50,000.00 8.00% 182 8-May-02 1,594
7-Nov-01 500,000.00 8.00% 183 9-May-02 15,853
13-Nov-01 5,350,000.00 8.00% 182 | 14-May-02 163,450
27-Nov-01 50,000.00 8.00% 182 | 28-May-02 1,373
4-Dec-01 800,000.00 8.00% 183 5-Jun-02 20,723
29-Nov-01 5,000,000.00 8.00% 182 | 30-May-02 135,061
14-Dec-01 500,000.00 8.00% 183 15-Jun-02 11,845
15-Dec-01 5,000,000.00 8.00% 183 16-Jun-02 117,342
19-Dec-01 300,000.00 8.00% 183 20-Jun-02 6,775
26-Dec-01 50,000.00 8.00% 183 27-Jun-02 1,052
12-Jan-02 400,000.00 8.00% 182 13-Jul-02 6,907
15-Jan-02 500,000.00 8.00% 182 16-Jul-02 8,302
16-Jan-02 5,000,000.00 8.00% 182 17-Jul-02 81,914
24-Jan-02 125,000.00 8.00% 182 25-Jul-02 1,826
30-Jan-01 5,000,000.00 8.00% 182 31-Jul-02 66,416
6-Feb-02 250,000.00 8.00% 182 7-Aug-02 2,933
8-Feb-02 300,000.00 8.00% 182 9-Aug-02 3,387
14-Feb-02 250,000.00 8.00% 182 | 15-Aug-02 2,491
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S.No. PARTICULARS Figures for the  Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs.
Name of Date Amount Rate of Period Date of Interest
the Bank Interest Maturity Accrued
18-Feb-02 5,000,000.00 8.00% 182 19-Aug-02 46,817
1-Mar-02 5,000,000.00 8.00% 185 2-Sep-02 33,214
28-Feb-02 200,000.00 8.00% 185 1-Sep-02 1,373
13-Mar-02 5,000,000.00 8.00% 185 14-Sep-02 19,928
11-Mar-02 550,000.00 8.00% 185 12-Sep-02 2,436
63,404,735.05 2,093,373
19-Nov-01 25,169,680.11 8.00% 395 19-Dec-02 753,212
1-Nov-01 4,099,210.21 8.00% 395 1-Dec-02 | 139,398.00
11-Nov-01 1,537,203.82 8.00% 395 11-Dec-02 48,789.00
16-Nov-01 1,024,802.54 8.00% 395 16-Dec-02 31,365.00
30-Nov-01 1,024,802.54 8.00% 396 31-Dec-02 28,115.00
20-Oct-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 396 20-Nov-02 37,176.00
20-Oct-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 396 20-Nov-02 37,176.00
30-Oct-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 396 30-Nov-02 34,881.00
31-Oct-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 395 30-Nov-02 34,648.00
3-Nov-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 395 3-Dec-02 33,959.00
5-Nov-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 395 5-Dec-02 33,500.00
8-Nov-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 395 8-Dec-02 32,812.00
10-Nov-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 395 10-Dec-02 32,353.00
22-Nov-01 1,012,116.43 8.00% 395 22-Dec-02 29,600.00
41,964,747 1,306,984
573,557,779.14 19,074,859
Fixed Deposit for PF Trust
OB 6-Dec-00 11,128 7.00% | 6 Months|  6-Jun-2002 749
OB 5-Jan-01 16,822 7.00% | 6 Months 5-Jul-2002 1022
OB 5-Feb-01 21,567 7.50% | 6 Months| 5-Aug-2002 1159
OB 9-Mar-01 21,984 7.00% | 6 Months| 9-Sep-2002 1008
OB 31-Mar-01 21,984 7.00% 3 years| 30-Sep-2004 1049
OB 2-May-01 26,836 7.00% 3.51| 2-Nov-2004 2336
IOB 31-May-01 28,144 8.00% | 12 Months| 31-May-2002 1,932
OB 7-Jun-01 19,954 8.00% | 12 Months|  7-Jun-2002 1,343
OB 19-Jul-01 32,294 8.00% | 12 Months 3-Jul-2002 1,977
OB 31-Jul-01 42,750 8.00% | 12 Months|  31-Jul-2002 2,346
IOB 12-Sep-01 38,464 8.00% | 12 Months| 12-Sep-2002 1,738
OB 11-Oct-01 40,346 8.00% | 12 Months| 11-Oct-2002 1,558
IOB 5-Nov-01 58,118 8.00% | 12 Months| 5-Nov-2002 1,916
OB 28-Nov-01 66,926 8.00% | 12 Months| 28-Nov-2002 1,859
OB 1-Jan-02 69,144 7.50% | 12 Months|  1-Jan-2003 1,768
OB 29-Jan-02 65,022 7.50% | 12 Months| 29-Jan-2003 1,264
OB 27-Feb-02 67,202 7.50% | 12 Months| 27-Feb-2003 454
IOB 18-Mar-02 21,443 7.50% | 12 Months| 18-Mar-2003 59
670,128 25540
2 Others
() Quoted- Cost and Market Value
b)  Unquoted Nil Nil
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ANNEXURE - 1l

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2002
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
DEPOSITS
- For Premises 22,500.00 -
- With Others- MTNL 35,340.00 31,500.00
57,840.00 31,500.00
LOANS & ADVANCES TO STAFF
- Housing Loan to Staff 1,209,600.00 -
- Loans to Staff for other purposes 756,092.88 215,325.88
- Other Advances - Festival 56,261.00 -
- Others - Advance for Travel - 50,867.00
TOTAL 2,021,953.88 266,192.88
AMOUNTS DUE FROM INSURANCE COMPANIES & OTHERS
- Insurance Companies’-[Indicates the amount due from
State Insurance Companies) 229,485.00 1,061,099.00
- Agents-[Indicates the amount of expired cheques in hand
received from agents earlier] 343,813.00 5,260,878.50
TOTAL 573,298.00 6,321,977.50
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
- Expense Recoverable 425.00 -
- Prepaid Expenses 346,195.00 233,890.50
- Interest Accrued but not due - Bank deposits (Includes Rs.25,540
on Fixed Deposit held on behalf of PF Trust to be formed) 19,100,399.00

- Interest Accrued but not due - Staff Loans
- Advances on Capital Account-[For software development]

TOTAL

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

19,140.00
565,800.00

1,101,869.00

20,031,959.00

1,335,759.50

- Cash in hand 18,998.00 15,000.00
- Cheques in hand - -
- Cash/ Cheque in transit
- Balances with Scheduled Banks
(a) In Current Account 5,558,629.27 12,190,515.18
(b) on Deposit Account - -
TOTAL 5,577,627.27 12,205,515.18

- Balance with Non Scheduled Bank
(a) In Current Account
(b) In Deposit Account

TOTAL
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ANNEXURE - IV

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2002

PARTICULARS

Figures for the
Current Year
Rs.

Figures for the
Previous Year
Rs.

Grant from Government of India

893234.68

ANNEXURE -V

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2002
CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS

Figures for the
Current Year
Rs.

Figures for the
Previous Year
Rs.

ANNEXURE - VI

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

PAYMENT TO AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES

PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
i) Salaries, Allowances, Wages and Bonus 4,975,533.00 670,489.90
i) Bonus - -
iiij  Contribution to Provident Fund, etc. 298,737.00 45,913.00
iv)  Gratuity 210,148.00 2,183.00
v)  Staff Welfare Expenses - -
vi)  Others
-Book Grant - 3,805.00
-Leave Travel Concession 14,045.00 -
-Insurance - 1,693.00
-Canteen Expenses 3,903.00
-Monetary Award - Studies - -
-Contribution to Group Insurance Scheme 21,770.00
-Reimbursement of expenses incurred by Staff 169,426.00 -
-Leave Salary 346,560.00 416.00
TOTAL 6,036,219.00 728,402.90
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ANNEXURE - ViI

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES

PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
Repairs & Maintenance of Buildings & Premises 2,267,704.00 787,324.00
House Keeping - Office Maintenance 825,542.00 159,179.00
Repairs & Maintenance of Equipments - 44,425.00
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 23,075.00 1,356,290.00
Electricity (Payable to LIC) 803,258.00 200,000.00
Insurance - Vehicle 15,300.00 6,524.00
Rates and Taxes - -
Printing and Stationery 690,481.00 2,050,100.00
Books/Journals etc. 63,628.00 91,186.00
Postage, Telegraphs, Telephones, etc. 1,210,860.27 792,370.00
Travelling and Conveyance Inland 4,945,309.00 4,394,750.40
(Includes Payable to LIC Rs.711755/-)
Travel - Foreign 5,367,184.00 147,093.00
Legal and Professional charges 1,440,279.00 285,716.00
Education/Training/R&D/Grievances Redressal Expenses - -
Audit Fees 99,520.00 -
Software - 150,000.00
Publicity & Advertisement 2,062,541.00 572,574.00
Recruitment - -
Expenses of Meetings of Authority & Advisory Committee & Other
meeting expenses including daily allowances paid - -
to the members of the Committee 195,685.00 767,758.00
Membership and Subscription 415,835.50 244,664.50
Security Services 225,879.00 167,369.00
Web Portal Development Expenses 564,300.00 900,000.00
(Rs.33215 payable to Maruthi IT.Com)
Canteen Expenses 143,523.00 -
Car Repair and Maintenance Expenses 52,560.00 29,269.00
Other Expenses 188,934.00 180,292.00
TOTAL 21,601,397.77 13,326,883.90

ANNEXURE - Vil
THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

INTEREST
PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
Government - -
Banks - -
Others - -
TOTAL - -
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ANNEXURE - IX
THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Unless otherwise specified, all amounts are in rupees]

BACKGROUND

INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (The Authority) was established
by an Act of Parliament-Insurance Regulatory & Development Authority Act, 1999 (ACT)- and was
constituted on April 19, 2000 by a nofification issued in the Gazefte of India. The Authority was
established with a view to protect the interests of the holders of insurance policies, to regulate, promote
and ensure orderly growth of the insurance industry and for matters connected therewith or incidental
thereto. The Authority, in terms of section 13 of Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act,
1999 [Act], has been vested with the assets and liabilities of the Interim Insurance Regulatory Authority
as are available on the appointed day i.e. April 19, 2000. In terms of section 16 of the Act a fund
shall be constituted namely “The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Fund” [Fund]. The
Fund shall constitute of all Government grants, fees and charges received by the Authority, all sums
received by the Authority from such other source as may be decided upon by the Central Government
and the percentage of prescribed premium income received from the insurer. The Fund shall be applied
for meeting the salaries, allowances and other remuneration of the members, officers and other employees
of the Authority and the other expenses of the Authority in connection with discharge of its functions
and for the purpose of the Act.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of
accounting save for revenue recognition on cash basis as explained hereunder, and in accordance
with the applicable standards on accounting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on fixed assets is
provided pro-rata to the period of use on reducing balance method using rates determined based
on the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Assets costing less than
Rs. 5,000 have been depreciated 100% in the year of purchase.

(b) Investments

Investments of the nature of fixed deposits with banks are stated at cost.

[
() Revenues
(i) Registration Fees
(a) Received from insurer seeking for the first time, registration to carrying on any class of
insurance business in India, are treated income of the year of receipt. M
(b) Received in advance from existing insurers for renewal of registration already granted
are treated as income of the year to which they relate.

395



351 alfddes Rard
rd ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

(i) License Fees

License fees received from insurance agents, surveyors and other insurance intermediaries are
treated as income of the year in which it is received. Llicenses issued to insurance agents,
surveyors and other insurance intermediaries are current for those years from date of issue
and subject to renewal at the end of their currency. It is not practicable to distribute the
License fees over the years to which they relate.

(iii) Grant from Ministry of Finance, Govt. of India
Initial Grant received has been treated as income of the year in which it is received.

(d) Foreign currency transactions
Non-monetary foreign currency transactions are recorded at rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into rupees
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. The differences in translation
of foreign currency liabilities related to the acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying
value of fixed assets. Other translation differences are reflected in the Income and Expenditure
Account.

(e) Web Portal Development and Maintenance
Expenses incurred on Web Portal Development and Maintenance is charged to the Income and
Expenditure Account in the year of incurrence.

()  Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees comprise contribution to provident fund, gratuity and leave
encashment, which are provided in accordance with the Regulations made under the Act.

Leave encashment is provided for at the current encashable salary for the entire unavailed leave
balances.

The Authority has established a IRDA Employees Provident Fund Trust for the benefit of its officers
and other employees subsequent to the close of the year. Pending establishment, the contribution

made by the Authority and of the employees has been earmarked and deposited in fixed deposits
with a scheduled bank.

The liability for gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuation, in accordance with gratuity
scheme framed by the Authority.

INCOME-TAX

No income tax provision has been made in view of income of the Authority being exempt under
section 10 (23BBE) of Income-tax Act,1961 effective assessment year 2001-2002.

The renewal fees from State Insurance agencies have not been accounted for in the absence of information
of gross insurance premium.

[ ]
The Authority has received a letter from Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs dated
July 17, 2002 directing the Authority to deposit the moneys so far collected by the Authority in the
Public Account of India as non-interest bearing account and allowing the Authority to withdraw a
specified amount in the beginning of each year from the said Public Account for meeting its expenditure. M
The Authority, based on legal opinion obtained, is seeking review of the direction received as the
Authority is of the view of that the funds raised by it from the insurers and the intermediaries do
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not have the character of Government Revenue and cannot form part of the Public Fund of India,
which position is in accord with the legal opinion obtained by the Authority. The Authority has taken
up the issue with the Government of India.

In the absence of agent wise accounting of license fee, the amount deposited in excess of the recoverable
license fee (based on licenses issued during the year) has been treated as license fee income.

PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVES

Previous period represents the period April 19, 2000 (the date of constitution of IRDA) till March
31, 2001. Previous year figures have been regrouped wherever considered necessary to make them
comparable with the current year’s figures.
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THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, HYDERABAD

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT
UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003

FORM A

349,394,774.31

12,478,206.44
- Add: Excess of Income Over Expenditure
as per Income and Expenditure

336,916,567.87 Account - Annexed

Less: Excess of Expenditure Over
Income as per Income and Expenditure

Account - Annexed 9,304,316.57

-Balance at the end of the year 340,090,457.74

iv) Gift and Donations
v) Other Balances

LOANS
i) Secured (stating the security
offered for the purpose) -
i) Unsecured
i) Loan from Government of India
iv) Other Loans

57,840.00 i)
2,021,953.88 i
573,298.00 i)

20,031,959.00 i)

18,998.00
5,558,629.27

FIGURES FOR THE LIABILITIES FIGURES FOR THE FIGURES FOR THE ASSETS FIGURES FOR THE
PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
GENERAL FUND FIXED ASSETS [See Note 1]
) IRDA Fund [See Note 4] 4,642,112.68 -Gross Block 14,005,986.68
893,243.68 -At beginning of the year 893,243.68 1,808,601.62 -Less:Depreciation 4,212,069.62
- - -Receipts in the year - - 2,833,511.06 Net Block 9,793,917.06
893,243.68 -Balance at end of the year 893,243.68 - -Capital Work-in-Progress -
i) Capital Fund INVESTMENTS [See Note 2]
- -Capital Grants (Method of Valuation - at Cost]
AZ‘?J?Q/CT of ’r?T:'beé;ang of *h? y:or . - i) Securities of Central and State Government
§ . ohue of rixed Assets received as grants - 574,227,907.78 i) Units )
uring fhe year - i) Fixed Deposits with banks 579,253,209.78
i) Surplus and Funds v) Others
-Balance as per last Balance Sheet 349,394,774.31

CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES
[See Note 3]

Deposits with Agencies 582,910.00
Loans & Advances to Staff 4,778,194.88
Amount Due from Insurance Companies 187,192.00
& Others

Other Current Assets 31,946,140.48
Cash & Bank Balances

a) Cash in Hand 19,870.00
b) Bank Balances 4,722,114.57

€00¢-¢00¢
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THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, HYDERABAD
THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT

UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003

FIGURES FOR THE LIABILITIES FIGURES FOR THE FIGURES FOR THE ASSETS FIGURES FOR THE
PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
CURRENT LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS
[See Note 5]
i) SUNDRY CREDITORS:
- -for Capital ltems -
97,281,638.00 -for Other ltems-[Includes amount 103,853,769.45
refundable Rs. 89,351,763 for
change in renewal fees and book
overdraft Rs. 8,267,339.45]
- ii) PROVISIONS:
229,485.00 -Provision for doubtful debts and 187,192.00
advances
- -Provision for depletion in value of investment
- i) OTHER LIABILITIES:
- 1. Unspent Grants
- 2. Interest payable to Government/
Other Loans
- 3. Provident, Retirement & Other
Welfare Funds:
764,552.00 (a) Provident Fund 295,569.00
- (b) Other Welfare Funds -
924,319.00 (c) Retirement Benefit Fund and
Staff Benefit Fund: 1,400,067.00
- 4. Others (Specify)
1,292,305.00 -other Liabilites (TDS) 1,309,305.00
154,543,780.00 -Registration Renewal fee 183,249,504.90
received in Advance
- -Soft Furnishing Recovery 4,440.00
605,324,096.99 631,283,548.77 605,324,096.99 631,283,548.77
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts - Annexure IX
Notes: 1. The information relating fo Fixed Assets is given in Annexure |.
2. The information relating fo Investments is given in Annexure Il.
3. The information relating to Current Assets, Loans and Advances is given in Annexure |Il.
4. Defails of IRDA Fund is given in Annexure IV (Fund includes grants received from Central Government, other organisations and bodies in terms of Section 16 of the Act).
5. Details of Contingent Liabilities is given in Annexure V.
6. All information relating to significant accounting policies and notes forming part of accounts is given in Annexure IX.
7. All annexes to Statement of Affairs and notes/information relating to accounting policy forming part of Accounts.

-Sd- -Sd-
R.K. Sharma N. Rangachary
Chief Accounts Officer Chairman

R. C. Sharma

-Sd-
PA. Balasubramanian

Member
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THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, HYDERABAD

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT
UNAUDITED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

FORM B

FIGURES FOR THE EXPENDITURE FIGURES FOR THE FIGURES FOR THE INCOME FIGURES FOR THE
PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR CURRENT YEAR
(Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.) (Rs.)
2,385,908.00  Payment to Chairperson 1,984,536.00 Grants in Aid
and Members - Eece!ve(gl -
6,036,219.00  Payment to and Provision for members  15,316,110.00.00 ) Lecglyl_o e{ d to Capital Fund .
of Siff [See Note 1] - Loss: Tanslored fo Capitl Fur
21,574,845.77  Establishment E See Note 2 31,103,638.05 egisiration rees
8673,118.0 RZ:T ishment Expenses [ ] 6,837,332.00 1 10,756,68] .50 Agenfs ) o 258,941,963.00
. Research & Consuliation Fees i - gur\ﬁeyors and Insurance intermediaries 2.425.000 06
- Seminars,Conference, Publications, efc. 2,512,886.00 520,000 O(i T;gderF’s v Administrati ’120’000'00
[See Contral ,000. ird Party Administration ,000.
300,000.00 Insurance Companies 250,000.00
Interest [See Note 3]
) ) Renewal Fees
. 234,561,500.00 Insurance Companies 63,665,278.00
1,111,270.00 (D:ep'rfeclli\’rlon* Written OFff 2,576,292.00 717,487.00 Surveyors and Insurance intermediaries 935,587.00
] Loig':n Ssz Z ; /\/rVIrifen Off of Asset PP 420,000.00 Third Party Administration 270,000.00
229,485.00  Provison for doubtful debts and advances 37,900.00 i I?ef:slfrises Fines efc
) Fl?evelc;pmerfEExpegﬂlfure :g?’ggg’ggggg - Seminar, Conferences and Publications etc.  2,574,750.00
40.390 Od Or?hn;?é:ggnseixen fore ’961’268.00 29,452,612.14  Income on Investments - Interest on 43,447,792.48
s L d its with Scheduled Bank
336,916,567.87  Excess of Income Over Expendiutre 80,047,446.43 R Ine’}rssasslfsovr:l Despcos?gu se e
for the year carried down
Interest on advances
16,578.00 i) granted to members of staff for 147,460.00
housing purposes
2,562.00 ii) granted to members of staff for other 39,726.00
i poquposes
- i ers -
- - 220,383.00  Miscellaneous Income 399,900.00
376,967,803.64 373,217,456.48 376,967,803.64 373,217,456.48
- Fee refundable for the year 2000-01 Excess of income over expenditure for 80,047,446.43
; e year brought down
on levy reduction (Note 5) 89,351,763.00 th brought d
Excess of Expenditure over income 9,304,316.57
B — carried to Balance Sheet -
89,351,763.00 89,351,763.00
Significant Accounting Policies and Notes Forming Part of Accounts - Annexure IX
Notes: 1. The information relating o payment to and provision for employees is given in Annexure VI.
2. The information relating to establishment expenses is given in Annexure VII.
3. The information relating to interest amount is given in Annexure VIII.
4. All Answers to Income and Expenditure Account and Notes/Information relating to Significant Accounting Policies from part of accounts.
-Sd- -Sd- -Sd- -Sd-
R.K. Sharma N. Rangachary R. C. Sharma PA. Balasubramanian
Chief Accounts Officer Chairman Member Member
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THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, HYDERABAD

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT
UNAUDITED RECEIPTS AND PAYMENTS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

FORM C

-Brokers
-Insurance Agents
-Others

3.  To Registration Renewal Fees
-Insurance Companies
-Third Party Administrators
-Insurance Surveyors
-Insurance Agents
-Others

To Penalties, Fines from insurers and intermediaries

To Seminar, Conferences etc.

To Income from Investments

To Sale of Investments

To Grants

i) Central Government / State Govt/ Others
i)  Gift and Donations

9. To Loans

10. To Sales of Publication etc
11. To Sale of Assets

12. To interest received on

© N oo

-Deposits
-Advances
-Others

13  To Recoveries from Employees

2,425,000.00

87,498,002.90
270,000.00
935,587.00
264,120,876.00

2,574,750.00

279,057,121.00

40,00.000

31,516,540.00

10.
1.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.

S.No. RECEIPTS AMOUNT (Rs.) S.No. PAYMENTS AMOUNT (Rs.)
1. To Balance brought forward 1. By Research and Consultation Fees -
i) Cash at Bank 5,558,629.27 : o 2512 886.00
i) Cash in hand 18.998.00 2. By Seminars, Conference, Publications etc. ,512,886.
i) Cheques on hand _ 3. By Rent Payments 10,448,965.00
iv) Cash / Cheques in transit 4. By Development Expenditure 100,000,000.00
2. To Re?isfroﬁon Fcees ‘ 250000.00 5. By Promotional Expenditure [Rs. 130,991,004.00 122,723,664,55
-Insurance Companies ,000.
-Third Party Administrators 120,000.00 less book overdraft Rs.8,267,339.45]

By Payment to Chairperson and Members
(i) Pay and Allowances

(i) Other Benefits

(iii) Travelling Expenses

1,943,976.00

195,574.00
7,438,713.00
By Establishment Expenses

(i) Pay and Allowances
(i) Other Benefits

(iii) Travelling Expenses
(iv) Retirement Benefits

10,772,531.00
774,801.00
8,579,101.60

2,624,344.00
By Office Expenses 14,592,094.45
By Interest on

(i) Government Loans
(i) Other Loans -
By Purchase of Assets 9,202,193.00
By Capital Work-in-Progress -

4,544,012.00
284,752,551.00

89,641,595.00

By Advances to staff and others

By Investments

By Repayment of Government Loans/fees (refer note 5)
By Repayment of Other Loans

By Other Expenses 941,168.00

By Balance carried forward

(a) Loans and Advances 1,619,363.00 i) Cash at Bank 4,722,114.57
(b) Interest on Loans and Advances 30,256.00 i) Cash in hand 19,870.00
(c) Misc. . iii) Cheques in hand -
14 To Other Receipts 395,031.00 i) Cash/ Cheques in Transit
676,430,154.17 676,430,154.17
-Sd- -Sd- -Sd- -Sd-
R.K. Sharma N. Rangachary R. C. Sharma PA. Balasubramanian
Chief Accounts Officer Chairman Member Member
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ANNEXURE - |

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003

FIXED ASSETS SCHEDULE
GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK
Cost as on Additions Sold/Disposed As on As on For the Year Adjust- Up to As at As on
Particulars 1.04.2001 During the Off During the 31.03.2002 1.04.2001 ments 31.03.2002 31.03.2002 31.03.2001
Year Year
Office Premises
(a) Land
(b) Building
Residential Flats
(a) Land
(b) Building
Vehicles 194,343.68 480,256.00 97,345.00 577,254.68 87,604.58 105,196.00 50,801.00{ 141,999.58 435,255.10 106,739.10
Equipments 1,419,293.05 1,020,644.00 | 277,866.00 |2,162,071.05 321,536.20 286,302.00 112,089.00 495,749.20 | 1,666,321.85 1,097,756.85
Furniture and
Fixtures 351,911.95 | 3,015,232.00 34,960.00 |3,332,183.95 151,763.98 547,544.00 9,934.00| 689,373.98 | 2,642,809.97 200,147.97
Computers 2,676,564.00 | 5,257,913.00 7,934,477.00 |1,247,696.86 | 1,637,250.00 2,884,946.86 | 5,049,530.14 1,428,867.14
Total 4,642,112.68 9,774,045.00 410,171.00 (14,005,986.68 | 1,808,601.62 | 2,576,292.00 (172,824.00 4,212,069.62 | 9,793,917.06 2,833,511.06
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ANNEXURE - 11
THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003

INVESTMENTS
S.No. PARTICULARS Figures for the  Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs.
1 Fixed Deposits with Scheduled Banks 579,253,209.78  574,227,907.78
Name of the Date Amount Rate of | Period Date of Interest
Bank Interest Maturity Accrued

Indian 03-Oct-02 110,209,779.00 | 7.50% 179 03-Oct-05 4,160,072.75
Overseas | 07-Dec-01 300,000.00 | 8.25% 479 07-Dec-04 33,950.06
Bank, 26-Dec-01 50,000,000.00 | 8.50% 460 26-Dec-04 5,591,949 .45
New 27-Dec-01 44,000,000.00 | 8.50% 459 27-Dec-04 4,909,536.22
Delhi 01-Jan-02 50,000,000.00 | 8.50% 454 01-Jan-05 5,514,628.82
01-Jan-02 50,000.00 | 8.25% 454 01-Jan-05 5,345.78
29-Dec-01 42,357,557.00 | 8.50% 457 29-Dec-04 4,704,362.78
09-Jan-02 326,807.00 | 8.25% 446 09-Jan-05 - 34,299.56
24-Jan-02 325,260.00 | 8.25% 431 24-Jan-05 32,940.16
297,569,403.00 24,987,085.57
Indian 03-Sep-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 209 03-Sep-05 43,506.97
Overseas 03-Sep-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 209 03-Sep-05 43,506.97
Bank, 03-Sep-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 209 03-Sep-05 43,506.97
Hyderabad| 03-Sep-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 209 03-Sep-05 43,506.97
03-Sep-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 209 03-Sep-05 43,506.97
17-Sep-02 5,000,000.00 | 7.50% 195 17-Sep-05 202,611.37
22-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 221 22-Aug-05 46,058.49
22-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 221 22-Aug-05 46,058.49
22-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 221 22-Aug-05 46,058.49
22-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 221 22-Aug-05 46,058.49
22-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 221 22-Aug-05 46,058.49
14-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 229 13-Aug-05 45,845.17
14-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 229 13-Aug-05 45,845.17
14-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 229 13-Aug-05 45,845.17
14-Aug-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 229 13-Aug-05 45,845.17
25-Oct-02 5,000,000.00 | 7.25% 157 25-Oct-05 157,104.33
25-Oct-02 1,975,000.00 | 7.00% 157 24-Oct-03 59,900.83
28-Oct-02 3,000,000.00 | 6.50% 154 28-Oct-05 82,816.65
10-Dec-02 7,500,000.00 | 6.50% 11 09-Dec-05 148,702.96
13-Mar-03 2,500,000.00 | 6.25% 18 12-Mar-04 7,705.48
15-Jan-03 7,500,000.00 03-Apr-03 63,500.00
46,475,000.00 1,353,549.58
HDFC 19-Dec-02 27,423,608.67 | 6.25% 102 19-Jan-04 479,842.39
Bank 01-Dec-02 4,466,291.84 | 6.25% 120 02-Jun-03 92,903.26
11-Dec-02 1,674,859.42 6.50% 110 11-Jan-04 32,904.50
16-Dec-02 1,116,572.95 | 6.50% 105 16-Jan-04 20,926.19
30-Dec-02 1,116,816.17 6.25% 91 31-Jan-04 17,599.57
05-Dec-02 1,102,750.80 | 6.50% 116 05-Jan-04 22,861.95
08-Dec-02 1,102,750.80 | 6.50% 113 08-Jan-04 22,263.36

413



3ﬁ alfddes Rard
rd ANNUAL REPORT
2002-2003

S.No. PARTICULARS

Figures for the
Current Year

Figures for the
Previous Year

Rs. Rs.
Name of the Date Amount Rate of | Period Date of Interest
Bank Interest Maturity Accrued

10-Dec-02 1,102,750.80 | 6.50% 111 10-Jan-04 22,063.84

22-Dec-02 1,102,750.80 | 6.25% 99 22-Jan-04 18,911.82

03-Mar-03 1,340,974.34 | 5.75% 28 04-Sep-03 5,703.73

03-Mar-03 1,331,232.62 | 5.75% 28 04-Sep-03 5,872.01

04-Nov-02 378,076.24 | 6.75% 147 05-May-03 10,414.51

27-Oct-02 10,883,883.19 | 6.00% 155 28-Apr-03 279,011.18

09-Nov-02 54,010.90 | 6.25% 142 10-May-03 1,320.56

15-Nov-02 5,793,549.95 | 6.25% 136 16-May-03 136,613.60

29-Nov-02 54,010.92 6.25% 122 30-May-03 1,142.08

06-Dec-02 864,185.75 | 6.00% 115 07-Jun-03 16,389.20

01-Dec-02 5,414,555.60 | 6.25% 120 02-Jun-03 111,686.64

16-Dec-02 540,116.00 | 6.00% 105 17-Jun-03 9,342.25

17-Dec-02 5,414,533.17 | 6.00% 104 18-Jun-03 92,750.62

21-Dec-02 324,069.64 | 6.00% 100 22-Jun-03 5,335.05

28-Dec-02 54,011.61 7.50% 93 29-Jun-03 826.11

14-Jan-03 432,087.16 | 6.00% 76 15-Jul-03 5,398.13

17-Jan-03 540,108.95 | 6.00% 73 18-Jul-03 6,481.31

26-Jan-03 135,027.25 | 5.75% 64 27-Jul-03 1,361.37

01-Feb-03 5,387,662.98 | 5.75% 58 02-Aug-03 50,075.74

08-Feb-03 269,383.13 | 5.75% 51 09-Aug-03 2,164.29

10-Feb-03 323,259.75 | 5.75% 49 11-Aug-03 2,495.30

16-Feb-03 269,383.13 | 5.75% 43 17-Aug-03 1,824.79

20-Feb-03 5,394,250.70 | 5.75% 39 21-Aug-03 41,639.18

03-Mar-03 5,388,089.66 | 5.75% 28 04-Sep-03 23,766.64

02-Mar-03 215,523.61 5.75% 29 03-Sep-03 950.67

15-Mar-03 5,381,489.01 5.75% 16 16-Sep-03 13,564.30

13-Mar-03 591,964.87 | 5.75% 18 14-Sep-03 1,678.58

15-Oct-02 2,081,479.66 | 6.75% 167 15-Apr-03 65,166.17

16-Oct-02 624,443.90 | 6.75% 166 17-Apr-03 19,314.96

20-Oct-02 5,203,699.15 | 6.75% 162 20-Apr-03 157,043.22

30-Oct-02 570,993.22 | 6.75% 152 01-May-03 16,158.18

05-Jan-03 5,253,300.61 6.00% 85 06-Jul-03 73,402.28

07-Jan-03 155,756.84 | 6.00% 83 08-Jul-03 2,125.12

13-Jan-03 934,541.02 | 6.00% 77 14-Jul-03 11,828.98

12-Sep-02 550,000.00 | 7.25% 200 13-Sep-03 22,102.33
112,358,806.78 1,925,225.98

ICICI 14-Dec-02 2,450,000.00 | 7.00% 107 14-Dec-05 50,413.21
Bank 20-Dec-02 3,600,000.00 | 6.50% 101 21-Dec-05 64,863.71
26-Dec-02 1,500,000.00 | 6.50% 95 24-Dec-05 25,398.12

31-Dec-02 24,500,000.00 | 7.00% 90 01-Jan-06 427,656.50

18-Jan-03 6,500,000.00 | 6.50% 72 19-Jan-06 83,342.47

30-Jan-03 7,000,000.00 | 6.25% 60 31-Jan-06 71,917.81

19-Feb-03 4,000,000.00 | 6.25% 40 20-Feb-06 26,712.33
49,550,000.00 750,304.15

Bank of 04-Apr-02 5,000,000.00 | 8.00% 361 04-Apr-05 409,833.90
India 05-Jul-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 269 05-Jul-03 56,297.93
05-Jul-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 269 05-Jul-03 56,297.93

05-Jul-02 1,000,000.00 | 7.50% 269 05-Jul-03 56,297.93

14-Sep-02 300,000.00 | 7.00% 198 14-Sep-03 11,516.40

25-Jul-02 5,000,000.00 | 8.00% 249 25-Jul-03 277,811.42

31-Oct-02 4,000,000.00 | 6.50% 151 31-Oct-03 108,250.20
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S.No. PARTICULARS Figures for the  Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
Name of the Date Amount Rate of | Period Date of Interest
Bank Interest Maturity Accrued
27-Nov-02 1,000,000.00 | 6.50% 124 27-Nov-05 22,175.56
26-Dec-02 8,000,000.00 | 6.25% 95 27-Dec-05 130,242.54
26,300,000.00 1,128,723.80
Canara 11-Oct-02 2,500,000.00 | 7.75% 171 11-Oct-05 91,589.72
Bank 11-Oct-02 2,500,000.00 | 7.75% 171 11-Oct-05 91,590.00
15-Nov-02 2,000,000.00 | 7.00% 136 15-Nov-05 52,462.15
15-Nov-02 1,500,000.00 | 7.00% 136 15-Nov-05 39,346.62
15-Nov-02 1,500,000.00 | 7.00% 136 15-Nov-05 39,346.62
18-Dec-02 6,000,000.00 | 6.75% 103 18-Dec-05 114,527.75
30-Dec-02 5,000,000.00 | 6.75% 91 30-Dec-05 85,099.27
15-Jan-03 26,000,000.00 | 6.50% 75 14-Jan-06 347,260.27
47,000,000.00 861,222.40
2 Others
() Quoted- Cost and Market Value Nil Nil
b)  Unquoted Nil Nil
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ANNEXURE - Il

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003
CURRENT ASSETS, LOANS AND ADVANCES

PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
DEPOSITS
For Premises 525,750.00 22,500.00
- with Others - MTNL 33,760.00 35,340.00
- with Electricity 19,400.00 -
- For Fuel 4,000.00
TOTAL 582,910.00 57,840.00
LOANS & ADVANCES TO STAFF
- Housing Loan to Staff 2,654,400.00 1,209,600.00
- Loans to Staff for other purposes 1,622,057.88 756,092.88
- Other Advances - Festival 141,283.00 56,261.00
- Others - Advance for Travel 75,732.00 -
- Interest Recoverable 176,070.00
- Advance - others 108,652.00
TOTAL 4,778,194.88 2,021,953.88

AMOUNTS DUE FROM INSURANCE COMPANIES & OTHERS
- Insurance Companies-{Indicates the amount due from State

Insurance Companies| 149,292.00 229,485.00
- Agents - [Indicates the amount of expired cheques in hand
received from agents earlier] 37,900.00 343,813.00
TOTAL 187,192.00 573,298.00
OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
- Expense Recoverable 230.00 425.00
- Prepaid Expenses 236,732.00 346,195.00
- Interest Accrued but not due - Bank deposits 31,006,111.48 19,100,399.00
- Interest Accrued but not due - Staff Loans - 19,140.00
- Advances on Capital Account - [For software development] 525,000.00 565,800.00
- Advance to M/s Tarriff Advisory Committee 178,067.00 -
TOTAL 31,946,140.48 20,031,959.00
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 19,870.00 18,998.00
- Cheques in hand - _
- Cash/ Cheque in transit - -
- Balances with Scheduled Banks
(a) In Current Account 4,722,114.57 5,558,629.27
(b) on Deposit Account - _
TOTAL 4,741,984.57 5,577,627.27

- Balance with Non Scheduled Bank
(a) In Current Account
(b) In Deposit Account

TOTAL
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ANNEXURE - IV

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ATTACHED
TO AND FORMING PART OF UNAUDITED BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003

PARTICULARS

Figures for the
Current Year
Rs.

Figures for the
Previous Year
Rs.

Grant from Government of India

ANNEXURE -V

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2003

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

PARTICULARS

Figures for the
Current Year
Rs.

Figures for the
Previous Year
Rs.

ANNEXURE - VI

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND

ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF UNAUDITED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003
PAYMENT TO AND PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES

PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.

i) Salaries, Allowances, Wages and Bonus 10,906,438.00 4,833,336.00
i) Bonus - -
iii)  Contribution to Provident Fund, etc.

[including contribution to superannuation

fund of Rs 1,673,413.00] 2,805,280.00 298,737.00
iv)  Gratuity 267,070.00 210,148.00
v)  Staff Welfare Expenses 240,460.00 142,197.00
vi)  Others

-Book Grant - -

-Leave Travel Concession 113,710.00 14,045.00

-Insurance - -

-Canteen Expenses

-Monetary Award - Studies - -

-Contribution to Group Insurance Scheme 66,555.00 21,770.00

-Reimbursement of expenses incurred by Staff 366,720.00 169,426.00

-Leave Salary 549,877.00 346,560.00

TOTAL

15,316,110.00

6,036,219.00
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ANNEXURE - ViI

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF UNAUDITED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

ESTABLISHMENT EXPENSES

PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
Repairs & Maintenance of Buildings & Premises 1,691,225.00 2,267,704.00
House Keeping - Office Maintenance 1,280,620.00 825,542.00
Repairs & Maintenance of Equipments - -
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 179,319.00 23,075.00
Electricity & water Expenses 687,314.00 803,258.00
Insurance Expenses 81,030.00 15,300.00
Rates and Taxes - -
Printing and Stationery 1,642,539.00 690,481.00
Books/Journals etc. 99,644.00 37,076.00
Postage, Telegraphs, Telephones, etc. 1,755,004.45 1,210,860.27
Travelling and Conveyance Inland 8,354,827.60 4,945,309.00
Travel - Foreign 6,594,150.00 5,367,184.00
Legal and Professional charges 3,797,364.00 1,440,279.00
Education/Training/R&D/Grievances Redressal Expenses - -
Audit Fees 89,450.00 99,520.00
Software - -
Publicity & Advertisement 1,295,406.00 2,062,541.00
Recruitment - R
Expenses of Meetings of Authority & Advisory Committee & Other
meeting expenses including daily allowances paid
to the members of the Committee 880,528.00 195,685.00
Membership and Subscription 1,069,338.00 415,835.50
Security Services 381,790.00 225,879.00
Web Portal Development Expenses 509,508.00 564,300.00
Canteen Expenses 320,825.00 143,523.00
Car Repair and Maintenance Expenses 91,916.00 52,560.00
Other Expenses 301,840.00 188,934.00
TOTAL 31,103,638.05 21,574,845.77

ANNEXURE - VilI

THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND
ATTACHED TO AND FORMING PART OF UNAUDITED INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2003

INTEREST
PARTICULARS Figures for the Figures for the
Current Year Previous Year
Rs. Rs.
Government
Banks
Others
TOTAL
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ANNEXURE - IX
THE INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY FUND ACCOUNT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

[Unless otherwise specified, all amounts are in rupees]

BACKGROUND

INSURANCE REGULATORY AND DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY (The Authority) was established
by an Act of Parliament-Insurance Regulatory & Development Authority Act, 1999 (Act)- and was constituted
on April 19, 2000 by a notification issued in the Gazette of India. The Authority was established with
a view to protecting the interests of the holders of insurance policies, to regulate, promote and ensure
orderly growth of the insurance industry and for matters connected therewith or incidental thereto, issue
to the applicant a certificate of registration, renew, modify, withdraw, suspend or cancel registration,
and levy fees and other charges for carrying out the purposes of the Act. The Authority, in terms of
section 13 of the Act has been vested with the assets and liabilities of the Interim Insurance Regulatory
Authority as are available on the appointed day i.e. April 19, 2000. In terms of section 16 of the
Act a fund shall be constituted namely “The Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Fund”
[Fund]. The Fund shall constitute of all Government grants, fees and charges received by the Authority,
all sums received by the Authority from such other source as may be decided upon by the Central
Government and the percentage of prescribed premium income received from the insurer. The Fund
shall be applied for meeting the salaries, allowances and other remuneration of the members, officers
and other employees of the Authority and the other expenses of the Authority in connection with discharge
of its functions and for the purposes of the Act.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention, on the accrual basis of
accounting save for revenue recognition on cash basis as explained hereunder, and in accordance
with the applicable standards on accounting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
The significant accounting policies are as follows:

(a) Fixed assets and depreciation

Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation on fixed assets is provided
pro-rata to the period of use of on reducing balance method using rates determined based on
the rates specified in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. Assets costing less than 5,000
have been depreciated 100% in the year of purchase unless the assets constitutes more than
10% of the respective block, in which case the assets is depreciated at the rates specified in
the said Schedule XIV.

®
(b) Investments I
Investments of the nature of fixed deposits with banks are stated at cost. I
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() Revenues
()  Registration Fees

(a) Received from insurer seeking for the first time, registration for carrying on any class
of insurance business in India, are treated as income of the year of receipt.

(b) Received in advance from existing insurers for renewal of registration already granted
are treated as income of the year to which they relate.

(i) License Fees

License fees received from insurance agents, surveyors, brokers and other insurance intermediaries
are treated as income of the year in which it is received. License issued to insurance agents,
surveyors, brokers and other insurance intermediaries are current for those years from date
of issue and subject to renewal at the end of their currency. It is not practicable to distribute
the License fees over the years to which they relate.

(i) Grant from Ministry of Finance, Government of India
Initial Grant received has been treated as income of the year in which it is received.

(d) Foreign Currency transaction
Non-monetary foreign currency transactions are recorded at rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. Monetary foreign currency assets and liabilities are translated into rupees
at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. The differences in translation of
foreign currency liabilities related to the acquisition of fixed assets are adjusted in the carrying
value of fixed assets. Other translation differences are reflected in the Income and Expenditure
Account.

(¢) Web Portal Development and Maintenance
Expenses incurred on Web Portal Development and Maintenance is charged to the Income and
Expenditure Account in the year of incurrence.

() Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees comprise contribution to provident fund, gratuity fund, superannuation
fund and provision of leave encashment, which are provided in accordance with the Regulations
made under the Act.

Leave encashment is provided for at the current encashable salary for the entire unavailed leave
balances.

The Authority contributes to IRDA Employees Fund and IRDA Superannuation Fund trust.

The liability for gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuation, in accordance with gratuity
scheme framed by the Authority.

INCOME-TAX
No income tax provision has been made in view of income of the Authority being exempt under section
10 (23BBE) of the Income tax Act, 1961.

EMPLOYEES PROVIDENT FUND AND SUPERANNUATION FUND

The Authority during the year established two trusts with effect from April19, 2000 styled as “IRDA
Employees Provident Fund” and “IRDA Superannuation Fund” for the benefit of its officers and other
employees. The aggregate contribution by the Authority and the employees towards Provident Fund

i
do
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including the differential amount at enhanced rate of 12% [1,75,092], lying inter-alia as earmarked
fixed deposits has been remitted to the trust. In addition, the Authority contributed a sum of 1,673,413
towards Superannuation liability for the period April 19, 2000 till March 31, 2003 [including 642,279
for the period April 19, 2000 till March 31, 2002]

REGISTRATION/RENEWAL FEES

(A) In pursuance of Authority’s decision to scale down the levy of renewal fees for registration of
the insurers to 0.1% of the gross premium from 0.2% of the gross premium, retrospectively for
the financial years with effect from April 01, 2001, the income for the year has been accordingly
accounted for. Also, an amount of 89,351,763 earlier accounted for as income in the year
2001-02 has been provided and shown as deduction from the excess of income over expenditure
for the year and the resulting excess of expenditure over income carried to Balance Sheet.

(B) The renewal fees from State Insurance agencies have not been accounted for in the absence
of information of gross insurance premium.

(C) In the absence of agent wise accounting of license fee, the amount deposited in excess of the
recoverable license fee of 135,850 [based on licenses issued during the year] has been treated
as license fee income.

DEPOSIT OF FUNDS OF THE AUTHORITY INTO PUBLIC ACCOUNT OF INDIA

The Authority has received a letter from Ministry of Finance, Department of Economic Affairs dated
July 17, 2002 directing the Authority to deposit the moneys so far collected by the Authority in the
Public Account of India as non-interest bearing account and allowing the Authority to withdraw a specified
amount in the beginning of each year from the said Public Account for meeting its expenditure. The
Authority is seeking review of the direction received, as in its view the funds raised by it from the
insurers and the intermediaries do not have the character of Government Revenue and cannot form
part of the Public Fund of India, which position is in accord with the legal opinion obtained by the
Authority. The Authority is pursuing the issue with the Government of India and the matter is pending
resolution.

HEADQUARTERS OF THE AUTHORITY

The Authority, in pursuance of the decision taken by the Government of India in November, 2001
to shift the Headquarters of the Authority from New Delhi to Hyderabad, shifted the actuarial department
in April, 2002 and the other departments in August 2002. The office of the Authority is located in
Parisrama Bhavanam where a portion of the third floor has been given to it free of rent by Andhra
Pradesh Industrial Development Corporation Limited [APIDC].

The Government of Andhra Pradesh through A.P Industrial Infrastructure Corporation Limited [APIDC]
has allotted a plot of five acre land in the financial district at Nanakramguda Village, Serilingampally
Mandal, RR Distrcit, Hyderabad free of cost, possession whereof is yet to be taken.

PROMOTIONAL EXPENDITURE

i
The Authority caused through government media a special campaign for the promotion of insurance M
awareness, education and for the general development at a cost of 120,115,000.
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CONTRIBUTION TO INSTITUTE OF INSURANCE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Authority has jointly promoted the setting up of the Institute of Insurance and Risk Management
[the Institute], which will carry out research on insurance and risk management with the Government
of Andhra Pradesh, with the latter contributing by provision of the land for the Institute. The Institute
will function as a research arm of the Authority. The Authority during the year contributed a sum of
10,000,000 for meeting the recurring costs for conducting seminars efc. and included under promotional
expenditure. The Authority has also contributed 100,000,000 in November 2002 to constitute an
endowment for 80,000,000 and the balance to meet for construction of building and infrastructure
of the Institute’s premises and charged as Development Expenditure. An endowment deed has since
been signed between the parties and the trustees to the endowment deed have been nominated.

OPERATING LEASES

There are no non-cancelable lease arrangements. The lease payments are made in accordance with
lease agreements.

The Authority is in occupation of premises at Hyderabad at free of rent but is obliged to hand over
the premises on a “as is where is basis” to Andhra Pradesh Industrial Development Corporation Limited
upon vacation. The lease payments in respect of other premises recognised in the income and expenditure

account is 6,837,332 [Previous year 8,673,118].

ADVANCE FOR SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

The Authority during the year 2001-02 paid a sum of 525,000 being 30% of agreed sum of 1,750,000
for developing a computerised system. Pending, the complete development of compatible computerised
system for the monitoring of insurers, neither adjustment of above advance nor any further provision
during the year has been made.

PRIOR YEAR COMPARATIVES

Previous year figures have been regrouped, wherever considered necessary to make them comparable
with the current year’s figures.
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S ¥ qd g faeme s wdere @i @i
fruierl ot ygfa 9 eme Ut =i o, s foar =0
fawar off| wiferertor it ved W werh! 3R wif fefent
1 R0 fRaT T oMl TE ufeheudt # TR o f
3T R YA B MR R FHHAS TRE W fHar
TR RO 2 Gl Rl SH SR T 31 e
3R gt {fq o Tan w0 o el ST e @ik
g fuel & fau e gwm w1 gadl @ w6t
STMELTRT St THE HH & fGar ¥ = sfean wwany
#.fa & @ ooy f ww Yl wt sT=e &
AT WHR | TH gfufa o1 T fwen om gfafa 3
o e 3 § B WHR, WIS &P 3@ T w5
vereR ¥ fopr wderehi 3R i fulenl & wh weom
Hee fepan W, S ARG SOt wfee HeE 3R
T @ famuiia IR w@fatefag e @ fHem
TN 8 T TR T ® R g% deem et gse
% fou 9w oIk wee wenfud oam, qdensti
3R Gfgdl 1 Yo Haml YR W Wfeertor e &
G Ham R 3Ha Fiwasti & qHAfdchT & STMER
W HEIF & KA 2fad TS w1 fafteea
o Gt @ fawiel adtanea )
Eﬁwmqﬁl

s %5 aul o, fauuey s ST & IJART &
Y SHiheh! T iR W i g8 B SR g
TH TH ®Y W GWE SR T, S fava R o smmewie
1, Sfew & 99g goa feion, fam =ifs i) e
A IR SR FHH W TH Jaanm Ssdr YgH
Bl U offaftem, @ ofv W eifiema gHfdee &
e o farr gon &, oo a3 TH-gW &

FEf & ok iR 3§ W fewfr &4 # ww
e gRuet 1 fasmfaa fean 1 T8 oFeRR 3=
gfeh HIFeh! ol TATTT | TSR hal| AR SR
Gt 3 ot g & o & fag sir feenfes feoor
W Hh HRR 1 W0 Hd & Y9 fhu ¥
faurdt &= o, af #1 S IRfefd yeH s e
T faeges W faem fran 1 e ©) Wit 3 9ed gt
I fadas & wed Wt depr-fewfori 9=
e € 2R =% emen @t S ® T fadws W vty &
fo=mR foan <@

T o Teel IRY A T GER Ufoha o |5 Ui
W@ | SR wt ufwmar | wfaaiimEr 1 sgen fie
T, Wedh H Afud TAE IU HAC MW E, S
el & fou Fe= "Rt @R S oWy §U ¥,
UM | qeqT H TR S ¥, T AR ugw & e
U S 1 e faggd gsm ?, sweew weer iR
e & Tt STEvdshal & o da Suesd i
% fou omeg gU € R S @t oemdshdl & ufd
Sl sal &1 qefy, e1eft deh st SucTfeerEl hl S
&9 w3 W GEUR @M & fau @it s S ay
avshdl ¢, e for Tl sl S 39 R S
Ft TE T gtz 2 T fae e § e T
B S =)

faurit " &1 qAfdais ¢

IO gRI, 9RA & fafa et =1 s eifafrem,
1938 @l QAR HE H1 FRE fFu = =it s
UM | =y g8 §) faf st g s wwet
T T o & W W gel § SR 3@ W e
feofor o o g8 ¥, o9 R IR SERT HT 3™
o R AYE 0 S B Tl fHertt o s el
fauri &1 o & Twa fufm W dieaes fee
wu, foaw faured il 9ia SR & 99 8 i
=T 3T % g wHeer iR faw & fag fafemes
T wifeReer | fAfead il

fafa s i fawRel gera: sfafaw sfafem =
Iusen ot amn Afaftem, 1938 (sifufrm) W gfmfaa
FH, T8 f faumi &t sgaar 9 o= S 9, S|
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TN Y TG STERTRA i T FH & fau stfafw=m
% SusEl i Heifua oI stEed &; fedt fafere
fara/aw o defea fafe= sqael 1, s sifafm =t
f-fi amet o sfdafde € TF 9o Sus W W
I SM; HIq9 GRS Ht, ITH ST hl GHG
F 3R 3% 3R stfusr fafafde qen o M & fog
YA HEA BT q Hiaqd 71 6l o foeme faum
H gurR & yiew ® uRenfoq s emfua €,
R/ g e et gg W St 2
AR & Tk T FereRrad wEe oF @ iR sifufm
% 1 SR fHy S o gHiAT IR il #
T QY W T SEvThal W o v, faed e
fafrm 3 § v sttt fraRo @ greE
EXIES ieco

Mt ik M2AR® Tl &t g
AT G WHUROT SW hReER W fREr sifew
foredt @t etuEn et & Sifewi & aed gEdfed i
M Aol <, wEEl, v aen el s el eIk
fafrafua w0 & foau s sifufem, 1938 &1 weme
FH (M, 1969 T TuEl) SR Temeswr afufa ()
T T T TE 2| TIRERTOT BT 3Temel HuHt B 9o
Y T TAHE H ATE HERO S| &N & Hiaad
fafafése wiel @t e SAE genfaa s @ 81 FEm
A HEN & 3 G @ W-2RF ¢ 1 7t X,
fruftor iR freAire <9 &% TR etaEnfia &t Wit Bl
I-2R% Sl ol W SR §RI WIHhIol sl Hig
3N ST gfwen & o wiRd fea s g1 fae
a 2002-03 & fAu S g YA SiESl B
FTER IR-SHe @ ¥ Fifea v e W |
I-fF FHRER 1 HW 25 yfawE 2

IAT | SHERwie g S | e IR R & Soettd
% RO’ fhu T Amel i dEd gU T ud 9% © R
TR W 36 HEEN hl Uk & fou T-<ied &
HREAR 1 CNF TG T Toh G9ed STER & RE
UG 3 W, TH SYDST &t go |, et i
B G €, S SUNRS @t ¥el STavghdet st

ofit R, o Sifemt %1 yei e © 3R fe forg
T i e it 3Tden R © 7 o ER it oifd,
o forg wifen srifaa =it @1 oRw, wieifimr st
9y H FH HW €, O B S oK, S
SUHIFTST T SN SAARIHRAA Ui SR
W U o €, IR SR § el b1 I 3
gl o7 ® g ol it wifd & weayd Re wura
H T TR TR A IR H G FER0 w
g el 3R WiHEdl % stiwel &l ST wH
g e

yfea afRkfefai o s SeienTess WHtaar ST
H e el Ig A e W "ehar § R weemn
gfafg 3 o ufeafien o gagq ww ein feea
HRT | GUR 0 & fow oReE *1 % = q diffa
WA % Sevd § Wfasiiel &9 9 SRe | & @t
fower & ot A T & |, TReH ditaa |
3TN, 2002 | WX Sl & Haie | Tfad fohan T o,
T Hioant ffrad fada sieet & e "iet & &
= &fd FHRER o, e & foe g 9= & 9 e
T H ht TGRS H R

ate, 2005 9@ WX = &ffa 9 ¥ RNE wha wE &
fafeea & TuR R S TE W & & 1Ay ot T
O wT steEear W s §fufd w1 wed R T g,
food o= & w9 °, Fit ol ufsds et &
sraehsiel o R fafmiaet qun qiers W 9
giafafy fog 7 €, s Wi ug ofa § SRe gwra e
% fu AU S At WA TR 3N Th 3T
TEEUl T W, WTEehI GRI SH.CEH. TEST i TeAem
4 nfsq favvm wfufa 3 =€ fawie =t ¢ & ei«,
2006 % UYEE I a9 ot @y & fou yg Afewm
THfeem $1ER R R® T 1 Tae § o g 9o
I 1 oK | o T 9l & Y SR i
foderyul freTish SIaRRl 1 ST9AFT ERW, S et
Y qehteht emare W gfg e B iR susEe
w39 GAfad ®EE & U S SFFT SR, S
Re gur e 9 SRt e g
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T 9aThR SIE—WIET oM ¢

WX I Afafem, 1988 + SUSEN & AT ARG
ggohi R =@ ot T o @ & fow dew
YRR Wi W A g1 AfufEm % Sysey eruen
FHW § o fordt weeier A § Yo A I &
MU UehR Sfed & Ufd S| g1 S1fetl 3 Suse
% W WA 9 ¥ TR a9 & =ce/mfas it faxia
feafd & arenR ot siweRwien g &fad & W
TF Alalker a3 g A= & o 147 faa =)
G stfuehferd et ©1 SRl e UerRR Y Eut
afa st oiea o Gftd §, ot 78 fhdt wiet gee
% R =afe &l dE vereR I =i & ey |
TG B e 7 W aed gEeel & uel o
YR & T<E W 3T/ T AU | Faled e
4 TH HHG W U8 TR gy fRa ® fe owen e
S €9 W TG fha S Aifeq 7 fF S 9
Fiifer foredt e 2w o fafa =it gfic o Sem &R o
T ¢ sdere & g o, s sam & fau s
wfomm HeeqUl ¥ wEifE aw fada w1 #t ufagfd &
IR dwpd T & Gew W TR e & wfew w:i
A HE & MR fasia & foes B Aol
TN WA FRER & SAHE Y T8 Ydl =il ¢ & SWE
<@l 1 ATk AT WER geehR <l & geed ' § 8iR
TE Y I HT HA ¢ g9 39 fafe we §, S
e Y 9 i TerEdn 7, Wiwem #it S  ufd &
fau ok fashedl &1 g o W ¥ iR wedem @t
T R

TRSA dfafd 3 "t feed & fafis weqet @t
e A U A WO IR I R oft fomr
e ¥ IR =% fowiie #t ® % dow vesr faea
S FREAX F FHAA fHa1 ¢ iR 3 wReR & fow
Uk H dfedl W gUs oRel W@ WY, i 399
WO ULIPR TR Ht ASEHRAT I ST H
fageioor g#t sl | 3, WHER H "X AW
eI o foTT e et SIfer Y s SeEdl
e w6 & fau g, faug fF 39w e fEn

S Heh, favly ®9 I S dh EU geenr ffiem SRw
q g §, fome wfa st o1 i st @)

i &7 °§ wWa: fafams 93+ 958
EXGIK

favg W o fafame 9, fafafa sifaal ® fiw
frm s & fo o s % fou emeR ¥ few
qfafa, stae dadten wfufd, 9o Fr cemders,
9o faffie smafa & fau fgw feanr w0 8, +F
el i Toa: fafmes 93 & 3¢ FW & fau
fafea foran T %1 fafames =, faftEmes 7 & eefq
3k 3R Sfad Yew wE T gHaT & Y " 9l
ZER fafams it o9aR & ®9 W 6" & St
kT 1 3¢ H U, TEH Yo R i T
H GHF o Fhd ¢l TE SN & T I oF
T 3TN i WS A1 Tehell § IR WeF &1 Terd SR
AR ! THIG H Gehdl B ARG S| g9 iR
S e Je SR S UResl 1 we, 2001 U
TR e T o iR ot T Wew % ®9 W S
% e €1 3 g9 ffe=d €9 9 I favg & egwat
3R Sod famfaq waiww JeRR ¥ i@ odt €1 sam
e, 3Tfafiad Yehed oY STAERUN i SARY HH, IR
% e fRIa & g oH & foe qa aifers 5m,
R SEw Feier Joret faspfad & iR ook 3R
% fau gaiv dfedr fEd e S8 e W W "t
1 Thd ¥ BTl 39 faun U 9 7ot it E €, T
31eft oft sigd B o 1 kT 71 T fafie Sae
¥, AT oA HT 7 HA STHT kIl &THAT W GER
F, g Hfae Taww HeeRr ff aH % faw, g
T stfawner & fou = fafwa & wg-wy afa
TR TR O FaRuel g 3= & gl 2

RO i S AR GHE W S g el i
Hafia iR fafmfud w6 % @ 9w ™ 8 %
giafeaa w0 & fau fw s waerafaal w1 s dees
St &fq | foean s €, fo99 foe fafv= qorenfal &
fedi =t T&m &t W 9, TH AR Hiear fafed v w©
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2l 39 YHR FHEER & HEAl W HRGET St SO
T Sifafierd, wfer s SEnT famita o %1 T 9 R,
TR 5 R RSd o den RaE gfagfa @ik
fafw= ar & Ty faxita weafial o arafas Wi
% T o3 wenfud foran 1 39 99 &1 oH o0 g9T H
3R TolEE T W H eI B

IS f¥TehTad IHIETE gUTe

S SR b Wier R TS wufEl & oo W 9, SHan
¥ o el & i Seedl §g W ® SR ¥
S-3R W 394 Rl o 7 9w §1 T8 S
s Wewl % fou € g e R, efug o sHar %
faq fF g € oiR Sudiem eifveR W feAifea
Toled & ® T

iferatemenl &t Rerd & Twae & fau fagmm a3
= fafe= wa Suesy wuar ¥, s1oiq swmmwien @
Mafer RThEd qWaE Yohss; ST =Eerd, S
IR el 1 gHE w % foT A9 whE goet,
% @y, AR fafae = s@e afaite 20 @ s9g
Th & Jral o fore forehral st foit T wen | wEadt
FE F fou Sw HeeTw T %1 dF o €1 Wit 3
off wiferdomerl & fedi it 8 A & fa=m 9, oI
Wt Ted W Ut & fedl ot wen & fag
ferfea fafomi & TWHR 93 & ®9 | Fialts Susier
St wehiss w1 e fran ®1 Tufy fafew <@l w
FEER i & ferg wiswan sifurfo # € iR wes
TRl i, qferEterenl oY fepral olw wl % <@
e & fore wgfed ufswraneti o, TREiga sturhiet
TR fara @it T & et & T gart Sues
U & FERW | AT & T HAF hl 9F A=
% fau wenfyq fean T 81 Y w1 wifeierenl %
e 31 @ guEeT i iR S| & ol Tl W %
ol o S eTemed Hafie & R H wWed & fau
T foman TN €)1 SRl § UE S Y W ©
fF 9 7 aa da & Tfud "ol S 90 w3, g
TEE TEY SR ifq <Eaest SH W eTafed wehed ot
|

et e gife=a & =ea © fo e g
fore T =R QR foRT W) TRl 9% ool HET SEvEs
§ fF freine geRl it TurEm siErewiet i S
TAE e | oot oF § T\ SEna

fafa smam, s &w sEm % fau feureh @ &
el % foru sl 2 @ 2, T gl famfu
TorhrIa e G &t T & o fafi= weget W
o o @1 %, o siata e gwem Wit
(SWSTRW) T TS, AfqehRHT AT, S qearaal
3R sifiyrmieti & forg wnfed saenfa qen Squfed &
% fau wifteror gr1 =mafolm sifuefel o fafaa
3R erdiedl o1 S9el S & for s et saferenon
(STEES) T TAOT q AR & fafe=al & favs
eI =AEerd | HIA e ferar s o €1 famm
JoTet W WA w2 W @d ge fafv= fasmedl wit
AR T 9T H wfud wA U ST R GY e
TRl faveiyur &t wHten fhu WM #t STavIshd Rt
Iy, I8 Sooierta & for R gHeE gomett st
ATl 1 PR geaiehd fohy S St STravaehd 2T,
TRt Tt sreiereren |, el Weehi it STRT o I &
S % BEE & YER & fau fawrg @R
&1 ST TG

T 2002 W W AfufEm | GIieA v % WS U
SEYT o, ST & W Tehrl e & YaRT i Rl
AT qen fm erfirerwien @R ST <! il "
1, 9 St O % faeRE @1 HaH g el &
Tgd & WR W g T 39 ey W 3T URall % i
S st W IR i &5 % ufd seEd
feehford e IR W & T 1 YER HE OO R
IR0 5 W & SR H SNshdl 34 i & fag
TOR AR % W ¥ T fean fed o Eeh W
e 0 W K 91 & T G Srlsw| o €1 5o
arfafed <ot wmwieti & SHER TS 6 Wem 9 oft TR
YER S ot =T TR ATl S Ugel T Sevd o,
WM F IS At & fEA-wfafeT & S ® s &
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e & o 0 iR W & 39 SR ° SRskhd 9gH 6
Tg fFE YRR T ufgs H Qad w T 2| T8
Tel Y SENT I %W UgH H @d g B T D
Afvaer &M TN W UG 1 S 0.41 SfovE @
SIS & a9 & ®9 ® W &, S 2.71 ¥faw
3R faermasiict <o Y ot W 9Rd W Wfq =Afa s

WiHTw, 7 11.5 WAt SR W HhT w1 B 9Rd
favar & 230 a1 S| O €, T il S €
o< fagwqol ®9 ¥ I 9H F STavThd T S
T AR UgT W JoIeHE TS ke g {ue
1 9RT € (AR 9()) 3R (i) =), ot & 1999-2000
¥ 2002- 03%@%@%@&@?%%&6@
TEE AR T & Fiferdig e fie T f

(FE Fo W)
aRd W W ude iR sfim ugd  Het enwe
dm e (vf0 e difem,
sufd F@ dm e a"]m (S = yfeer

i SHE S s i 9/ SEE)  (F.) ® U i
(w5 ®) Eicel -t g | e -t ElL Eicel -t P
1990-00 99.1 1936925 2722442 9522.17 36746.59 274.72 96.09 370.80 1.4 0.49 1.90
2000-01 101.9 2104298 34898.47 10087.03 44985.5 342.48 98.99 441.47 66 0.48 2.14
2001-02 103.7 2296049 50094.45 12694.92 62789.37 483.07 122.42 605.49 218 0.55 2.73
2002-03 105.5 2451038 55738.11 14337.59 70075.7 528.32 135.90 664.22 2.27 0.58 2.86

*ITAT WifeTRt ® MR W
SHEM SR g W

o & | TR 1 YeE Ul stefeeRe WU, 9%
g e o4 & ®9 U @1, 9% SHa1 & Sied &R |
FUR & T Y T A SN IR e U e #
g & ®9 U 8 TE Seaera 7 TR 31 W, 2003 w6
s ST W e e 291418.36 g TUT ¥, W
forirar ad 2002-03 % SHEIGr T 11.89 Wi T

qiferentd Seed it §¢ il :

s San faftre aiffadl & onia «F w g,
1efid & O R weh Sier/enie @1 feet gele
% faeg oM w6 & fog WirEw gaia s 81 9%
Ty fFdt T8 <9 & FR HH & oy gaia fowan
T T, W R srwf/eTgmta eafa % iR
33T B FhT ¢ TH TR S SRt v ufifefaat o
Helferd el & S o i 3 W fHeran ®1 gEfaw
Sl w1 ged feior, s Sied iR IR-sied,
el & 9 W eNenfia B uHt uRfeerfaal | eemm
% HE hl TR &l fhal o eharl fafdte ¥ 9
I-Se e H SEEE @t Sudeudl 9w el 2
fw TemER Sl () |9, @ < w e ®

U FE foE €, 9H9-99E W 39 9 W THdN
o FET ¥ f A A A s
i & ¥ IR et ¥ waiw @ik gt sl %
s § Audt & fau amfe @fa § e < W
THAU HAT GO TE B Tehdl 1 TES Afafe,
S T T e el S s e
e I8 gifved w6 & o yae fee S enifea €
o <@ & oTgval I ST G THW ®9 § @
A ¥ AR TH-TR T T Sl S| RN hl IR
T S IS R HEFaE B AR SR Rt o
¥ I & AU qaiven ¥ sTRS SUEST T BH W
AT, A FHIS W FEAE Hd THT TR W T
T4t YR SReM % o iR erRervn | geft qorenfiat
#1 aftufed g1, sifuskwistl IR wemafdal & & |
3R e & § HE w9 9 weeyy g

TS i T & foe @rst w1 @ fafa= damast
% @l T I WO & faqmr & w9 | Tenfud
FET, SH R FoesR AfAfa & gue w61 a1 SqH
T T T WeA 1 efua e o €1 g T iR
STEERd T 3T S & ST & [ 98d & H/S
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Y T Y ¥ e & % fau el @t WeR e
gferen wenfid w6 & fau W@ & wwal 1 e g

SifEw smarfig qdaetor .

fafmm, Sl /T iR Te W adterr gfean @t
ST het &, W™ eenfia Tierior st ufshan qeferor
F1 Jeel WA ¢, faemit eme w1 erque gifved
FE AR e w1 GAfdei gihfEa w1 & fag
foifén =1 smenfia @l=n wenfua sem T W e
gfte 1 gt s § iR fafames @ foar & asl @
qoaE g1 famia affefae fasivet, Sefied
rarerel | farme aRfefaai R et &t € 8ir
rafird STER W Tl ) gEE ot €, qen qerataal
Hfed aWR | %@ &E a6 faasgl Sfwal 9, 51
IRedH % TR Fei WHIfG s AR e %
R W S Al STEE hl FH S % fou IuEE
A Ht ST KT A F| AT ST, YT €9 H ST
HUS Feldehl & e W FHE Serdl §, 3R 36 FhR
fafmmes &1 wferitaRaEl & fodl 1 W& FW g
ST 5 Wl ¢ THiely Tdeeh &t ufha W
Bt feT, S UHr sot aRfEafad & sea o,
o s IR wegerdt weer d §) 39 feen
TR THE-THT W FHash Y S i @I R
afu wfteRtor Aerdicha ifiacdl & i &1 Yeie i
% U W TE ¥, TE TR A UH Yol SfEw qeal
AR 3TreRfia wiar @, foeh s faftte w9 § 3l
fodiia & @ERO ®9 W WEAT R ® B WY A,
SrETie 9, 36 g 9w fhe o © fafv= sifemi
FH TEYH HE SN I KW HH & U WH
afeehford e eruferd ®1 3= SHeRwiel g At
fodiia faawoll & 9°T &9 | T St WH et Je"
e o sfeafed fea s emfea )

e
e A1, STURT & faareHe & | 9 71 fafeml o
faeT [ gng e’ W faey SR & e

faumt oM™ of, W & WieAW 9 W AR ST R
ey @IS gfaenedl do Ugd sHT qenfy, i are
Y off hiS SNt T TEY B FWeht &1 TEfy GHEe
scatoer ¥, farm o aeneti W oeam fgw -m oo
STEAHT | TTeAllch S R & 39 &F | 6o 375
TR 9w g €, TR o sgd % ey W= #
STERIHA

atea srfaan 1 feror

fitero S| wfshan o1 faranon €, foeeht =g fafames,
IG& gR Werisha sifaal & HEiel R 3fie e &
feTu SuFmT Hear ®1 39 gfwen § Som W e @,
afe FE &, AN F & fau 38 g w favew
FHAT, HACE HT A W A0 Fw, Foa & e o
frfera erfiael w6l Hole 31 IR it W ael STevash
ST HHEE o TEIH BT, URGH HRAA hl
T & fau gug-dm a1, sEeET at
TG 1 SFa T IR qRom st smenfaa oA
W & @ e HE

TifereReot sl s stfufem = s, sfafam sifufm
F U 14 3R T g erfegfea fafemi grr e
FE, WE AR 0w, e Siata s/
weaftal st goden ot ¥, % fou gvea fea w2
TR o faRE & 2002-03 % SR SISt
el W T A Ft Ui SRS Tl Wi g
Ht S et flteror gfshar i < R @ S Gehdl
€, @reflq s wubEl w wgel frdew @ik wferm
frieo, foo@ foe wifteseor &t fafafde et =
qEEE T G|

WfeeRe & AfeeRiEl 3 P Suehwien I, 3T
fopensti & YHAfaaed & fau fleor f&an om =
Hudtersi 1 ILYT SHIEST wt Gl & e |
AR 9T AT ol 39 2ATdRed, Wiferehor § Uafeq
FHITH @l TqeR & JdHd 998 g foR e
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Tyl st W off| enfafaw. (fawn) fafee saa
Hfemi 1 Srguer gifved s % fog faw wfufa
T, fafeat & faemrgel fremr 1 giafed +6 &
fere yonferar Tenfad s =it oo siHmRT g ST
e M arett sTdamsti, sTEifsa wfaygfae ® femt =t
FIT ST SR ST R o ey St
T wenfya o, smreRwie ot et diwanet &
AT e & e et Faer Haden e wiftresor,
39 &7 | fltemr w0 & fou 9 stehedel i dane
1 START HL W& B

ifereRor, frafaa fatel W ==fa wegafaa, Afeh,
w¥Teror HeeHT SR e YRR WITEeR o fdvero e
@1 1 3 Frlierll 1 Seva s a8 ¥, eifug
faf=mes =i 38 o & 9 svas s § T fatee
Teripa i STt Hishard fadenyul ya & oTI&Y
E

=JrafauiaT & 99 :

TifereRTor 3 s rfufTam, 1938 & SUSHl & MER W
fafr= werafeal oiR sifyewiet & o= & fog
srfafem fatfeq feq € emfem fafem STt fen,
aréar 3R =ERIier Ufvier & forg g fafeq = ¥
3% FoeAl AR Fedl w1 aftid A g SR G
et fawai W o wEaEr Wt ® ¥ Wi e
ToEiFa ifael § go1 aTH iR S e
% foau g 2

fafa & sus oo fafaa fafeml = Swsiel o, &
e & fau, afs o o1 e a1 =R Giear o
WeRtor & Fee b1 oo i § oremd w@d ¥,
F A LG AT Hl Terd/TqoY/ e wEn S ¥
HEt e IR gHiH & foe wmeded @i € qufy,
AqEe VA SHE weEatdl % o= faanl ®
oA & fou o5 et faswfaa fren s &, wrenife
it s fafawm eifufem, 1999 = 2w wet

yffeerfaai ® = fofas & foau gve ®1 =iy st
3 o F UHER ¢ fE e 9 ey Wy S
gRue) @i wemataEl st @wet S = fatEms e
W ' fohan =, fRr off feal & foRiel = Twem &
feTu T et SN W oW A 9F Wi eenfud e
Y Huraarel W fa=r fomen =1 e €)1 fafv= faemed
A FH B AU W AR F R faee &
fafamesi & sT9al Tt T H AHUR B b

TGO T THA:

IfeeRToT S L9 O 39 W S & & faw & fo
Goqrertel 1 quid: o1 3o & fou wnt @ien ¥ &
T 3Ry foru T guRl & uRvmaseey faeme s
W o R ra-faer #6 & fau ser gu § o o
FHH T % T F1 SUE fhu WY iR stwrpd At
it fafafse sravamdet 1 @ #6 & fau @R T
IR T B

ol dweel 4 yHeRTer Wid SRid @t €, 98
THA F9 ¥ W@l § fF ST aot ¥ sRerd Sed
giqant aRferfaat o, fod erfaf=faa srer o fre=ifed
ROl % 9t SeE W STH At WIS €, SENT
TR TRE & ER fawm g g falre &9 @
<ARirgot g, Fife et IR-2Rw oeR o afEfda @
W@ ¢ T8 H T =aert ot Savas ¥ s w5l
JATERTCH 3Tehe W i o YA Hid GU LG i
R(FAR TEl T =MeT| SR & o 3T R FHsal
AT 3Tt €, feheg TG STeRasdh €9 U el
IR Hdvug farm & faw 9 =few) s@s @ =,
JTN &l A & STUR-TH § &I B i aedehdl
§ IR Sl w77 ghfea we e & e
% fedi @t wWeen oiR gfd =it S 2

e % T @ v A § e w5 g
Bt e Wit el fre ot ¢ oft wfwfera &
AR & A1 ! HH 6 @ &1 = & I8 ¢ T
=7 geewifd < 7 <@ IR e anwEl R
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§ @ § WEEd o gl ey, T59 SR % U™
SUFEHl &1 o sarewien’, faviwewy ufsas
Ya-amrhwien & wiauro €, faxia feafq foar =
o €1 U el & forg, <t sm e o W, Suey
FHA Hed Ul ¢ ST W $E AT AR AR Ry M
¥ qenta, g GHfved e eravas © T 5 Sari o
T fuio wifersE S & eMEgR W B 9’ @
e T 8 1 W-Stad ©E, TE IR a8 o wer
TT it YT W STRT & o & fore sravas
8 foomm weRr, fFed SRl & gea fEion @
T o ©I, S ST it N[ WA WeEar 3d
W 39 yfq i wemEar & I S| I gRml

IERT % Gl & THT % WA S Hit IgT T
% AUF deh dF et ey, faweRt wifi @ik
FHSAT W 6] W FeR IS HIAT AT 3 AT
JoT TSI &l W T T S A1fe| GIEH
U % SR, SR 3R, =18 98 SiHehwisl &1 e =
weafdal 1, 9 o & fawal W s e s s
=feu) oM *9e S T foaemes faw g1 Fudl @R

-

Haer s wW fava ¥, foed gl femita &, s
IGT T HTRT T 9AT AR ooy Wit & @)
G & T o WA W A & TRl A o
fawrg gan €1 =fr Sam W fefw 9 R @ R,
el I8 s i w1 ST wam, T8 W gRefRia
i ! WHT 3R e B S BT RN Ao
I EEA HT A arelt Aafee faerfiren 7 waw fafed
g G & i Td At A s, SIfug 3T 1
iR w@r frafs sweifa a9 =ifew

3110‘34'{3'1’5&1:

ferehoT, ST el |fbfd, TH:8m el Ffafd,
= gt (fam W), aeit smreen iR werafdal
Ft, THH GAE FER U I agHed AR 3R
Team & fou qen mfeRwor & iyl & <@ qen
FUAE i, 3T gR 39 Al & 381 e &
fau Tt 3R W TUeT HAT § AR ¥=ER 3@ T
TR, ST R, g @ 98 9l gfes e
3R SR ATTHRUT Y, TOI-THT R 3T SgHHA
TeamT & foru faiy a=mas < ®
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stfafaw. = fawm &1 e
® Tfaiurel & fedl #1 W wE AR 3 Wy e oeer ghfed w1

® W W % GRR & fau S SEn ®§ @i iR gomafem fawm w (fSEe o aifiet
AR eAfvrenfierar He@ ot §) ol srfemaen & faw® ® o w0 & fou Felemforen e suyesy
EXEIN

o 52 =7 fafmfwa =t & ST oroieal, fomia, woed, SUMGR oiR Geman & S=0 WWs i,
Faffa &, R 3= wafdd we;

® v gHftad & fF &iw Wewl il SR iR Waeh & fava § Fundd, we R @ AWed ww
B 3N 3% 3@ Hoy H I IWEdeEl IR wwedl % Ud WNes sl

® U= T@ & wHd THEF h GEAREd wE, @W F9S AR 3 SHER Ukl qUl FHERN
R 93w O &,

@ TW % TeW W HER w¢ o famid ool W frouerdr, uReRiar ok gomeftud Wemwew @
T HA AR SR % SHEwiel & s A Heledt % ST e Jarid & & fore faveeia
Yo gEl Ugid  SEE;

@ TE WU WAE YA B A AYAEr ®9 U afdd ©, 98l SRes S

® 3uM & fA ufifed & wreiew # faawql fafm &t smamsti o gow wa: fafems & wdww
I o 1)

i

da

<
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Hfqamr A wrEdwa

e & gt enl o Sifew faeme © ek fadw uE
3T HIA B TF FH ¥ FU 3@ AU 3@ YER H
veiw foran w1 =nfeq foad for gufs = Stem ® &1
1 9 =gAw 2| S, fawewRite oiR fawfaa SE
& TR & 290 § famig & o1 T |l iR fasmesita
3T 1 BHR AH-I TR W & o afg % Wk W
s Wifw | wt gfg g8 ¥ ST 9Rd i R
89 W 3 IFG a9 K 9 T u e & ein
Tyl Fufi STedl &1 oY 33H & fou 39 W
TR W@ g T el R favg ®§ SR ety 9w
3R THipd B0 W ® ¥, 9@ 9RG H 3 §en o
THighd BH H WY s % foru s & w1 @i
I, 9 % MR T W® Y gurl 1 T AT R

WA & § ISR h1 AW Fehd 311, 2000 § fgen
o, o snfafam w1 s &7 % fafem i fawm
% faU & &R fe & w9 9 wfed fman wn e
Wiferhtor 1 o WfAtgd & ORenl & fedl & wen
FE AR W SEN qen ST Se/sTIuiEs fawE @
fafrm w0, S goEter oty ® sed 3 @R
gHfvaa & & fog wenfaa feen wn em st safm=i
Hi TEd HD (SR JHIUTS STHRER, 2000 W S
for o 9 fot wufEl & o & WY THEITER
TS H B G A S TaE’l o @ien 21 fowes
JROTHEEY, IMEHE SHEwiel - STHfawey o &
YT ST HTHRROT hT YAfECAR IR T Higmamet
I R S R R e 7, fE fF 3 o e
g W gfaefi § o6 T | fafams o daeHrds
JfiehT 39 oG 9 IR eIfrer S T G ot ® T
ARy fafame W T Fae ST qen st
3R weafdal, SHl 1 SRl Wl § 31fg 9 S|
& T i I H HH-HM 96 o WH b AT SR H
ot e 1 SRAITIea o diqar ®1 ord: 98 et
§ for faveed™ aFel =l Tw HE w1 @ WH &
Y & S SENT Irifas fasr IR que & T EE
M ! AEH HT AT ST FIH T STEATIHAT
TSRS Tel Y Fehall

WIfeRRor 1 U AR onfie  daned & q
e & T ST | uE Gfa | frover wfaefian wenfug
FH 3R 3T weE W w1 FE A W ¥, o
TS S SR | Seientforss gt @ eifam fagetsor
Y, 3o U nfie faeRra ot s faem wifirestor
AT &AM 3 od W hiwd L @ § o & Ty,
T 3R % 3fed gl W WEwl Hl, fagweRy o
AR IR-Tufeq & & Wkl H Sy el faftm
T F AR FRET W T R I8 SR Y Seert
SAERIHA % STET W T TR & YRRaS 39
79 o6 & fou © € ff femenyot fafemi & wmem 9
fafy= o= o Hifq urieyies fagia wnfig fee )
T YA W SRRl & &R hl @M h Y a
HIERT WEehi Toh ST T 95 d ! SeM & T SNk
¥ fafi= JehR & Weaadt ae Uy SET o g @)
frsd ad & <NF 39 wEueH % b w,
A fen T ¥, SUM & SMUR H AUE SHH &
T 39 gU fa w W w0 iR wenfia fae
T AR T B | STATEAT FHI A o & fag
TR fepan T R

&, |rEer Arfefsw  ufefeafaar =1
L EIENIER]

A G D A W RR s oTgewe onfde &R
e T ¥, S e faeE @ fou st e R
ool e IR srdferaeen ¥ fahE & SER B
378 YT & IRUHEEY HY 3Ry §, e frsw
¥ 3.2 ufqed it F oM o, FIHr gfg W
AT §; SThe] 3 S-S, 2003 o SR STEnfiEn
& W guR & Teha 3 €, oleifien Scared geenier o
ool ad &t 39 e/afy & ARH g 5.2 Wfave afg &
et 5.6 Uae & gfg g8 ¥ el wieli, gew
e iR Suwe Wedl & ScsT | Haq gfg & Hehd
¥ g g A7 ¥ o FRE o g w ek A R
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qEEHa 4 gfaed ¥ &0 ¢ IR fagelt gw mfardt
TR 90 N STHAHT TR ¢ fadia @ 2003-04 &
A sreferaeen W 6.5 W 7 wiavd gfg € Y HHreA
§, S o fawar srefereen ® 3 wfawm it Sifad afg
T T Tl A 2003-04 & AU yEenfud Heher o]
e W ifed afg, stiie-emrd, 2003 % Wl &
A fafr= & g weifa wEuem ¥ oW 9
SRS Tohdll & IR W At T8 | Fafa Fafa o onedt
e afg T 8 Tkt ¢, R ot erla-faasr, 2003
% A Frald o St SR % SHER 10 wfavd s
gfs fod af &Y w0 e/afy & WA srfufafea 18
yfaed gfs @ w0 off, Sfves TRfeafaal & gom =t
Harerieti ¥ i afg &t 75 e fuert =ifew) sae
Afafied, o oe w1 ¥, foew fafmin &5 o s
wfiferfaal 1 Heha faer@ € — o W =g ad @t
Teolt SHE W 21.4 Ffawa ¥ afg g8 ¢, Safh s
¥ 39 sy &% SR T wadt 9.2 WA *T gfs ge
Rl I% Seoierd § & 99 ¥ fa= ot o a9fs e
AT § WeRt 1 RIS A T R THAHR FRER H
HUTEATE, GEEhifd o Feera T iR 7 I <4 &
HER W TR

T 2002-03 W 9YHRL 1A UST o, TR Hf sl
Hag & W o | g gt onl 39 & o faw
T A % FHRU Fohel TRl SR W TR 4.4 Fhaerd
# gfg g o Ie i oIk ar & % FrEueH
U frod o & IWE g FE: 6.1 W@ SR 7.1
Jiaerd T YHTeRTe 9is o sIask gell, | 34 fusd
e o 2001-02 % WA g FAW: 3.3 W@ R
6.8 Ufava &t afg @ sifuss ot denfy, faxia o
2002-03 H TEY DA & WA IR Hehd T g,
S GUR I o B e onfid R i)
fova =R & "W ®A % goqH W fRiw w9 ®
wEEU 9 T R & SR 990 98d — Sfie
s sila =@ qeR off €, 9 THa wRE 9

o+ Afafed fafd o afg & e Wy & wem 9
ol § oMaR TR o W] T W SIREe sH A
FHT HIEAT ot foRy €9 9 98 o Y6 w9l
T T frafa o ofs t0 oag g8 o Sfvas steforemen
o guR ot T ogd il o oiv son fafmio &
farra o gemm fueh sus oifaflea smemga =
IR &% RO 2002-03 % ARHA o L 9 HH
| ST favivat gew 3R EuR | fewr o
Atk gfg ad 2002-03 & ARH TH He@qol o
& 71 o Tiene wfas § srefereren ® 8 Wi g
T U@ FH X Y AC W & . veet it o W
]

Thel el adl IR Ew; el &9 W foxitg st
(Fehet) ; et Gl & s1faey; IR ged enfiw ami o
Geiftrd efishe AL GRUT 2 ¥ 5 H ¥

ot ad 2002-03 ® foa & % fa@ ® ¥, &
STgfa Ao ikl st =g W iR snfaat 9,
Tgfe, famet R-yaie et &6 ¥ g8 "oyl
TgferEl & aENE g R i I TR % g
NN W gE it nfafafial @ detta o) wie aeiR
&t i WidfarEdl & SR geF §NR ° Rt @6t
el Y @ $5 IR Wy & T | o fas e
U o1 ®| &= WHR H faxid =1, | 2000-01 ®
W & FHa & T H 5.6 FGWRA A1, 2001-02 H
TSR WThierd 5.9 e T Ugd TRl T o WX
W ot forita Ao T e R Ul 39 A0 ¥ Jodl ©
for 3o 99 fomiig = ° <, S0 2000-01 W SSrd
% ded ® w9 § 43 wiva o, afg g ol =
2001-02 ® 4.6 Ufaed & YAATEA Weehed deh STl
TGN 2001-02 F THHET Frefeherl o AR &= 3R
T 1 Gfad fadtg = et &1 10 gfae e
H5E WHR w1 faffae wEFEE IO 9Ha g &
IER T8 =9 W W T AR Ee INumHEEd S
it & S ST i Harer ¢ Seu famitg wer fRE
yia-wsia faxita difaal & SEem iR srmeRas
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g e Sifdeh STaEE IR T S HrEwH
R @ § gfg G & HE Hl 5%e o @I 8 fin
gis & 3=9 W & W FH & AU 3 &6 | em
U WM it TEwFshdr ¥ 2001-02 ® R qoai ®
THd e IS g9E W W 3 Ffae # ghs gE, W
SHErdt | gfs | HIHt w7 o0 foem™ gei W 2001-02
W kA Yot GO SHerdt w1 23.7 WiovW@ em, &
2000-01 ® Uferd 24 wfae iR 1999-2000 ® Uferd
252 % % 9 %D HH o1 TE Wid el § o =
W Raaal st a Tehd Fad gSf Yo | FIET 1o
T 21 qenfa, Fad goft gor & SR |f=mior o wefied

3R ST W Hehel Traw Y emensa eifues afig €2
Yfeeteh HaeX | W0 ¥ ISt YoM | 7.2 Wiawd &F
i gfig gE1 T ol & W-" AN % 6,
el Teraaieti, e 3iR STIeMl Gfed TR SUmT,
=9 | gfg % SR dieh FEy 9E: So| § ®@ R
fraws e staEE gfawnst & #Ro feg |l
g & at, foadew aeen fagel ® fowm o7
gffeaa &am fF 39 ¥ oF gue iR 3R a1 & I
T, 79emsti W yaTe ®9 3 &4 KU S st eawgehdr
B UG & WEEA, gEEE-oTiE gud iR
ITeTsd T IR g IRl 1, 7 @R 8 () iR
(i) ® ¥

et - 1
TRA 1 ATHEA

Fd &7 3287263 & foRaiiiet
T @ 7517 foRarmieX
TH 29
9 T & 6
et 602
TG 1.05 HUE (S 2003 W TI.)
IR S 27.78%

SEE | gfs (33 1991-2001)

(+) 21.34%

T X 2003

gfd 1000 gesi gfd 933 Afgamy

SEE S IE

321 =Afed 9 ot fohaamiteR

IRl <L

65.38% (&Y 75.85%, AEAT 54.16%)

SieF gemen (|19 2000)

FHA THEESAT 64.90 TH, T&Y = 64.19 T,
ufga™ = 65.00 99

®
I | : 9IRd RO SR FAE, 2002-03; TEE ol hs; ARAE A ST

da
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RO - 2
Heohel s wr=d S fraw
b Tohal "¢ 3R 1 gfawrd (FUs TUC )
(fozmm IR g w)
2001-02*| 2000-01©@ | 1999-00 | 1995-96 | 2001-02*| 2000-01©| 1999-00
ES|
1998-99
sirea
] 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
1. e o= 225 21.6 20.8 179 | 5,15565 | 4,53,641 4,02,360
fwﬁ'@ :
%) faxita nfaa o 11.2 10.4 10.5 9.8 | 2,56,647 | 2,17,841 2,03,702
@) difqer enfeqal o 11.3 11.2 10.3 8.1 | 2,58,918 | 2,35,800 1,98,658
2. ot fifa & 4.0 4.1 4.4 43 92,060 86,142 84,329
3., gfectesr Herx (2.5) (2.3) (1.0) 10| (57,662) (48,022) (20,049)
4. 9%d e §9d 24.0 23.4 24.1 23.3 | 5,49,963 | 4,91,761 | 4,66,640
5. {§ ISt 3T (0.2) 0.6 1.1 1.4 (4,872) 12,977 21,988
6. FF e IS 23.7 24.0 25.2 24.7 | 545,091 | 5,04,738 | 4,88,628
qsiq
7. 3 AR <l 1.3 1.5 1.6 1.6 30,003 31,117 30,366
8. WA St g 22.4 22.5 23.7 23.1 | 5,15,088 | 4,73,621 | 4,58,262
fwﬁ'@ :
+) ufsctr Y 6.3 6.4 6.9 7.0 | 1,45,082 1,34,025 1,34,484
@) freir fmfaa &= 4.8 49 6.5 80| 1,11,088 1,03,796 1,25,120
M) W & 1.3 1.2 10.3 8.1 | 2,558,918 | 2,35,800 1,98,658
*TRa ke
@ Hfw
gia : Yoo wWifiosa sii=swH
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got - 3
o] &F & fawitay a=9d
(Tha) : faavor &t gfqeraan
| 2001-02* |2000-01@ [1999-00 1998-99| 1997-98| 1996-97 | 1995-96 | 1994-95 | 1993-94
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
fa<itg a9 (9&d) 100.0 100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0 {100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0 | 100.0
(12.9) | (11.9) [ (12.3) [(11.9) [(11.3) [(11.6) |(10.5) |(14.4) | (12.8)
(F) Hq 9.5 7.1 8.7 10.5 7.4 8.6 13.3 10.9 12.2
1.2 ©8 | (1.1 3| (08 | 1.0 | (1.4 | (1.6 ] (1.6
(@) fagm 37.9| 420| 375 | 388 | 46.6 | 48.1 | 425| 455 | 426
(4.9) (5.0) (4.6) (4.6) (5.3) (5.6) (4.5) (6.5) (5.4)
) 3R | 31.1 32.4 30.5 33.7 37.8 25.7 26.3 35.3 27.9
i) 3R S 2.8 49| 37| 38| 39| 164| 106| 79| 106
o
i) T SR @R 6.1 55| 42| 46| 53| 64| 58| 30 5.2
TraEfed §
iv) MR 0 (5) 2.1 (0.7) (0.8) (3.3) (0.4) (0.4) (0.2) (0.8) (r.m
(M) v R fedr 2.3 25 7. 34| 29| 66| 73| 19| 135
03)| (03| (09| (©.4) | ©.3 | 0.8 | ©.8 /| (170 (1.7
) fret Frfera 1.1 1.1 34| 15| 13| 36| 66| 80 7.5
hIE
i) TEHTD 5% 3ir 0.0 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
wrefeat
i) 7 & omE T AR 06)| (04| 08| 09| 03| 24| 02| 27 4.3
V) T g s 0.0 0.1 0.1 00| 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.5
v) TREfE fif 1.7 16| 29| 08| 1.1 03| 03 1.1 1.2
(F F o @ i)
(9) WHR | B 16.8 15.6 12.1 13.6 12.9 7.4 7.7 9.1 6.3
(2.2) 1.9 (05| (.6 (15| 09| ©8 /] (1.3 (0.8
) T e o 5.7 1.7] 09| 07 16| 04| 04| 01 0.4
ECE
i) oo W o § 1.1 13.9| 112 13.0| 11.3| 70| 74| 90 5.9
frawr, anfg
(=) < FfE 144| 135| 120 11.3| 11.3 | 102 | 112| 78 8.7
(1.9) 1.6 05 03 03| 02 a2 an| a0
i) e s ffee 139 129 113| 106 | 106 | 95| 104| 7.2 8.0
i) = @ 0.2 03| 03| 03| 03| 03| 03| 02 0.2
i) T o 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.5 0.5 0.5
() wfag= 3k e 19.0 19.3 22.5 22.4 18.8 19.2 18.0 14.7 16.7
e 25 @3] 28| @7 @) 22| 09| en| @
* i TRkt @ rfam

feoqur ; wiewl | R MU stwe foemM SeR qodf W SHEL®. 1 yfavE ?
gia : Yoo Rfefewa smFEsHl
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RO - 4
Od 1 99 9l ol ATd9
FOE TUL U 10 FUg oWRkET e o
bt 2002-03 | 2001-02 | 2000-01 | 2002-03 |2001-02 |2000-01
2 3 4 5 6 7
. =T @
1. fed, Twsia 2,56,352 | 2,14,351 | 2,05,287 | 53,000 | 44915 | 44,894
2. ST, WIETF. 3,16,702 | 2,74,778 | 2,70,663 65,474 57,618 59,264
3. oA e (60,350) | (60,427) | (65,376) | (12,474) | (12,703) | (14,370)
4. w, I 78,275 | 64,161 48,975 | 16,182 | 13,485 | 10,780
%) A e’ 29,995 | 21.960 | 11,401 6,206 4,577 2,478
a9, e fratq 46,427 | 36,036 | 29,014 9,600 7,556 6,341
@) S (23,617) | (17,467) | (22,384) | (4,882) | (3,601) | (4,832)
m) felt s 69,924 57,821 58,412 14,448 12,125 12,798
) R SR 1,973 1,847 1,546 410 384 336
5. e @ H S 17,925 3,734 | (16,401) 3,708 782 | (3,590)
. YNt @
1. s faeft few, (F+@) 21,918 | 31,877 | 27,245 4,555 6,692 5,862
&) geae frerer fored = 17,412 | 22,588 | 15413 | 3,611 4,741 3,272
@ ;R;‘Tﬁ 22,575 29,192 18,414 4,660 6,131 4,029
13,091 18,658 10,964 2,700 4,095 2,400
e <he 7,250 8,710 6,175 1,498 1,646 1,350
s 2,234 1,824 1,275 462 390 279
(i) facer & (5,163) | (6,604) | (3,001) | (1,049) | (1,390) (757)
= (2,051) (2,701) (1,586) (424) (570) (344)
EZ;TL%&”W (2,600) | (3,329 | (1,076) (519) (699) (339)
(512) (574) (339) (106) (121) (74)
@) dwier fe 4,506 9,289 | 11,832 944 1,951 2,590
T H 4,679 9,617 12,609 979 2,020 2,760
forw o (173) (328) (777) (35) (69) (170)
2. WY WErr, U5 (11,745) 5,418 2,001 | (2,460) 1,117 410
13,392 | 16,073 | 13,528 2,773 3,352 2,942
RURUEH (25,137) | (10,655) | (11,527) | (5,233) | (2,235) | (2,532)
3. afufsas 3UR, 4% (8,283) (7,476) 17,577 | (1,698) (1,576) 3,737
13,219 | 12,896 | 41,845 2,737 2,696 9,052
RIS (21,502) | (20,372) | (24,268) | (4,435) | (4272) | (5315)
4. SFeTRIs FU, qS 4,715 (4,236) 321 979 (891) 105
5. S oSt e, 39,800 | 26,671 3,517 8,243 5,592 811
TASREATS (819, 35 13,602 13,127 10,567 2,808 2,754 2,317
6. T I T (2,303) | (2,458) | (2,763) (474) (519) (617)
7. ¥ IS, US@ 16,921 793 (1,223) 3,493 158 (290)
8. Y Yt Wl 61,023 | 50,589 | 46,675 | 12,638 | 10,573 | 10,018
T Ffr @R A 3,068 2269 | (2,612 634 402 (572)
g wA AfqEd [#(5)+31(8)+¥] 82,016 | 56,592 | 27,662 | 16,980 | 11,757 5,856
3. forfra fafaferi (S+0) (82,016) | (56,592) | (27,662) | (16,980) | (11,757) | (5.856)
% o T UE, Y§ (115) (26)
T s SR e @t (82,016) | (56,592) | (27,547) | (16,980) |(11,757) | (5,830)
(afg—, &H+) =

* 2000~ m@mw&wﬁ%{rﬁﬁﬁm( 2t &) W SRSl I, FULT I SN doh TgH S b Iy, ok SER * qel Gaferd fohen wn
%lﬁ@ﬁaﬁﬁm‘éaﬁmﬁm%mu Kl
K] & TE I W €, ﬁigﬁﬁwﬁaﬁfw ARG Y AT Feqfi 1 e,

W@qﬂﬁ?ﬂwﬁrﬁﬁaﬁ
w® o T Tl SR wi e W gfimter e e e R
W U MU evikel 9, 7 wfmier aeget, Todied iR Tmg o e & Rw fe )
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RO - 5
gea-—anfefe It (adud ge ™)
(FUg TIC H)
EE| 1950-51/1960-61/1970-71|1980-81 1990-91| 2000-01 | 2001-02 | 2002-03
] 3 T 3
A
(10 @re #) 359 434 541 679 839 1019 1037 1055
FIF TRE AL 9547 | 16220 | 42222|130176 | 510954 |1917724%% | 2094013 | 2236128
o st =61 ST 364 944 | 2970| 12288 | 53264 | 197856 | 217058
FH T T T 9183 | 15276| 39252| 117888 | 457690 | 1719868 | 1876955 | 1998005
ST T SR e e 387 947|  3455| 13586| 57720| 186574 | 202036
S ‘1@)‘ ™ S 9934 | 17167 | 45677 | 143764 | 568674 |2104298W | 2296049
TR gl R T 9570| 16223 | 42707 | 131474 | 515410 | 1906442 | 2078991
faw @ s (41) 72)|  (284)|  345| (7545)| (17414) | (12663)
Earcolce o)
FH TR R AT 9506| 16148 | 41938 | 130521 | 503409 |1900310%% | 2081350 | 2217816
T TRE TR 9142| 15204 | 38968 | 118233 | 450145 |17024547 | 1864292 | 1979693
S ‘1@)‘ ™ ST 9893| 17095| 45393 | 144107 | 561129 | 2086884 | 2283386
S el T T 9529 | 16151 | 42423 |131819 | 507865 | 1889028 | 2066328
ot st s == 113213 | 381157 | 1357989 | 1489883
(Fruwets)
TEY A ST 592| 1206|4289 | 14492 | 66030 | 264563 | 294971
(ShuwHtE)
fscteh Yerex 1 SHETR 1609 5802 | 25525 | 128398 | 459635 | 503606
fscteh Yerex 1 THER | 1392 5473 | 20533 | 104087 | 395345
AR A 3 # 8876| 14638| 37891120642 | 461192 | 1790828 | 1958006
SrErETs 866 | 2470| 7043 | 29230 | 149536 | 504738 | 545091
T 502| 1526 | 4073 | 16942 | 96272 | 306882 | 328033
St 887 | 1989 | 6649 | 27136 | 131340 | 491761 | 549963
T 523| 1045|3679 | 14848 | 78076 | 293905 | 332905
FREF AR W A AR 25| 372 775 1922| 6000| 18649 | 20071 | 21022
ST (F9Q)
FRF ARE W A Al 2547| 3503| 7203| 17413 | 53653 | 16707.1% | 17977.7 | 18765
TR (%)

. IS SR GSW B, A T & Yk 3Tihe SUGsd 7l ¢ 3IR ST Wi Ik Feit oI g o sl STue:

e R @ ®)

gid : fea Rfesa sfeseH
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RO - 6
L GRC LS (RS D
e 3l I a1 SRR 16 W& Efel

Fa fava s Hwifaem (2001 ®)

2408.25 3R TR (2000 ¥ 1.5 fasd =H)

T 2002-03 & At gfg =t

Sier 11.27 %

I-siaT 23% (9Ra IR facw § freifera diftrem)

U St AR & fow drifoes freee i T, S Q29 | wE R TR

T YRAT W RO | g e

forel vade 26% d F A I RO HL TRl ©

T freled

i Huf@l # gen

HIEAN T JHNR RICSED fasit I

B B
St = 01 12 13
TEROT S 06 08 14
T S 01 0 01
Eib) 08 20 28
Sitaq SaTeRl

gfsTes g

e

1. 9RGE Sted 5w e

TATGS oSl Siteq s\ ot fafufes
e A-os% &\ Sor fafhafes
TSRS W Siad o\ St fafafes
amsetensHters yEfme e s U fofifes
SETST o= Sl S| ol fafafes
o = Sted s o fafafees
Yeais aiw o fafafes

AW FHIeh He S s &, ol
TESRSTE Siaq S|l ot fofafes

2T TSRSt Sied s o fafafes
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ﬂ
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4. IAEeE few wERE &, fa

TIYTOT SHTH™T
gfsTes g T wufaar
1. = sfean waRE &. fa. TS TACS HERY S| &t fafafes
2. e & %, o STEHIEERTE ciHele ey s\ &, ol
3. fided & & fa. Shepl-aifhal WERT W wI ferthfee

T g TS @ &, A
fremem weRer S| SO fafafes
T TSAEST RO s\ hor fafafes
TAHSTH THUH WERT &\ &, fa.
TESIURET = HERol 5| &, o
TR Hiee WA fam
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IOt - 7
st o wrmfas e

2003 W SHEE 39 @ H 1055
Hde 1 &I%A 100 T fm.H. 3287
gfa ot fewt. =afe 321
2003 ® SHTAYr SRS Sie” | 320
ST & fava | T 11
et ® oied et afs (%) 5.3
SIEd | ofa e % afs 4.3
(2001 ®) SHSIMt & % &9 W W | dlsh & 5.2
SIS & % ®9 W 3181 | olieh = 3.99
T T ae Y&s 1000 Siifad sedl W g §em 59.59 ¥ 9fd/ 1000 Sifad =1 W (2003)

;. i "aww 2002-03; favar fawmm @ 2002; AREreTs

ol - 8(i)
SaifEmst THM SR gagur - P
1996 2001 2006 2011
wHe SHEEN (39 o W) 934.22 1012.39 1094.13 1178.89
TEY  SEEn (%) 27.23 28.77 30.35 31.99
T st (ufd 100 wfgemed | e & @&) | 107.9 107.2 106.6 106
Aol - 8(ii)
EEEsiteED M- N M ef e B | L
1996-2001 2001-2006 2006-2011
] SEen gfg W (% dided) 1.62 1.57 1.5
I T W Sed gwn  (qEad) 62.36 63.87 65.65
W W Sed  yermen  (Wfgernd/a) 65.27 66.91 67.67
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Q. o\ AR AT AR A

IRA WHR A 3, 1993 W &\ &F | Guri Here
T gufa fge w5t o gfafa w1 wed, 39
srefeTaeell § of W GeaeHs ekl 1 = W e
T TH g 387 IR wfaant fadita oF # o H &
32 | ST & IR Ot I Ifed famia gawl &
g9 ° 9 TE Tea W 9 U o foar & fawai o s
HUE T, ToT THITEHN & T § foq1 et i
& o &1, f99% HRU WeF &l AUF IR ST
B UM W ST H YR TR Sl TR qUTE
1 @A, TH X 39 &7 % ISR & URER] S
FHRER & T gt fafame o &t IH: Tl 6,
3R WHR T Freel & Wemw 9 S| SRt @t
faferl o1 =9 qawa sifuer wfmfaa & Ife &
HufEl & faxig afoml &1 s Wrew iR S
S | fEw it T SEhl S STmE R g e €,
THfIT o1 TRt & SR R e YaivH, Wesh
e, <l AR gfaaf gifed +0 & @y & @@
fraw el & TSH & TEvIRA offl T &
W ae sEeRe 7 3 fawe W wE e T6l
ez e

a1t fafame e & Ted & 91 T ¥ w5 s
&/ THT T2 T IR SR H T wutn faeme )
U % @ S| T FufE 3§ e | Fue et
% ol = & fou ww o1 s wenfua ) forn R
foxita & 2000-01 ® 11 w9 w1, 2001-02 H 6
FHafl i 3R ad 2002-03 § 4 HIET i TR
SR o T ol e SAfafe weme s fm (S
amg It) 1 T ;S & 9 | yeifafed fea
T §1 sl faRra ad 2001-02 ® R 8 W TERe
FufEl 7 Seq o e fean, st ad 2002-03
% AN felt SufEl ot SeT sget dRE 8 Tl 3
Iafy & A IR-Sied T | U Fieha sirhwie

Ft dem, fugd af @t B ¥ seH A 8 W Ang
foritg ad & IWE 9RdE Ff s Fo fafee w6
I S it W ¥ W ST F fAU g SR
TaF IRt 6 W fRu M E

T AR ST o RO AR sl e 7 R
fava & foq o emeRtul S fean @ fop geenfya
forel st <9 |, 26 Wiow & W U9 % WY
IeY ARR & &9 § @t =R i W % fae
3T oMU ¥ fael querd T WY SRS W
FFER AR s oy §, fod sfqa: Weshi &1 &
@y T fadstt el & va & aRvmrseey 39
Yot ® 31 |rE, 2003 TH 739.19 HUS TIY T T
farelt famT (30 fader 2003 =1 gt fameit fram
825.44 IS TYT A1) T §I 31 WIE, 2003 < s
T H 27 HUCE BT TURT TR 4172.13 HAE TIC
ot (3T 3IUEH-2)

49 % Wil WH 1 UH uRom TE off g ¥ fw
Ffar == AR A Fit SR W w g
W €| Tt ekl o, S SR SR A Y TRl
AT i FHA T, TSI & HEIE, 31id SR h
TOR, IR Tl 9 W HRER KT WHfdk TgH AR
TR TSt R @l TR S e wfemi & favs
T S TET ST AU WH o G-I, HAHA
F ITAEE FI, 3T §R GAN & faffee o &
fau Sefeod TR SRl I AR, TRt hETA H
I & fou snygfen HeRRl I TR AR Ghdl
W] IAR H e ¥ S SR | Tl Yo s,
AR T STERAFAS & Ufd St Hageied &
FaE W gediehd i AeU| Jafy W@eed S| o7t
T e yafed El 8 Gl €, el OR SR o
e TR AR ol T ¥ 3R 3% o7 Wew faot
gl

gfes- o ufads, o o afg, foen o) &mn
MERIHAST & ia SEewd T 3T %R §, fS=iA
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IR SR U s ) oGt g8 U b1 queA R
B1 U 39 92T H WK ¥ WX 3H H qoR ¢
Slied oW &9 | gy R 92 % HRO ¥ SR IR-sim
&7 W 75 gfg HITH S| TUeTe % HRU 71 TH W6
% Thd ¥ fF T wulEl & o O & wa (v
=feq W) IR S st 9gE (Nfaen ghd wRe
IR & iav & €9 |, o "ean e ¢ fe@ ¥ gn
T 2001 & fau gl ofiwel & MR W 3 °E
FUA: 11.5 STHAST SR IR Fhad W SAR H
2.71 dfawr &1 af 2001 % fou favar oia swer: 393.3
SAHT TR AR 7.83 Wawrd oftl s = e | 9
WM 78ar iR W wgw W 49a @1 oad 2001 |
strenfie &9 9 fawfad <o W e IR IR-Sied, <Hf
&= o fova s Hifaw s w1 90 Wi ST g
991 TS TH{HT SOV HT WHTT & FF ITW STHH
T TE W o 3R TS YT U= W9 (740
IS STAHT TOR) AR AW (36 3RS THAHT

ol

TER) 1 M o1l Sled |l g9 5.4 Jfaem of,
ek Sa S| R 9fq A T 1396 3WAST STeR
onl & 2001 W WO A SHed W W gditee "
(2806 Tt TeR) fhan, so& v faw (2716
Wit eer) iR fafewr (2568 ™t TER) =i
WM W 4% § & 9gd (107 Jfed) a1 'R
gaifesh @I, 39% U9 S h1 T (8.9 Ufae)
@Il IR-Siteq & o, eTenfipd <o W ugw 1 ofa
W 3.6 gfawa e, AR ofma ufa =afm =@ 919
SRt SIeR ol Ufd =afad =1 | STadeht Jem (1644
ST SR o, 38 U9 feeerais (1627 St
TTeR) 1 LM ol TEE AR Ug i 3@ gu faesrele
4.8 G & Ugd WR & WY W AN o, Felih
3TOAHT Tt M ° I8 4.6 Ffawrd el

grot 9(i) 3R (i) fava & <t o W 1999 W
2001 T & oG | S ST HT UG AN T Hardt
Ahe ST HAR &
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ot - 9(i)
W UgE - SAARE e
3 Gk e Gt e Gk e
(St &t 0 % gfaer (St &t 9 % gfaer (St & dt & gfaem

% ®T7 W WM - 1999)| % ¥ W WEW-2000 | ® ®T W dfwEm - 2001)
T | R-Sfed | SfreH T | IR-Siteq | e i | IR-SHed | Sfred
TRt 8.55 | 4.32 4.23 8.76 428 | 4.48 8.97 457 | 4.40
EIE 6.49 | 3.31 3.19 6.56 3.28 | 327 6.42 3.45 | 297
Sl 2.01 1.66 0.35 2.11 175 | 036 | 214 1.78 | 0.36
Hferent 1.68 | 0.86 0.82 1.72 0.85 | 0.86 1.81 0.95 | 0.86
et 3.78 1.13 2.65 4.07 115 | 292 | 423 130 | 2.93
Téfes  famen 1335 | 3.05 |10.30 | 15.78 3.07 | 1271 | 14.8 3.45 |10.73
ECE) 652 | 3.5 2.96 6.54 355 | 3.00 | 6.59 3.60 | 3.00
wE 852 | 2.82 5.70 9.40 2.81 6.59 8.58 285 | 573
w4 213 1.34 0.78 | 2.42 1.29 1.13 3.06 1.51 1.55
E LIk 1117 | 2.30 8.87 | 10.92 222 | 870 | 11.07 221 | 885
3ot it 11.28 2.89 8.39 | 13.05 3.16 9.89 | 12.07 3.38 | 8.69
H TR 1.63 | 0.61 1.02 1.79 067 | 1.12 | 220 086 | 1.34
IR 1.93 | 0.54 1.39 2.32 0.55 1.77 | 2.71 056 | 2.5
el 3.88 1.72 216 3.72 159 | 213 | 518 1.80 | 3.38
EERINR 142 | 0.76 0.66 1.18 0.64 | 0.54 1.13 0.60 | 0.3
TR0 TR 1654 | 262 [13.92 | 16.86 2.83 | 14.04 | 17.97 2.78 |15.19
RES TSI 0.95 | 0.88 0.07 | 0.66 0.53 | 0.3 | 0.71 0.56 | 0.14
EaEp 326 | 2.48 0.78 | 2.63 1.91 0.72 | 270 187 | 0.82
e 9.82 | 3.39 6.43 9.41 337 | 6.04 9.15 3.44 | 570

g : fem ¥, famm @E 9/2000, 6/2001 ¥R 6/2002
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qeeit - 9(ii)
W Ugd - SAaEE e
39 e e ) ElL ) iR
(ufa =afea difoaw (ufa =afea difaem (ufa =afea difaam

IMAFT TR | - 1999) ST ST | - 2000) JMAFT TR | - 2001)

T | IRSfed| Sfed | @ | R-sfed | Sted | @ | IR-Sited | Sie
TR 29211 | 1474.4 | 1446.6 | 3152.1| 1540.7 | 1611.4 | 3266.0| 1664.1]1602.0
EIE 1375.3| 700.6| 674.6| 1516.8| 759.6| 757.2| 1460.4 784.6| 675.9
St 68.6 56.7 11.8| 756 62.7 12.9 64.0 532 10.8
Hferent 84.6 433 413 101.2 50.4| 50.8| 112.6 59.4| 532
fercht 163.0 48.7| 1143| 1758 4971 1260| 176.4 54.3| 122.1
Fifee fomen 32443 | 7415 2502.8 | 3759.2| 730.7 | 3028.5 | 3393.8|  825.9(2567.9
ECE) 1675.7| 913.5| 762.2| 1491.4| 808.5| 683.0| 14842| 809.9| 674.3
" 2080.9 | 688.6| 1392.3 | 2051.1| 613.7 | 1437.4 | 1898.8|  630.6[1268.2
w4 26.8 17.0 99| 418 22.3 19.5 65.8 32.6| 332
EEIE 3908.9| 805.5| 3103.4 | 3973.3| 808.2| 3165.1| 3507.5 701.1|2806.4
Tfeoft  wRifen 1022.8| 262.3| 760.5| 1234.1| 2985| 935.6| 1060.1 296.7| 763.4
WH RS 13.3 5.0 8.3 15.2 5.7 9.5 20.0 78| 122
TR 8.5 2.4 6.1 9.9 2.3 7.6 11.5 240 9.
Tl 140.4 623 781 1509 64.6| 864 | 1983 68.7| 129.5
EElRINe) 9.5 5.1 4.4 8.6 4.6 4.0 7.7 4.1 3.6
feqor - SRRt 490.9 77.9| 4130 4721 79.1| 392.9| 4463 69.1| 377.2
ST 2.6 2.4 0.2 2.0 1.6 0.4 2.3 18| 05
EdiREl 9.9 7.5 2.4 8.9 6.5 2.4 9.4 6.6 2.9
areferan 2037.4| 703.8| 1333.6| 1859.3| 665.8| 1193.5| 1668.3|  628.0(1040.3

g : fmm Y, f@m @e 9/2000, 6/2001 AR 6/2002
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(i) Stra= s

ot & 2002-03, fereRier 78 Sam s wafE &
o wifsrensti &1 gow wqol o on, fadia @ & ofd
T T3l Hufal 1 = sdedk aE B TE of iR g
IRATT Sad S AW (T o §) H ufaart off|
G R A 2002-03 & ARA 55,738.11 HUg T
o1 e fifea foran o on, oo wo o O 3
54,628.49 U TUC 1 AR Fol wufEl 3 1109.62
FUS TUY w1 Wiwem =g fmean om fase ad +
STHE FHUI: 50094.45 FHUS TUT, 49821.91 HIE I
3R 272.54 g TUC &) FHo1 AR ST A Tz
a8 o @ #t T 43.54 ufwa afs & g
frifera Ther tifem & e W 11.27 faea &t
gfg g8l a@u 2002-03 ® gfg R H e 1 geaisd
9 Ged H we e R ud o 3w forw @
SEm= Ty ol fasig |9 2001-02 ®, T o7 9 H,
e 39 ad o #RER F1 99.46 Sfavra Frevifera feman
o, Sieq o, s feet, e Wifem @R safie dvm
I SR G Se STHET ot A BT g
fren om gfg o w, fasim a8 2002-03 ® =
Tl 1 B T W % RO 81 Fehat &1 T e &Y
% FREN W ghg W W qd a¥ At 42.79 e ®
e HEh 9.65 TR & TEI 1998-99 & 2000-01
% auf % IWE TA TE W & e H G
¥ 7€ IR U o € 6 3 18 @R 25 wfawa @
S w1 gfg R A At ¢ THE faula i siarmie
J & % WE 307.15 Wk @t gfg T @i A
FHufE g7 T 9 gfg X SW@: TH HRU F Heha
% for faxita o 2001-02 ® ST HRER HHT HH o1

froat < ad o, foniver =gy ad o foit wufai &
FHETed d I8 <Rfd frw & fF 9 U I o
oA ®H AR 3% weH w1 gmed § Fafy e
FHufi 7 ad 2002-03 & € 59 &7 ¥ freifRd |/a
e ° 9 $aa 2 gfava & fefea fean, e o
WA ®9 ¥ ®a (fHd wREOR ® 11.27 gaed
gfg g gorias &9 O foit wufal & qa o o
freiferd a1 FRER | T Ufawd & o 7 1T
off| FEd: TT AR A STavas &9 § fagmm s
o 9 sfeweH TE fran §, oifug ofwr & oTehR H &
gfg g &1 ¢ anl 1 ger T o ¢ ok wReR %
e F A KT T OIEY I W Afaeiicr qen

9T & fau oigema s srReR uRferfal @
Tofud g st G9E 2

TSR H Y & AR, S aeR & 98 Ffaed | T
ame ot w1 e o 3R 12 ¢ wuftEl o fewm 2
i | o W @I 6 Yol fed 9 Ta TR
O & 9 Gy 2001-02 H SR H 99.46 FfAwrd ST
o1 fast FufEl g f=ifd FRER &t qo ¥ I8
3R a1 =rerar € fop 56 O %W 9 W G Sufa =
H TR § wfd w3 | 9% WY, ek 3 9
%5 H Il Thet e R

T 2002-03 & fau wa o€ W & faw™ TwWH TE
3l wed € for ad 2001-02 W swEw h1 YU oy
FH WHIT 10492.72 HUS TIW H S&HL 10630.80
FS TIT B T, AUl TEE U 1.32 dfawd o afg
el T 2001-02 ®H TA A8 W & Yo oY & W
T 50.69 Wfaerd =t g g2 o Tha W @, =
fusat ad 9076.05 FHUS TIT o, 41.23 Ffawr T 0
amé R o8 2002-03 W SZHT 5345.96 Hg TIY ®
T free ad sad 232 wfaera @t gfg g oftl T
% WR 38651.73 HUS TIT H1 WM THxd fomam wen
o1, frsd ad & foau 9= Tfw 30233.14 F T o4t
3R sod fuwet ad @it 20.02 faeE it gfg & e
Y 27.87 wfawd & gfg gE

T 2002-03 & fau aRe foit Fufl & faw =m
Te SRR ¥ fF vem ad w1 thfaew, s fisd
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